
AGENDA 

MOLALLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

September 26, 2018 

7:00 PM 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

City Council Meeting Agenda 09/26/2018 Page 1 of 295 

Mayor Jimmy Thompson 

Council President Elizabeth Klein 
Councilor Leota Childress 
Councilor DeLise Palumbo 

Councilor Glen Boreth
Councilor Jody Newland 
Councilor Keith Swigart 

CALL TO ORDER 
Convene Meeting and Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance 

PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMUNICATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

(Citizens are allowed up to 3 minutes to present information relevant to the City but not listed as an item on the agenda.  Prior to speaking, citizens shall 
complete a comment form and deliver it to the City Recorder. The City Council does not generically engage in dialog with those making comments but may 
refer the issue to the City Manager.  Complaints shall first be addressed at the department level prior to addressing the City Council.) 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA 
1. City Council Minutes September 12, 2018
2. Information Only Regarding Road Funding by County

PUBLIC HEARING 
3. Transportation System Plan Update

ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, PROCLAMATIONS 
4. Ordinance 2018-13 Marijuana Processing and Retail

5. Ordinance 2018-14 Transportation System Master Plan

NEW BUSINESS 
6. IGA Amendment Library District

OLD BUSINESS 

REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

ADJOURN 

1



 

AGENDA  

MOLALLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

September 26, 2018 

7:00 PM 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 
 
 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 09/26/2018  Page 2 of 295 

 
 

Agenda posted at City Hall, Senior Center, Library and the City Website at http//www.cityofmolalla.com/meetings 
This meeting location is wheelchair accessible. Disabled individuals requiring other assistance must make their request known 48 hours preceding the 
meeting by contacting the City Recorder’s Office at 503-829-6855 

  

2



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER OF THE MOLALLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING; the regular meeting of September 12, 2018 was called to 

order by Mayor Jimmy Thompson at 7:00 P.M. 

 

 

COUNCIL ATTENDANCE:        STAFF IN ATTENDANCE   

Mayor Jimmy Thompson – Present    Dan Huff, City Manager – Present 

Councilor Elizabeth Klein – Absent     Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director – Present 

Councilor Leota Childress – Present    Chaunee Seifried, Finance Director – Present 

Councilor DeLise Palumbo – Absent    Rod Lucich, Police Chief – Absent 

Councilor Glen Boreth – Present     Kelly Richardson, City Recorder – Present 

Councilor Jody Newland – Present     Diana Hadley, Library Director – Absent 

Councilor Keith Swigart – Present     Chad Jacobs, City Attorney – Present 

 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMUNICATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
Connie Farrens, 22630 S. Upper Highland Rd, Beavercreek, President of Molalla Chamber, addressed the Council 
regarding the recent discussion of the need for Economic Growth and Development. The Chamber agreed with 
needing a plan for growth and development. Farrens felt the code was not business friendly and would need 
amended to attract potential new businesses. Some of the examples were; 

 That the code did not allow for another grocery store or big box store. 

 Conditional Uses. 
Farrens referred to a follow up email from CM Huff that she stated allowed grocery stores under the conditional 
use section.  Farrens felt three pages was a lot of information and restrictions placed on conditional uses.  
 

The following is the email referenced,  

On Wed, Sep 12, 2018 at 4:54 PM, Dan Huff <dhuff@cityofmolalla.com> wrote: 

Connie – Thank you for your letter. I just want to be clear with you that our new Development Code clearly allows for 

additional grocery or other big box stores within the city limits. We had this discussion when the code was adopted. 

Please review Table 17-2.2.030 – Commercial Retail is the descriptive term for large retail development including 

grocery or other commercial uses.  I am not sure where this is coming from because it is just not true. 

Dan Huff, City Manager 

3



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 2 of 9 

 

From: Connie Farrens <connie@pepcodesigns.com>  

Sent: Wednesday, September 12, 2018 5:04 PM 

To: Dan Huff <dhuff@cityofmolalla.com> 

Subject: Re: FW: Letter from Chamber 

 

This coming from concerned business owners that are looking at black and white descriptions.  This was a 

concern prior to the passing of the codes, was it is all sort of grey.  I am tried.  I bet you are too.  The 

new codes are not friendly. 

 
 
 

From: Dan Huff  

Sent: Wednesday, September 12, 2018 5:09 PM 

To: 'Connie Farrens' <connie@pepcodesigns.com> 

Subject: RE: FW: Letter from Chamber 

 

Well Connie, I disagree. But that is an opinion you can share. However, if you stand in front of Council and make a 

statement that the code does not allow another grocery store or a big box development you will be making an 

accusation that is flat untrue. What might be helpful is to understand what specifically is unfair? What is trying to 

develop here but cannot?  

 

 
Tracy Cox, 14411 S. Buckner Creek Rd Mulino, addressed Council regarding her concerns with the Municipal Code 
and the restrictions Cox felt applied to her properties and others. Cox was mostly concerned with the conditional 
use process as she felt it pertained to property development. Cox stated in comparison to Canby at 26 Molalla only 
allowed 7 outright permitted uses in the light industrial zone. Cox stated at which point the applicant would then 
need to reapply and pay more fees to possibly receive approval. Cox didn’t feel this to be business friendly.  
 
 
 Cox went on to explain because of what she felt to be a lot of restrictions, she decided not to complete the 
process to expand her business. Cox then gave another example of another business who has stated to her they 
can’t develop with the codes as they are. Cox then went through a series of trickle down because this other 
property couldn’t develop as they wanted to. Cox also stated she recalls when the code was adopted Council 

4



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 3 of 9 

 

stated let’s just get it passed and Council will fix it later. Cox wants to know when the discussions will begin. Cox 
then insinuated staff would approve or not approve based on who you were the good old boy way. Cox thought 
every type of business should be written down with a clear yes or no.  
 
Jim Taylor, 29480 S. Hult Rd Colton, Taylor addressed Council and felt CM Huff instructing Council to direct their 
attention to Economic Development was good thing. Taylor stated in his opinion the code was not conducive to 
doing business in Molalla. Taylor went on to give statistics based on his opinion and how that related to the code. 
Taylor appealed to Council to read the conditional use code as Taylor feels it is too restrictive for Molalla to be 
business ready. Taylor then went on to explain how he feels Molalla needs living wage jobs. Taylor explained that 
this is a document that Council jammed along and needs to address its issues.  
 
Taylor stated there is absolutely no code language regarding home occupations no one would be allowed to open 
a home occupation. Taylor pleaded with Mayor Thompson that this is not a funny issue but a serious issue. Mayor 
Thomson replied to Taylor and informed Taylor that there is a home occupation section of the code (17-2.3.120) 
so, it is a non-issue. Taylor continued to appeal to Council to investigate the fact that there is no language for 
home occupations in the code.  Taylor went on to say in the M-1 zone a cabinet shop would be a conditional use 
then that person would be required to go through the process in his opinion this is not necessary. Taylor stated he 
and the Chamber are asking for Council to review the code. Taylor went on to state that Urban Renewal money 
comes from commercial and industrial not residential. Mayor Thompson informed Taylor Urban Renewal dollars in 
fact do come from residential area and asked Mr. Taylor to wrap it up. Taylor again stated that the code needs 
fixed, please take it seriously.  
 
Councilor Childress addressed those who spoke regarding the over 18 months to 2 years that it took to review the 
code and none of the speakers came to those meetings to provide feedback until the last minute.  If Council were 
to open the discussion would they attend every meeting and listen to both sides. Childress stated she took 
personal offense that if it says conditional use, that any staff member would pick and choose on the bases of like 
or dislike. “This is not how the City operates it may have years ago but it does not now.” 
 
1. Oath of Office for Newly Appointed Councilor Jody Newland, Councilor Newland took oath of office administered by 

Mayor Thompson. Newland was joined by family and friends.  

2. Discussion regarding ODOT coordination.  

 John Makler, AICP Oregon Department of Transportation stated the following in a statement addressed to Mayor 
Thompson and Members of City Council;   

 
 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 

 

Good evening Mayor Thompson and Members of City Council, 

 

5



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 4 of 9 

 

Than you for the opportunity to join you this evening. I’ve prepared a brief opening statement but my expectation in 

visiting with you is to provide an opportunity to answer question you may have about ODOT’s recent actions in response 

to you land use decision-making.  

Oregon’s system of land use planning was established to protect critical resources and to keep our systems, including 

our infrastructure, in balance. The ideal is for communities like yours to establish clear plans that guide decisions, 

especially those made by public agencies. When exceptions are needed, such as when a jurisdiction decides to amend 

on of its plans, the onus is on that jurisdiction to ensure that the balance can by maintained.  

In the most recent instance, the City of Molalla accepted a proposal to convert acreage fronting Highway 213 from light 

industrial to commercial. It is not the State of Oregon’s job to agree or disagree with your decision but to ensure that the 

balance can be maintained. In this regard, we are collectively guided by a tiny part of the Oregon Administrative Rules 

called the Transportation Planning Rule. In the simplest terms, the TRP requires you, as the jurisdiction amending its 

comprehensive plan, to make sure that the long-term balance is in place. As I say so often to my seven-year-old son, “if 

you break it, you buy it.”  

When your planning commission reviews a staff report, the report must clearly communicate a finding of fact. Will the 

performance of the future transportation system be adequate at the end of the planning horizon?  In this instance, the 

staff report did not offer a finding that meets common standards for such documents.  

That is not a sufficient basis for an appeal, however. My problem was that the flaws of the staff report made the 

foundation of your decision vulnerable. That vulnerability presents a risk to the State and that risk is on that, in my 

judgement, we could not accept.  

Fortunately, this is easy to remedy. My staff and I are working with your staff – Mr. Huff, Mr. Fisher and Mr. Rodriquez – 

to correct the flaws in the staff report and make it possible for you to adopt a decision that eliminates the risk that 

concerns me.  

The thing that makes this visit worth it to me is to remind you to keep the state’s planning framework in mind when you 

consider these decisions. Keep in mind that if you choose to change your adopted plan, you have an obligation to 

maintain the balance. Your planning documents must address the tradeoffs in a clear and objective manner.   

In this instance, the facts of the case are that the changing in zoning will push the future ratio of volume to capacity from 

2.83 to 6.19 while the standard is 0.9. Because the “no build” performance (2.83) is already worse than the standard 

(0.9), the criterion is that there be sufficient mitigation to avoid “future degradation.” That is, reduce the v/c down to at 

least 2. X but not necessary 0.9. As it turns out, the solution we agree on produces 0.83.  

6



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 5 of 9 

 

 

If you don’t see a paragraph in the findings section of the staff report that spells this out, it is not a possible for the 

planning commission to make a valid recommendation or for you to make a valid decision.  

Secondly, it’s not enough to identify the mitigation. The TPR requires that is “reasonably likely” that the mitigation is in 

place within the planning horizon, which is this case is 20 years. Like many communities around Oregon, the City of 

Molalla does not have the financial resources, in excess of its existing obligations and commitments, to pay for this 

mitigation, even over 20 years. In many cases, the jurisdiction puts the onus on the applicant. If they want to build here, 

they are going to have to pay for the mitigation.  

This is why our land use decisions are designed to be so deliberative. The City is facing a choice. When commercial 

development comes knocking, the opportunity is very appealing, in Molalla and a hundred other cities. If the city has 

sufficient leverage, the applicant will sign a development agreement to pay for the mitigation. If the city lacks that 

leverage, it must devise a different financial solution (or face the possibility of missing out on this opportunity). In this 

case, the city must examine the opportunity cost of committing its resources to mitigating this development. What the 

city cannot do is approve the land use change if it cannot meet the “reasonably likely” test.  

Hence the necessity of ODOT’s appeal. Given the characteristics of the staff report, the planning commission’s 

recommendation and the council’s decision, it is the State’s conclusion that the transportation planning criterion is not 

met. You must insist that the critical questions – whether they are traffic or money – are dealt with explicitly.  

I want to end where I started: these decisions are local. ODOT does not get to decide whether you should use your land 

for this or that. But if your process lacks validity or obscures the truth, the State will be obligated to file appeals.  

Thank you for your time, I would be pleased to answer any questions.  

 

Submitted for the record by: 
Jon Makler, AICP 
Oregon Department of Transportation 
123 NW Flanders 
Portland, OR 97209 

 
 
 

7



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 6 of 9 

 

Following the statement by Jon Makler Councilors briefly discussed staff’s need to go back and make the changes as 
needed and bring the issue before them to approve the necessary changes. Council thanked Mr. Makler for coming and 
explaining the situation.  

 
(Citizens are allowed up to 3 minutes to present information relevant to the City but not listed as an item on the agenda.  Prior to speaking, citizens shall 
complete a comment form and deliver it to the City Recorder. The City Council does not generically engage in dialog with those making comments but may 
refer the issue to the City Manager.  Complaints shall first be addressed at the department level prior to addressing the City Council.) 

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
Motion made by Councilor Boreth to adopt the agenda as presented, Seconded by Councilor Newland. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart, Councilor Newland.  
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion made by Councilor Boreth to approve the consent agenda as presented, Seconded by Councilor Newland 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Swigart, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Newland.  
 
3. Molalla City Council Meeting Minutes August 22, 2018 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
4. Wastewater Facility and Collection System Master Plan (WWFCSMP) 

 Public Works Director Gerald Fisher explained that staff is currently working with DEQ and would request Council to 
postpone the hearing until the October 24 meeting.  

 
Motion made by Councilor Swigart to postpone the hearing until the October 24 meeting, Seconded by Councilor 
Boreth. Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart, Councilor Newland.  
 

5. Supplemental Budget Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 Motion made by Councilor Swigart to open the public hearing at 8:26 pm for Supplemental budget FY 2018-2019, 
Seconded by Councilor Boreth. Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart, 
Councilor Newland. 

 
 Mayor Thompson called for any comments hearing none Thompson called for a motion to close the Public Hearing.  
 

Motion made by Councilor Swigart to close the public hearing at 8:27 pm for Supplemental budget FY 2018-2019, 
Seconded by Councilor Childress. Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor 
Swigart, Councilor Newland. 
  
 Motion made by Councilor Boreth to adopt the Supplemental Budget FY 2018/2019 as presented, Seconded by 
Councilor Swigart 
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart, Councilor Newland.  
 
 

8



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 7 of 9 

 

6. Resolution 2018-16 Supplemental Budget 

 
Motion made by Councilor Boreth to approve resolution 2018-16 the Supplemental Budget as presented, Seconded by 
Councilor Newland. Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart, Councilor 
Newland.  

 
ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, PROCLAMATIONS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
7. County Wide Housing Needs Assessment 
 
 CM Huff explained to Council the necessity and requirements for the housing needs assessment. To have Molalla 

participate in the County wide assessment only requires staff time. The County will pay for the assessment to be 
completed.  

  
Motion made by Councilor Childress to participate in the County wide assessment, Seconded by Councilor Swigart.  
Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart, Councilor Newland.  
 

8. Future Topics 

 Mayor Thompson took the opportunity to explain why this item is on the agenda for newly appointed Councilor 
Newland.  

 
OLD BUSINESS 
9. PAL Building/Warming Center 

 Following a brief discussion regarding the various uses of the PAL Building, Council decide to approve the request for it 
to be used once again as a local warming center this winter.  Mayor Thompson stated that before we get to this point 
next year there should be a serious discussion about the future use of the building.   
Motion made by Mayor Thompson to approve the PAL Building to be used as a warming center, Seconded by Councilor 
Swigart. Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Swigart, Councilor Newland. 
Voting Abstaining: Councilor Childress as she has made the request.  
 
Councilor Childress made a statement that this would be there sixth year running the warming center and last year 
there was an increase of over 200%. There were homelessness and hard to see situations all around. It tugs at your 
heart strings.  
  

 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 Finance Director Seifried had nothing more to report. 

 Public Works Director Fisher informed the Council he had attended an online webinar regarding the 
drinking water program. They had brought in folks from Ohio State. Topic was cyanotoxins, the issue 

9



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 8 of 9 

 

referencing the topic that came up with the City of Salem.  This problem prompted the head of the 
Drinking Water Association to investigate what type of measures there are State wide to prevent 
cyanotoxins from entering our drinking water. All the agencies that had a potential of cyanotoxins were 
asked to participate. So next time renewal takes place, there will be additional requirements for all 
agencies. The testing will be difficult and expensive, so we have begun adding those to the budget. Fisher 
stated he asked as to why Molalla and Canby had been selected and it has to do with the rock formations 
upstream. It’s not just Detroit Lake. It’s all over and they will begin a sampling routine and until then it’s 
unsure of how this will return.  

Councilor Swigart asked why now, PWD Fisher stated the toxins have always been around. They are just now being 
discovered because of the issue that occurred in a city the size of Salem it increases the level of awareness.  
Councilor Childress asked the definition, and PWD Fisher stated it’s an accumulation of bacteria that produces the 
toxins.  
 Fenton Avenue will begin around the September 24 and end towards the end of October.  
 PWD Fisher wanted to call to attention of the Council that people are trying to drive through the 
construction zone and it needs to stop. It is unsafe for the crews on site and citizens.   
 
 Recycle Water Use Plan is moving along well DEQ came back with three comments, two of which were 
clarification.  
  
 Met with ODOT on the Highway 211 project. The preliminary design set was submitted. The various and 
potential issues was the focus of the meeting. Working on these before the final design is submitted. They are 
working on the changes for the IGA since Molalla received the $750,000 for the pedestrian design portion of the 
project.  Mayor Thompson directed staff to place something on the website that shows the project and the 
progress and status.  
Councilor Childress asked about the crosswalk and PWD Fisher stated it is in the project. However, there will not 
be flashing lights. Conduits will be ran but not supplied. Hopefully, we can find some Safe Routes to School dollars 
to help fund the lights later.  

 City Recorder Richardson had nothing to report.  

 CM Huff explained the information provided by the library district and the reason why changes to the IGA 
are needed. This really won’t affect Molalla. This is something that has to do with City Gladstone and the 
Oak Lodge Library. This is for your review. A new IGA will be coming to a future meeting. The issue is 
whether capital dollars should be used for facility upgrades or not.   
CM Huff praised our public safety staff for their exemplary job they did at the 911 tribute. Don’t forget 
they’re ready and willing to respond for our safety. 

 Councilor Boreth thanked Councilor Newland for joining Council along with the family for lending her to 
us.  

 Councilor Childress updated Council on the progress of the Celebrate Molalla event coming up on 
Saturday, September 22. There will be a party on South Molalla Avenue. Hopefully the community will 
enjoy their celebration. We are looking for volunteers for the day.  
 
 

Mayor Thompson welcomed Councilor Newland and thanked Councilors Childress and Klein for running for office 
in the upcoming election.  

10



 
Minutes of the Molalla City Council Meeting 

Molalla Adult Center 
315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR 97038 

Wednesday, September 12, 2018 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Page 9 of 9 

 

 
ADJOURN 
Motion made by Councilor Swigart to adjourn the September 12, 2018 Council meeting at 9:05 pm, Seconded by 
Councilor Childress. Voting Yea: Mayor Thompson, Councilor Boreth, Councilor Childress, Councilor Swigart, 
Councilor Newland.  
 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 

Mayor, Jimmy Thompson    Date 

 

 

 

 

 ATTEST: ________________________________  

  Kelly Richardson, CMC 

  City Recorder 

11



Road Funding by County – Portland Metro Region

For years, residents in neighboring counties have voted in additional local funding to support road maintenance in 
their communities. These local sources supplement state and federal funds.  (The year each fee was established is 
shown for each fee.)

1976
$7 M / Yr.

2009
$10.9+ M / Yr.

1977
$2.1 M / Yr.

1987
$3.7 M / Yr.

1986
$35 M / Yr.

2018
$8.1 M / Yr.

WASHINGTON 
COUNTY

CLACKAMAS 
COUNTY

MULTNOMAH 
COUNTY

Road Miles

1,300

Road Miles

230

Road Miles

1,400+

9/18/2018

$48.9 M Annual Collections

$17.9+ M Annual Collections

12



 

 

TEMPLATE:  
Month DD, 2018 
 
Clackamas County 
2051 Kaen Road 
Oregon City, OR 97045 
 
RE: Support for Clackamas County to enact a Vehicle Registration Fee 
 
 
Dear Board of County Commissioners: 
 
On behalf of <<insert city>>, we support Clackamas County’s consideration to enact a countywide 
vehicle registration fee (VRF).  A VRF would provide the cities and county with greater ability and 
additional resources to address congestion, safety and maintenance needs on our roads. 
 
Clackamas County is the only one of the three Portland metropolitan area counties that has no local 
source of transportation revenue. As we have discussed at the Clackamas County Coordinating 
Committee (C4), new, stable and locally controlled revenue will help the county and cities promote local 
values such as addressing maintenance needs on aging roadways and will support opportunities for new 
projects needed to keep traffic moving reliably and safely throughout our growing region. Additionally, 
proposals at C4 to create a strategic investments fund from potential county VRF revenue offers a new 
tool to promote cross jurisdictional coordination to meet our mutual congestion relief and maintenance 
objectives.    
 
<<Insert short paragraph describing how your city might use new revenue from a vehicle registration fee 
or identifying high-priority transportation needs in your community.>> 
 
We recognize and appreciate that passage of a local funding ordinance can be a challenge, but it is also 
necessary to respond to countywide needs such as deteriorating roads and ever-increasing commute 
times. We support Clackamas County making a bold decision today to address local funding needs 
through passage of a VRF by ordinance. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

13



City of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
Agenda Category: 

Public Hearing 
 

Subject: Transportation System Master Plan (TSP) 

Recommendation: Approve Transportation Master Plan 

Date of Meeting to 
be Presented: 

September 26, 2018 

Fiscal Impact:  

Submitted By: Public Works Director, Gerald Fisher 

Approved By: Dan Huff 

 

Background: 

The TSP was approved by the Planning Commission on September 05, 2018. The Commission recommended 
approval by City Council pending edits based on ODOT comments. On September 18, the final draft was 
submitted to and approved by ODOT. This packet includes a staff report, the final draft of the 2018 
Transportation System Plan, a redline copy of the revised sheets, a summary of the changes from Kittelson and 
Associates, and a letter from ODOT recommending adoption of the plan. 

Staff recommends City Council adopt the TSP and Comprehensive Plan Amendment. 

 

14



     Public Works Department 
                                  117 N Molalla Avenue 

                                                                        PO Box 248 
                                           Molalla, Oregon  97038 
                                       Phone: (503) 829-6855 

                        Fax: (503) 829-3676 
 

City of Molalla ◼ Public Works Department  ◼  117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038  ◼  (503) 759-0218 

 

              

September 18, 2018 
 

TO: City Council 
 
FROM: Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director 
 
CC: Dan Huff, City Manager 
 Aldo Rodriguez, Community Planner 

Kelly Richardson, City Recorder 
 
RE:  September 26, 2018 Council Hearing for adoption of the Transportation System Master 
Plan (#16-11) and Comprehensive Plan Amendment  

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACTION: 

Adoption of a Transportation System Master Plan (TSP) as a support document to the Comprehensive 

Plan.  The TSP presents findings and recommendations relating to the City of Molalla transportation 

system.  The plan determines the current state of the transportation system and plans for future 

needs.  The primary objectives of this TSP are: 

1. Develop a balanced and connected multimodal transportation system; 

2. Increase convenient and safe bicycle and pedestrian access to key destinations; 

3. Preserve and enhance state highways, county roadways, and City streets; 

4. Reduce emissions through reduced automobile vehicle miles traveled; 

5. Comply with state policies, plans, standards, and requirements; 

6. Analyze Molalla Forest Road compared to original plan designation; and 

7. Provide planning level cost estimates. 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 

A. Background Information: 

On July 3, 2017, ODOT entered into contract with Kittelson and Associates, Inc. (KAI) to 

provide consulting services to prepare a comprehensive WWFCSMP for the City of Molalla. 

Over the course of the last year, KAI has developed a draft TSP in conjunction with input from 

City staff and a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and Project Advisory Committee (PAC). 

The master plan developed a capital improvement plan that lists each project, includes an 

opinion of probable costs, along with an order of priority. The total estimated cost, in 2018 

dollars, for collection and treatment systems is $99,130,000. 

B. Transportation System Master Plan Summary: 

15



 

2 | P a g e  
 

The Master Plan evaluated population, development densities, land use and other factors that 

affect the transportation system. Data on the existing system was obtained from a 

combination of record drawings, site visits, and staff input. The plan then makes 

recommendations for improvements to the Transportation System. 

C. Review Criteria: 

1. If the proposal involves an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan, the amendment 

must be consistent with the Statewide Planning Goals and relevant Oregon 

Administrative Rules; 

 

Findings: 

Relevant Statewide Planning Goals are: 

 

Goal 1 Citizen Participation 

The goal of the Citizen Involvement element of the Comprehensive Plan is to “Insure 

that the citizens of Molalla and those residents in the planning area have an 

opportunity to be involved with all phases of the planning process.” This was done 

with a Project Advisory Committee (PAC) that included citizens and members of City 

Council. In addition, news release in the local newspaper, project fliers distributed 

during a monthly utility billing cycle, and hosting a public stakeholders’ meeting. 

Lastly, holding public hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council. 

Statewide Planning Goal Findings are included in this Staff Report under Statewide 

Planning Goal Findings and discussed in the context of their implementation in the 

adopted Molalla Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Goal 2: Land Use Planning 

The goal of Land Use Planning is to “establish a land use planning process and policy 

framework as a basis for all decisions and actions related to use of land and to assure 

an adequate factual base for such decisions and actions.” Phase 2 of the 

Comprehensive Plan identified revisions to the Molalla Development Code (completed 

in 2017) and the Molalla Transportation System Plan. This was accomplished by 

revising the master plan in coordination with the Oregon Department of 

Transportation. 

 

Goal 6: Air, Water and Land Resources Quality 

The goal of Air, Water and Land Resources Quality is to “cities and counties to 

maintain and improve the quality of air, water.” This was accomplished with 

evaluation of the current system to create a master plan to meet the goal and the 

requirements by alleviating congestion and providing transportation mode 

alternatives to motor vehicles. 

 

Goal 8: Recreational Needs 

The goal of Recreational Needs is to provide for recreation areas, facility and 

opportunities. This was accomplished by providing multimodal connections between 

parks/open spaces and other land uses. 

16



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 

Goal 11: Public Facilities and Services 

The goal of the Public Facilities and Services element of the Comprehensive Plan is to 

“Ensure livable and complete neighborhoods – with adequate sanitary sewer, water, 

storm drainage, transportation, park and school facilities.” One of the objectives of 

this element is to prepare and periodically update its transportation system Plan. The 

plan shall be designed to accommodate the growth anticipated in undeveloped 

portions of the Molalla Planning Area.” The purpose of the TSP is to: 

1. Provide the City of Molalla with a comprehensive transportation document. 

2. Summarize existing system deficiencies and propose improvements to enhance 

system serviceability. 

3. Recommend improvements needed to service future growth. 

4. Develop a capital improvement plan and an appropriate system implementation 

strategy. 

 

Goal 12: Transportation: 

The goal of the Transportation element of the Comprehensive Plan is to reduce 

congestion, provide for a safe and convenient system, conserve energy, minimize 

vehicular impact, provide adequate roadway network, identify and prioritize 

transportation improvement needs, identify funding sources, promote alternative 

modes of transportation, and provide adequate roadway network related to function, 

capacity, level of service, and safety. This was done by recommending improvements 

that provided transportation alternatives while balancing connectivity and level of 

service for motor vehicle and freight needs. 

 

Goal 13: Energy Conservation: 

The goal of Energy Conservation is to conserve energy in existing and proposed 

community development. This was accomplished by development of 

bicycle/pedestrian paths and enhancement of the transit system. 

 

Goal 14: Urbanization 

The goal of the Urbanization element of the Comprehensive Plan is to “Protect 

agricultural and forest land outside Molalla Urban Growth Boundary until needed for 

development consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 14 (Urbanization).” This was 

done by recommending improvements to the transportation system needed 

accommodate the future of growth of the City of Molalla in the 20-year scope. 

 

2. The proposal must be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (the Comprehensive 

Plan may be amended concurrently with proposed changes in zoning); 

 

Findings: 

Molalla Comprehensive Plan Goals 1, 2, 6, 8, 11, 12, 13 and 14 are discussed under 

Statewide Planning Goal Findings. 

 

17



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 

3. The City Council must find the proposal to be in the public interest with regard to 

community conditions; the proposal either responds to changes in the community, or 

it corrects a mistake or inconsistency in the subject plan or code; 

 

Findings of Fact: 

The current TSP element of the Comprehensive Plan was adopted in 2001. City of 

Molalla has experienced a significant amount of growth since 2001. The proposed 

master plan is much more detailed than the existing Public Facilities and Services 

element and is more up to date. Data on the existing system was obtained from a 

combination of record drawings, site visits, traffic counts, and staff comments. The 

amendment will improve the Comprehensive Plan by providing an up to date 

inventory and framework for transportation system improvements. 

 

4. The amendment must conform to Section 17-4.6.050 Transportation Planning Rule 

Compliance. (Ord. 2017-08 §1) 

 

Findings of Fact: 

The document complies with the Oregon Transportation Plan (OTP), state’s 

Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP) and presents the 

investments and priorities for the pedestrian, bicycle, transit, motor vehicle, and other 

transportation systems. The plan has also been reviewed and approved by the Oregon 

Department of Transportation as complying with the OAR 660-012-0060 (TPR). 

 

D. Recommendations: 

City Staff recommends the City Council review the Transportation System Master Plan at a 

public hearing and adopt the Ordinance to approve the Comprehensive Plan amendment or 

approve the Comprehensive Plan amendment with modifications. 

 

 

18



CITY OF MOLALLA 
TRANSPORTATION 

SYSTEM PLAN
2018

19



 

PAGE 2 

DRAFT 

CITY OF MOLALLA 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN 
Molalla, Oregon 

Prepared For: 

City of Molalla 

117 N Molalla Avenue 

Molalla, OR 97038 

(503) 829-6855 

Prepared By: 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

851 SW 6th Avenue, Suite 600 

Portland, OR 97204 

(503) 228-5230 

Project Manager: Matt Bell 

Project Analyst: Nicholas Gross  

Project Principal: Matt Hughart 

September 2018 

 

  

20



 

PAGE 3 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
The production of the 2018 Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) has been the collective effort of the 

following people: 

City Council Members 

 Mayor Jimmy Thompson 

 Councilor Leota Childress 

 Councilor Glen Boreth 

 Councilor Elizabeth Klein 

 Councilor Keith Swigart 

 Councilor DeLise Palumbo 

 Councilor Cindy Dragowsky 

Planning Commission Members 

 Rae Lynn Botsford, Chair 

 Omar Reynaga 

 Debbie Lumb 

 Jennifer Satter 

 Doug Eaglebear 

 Hardeep Singh Brar 

Public Advisory Committee (PAC) Members 

 James Bobst, Pacific Fibre Products 

 Mitch Jorgensen, Molalla Redi-Mix 

 Lauren Welsh, CashCo 

 Garrett Dunn, Big Meadows HOA 

 Debbie Lumb, Planning Commission 

 Keith Swigart, City Council 

 Delise Palumbo, City Council 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Members 

 Aldo Rodriguez, City of Molalla 

 Frank Schoenfeld, City of Molalla 

 Karen Buehrig, Clackamas County 

 Shirley Lyons, South Clackamas 

Transportation District 

 Matthew Lacy, Molalla River School 

District 

 Dave Luce, Molalla River School District 

 Mike Penunuri, Molalla River Fire 

Department 

Project Management Team (PMT) Members 

 Gerald Fisher, City of Molalla 

 Dan Huff, City of Molalla 

 Gail Curtis, Oregon Department of 

Transportation 

 Joshua Brookings, Oregon Department of 

Transportation 

 Matt Bell, Kittelson & Associates 

 Nick Gross, Kittelson & Associates 

 Mat Hughart, Kittelson & Associates 

 Matt Hastie, Angelo Planning Group 

 Andrew Parish, Angelo Planning Group 

This project is partially funded by a grant from the Transportation and Growth Management (“TGM”) 

Program, a joint program of the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD). This TGM grant is financed, in part, by federal Fixing America’s 

Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act), Federal Transit Administration, and State of Oregon funds.” The 

contents of this document do not necessarily reflect views or policies of the State of Oregon. 

 

21



 

PAGE 4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction  ....................................................................................................................................... 9 

Molalla 2018 ................................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

TSP Organization and Methodology .......................................................................................................................................... 12 

TSP Update Process ................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Committees ............................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Public Involvement .................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Land Use .................................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Goals and Objectives ............................................................................................................................ 19 

Goals and Objectives ................................................................................................................................................................. 19 

Project Selection and Prioritization ........................................................................................................................................... 21 

Pedestrian System ................................................................................................................................ 26 

Pedestrian Facilities ................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

Pedestrian Plan.......................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

Bicycle System  ..................................................................................................................................... 35 

Bicycle Facilities ......................................................................................................................................................................... 35 

Bicycle Plan ................................................................................................................................................................................ 38 

Transit System  ..................................................................................................................................... 44 

Transit Facilities ......................................................................................................................................................................... 44 

Transit Plan ................................................................................................................................................................................ 46 

Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO) ........................................................... 50 

Transportation System Management (TSM) ............................................................................................................................. 50 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) ........................................................................................................................... 53 

Access Management Plan.......................................................................................................................................................... 56 

Motor Vehicle System .......................................................................................................................... 63 

Functional Classification Plan .................................................................................................................................................... 63 

Roadway Cross Section Standards ............................................................................................................................................. 64 

Street System Connectivity ....................................................................................................................................................... 74 

Motor Vehicle Facilities ............................................................................................................................................................. 74 

Motor Vehicle Plan .................................................................................................................................................................... 76 

22



 

PAGE 5 

Traffic Safety Plan ...................................................................................................................................................................... 81 

Other Travel Modes ............................................................................................................................. 84 

Rail Transportation .................................................................................................................................................................... 84 

Air Transportation ..................................................................................................................................................................... 84 

Water Transportation ................................................................................................................................................................ 85 

Freight Transportation .............................................................................................................................................................. 85 

Pipeline ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 87 

Funding, Implementation, and Monitoring.......................................................................................... 89 

Historical Revenue Sources ....................................................................................................................................................... 89 

Historical Expenditures.............................................................................................................................................................. 89 

Projected Transportation Funding and Funding Outlook .......................................................................................................... 89 

Planned System Costs ............................................................................................................................................................... 90 

Implementation ......................................................................................................................................................................... 91 

Glossary of Terms ................................................................................................................................. 98 

  

23



 

PAGE 6 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 1: Study Area ............................................................................................................................. 10 

Figure 2: Changes in Households by TAZ (2017 to 2040) ..................................................................... 16 

Figure 3: Changes in Employment by TAZ (2017 to 2040) ................................................................... 17 

Figure 4: Safe Routes to School ............................................................................................................ 32 

Figure 5: Pedestrian Plan Project ......................................................................................................... 33 

Figure 6: Bicycle Plan Project ............................................................................................................... 42 

Figure 7: Transit Plan Project ............................................................................................................... 48 

Figure 8: Roadway Functional Classification Plan ................................................................................ 65 

Figure 9: Local Street Connectivity ....................................................................................................... 75 

Figure 10: Motor Vehicle Plan Projects ................................................................................................ 80 

Figure 11: Traffic Safety Plan Projects .................................................................................................. 82 

Figure 12: Freight Routes ..................................................................................................................... 86 

  

24



 

PAGE 7 

LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1: Molalla Population and Land Use Summary .......................................................................... 14 

Table 2: Project Evaluation Criteria ...................................................................................................... 22 

Table 3: Pedestrian Plan Improvement Projects .................................................................................. 28 

Table 4: Bicycle Plan Improvement Projects ........................................................................................ 38 

Table 5: Transit Plan Improvement Projects ........................................................................................ 47 

Table 6: Transportation System Management Projects ...................................................................... 52 

Table 7: Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Strategies ...................................................... 54 

Table 8: Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) Options by Functional Classification ................. 55 

Table 9: OR 213 and OR 211 ODOT Access Management Standards .................................................. 56 

Table 10: Minimum Intersection Spacing Standards ........................................................................... 57 

Table 11: Private Access Driveway Width Standards ........................................................................... 57 

Table 12: Example of Crossover Easement/Indenture/Consolidation ................................................. 60 

Table 13: Functional Classification Plan ............................................................................................... 64 

Table 14: City of Molalla Roadway Cross Section Standards ............................................................... 66 

Table 15: Arterial Cross Section Standards ......................................................................................... 68 

Table 16: Arterial (Downtown District) Cross Section Standards ...................................................... 69 

Table 17: Major Collector Cross Section Standards ........................................................................... 70 

Table 18: Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Cross Section Standards ....................................... 71 

Table 19: Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Cross Section Standards ....................................... 72 

Table 20: Local Street Cross Section Standards .................................................................................. 73 

Table 21: Local Street Connectivity ...................................................................................................... 74 

Table 22: Motor Vehicle Plan Projects ................................................................................................. 77 

Table 23: Traffic Safety Plan Projects ................................................................................................... 81 

Table 24: Future Transportation Funding Projections ......................................................................... 90 

Table 25: Future Transportation Expenditures Projections ................................................................. 90 

Table 26: Planned Transportation System Cost Summary ................................................................... 91 

 

25



 

PAGE 8 

N 

  

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION 

26



 

PAGE 9 

INTRODUCTION 
The Molalla transportation system plan (TSP) is a long-range plan that sets the vision for the city’s 

transportation system, facilities and services to meet state, regional, and local needs for the next 20 years. 

The TSP was developed through community and stakeholder input and is based on the system’s existing 

and projected future needs and anticipated available funding. The plan also serves as the Transportation 

Element of the Molalla Comprehensive Plan. The purpose of the 2018 TSP update is to address growth in 

Molalla and its surrounding communities as well as address regulatory changes that have occurred in the 

region since 2001. The TSP addresses compliance with new or amended federal, state, and local plans, 

policies, and regulations including the Oregon Transportation Plan (OTP), the state’s Transportation 

Planning Rule (TPR), the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP), and presents the investments and priorities for the 

Pedestrian, Bicycle, Transit, Motor Vehicle, and other transportation systems. 

MOLALLA 2018 

The City of Molalla, incorporated in 1913, is located in the western portion of Clackamas County, and is 

home to a population of approximately 9,900 people. The city lies outside of the Portland Metro Service 

District, roughly 15 miles south of Oregon City and 13 miles east of Interstate 5. Bounded by the farm lands 

and rural development of unincorporated Clackamas County, the city is best known for the Molalla 

Buckeroo; an annual event held since the city’s annexation to celebrate the Nations birthday during the 

first week of July. The city’s commercial district is concentrated around the confluence of Molalla Avenue 

and OR 211. OR 211 runs east-west through the heart of Molalla’s commercial district and is commonly 

referred to as Main Street due to its character of abutting businesses and attractions. Traveling to and 

from Molalla is most commonly achieve along OR 213 and OR 211. OR 213 travels north-south along the 

western edge of the city limits whereas, OR 211 travels east-west through the heart of the downtown 

commercial area serving as the city’s “main street.” Figure 1 illustrates the study area for the TSP update. 

KEY DESTINATIONS 

Establishing key destinations as “activity generators” is an essential step in planning for the future of a 

city’s transportation system. These destinations often fall under the categories of residential, employment, 

shopping, schools, civic buildings, recreation, and entertainment. Figure 1 illustrates the city’s key 

destinations used as part of the existing transportation system and future needs analysis as well as the 

development and prioritization of the multimodal projects. These key destinations include, but are not 

limited to, the Molalla Library, City Hall, Post Office, Long Park, Urgent Care, Health Clinics, Trailheads, and 

places of worship. 

  

27



rñ

ÀÀò

!r

¨"!̈

!F

!F

!F

ÃÃ
G

G

IH

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ
ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

®Z

å å

å

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Sw
ieg

le 
Av

e

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e
Lo

la 
Av

e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd StE 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
1

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\01

_S
tud

y A
rea

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  8

:42
 AM

 8/
13

/20
18

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Study Area
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Essential Destinations
å School
rñ City Hall
¨"!̈ Fire Department
G Healthcare Clinic
G Urgent Care
!r Aquatic Center
IH Library

ÃÃ Food Pantry
ÃÃ Place of Worship
ÃÃ Community Center
ÀÀò Historical
!F Trailhead
®Z Airport

Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

28



 

PAGE 11 

City of Molalla, Long Park 

 

City of Molalla, City Hall 

TRANSPORTATION PLAN FOCUS AREAS 

The following elements are of particular focus in addressing Molalla’s transportation system needs: 

Pedestrians 

 Address gaps and deficiencies in the 

sidewalks that connect residents to 

schools, parks, churches, etc. 

 Enhanced crossings along major 

roadway and at major intersections 

 Provide safe and interconnected 

pedestrian facilities that encourage 

people to walk, especially for trips less 

than one-half mile in length. 

Bicyclist 

 Address gaps and deficiencies in the 

bicycle facilities (e.g., bike lanes) that 

connect residents to schools, parks, 

churches, etc. 

 Enhanced crossings along major 

roadway and at major intersections 

 Provide safe and interconnected 

bicycle facilities that encourage people 

to ride their bicycles, especially for trips 

less than three miles 

Transit Users 

 Improve awareness of existing transit facilities 

and services 

 Improve service hours, frequency of service, 

and service coverage 

 Improve service to regional centers, such as 

Woodburn, Salem, and Estacada 

 Improve signage and visibility of transit stops 

and transit stop amenities 

Motorist 

 Address streets with deficiencies in pavement 

width and condition 

 Address intersections with deficiencies in 

current or projected future operations 

 Address roadways and intersections with a 

history of fatal or serious injury crashes 

 Address street connectivity due to recent 

development and environmental issues 

 Address designated freight routes or 

restrictions on freight movements within the 

city 

  

29



 

PAGE 12 

TSP ORGANIZATION AND METHODOLOGY 

The TSP is organized into chapters that address each individual mode of transportation available and its 

network in the overall Molalla transportation system. Chapter 2 presents the goals and objectives along 

with the evaluation criteria used to evaluate and prioritize projects and programs. Chapters 3 through 8 

present the transportation system improvement projects identified by the project team to address needs 

and deficiencies in the City’s transportation system. Chapter 9 presents the funding, implementation, and 

monitoring plan for the TSP update, including existing and potential future funding sources to finance the 

identified transportation system improvements. Volume II: Technical Appendix contains the Technical 

Memorandums completed throughout the TSP update process, which showcase the inventory, analysis, 

and project list identification efforts. 

TSP UPDATE PROCESS 

The TSP update process began with a review of local, regional, and statewide plans and policies that 

guide land use and transportation planning in the City. Goals and objectives and evaluation criteria were 

then developed to guide the evaluation of existing and project future transportation system conditions 

as well as the development of planned improvements. An inventory of the multimodal transportation 

system was then conducted to serve as the basis for the existing and future conditions analyses. The 

existing and future conditions analyses focused on identifying gaps and deficiencies in the multimodal 

transportation system based on current and forecast future performance. For each gap and deficiency, 

several solutions were evaluated to address the system needs. This process led to the development of a 

large number of plans, programs, and projects. The plans, programs, and projects were then prioritized 

using the project evaluation criteria and organized into high, medium, and low priority.1 The culmination 

of the TSP update process is this document, which presents the plans, programs, and projects identified 

to address the existing and future gaps and deficiencies in the City’s transportation system. 

COMMITTEES 

The project team developed the TSP update in close coordination with city staff along with key 

stakeholders and representatives from the community. Two formal committees participated in the TSP 

update, including a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and a Policy Advisory Committee (PAC). The 

TAC consisted of representatives from Molalla, Clackamas County, Oregon Department of Transportation 

(ODOT), South Clackamas Transit District (SCTD), Molalla River School District, Molalla Police Department, 

and Molalla Rural Fire Protection District. The TAC provided technical guidance and coordination 

                                                      

1 Given the funding shortfalls identified in this Plan, none of the projects identified as high, medium, or low priority would be 

considered “financially constrained” or “reasonably likely” for purposes of compliance with section 0060 of the Oregon 

Transportation Planning Rule. The high, medium, and low designations will be used to guide the City’s efforts to pursue 

funding for the transportation system. Furthermore, inclusion of projects in this TSP and identification of state funding as a 

possible source of revenue does not ensure that state funding will be available or allocated to these projects. 

30



 

PAGE 13 

throughout the project. TAC members reviewed and commented on technical memorandums and 

participated in committee meetings, community meetings, and workshops. The PAC consisted of local 

residents and property owners with an interest in transportation who were appointed to serve on the PAC. 

The PAC served as the voice of the community and the caretakers of the goals and objectives of the TSP 

update. Much like the TAC, PAC members reviewed and commented on technical memorandums and 

participated in committee meetings, community meetings, and workshops. 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

Opportunities for public involvement were made available throughout the TSP update process. The 

opportunities consisted of continuous web-based communications about upcoming committee 

meetings, community meetings, and workshops via the project website (www.molallatsp.com). The project 

website also included an interactive map that allowed anyone with access to a computer to provide 

comments to the project team about transportation-related issues within the community. The project 

team met with the project advisory committees seven times throughout the TSP update process (three 

TAC meetings, four PAC meetings). Each PAC meeting was open to the general public. The project team 

also hosted two community meetings at the Molalla Adult Community Center. Both community meetings 

were accompanied by an online community meeting that offered participants the same opportunities 

to provide input on project materials and share their concerns related to the transportation system. 

Additionally, the project team also met with the Planning Commission and City Council several times 

throughout the planning process (one joint training session, two joint workshops, and two hearings). Each 

meeting/workshop/hearing was open to the general public. The goal of the public involvement process 

was to develop a TSP update that addressed the gaps and deficiencies in the transportation system while 

meeting the needs of the community. 

  

LAND USE 

Land use plays an important role in developing a comprehensive transportation system. The amount of 

land that is planned to be developed, the type of land uses, and how the land uses are mixed together 

31



 

PAGE 14 

have a direct impact on how the transportation system will be used in the future. Understanding land use 

is critical to taking actions to maintain or enhance the transportation system. 

Changes in population, housing, and employment within Molalla’s urban growth boundary (UGB) will 

have a significant impact on the existing transportation system and will create new travel demands. These 

growth projections and how they translate to new trips on the transportation network are key elements of 

the future conditions and performance analysis. 

POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLD FORECAST 

Population data for Molalla was obtained from Portland State University’s Population Research Center 

(PRC). The PRC’s Coordinated Population Forecast for Clackamas County and areas within Urban Growth 

Boundaries (UGB) includes base year 2017 and forecast year 2035 and 2067 population estimates for 

Molalla as well as estimates of persons per household. Based on the data, the population is currently 9,939 

persons and is projected to be 15,841 persons in the year 2040; this reflects an Average Annual Growth 

Rate (AAGR) of approximately 2.2 percent per year between 2017 and 2035 and an AAGR of 

approximately 1.5 percent per year between 2035 and 2040. The persons per household is currently 2.8 

and is projected to be 2.8 in 2040. Dividing the population data by 2.8 results in an estimated 3,550 

households in 2017 and 5,658 households in the year 2040. 

EMPLOYMENT FORECAST 

Employment data for Molalla was obtained from the draft Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) 

prepared by Johnson Economics. The data includes base year 2016 and forecast year 2036 employment 

estimates for six typologies, including office, institution, flex space/business park, industrial, warehouse, 

and retail. The EOA provides an estimated number of employees for each typology and an estimated 

acreage of employment space needed to support the employees. Based on the data, there is currently 

3,586 employees and 238.9 acres of employment space within Molalla and there is projected to be 6,295 

employees and 420.9 acres of employment space in the year 2040. 

Table 1 summarizes the population and employment data for year 2017 and forecast year 2040 

conditions. As shown, employment is expected to grow at a higher rate than the population over the 23-

year period. 

Table 1: Molalla Population and Land Use Summary 

Land Use 2017 2040 Change Annual Percent Change 

Population 9,939 15,841 5,902 2.2%/1.5% 

Households 3,550 5,658 2,108 2.2%/1.5% 

Employment 3,586 6,295 2,709 3.3% 

Acres 238.9 420.9 182.1 3.3% 

 

32



 

PAGE 15 

The population and employment data shown in Table 1 was distributed throughout the City based on 

information provided in a recent Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) prepared by Winterbrook Planning. The 

BLI identifies the amount of vacant land within the city and the type of households and employment uses 

that can be accommodated by the land based on the current comprehensive plan and zoning 

designations. Based on the BLI, the city cannot accommodate all the household and employment growth 

that is expected within the planning period without changes to current zoning designations, development 

patterns, and/or the UGB. 

Given that the changes necessary to accommodate household and employment growth within the City 

are likely to occur within the planning horizon of the TSP, but following the development of the TSP Update, 

two land use scenarios were developed for the future conditions analysis: The first scenario reflects the 

level of development that can be accommodated within the City based on the current zoning 

designations and development patters; the second scenario reflects all the development associated with 

the population and employment growth; both scenarios reflect conditions within the current UGB. 

Figures 2 and 3 illustrate the changes in households and employment (jobs) associated with each land 

use scenario by Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ). The TAZs shown in Figures 2 and 3 were developed as 

part of the TSP Update based on the current zoning designations and the location of major roadways 

and intersections throughout the City. The TAZs provide a convenient way of evaluating and summarizing 

the population and household data for the City. 

As land uses change in proportion to each other (i.e. there is a significant increase in employment relative 

to household growth), there will be a shift in the overall operation of the transportation system. Retail land 

uses generate a higher number of trips per acre of land than residential and other land uses. The location 

and design of retail land uses in a community can greatly affect transportation system operation. 

Additionally, if a community is homogeneous in land use character (i.e. all employment or all residential), 

the transportation system must support significant trips coming to or from the community rather than within 

the community. Typically, there should be a mix of residential, commercial, and employment type land 

uses so that some residents may work and shop locally, reducing the need for residents to travel long 

distances. The data shown in Table 1 indicates that significant growth is expected in Molalla in the coming 

years, particularly employment opportunities. The transportation system should be monitored to make 

sure that land uses in the plan are balanced with transportation system capacity. 

  

33



vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e
Sto

we
rs 

Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
lag

e D
r

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S Macksburg Rd

S Barbara Way

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln S Vick Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

TAZ: 12
2017 HH: 0

2040 HH S1: 0
2040 HH S2: 0 TAZ: 13

2017 HH: 21
2040 HH S1: 21
2040 HH S2: 21

TAZ: 19
2017 HH: 270

2040 HH S1: 292
2040 HH S2: 313

TAZ: 7
2017 HH: 18

2040 HH S1: 18
2040 HH S2: 18

TAZ: 1
2017 HH: 1033

2040 HH S1: 1214
2040 HH S2: 1392

TAZ: 2
2017 HH: 420

2040 HH S1: 554
2040 HH S2: 685

TAZ: 4
2017 HH: 3

2040 HH S1: 3
2040 HH S2: 3

TAZ: 5
2017 HH: 69

2040 HH S1: 406
2040 HH S2: 738

TAZ: 6
2017 HH: 478

2040 HH S1: 528
2040 HH S2: 577

TAZ: 16
2017 HH: 5

2040 HH S1: 5
2040 HH S2: 5

TAZ: 14
2017 HH: 283

2040 HH S1: 354
2040 HH S2: 424

TAZ: 11
2017 HH: 28

2040 HH S1: 28
2040 HH S2: 28

TAZ: 18
2017 HH: 201

2040 HH S1: 269
2040 HH S2: 336

TAZ: 8
2017 HH: 382

2040 HH S1: 557
2040 HH S2: 729

TAZ: 10
2017 HH: 291

2040 HH S1: 309
2040 HH S2: 325

TAZ: 3
2017 HH: 11

2040 HH S1: 20
2040 HH S2: 29

TAZ: 9
2017 HH: 0

2040 HH S1: 0
2040 HH S2: 0

TAZ: 15
2017 HH: 12

2040 HH S1: 12
2040 HH S2: 12

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
2

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\02

_T
AZ

 H
ou

se
ho

lds
.m

xd
 - m

be
ll -

  8
:43

 AM
 8/

13
/20

18

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Forecast Household Growth by Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ)
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Transportation Analysis Zones (TAZ)
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

34



Ü

Ü

Ü

Ü

Ü

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e
Sto

we
rs 

Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
lag

e D
r

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S Macksburg Rd

S Barbara Way

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln S Vick Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

TAZ: 12
2017 Emp: 180

2040 Emp S1: 454
2040 Emp S2: 657

TAZ: 13
2017 Emp: 480

2040 Emp S1: 764
2040 Emp S2: 973

TAZ: 19
2017 Emp: 54

2040 Emp S1: 86
2040 Emp S2: 110

TAZ: 7
2017 Emp: 64

2040 Emp S1: 82
2040 Emp S2: 95

TAZ: 1
2017 Emp: 0

2040 Emp S1: 0
2040 Emp S2: 0

TAZ: 2
2017 Emp: 0

2040 Emp S1: 0
2040 Emp S2: 0

TAZ: 4
2017 Emp: 430

2040 Emp S1: 567
2040 Emp S2: 668

TAZ: 5
2017 Emp: 38

2040 Emp S1: 38
2040 Emp S2: 38

TAZ: 6
2017 Emp: 219

2040 Emp S1: 340
2040 Emp S2: 430

TAZ: 16
2017 Emp: 29

2040 Emp S1: 29
2040 Emp S2: 29

TAZ: 14
2017 Emp: 722

2040 Emp S1: 1000
2040 Emp S2: 1206

TAZ: 11
2017 Emp: 156

2040 Emp S1: 162
2040 Emp S2: 166

TAZ: 18
2017 Emp: 286

2040 Emp S1: 577
2040 Emp S2: 791

TAZ: 8
2017 Emp: 19

2040 Emp S1: 19
2040 Emp S2: 19

TAZ: 10
2017 Emp: 74

2040 Emp S1: 74
2040 Emp S2: 74

TAZ: 3
2017 Emp: 116

2040 Emp S1: 173
2040 Emp S2: 215

TAZ: 9
2017 Emp: 0

2040 Emp S1: 0
2040 Emp S2: 0

TAZ: 15
2017 Emp: 690

2040 Emp S1: 750
2040 Emp S2: 795

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
3

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\03

_T
AZ

 E
mp

loy
me

nt.
mx

d -
 m

be
ll -

  8
:43

 AM
 8/

13
/20

18

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Forecast Employment Growth by Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ)
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ)
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

35



 

PAGE 18 

 

  

CHAPTER 2: GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

36



 

PAGE 19 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
The project team developed goals and objectives for the TSP update to help guide the review and 

documentation of existing and future transportation system needs, the development and evaluation of 

potential solutions to address the needs, and the selection and prioritization of preferred solutions for 

inclusion in the TSP update. The goals and objectives also inform recommendations for policy language 

that will serve as guidance for future land use decision making, such as approval criteria related to zone 

change and comprehensive plan amendments. The goals and objectives will enable the City to plan for, 

and consistently work towards, achieving the vision of a connected community. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The goals and objectives for the Molalla TSP update are based on an evaluation of the existing goals and 

policies in the current Molalla TSP and Comprehensive Plan. The goals provide direction for where the City 

would like to go, while the objectives provide a more detailed breakdown of the goals with specific 

outcomes the City desires to achieve. In order to ensure compliance with the Transportation Planning 

Rule (TPR) and other state, regional, and local planning requirements, the goals and objectives presented 

below tend to favor improvements in active transportation facilities and services over capacity 

improvements. 

GOAL 1 – MOBILITY 

Provide a balanced, safe, and efficient transportation system for all members of the community. 

Objectives 

A. Reduce reliance on single occupancy vehicles by improving the quality of available transit service 

and developing bicycle and pedestrian facilities that encourage non-vehicular modes of 

transportation. 

B. Reduce reliance on state facilities for making local trips by providing a network of arterials, 

collectors, and local streets that are interconnected, appropriately spaced, and reasonably 

direct. 

C. Provide for adequate intersection and street capacity by identifying existing and potential future 

capacity constraints and developing strategies to address those constraints, including potential 

intersection improvements, future roadway needs, and future street connections. 

GOAL 2 – CONNECTIVITY AND ACCESSIBILITY 

Objectives 

Develop an interconnected, multimodal transportation system that connects all members of the 

community to destinations within the City and beyond. 

A. Improve existing connections between households and schools, parks, transit stops and other 

community destinations. 

37



 

PAGE 20 

B. Create new connections between households and schools, parks, transit stops and other 

community destinations. 

C. Provide for the needs of the transportation disadvantaged to the greatest extent possible. 

D. Ensure that the transportation systems include adequate facilities to address truck and rail freight 

mobility needs for the local and regional movement of goods and services. 

GOAL 3 – SAFETY 

Provide a transportation system that enhances the safety and security of all transportation modes. 

Objectives 

A. Address existing and potential future safety issues by identifying high collision locations and 

locations with a history of fatal, severe injury, and/or pedestrian/bicycle-related crashes and 

developing strategies to address those issues. 

B. Reduce the potential for future crashes by providing separation between travel modes (i.e. 

separated pedestrian/bicycle facilities, enhanced crossings, etc.). 

GOAL 4 – HEALTH 

Provide a transportation system that enhances the health of local residents by promoting active modes 

of transportation. 

Objectives 

A. Develop a comprehensive system of pedestrian and bicycle routes that link major activity centers 

within the City. 

B. Encourage the use of active modes of transportation (walking and biking) and identify 

improvements to further promote their use in the community. 

C. Encourage the use of public transportation facilities and services and identify improvements to 

further promote their use in the community. 

GOAL 5 – STRATEGIC INVESTMENT 

Provide a sustainable transportation system through responsible stewardship of assets and financial 

resources. 

Objectives 

A. Preserve and protect the function of locally and regionally significant corridors. 

B. Preserve and maintain the existing transportation system assets to extend their useful life. 

C. Ensure adequacy of existing funding sources to serve projected improvement needs. 

D. Identify new and innovative funding sources for transportation improvements. 

38



 

PAGE 21 

GOAL 5 – COORDINATION AND INTEGRATION 

Ensure that the local transportation system is integrated with county and state transportation systems and 

objectives, and with other related aspects of the community in Molalla, including land use planning, 

natural resource protection, housing and economic development. 

Objectives 

A. Design transportation facilities and connections to support adjacent land uses and developments. 

B. Minimize and/or mitigate the effects of transportation projects and systems on natural resources 

and systems. 

C. Consider County and State goals and policies in design and implementation of the TSP and 

associated projects. 

D. Engage community members and organizations in the development and design of transportation 

facilities identified in the TSP. 

PROJECT SELECTION AND PRIORITIZATION 

The selection and prioritization of the projects included in the TSP update was determined based on the 

project evaluation criteria, which are a reflection of the goals and objectives described above. A 

qualitative process using the project evaluation criteria was used to evaluate solutions and prioritize 

projects developed through the TSP update. The rating method used to evaluate the solutions is 

described below. 

 Most Desirable: The concept addresses the criterion and/or makes substantial improvements in 

the criteria category. (+1) 

 No Effect: The criterion does not apply to the concept or the concept has no influence on the 

criteria. (0) 

 Least Desirable: The concept does not support the intent of and/or negatively impacts the 

criteria category. (-1) 

Table 2 presents the project evaluation criteria that were used to qualitatively evaluate the solutions 

developed through the TSP update. The initial screening ratings were used to inform discussions about the 

benefits and tradeoffs of each solution, while the final priorities presented in the following chapters reflect 

input from the project, advisory committees and the general public. 

  

39



 

PAGE 22 

Table 2: Project Evaluation Criteria 

Objective Evaluation Criteria 

Evaluation 

Score 

Goal 1: Mobility 

A. Reduce reliance on single 

occupancy vehicles 

Project could reduce reliance on single occupancy vehicle +1 

Project would not impact reliance on single occupancy vehicles 0 

Project could increase reliance on single occupancy vehicle -1 

B. Reduce reliance on state 

facilities for making local trips 

Project could reduce reliance on state facilities +1 

Project would not impact reliance on state facilities 0 

Project could increase reliance on state facilities -1 

C. Provide for adequate 

intersection and street capacity 

Project will provide adequate intersection and/or street capacity +1 

Project will have no impact on intersection and/or street capacity 0 

Project will reduce intersection and/or street capacity below 

acceptable levels 
-1 

Goal 2: Connectivity and Accessibility 

A. Improve existing connections 

Project will improve an existing connection +1 

Project will not improve an existing connection 0 

Project will impede an existing connection -1 

B. Create new connections 

Project will create a new connection +1 

Project will not create a new connection 0 

Project will impede the creation of a new connection -1 

C. Provide for the needs of the 

transportation disadvantaged 

Project will improve options for transportation disadvantaged +1 

Project will have no impact on transportation disadvantaged 0 

Project will reduce options for transportation disadvantaged -1 

C. Ensure that the transportation 

systems include adequate facilities 

to address truck and rail freight 

mobility needs for the local and 

regional movement of goods and 

services. 

Project will improve effectiveness of local and regional freight 

movement 
+1 

Project will have no impact on effectiveness of local and regional 

freight movement 
0 

Project will reduce effectiveness of local and regional freight 

movement 
-1 

Goal 3: Safety 

A. Address existing and potential 

future safety issues 

Project will address existing or potential future safety issue +1 

Project will have no impact on an existing or potential future safety 

issue 
0 

Project will worsen existing or potential future safety issue -1 

B. Reduce potential for future 

crashes 

Project could reduce potential for future conflicts +1 

Project would have no impact on the potential for future conflicts 0 

Project could increase the potential for future conflicts -1 

Goal 4: Health 

40



 

PAGE 23 

A. Develop a comprehensive 

system of pedestrian and bicycle 

routes 

Project will contribute to a comprehensive pedestrian and bicycle 

system 
+1 

Project will not contribute to a comprehensive pedestrian and 

bicycle system 
0 

Project will impede a comprehensive pedestrian and bicycle 

system 
-1 

B. Encourage the use of active 

modes of transportation 

Project could encourage the use of active modes of 

transportation 
+1 

Project would not encourage the use of active modes of 

transportation 
0 

Project could discourage the use of active modes of 

transportation 
-1 

C. Encourage the use of public 

transportation facilities and 

services 

Project could encourage the use of public transportation +1 

Project would not encourage the use of public transportation 0 

Project could discourage the use of public transportation -1 

Goal 5: Strategic Investment 

A. Preserve and protect the 

function of locally and regionally 

significant corridors 

Project will preserve and protect the function of locally and 

regionally significant corridors 
+1 

Project will not impact the function of locally and regionally 

significant corridors 
0 

Project will have a negative impact on the function of locally and 

regionally significant corridors 
-1 

B. Preserve and maintain the 

existing transportation system 

assets to extend their useful life 

Project will preserve and maintain the existing transportation 

system 
+1 

Project will not impact the existing transportation system 0 

Project will have a negative impact on the existing transportation 

system 
-1 

C. Ensure adequacy of existing 

funding sources to serve projected 

improvement needs 

Project can be funded through existing funding sources +1 

Project can be funded through known funding sources 0 

Project cannot be funded through existing or known funding 

sources 
-1 

D. Identify new and innovative 

funding sources for transportation 

improvements 

Project is eligible for new and/or innovative funding +1 

Project may not be eligible for new and/or innovative funding 0 

Project is not eligible for new and/or innovative funding -1 

Goal 6: Coordination and Integration 

A. Design transportation facilities 

and connections to support 

adjacent land uses and 

developments 

Project will support community and local area land use and 

development goals 
+1 

Project has no direct relationship to community and local area 

land use and development goals 
0 

Project is inconsistent with community and local area land use and 

development goals 
-1 

B. Minimize and/or mitigate the 

effects of transportation projects 

Project will enhance the quality of potentially affected natural 

resources 
+1 

41



 

PAGE 24 

and systems on natural resources 

and systems 

Project will not impact the quality of potentially affected natural 

resources 
0 

Project will have a negative impact on the quality of potentially 

affected natural resources 
-1 

C. Consider County and State 

goals and policies in design and 

implementation of the TSP and 

associated projects 

Project is supportive of County and/or State transportation goals 

and policies 
+1 

Project has no direct relationship to County and/or State 

transportation goals and policies 
0 

Project is inconsistent with County and/or State transportation 

goals and policies 
-1 

D. Engage community members 

and organizations in the 

development and design of 

transportation facilities identified in 

the TSP 

Project is consistent with or addresses community opinions 

expresses during project planning and design process 
+1 

Project is unrelated to community opinions expresses during 

project planning and design process 
0 

Project is inconsistent with community opinions expresses during 

project planning and design process 
-1 

42



 

PAGE 25 

  

CHAPTER 3: PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM  

43



 

PAGE 26 

PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM 
The pedestrian system within Molalla consists of sidewalks, shared-use paths, and off-street trails, as well 

as marked and unmarked, signalized and unsignalized pedestrian crossings. These facilities provide 

residents with the ability to access local retail/commercial centers, recreational areas, and other land 

uses by foot. A safe, convenient, and continuous network of pedestrian facilities is essential to establishing 

a vibrant and healthy community while supporting the local economy within the City. 

Sidewalks are currently provided along at least one side of most major streets within the city and marked 

crosswalks are provided at most major intersections. Therefore, the pedestrian plan includes projects to 

fill-in the gaps in the sidewalk network along the city’s arterial and collector streets and a few local streets 

that provide access to essential destinations such as schools, parks, churches, etc. The pedestrian plan 

also includes enhanced pedestrian crossings as well as multi-use paths and trails that augment and 

support the pedestrian system. 

PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES 

Pedestrian facilities are the elements of the transportation system that enable people to walk safely and 

efficiently between neighborhoods, retail centers, employment areas, and transit stops. These include 

facilities for pedestrian movement along key roadways (e.g., sidewalks, multi-use paths, and off-street 

trails) and for safe roadway crossings (e.g., crosswalks, crossing beacons, pedestrian refuge islands). Each 

facility plays an important role in developing a comprehensive pedestrian system. 

This section summarizes the pedestrian facilities that were determined to best address gaps and 

deficiencies in the pedestrian system and future needs. As indicated below, the most common overall 

need is to provide a safe and interconnected pedestrian system that encourages people to walk, 

especially for trips less than one-half mile in length. 

SIDEWALKS 

Sidewalks are the fundamental building blocks of the pedestrian system. They enable people to walk 

comfortably, conveniently, and safely from place to place. They also provide an important means of 

mobility for people with disabilities, families with strollers, and others who may not be able to travel on an 

unimproved roadside surface. Sidewalks are usually 6 to 8-feet wide and constructed from concrete. They 

are also frequently separated from the roadway by a curb, landscaping, and/or on-street parking. 

Sidewalks are widely used in urban and suburban settings. Ideally, sidewalks could be provided along 

both sides of the roadway; however, some areas with physical or right-of-way constraints may require 

that sidewalk be located on only one side. The pedestrian plan includes a significant number of projects 

that involve filling in the gaps and installing new sidewalks. 

44



 

PAGE 27 

Improved Sidewalk on Molalla Avenue Improved Sidewalk on OR 211 (Main Street) 

SHARED-USE PATH 

Shared-use paths are paved, bi-directional, trails that can serve both pedestrians and bicyclists. Shared-

use paths and trails can be constructed adjacent to roadways where the topography, right-of-way, or 

other issues don’t allow for the construction of sidewalks and bike facilities. A minimum width of 10 feet is 

recommended for low-pedestrian/bicycle-traffic contexts; 12 to 20 feet should be considered in areas 

with moderate to high levels of bicycle and pedestrian traffic. Shared-use paths can be used to create 

longer-distance links within and between communities and provide regional connections. They play an 

integral role in recreation, commuting, and accessibility due to their appeal to users of all ages and skill 

levels. The pedestrian plan includes several projects that involve installing shared-use paths. 

Example of Bi-directional Shared-use Path Example of Shared-use Path 

ENHANCED PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS 

Pedestrian crossing facilities enable pedestrians to safely and efficiently cross streets and other 

transportation facilities. Planning for appropriate pedestrian crossings requires the community to balance 

vehicular mobility needs with providing crossing locations at desired routes for people walking. Enhanced 

pedestrian crossing treatments include: 

 Median refuge islands 

 High visibility pavement markings and signs 

 Curb extensions 

 Pedestrian signals 

45



 

PAGE 28 

 Rapid rectangular flashing beacons (RRFB) 

 Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons (HAWK) 

 Pedestrian countdown heads 

 Leading Pedestrian interval 

Many of the treatments listed above can be applied together at one crossing location to further alert 

drivers of the presence of pedestrians in the roadway. The pedestrian plan includes several projects that 

involve enhancing pedestrian crossings. See Attachment “A” for a detailed description of enhanced 

pedestrian crossing treatments. 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS) programs are intended to encourage children to walk and bicycle to school; 

to make walking and bicycling to school safe and more appealing; and to facilitate the planning, 

development and implementation of projects that will improve safety, and reduce traffic, fuel 

consumption, and air pollution near schools. The Molalla River School District (MRSD) operates one 

elementary school, one middle school, and one high school in Molalla. The MRSD in partnership with the 

City of Molalla have developed a SRTS plan for the schools located in Molalla and have identified walking 

routes as well as critical intersections for crossings. Figure 4 illustrates the SRTS routes and critical 

intersections for crossing. Several projects are included in the pedestrian plan that will improve conditions 

along the SRTS routes. 

PEDESTRIAN PLAN 

Table 3 identifies the pedestrian plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. As shown, the projects are 

separated into projects on arterials, collectors, and neighborhood streets as well as projects at 

intersections and in other locations throughout the city. The priorities shown in Table 3 are based on the 

project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team and the general public. The cost 

estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements. The cost estimates do not include 

the cost of right-of-way or the cost of filling in the ditches. Right-of-way and ditch costs are included in 

the motor vehicle plan as applicable. Figure 5 illustrates the location of the pedestrian plan projects. 

Table 3: Pedestrian Plan Improvement Projects 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

Arterials 

P1 OR 2131 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the north city limits to OR 211 with sidewalks 

of appropriate width 

High $1,240,000 

P2 OR 2131 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

OR 211 to the south city limits with sidewalks 

of appropriate width 

Medium $870,000 

P3 OR 2111 Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from the west city limits to OR 213 
High $750,000 

46



 

PAGE 29 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

P4 OR 2111 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in the gaps on both sides of the roadway 

from OR 213 to Molalla Avenue with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

High $1,710,000 

P5 OR 2111 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from Mathias Road to the east city limits 
High $940,000 

P6 OR 2111 Lighting 
Evaluate light levels and install new street 

lighting as necessary2 
Low $450,000 

P7 
N Molalla 

Avenue 

Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the north city limits to Heintz Street with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

High $485,000 

P8 
S Molalla 

Avenue 

Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

5th Street to the south city limits with sidewalks 

of appropriate width 

Medium $955,000 

P9 Molalla Avenue Lighting 
Evaluate light levels and install new street 

lighting as necessary2 
Low $450,000 

Collectors 

P10 Toliver Road 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the west city limits to OR 213 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $575,000 

P11 Toliver Road 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

OR 213 to Molalla Avenue with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

High $1,730,000 

P12 Shirley Street 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

N Molalla Avenue to OR 211 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $1,240,000 

P13 Ridings Avenue 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

Toliver Road to OR 211 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $795,000 

P14 Leroy Avenue 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on the east side of the roadway 

from Toliver Road to West Lane with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $295,000 

P15 E 5th Street Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from Stowers Road to Mathias Road 
Medium $330,000 

P16 Cole Avenue 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

Frances Street to OR 211 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $270,000 

P17 Mathias Road Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from OR 211 to the south city limits 
Medium $1,405,000 

P18 Frances Street 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on the south side of the roadway 

from N Molalla Avenue to Christopher Street 

with sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $350,000 

Neighborhood Streets 

47



 

PAGE 30 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

P19 Toliver Drive 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

north of Berwick Court to Toliver Road with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

Low $280,000 

P20 Kennel Avenue 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

Ross Street to OR 211 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $130,000 

P21 E Heintz Street 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

N Molalla Avenue to Fenton Avenue with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $385,000 

P22 Industrial Way 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on the east side of the roadway 

from Toliver Road to the southern roadway 

terminus with sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $110,000 

P23 Industrial Way 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the northern roadway terminus to OR 211 

with sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $170,000 

P24 Stowers Road 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

OR 211 to E 7th Street with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $470,000 

P25 E 7th Street Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from Stowers Road to Mathias Road 
Low $335,000 

Intersections 

P26 
OR 213/ 

Meadow Drive1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 213/Meadow Drive intersection to 

increase access to transit stop on west side 

of OR 2133 

Medium $150,000 

P27 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 213/Toliver Road intersection3 
Medium $150,000 

P28 
OR 211/ 

Hezzie Lane1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Hezzie Lane intersection3 
High $150,000 

P29 
OR 211/Molalla 

Forest Road1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Molalla Forest Road intersection3 
High $150,000 

P30 

OR 211/ 

Grange Ave/ 

Berkeley 

Avenue1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Grange Avenue/Berkley Avenue 

intersection3 

Medium $150,000 

P31 
OR 211/ 

N Cole Avenue1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Cole Avenue intersection3 
High $150,000 

P32 
OR 211/ 

Stowers Road1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Stowers Road intersection3 
Medium $150,000 

P33 
OR 211/ 

Metzler Street1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install curb extensions with American’s with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) accessible curb ramps 

with tactile warning strips on the north and 

south sides of the roadway3 

Medium $150,000 

P34 
Toliver Road/ 

Industrial Way 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Industrial Way intersection3 
Medium $50,000 

48



 

PAGE 31 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

P35 

Toliver Road/ 

Zimmerman 

Lane 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Zimmerman Lane 

intersection3 

Low $50,000 

P36 
Toliver Road/ 

Leroy Avenue 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Leroy Avenue intersection3 
Medium $50,000 

P37 
Toliver Road/ 

Ridings Avenue 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Ridings Avenue intersection3 
Medium $50,000 

P38 
Toliver Road/ 

Kennel Avenue 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install and enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Kennel Avenue intersection3 
Medium $50,000 

P39 
Leroy Avenue/ 

Heintz Street 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Leroy Avenue/Heintz Street intersection3 
Low $50,000 

P40 
E 5th Street/ 

May Street 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the E 5th Street/May Street intersection3 
Low $50,000 

P41 
E 5th Street/ 

Stowers Road 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the E 5th Street/Stowers Road intersection3 
Low $50,000 

Off-street Improvements 

P42 
Molalla Forest 

Road 

Shared-use 

Path 

Install a shared-use path along the former 

Molalla Forest Road right-of-way from Toliver 

Road to OR 211 

Medium $720,000 

P43 
Molalla Forest 

Road 

Shared-use 

Path 

Install a shared-use path along Molalla Forest 

Road from OR 211 to Mathias Road 
Low $04 

P44 

Molalla Western 

Railway Spur 
Shared-use 

Path 

Install a shared-use path along the former 

Molalla Western Railway Spur right-of-way 

from the north city limits to OR 211 

Low $1,965,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $7,305,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $10,020,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $3,680,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $21,005,000 

1. Project will require coordination with ODOT and approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. 

2. Street lighting will require an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the City for maintenance. 

3. The types of enhanced crossing treatments are to be determined at the design/implementation stage. 

4. Project cost included in Motor Vehicle Plan. 

Other potential pedestrian projects include: 

 Support Clackamas County’s efforts to implement the Active Transportation Plan. 

 Support MRSD and Clackamas County’s efforts to implement the SRTS program. 

 Identify opportunities to establish additional multi-use paths and trails that augment and support 

the pedestrian system. 

  

49



Ü

Ü

Ü

Ü

Ü

!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m
!!m!!m

!!m!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m
!!m

!!m

å å

å

Western Railroad Spur

Mo
lal

la 
Fo

res
t R

d

vÍÎ211
vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211
vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Boardwalk Ave

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

D r

Vil
lag

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pk
wy

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
4

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\04

_S
afe

 R
ou

tes
 to

 Sc
ho

ol.
mx

d -
 m

be
ll -

  1
0:4

2 A
M 

8/1
3/2

01
8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Safe Routes to School
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet!!m Critical Intersections for Crossing
Safe Routes to School
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

50



Western Railroad Spur

Mo
lal

la 
Fo

res
t R

d

å å

å

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

Le
roy

 Av
e

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Sw
ieg

le 
Av

e

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e
Sto

we
rs 

Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Ka
e C

t

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

DrHa
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

Christopher St

Rid
ing

s A
ve

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E Heintz St

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

ShirleySt

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el A
ve

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Frances St

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl
Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Dix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ayS Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

E Main St

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

S Toliver Rd

Toliver Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

P28

P32

P34
P35

P36
P37

P38P39

P40

P41

P26

P27

P29

P31

P30

P33

P2

P23

P19

P13

P11

P17

P20

P21

P12

P16

P14

P4

P7

P5

P24

P1

P18

P15

P25

P22

P8

P10

P3

P44

P42

P43

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
5

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\05

_P
ed

es
tria

n P
roj

ec
ts.

mx
d -

 m
be

ll -
  1

0:4
2 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Pedestrian Plan Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Pedestian Plan Projects
!! New Enhanced Crossing

New Sidewalk
New Shared-use path
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

51



 

PAGE 34 

  

CHAPTER 4: BICYCLE SYSTEM  

52



 

PAGE 35 

BICYCLE SYSTEM 
The bicycle system within Molalla consists of on-street bike lanes, shoulder bikeways, and shared roadways 

as well as off-street bicycle facilities, such as bicycle parking. These facilities provide residents with the 

ability to access local retail/commercial centers, recreational areas, and other land uses within Molalla 

and neighboring areas by bicycle. A safe, convenient, and continuous network of bicycle facilities is 

essential to establishing a vibrant and healthy community while supporting the local economy within the 

City. 

On-street bike lanes and other bicycle facilities are currently provided on a limited number of roadways 

within the city. Therefore, the bicycle plan includes several projects along the city’s arterial and collector 

streets and a few local streets that provide direct access to essential destinations. The bicycle plans also 

includes several enhanced bicycle crossings as well as other off-street amenities that augment and 

support the bicycle system. 

BICYCLE FACILITIES 

Bicycle facilities are the elements of the transportation system that enable people to travel safely and 

efficiently by bike. These include facilities along key roadways (e.g., shared lane pavement markings, on-

street bike lanes, and separated bike facilities) and facilities at key crossing locations (e.g., enhanced 

bike crossings). These also include end of trip facilities (e.g. secure bike parking, changing rooms, and 

showers at worksites); however, these facilities are addressed through the development code. Each 

facility plays a role in developing a comprehensive bicycle system. 

This section summarizes the bicycle facilities that were evaluated throughout the planning process to 

address existing gaps and deficiencies in the bicycle system and future needs. As indicated below, the 

most common overall need is to provide a safe and interconnected bicycle system that encourages 

people to ride their bicycles, especially for trips less than three miles in length. 

SHARED ROADWAYS 

Shared‐lane pavement markings (often called “sharrows”) are not a bicycle facility, but a tool designed 

to accommodate bicyclists on roadways where bike lanes are desirable but infeasible to construct or not 

appropriate for the context of the roadway. Sharrows indicate a shared roadway space for cyclists and 

motorists and are typically centered in the roadway or approximately four feet from the edge of the travel 

lane and are recommended to be spaced approximately 50 to 250-feet apart dependent on the levels 

of traffic volume. Sharrows are suitable on roadways with relatively low travel speeds (<35 mph) and low 

ADT (<3,000 ADT); however, they may also be used to transition between discontinuous bicycle facilities 

or serve as wayfinding elements along neighborhood bicycle networks. Sharrows are identified in the 

bicycle plan along a variety of streets within Molalla where room for on-street bike lanes is limited. 

53



 

PAGE 36 

Example of Shared Lane Pavement Marking (Sharrow) Example of a Priority Shared-lane Pavement Marking 

ON-STREET BIKE LANES 

On-street bike lanes are striped lanes on the roadway dedicated for the exclusive use of cyclists. Bike 

lanes are typically placed at the outer edge of pavement (but to the inside of right‐turn lanes and/or on‐

street parking). Bicycle lanes can improve safety and security of cyclists and (if comprehensive) can 

provide direct connections between origins and destinations. On-street bike lanes are identified in the 

bicycle plan along a majority of arterial and collector streets within Molalla. 

Example of Striped Bike Lane Example of Buffered Bike Lane 

SEPARATED BIKE LANES 

Separated bike facilities include buffered bike lanes and separated bike lanes, or “protected bike lanes”. 

Buffered bike lanes are on-street bike lanes that include an additional striped buffer of typically 2-3 feet 

between the bicycle lane and the vehicle travel lane and/or between the bicycle lane and the vehicle 

parking lane. They are typically located along streets that require a higher level of separation to improve 

the comfort of bicycling. Separated bike lanes, also known as protected bike lanes, are bicycle facilities 

that are separated from motor vehicle traffic by a buffer and a physical barrier, such as planters, flexible 

posts, parked cars, or a mountable curb. One-way separated bike lanes are typically found on each side 

of the street, like a standard bike lane, while a two-way separated bike lanes are typically found on one 

side of the street. Buffered bike lanes are identified in the bicycle plan along segments of OR 213 and OR 

54



 

PAGE 37 

211. While separated bike lanes are not included in the plan, they may be used in place of on-street bike 

lanes or buffered bike lanes where desirable. 

Example of One-way Parking Protected Bike Lane Example of Two-way Separated Bike Lane 

ENHANCED BIKE CROSSINGS AND PROTECTED INTERSECTIONS 

Enhanced bicycle crossing facilities enable cyclists to safely and efficiently cross streets and other 

transportation facilities. Planning for appropriate bicycle crossings requires the community to balance 

vehicular mobility needs with providing crossing locations along the desired routes of cyclists. Several 

enhanced bicycle crossings are identified in the bicycle plan. Enhanced bicycle crossings include: 

 Bike Boxes – designated space at an intersection that allows cyclists to wait in front of motor 

vehicles while waiting to turn or continue through the intersection. 

 Two-Stage Left-turn Boxes – designated space at a signalized intersection outside of the travel 

lane that provides cyclists with a place to wait while making a two-stage left-turn. 

 Pavement marking through intersections – pavement markings that extend and bike lane through 

an intersection. 

 Bike Only Signals – a traffic signal that is dedicated for cyclists 

 Bicycle Detection – vehicle detection for bicycles 

 

Example of a Bike Box Example of Pavement Markings Through Intersection 

55



 

PAGE 38 

BICYCLE PLAN 

Table 4 identifies the bicycle plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. As shown, the projects are 

separated into projects on arterials, collectors, neighborhood streets, and local streets as well as projects 

at intersections and in other locations throughout the city. The priorities shown in Table 4 are based on the 

project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team and the general public. The cost 

estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements. The cost estimates do not include 

the cost of right-of-way or the cost of filling in the ditches. These costs are included in the motor vehicle 

plan as applicable. Figure 6 illustrates the location of the bicycle plan projects. 

Table 4: Bicycle Plan Improvement Projects 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

Arterials 

B1 OR 2131 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from the north city limits to OR 

211 

Medium $03 

B2 OR 2131 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from OR 211 to the south city 

limits 

Low $03 

B3 OR 2111 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from the west city limits to OR 

213 

Low $03 

B4 OR 2111 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from OR 213 to Shaver Avenue 
Medium $03 

B5 OR 2111 Shared-lane 

Install priority shared-lane pavement 

markings (super sharrows) and signs on both 

sides of the roadway from Shaver Avenue to 

Fenton Avenue 

High $15,000 

B6 OR 2111 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from Fenton Avenue to Mathias 

Road (Striping only) 

High $5,000 

B7 OR 211 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from Mathias Road to the east 

city limits 

High $03 

B8 
N Molalla 

Avenue 
Bike Lane 

Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from the north city limits to Heintz 

Street 

Low $855,000 

B9 
N Molalla 

Avenue 
Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement marking 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Heintz Street to OR 211 

Low $20,000 

B10 
S Molalla 

Avenue 
Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement marking 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 211 to 5th Street 

Low $10,000 

56



 

PAGE 39 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

B11 
S Molalla 

Avenue 
Bike Lane 

Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from the 5th Street to the south city 

limits 

Medium $520,000 

Collectors 

B12 Toliver Road Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from the west city limits to OR 213 
High $815,000 

B13 Toliver Road Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 213 to Zimmerman Lane 
High $930,000 

B14 Shirley Street Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from N Molalla Avenue to OR 211 
Medium $03 

B15 Mathias Road Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 211 to the south city limits 
Low 03 

B16 Leroy Avenue Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from Toliver Road to OR 211 
Medium $03 

B17 E 5th Street Bike Lane 

Install bike lanes on the south side of the 

roadway from May Street to Eckerd Avenue 

and on both sides from Stowers Road to 

Mathias Road (Striping only) 

Medium $5,000 

B18 W 5th Street Bike Lane 

Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from Hart Street to S Molalla 

Avenue (Striping only) 

Medium $5,000 

B19 
Ridings 

Avenue 
Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Toliver Road to OR 211 

Low $15,000 

B20 Cole Avenue Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Frances Street to OR 211 

Low $20,000 

B21 Frances Street Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from N Molalla Avenue to Cole 

Avenue 

Low $15,000 

Neighborhood Streets 

B22 Meadow Drive Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 213 to Meadowlawn Place 

Low $25,000 

B23 Village Drive Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Meadowlawn Place to Toliver 

Road 

Low $10,000 

B24 
Thunderbird 

Street 
Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from N Molalla Avenue to Bronco 

Avenue 

Low $10,000 

57



 

PAGE 40 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

B25 
Bronco 

Avenue 
Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Thunderbird Street to Toliver 

Drive 

Low $5,000 

B26 Toliver Drive Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and sign on both sides of the 

roadway from Bronco Avenue to Toliver 

Road 

Low $10,000 

B27 
Kennel 

Avenue 
Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Toliver Road to OR 211 

Low $15,000 

B28 Heintz Street 

Bicycle 

Boulevard/ 

Shared lane 

Install bicycle boulevard treatments, 

including shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from N Molalla Avenue to Cole 

Avenue 

Medium $15,000 

B29 
Center 

Avenue 
Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Heintz Street to OR 211 

Low $10,000 

B30 Industrial Way Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Toliver Road to the southern 

roadway terminus 

Low $5,000 

B31 Industrial Way Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from the northern roadway 

terminus to OR 211 

Low $5,000 

B32 Stowers Road Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 211 to E 7th Street 

Low $15,000 

B33 E 7th Street Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Stowers Road to Mathias 

Road 

Low $5,000 

Local Streets 

B34 Heintz Street 

Bicycle 

Boulevard/ 

Share lane 

Install bicycle boulevard treatments, 

including shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Leroy Avenue to N Molalla 

Avenue 

Medium $25,000 

Intersections 

B35 

OR 213/ 

Meadow 

Drive1 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the 

OR 213/Meadow Drive Intersection2 
High $20,000 

B36 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the 

OR 213/Toliver Road intersection2 
High $20,000 

B37 
OR 213/ 

OR 2111 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install skip striping along OR 213 and OR 211 

through the intersection2 
High $20,000 

58



 

PAGE 41 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

B38 
OR 211/ 

Ona Way1 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install skip striping along OR 211 and consider 

other enhanced crossing treatments when 

signalized2 

High $20,000 

B39 
OR 211/ 

Leroy Avenue1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install skip striping along OR 211 and consider 

other enhanced crossing treatments when 

signalized2 

High $20,000 

B40 

OR 211/ 

Ridings 

Avenue1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install skip striping along OR 211 and consider 

other enhanced crossing treatments when 

signalized2 

Medium $20,000 

B41 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Toliver Road 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the N 

Molalla Avenue/Toliver Road intersection – 

coordinate with project B412 

Medium $15,000 

B42 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Shirley Street 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the N 

Molalla Avenue/Shirley Street intersection – 

coordinate with project B402 

Medium $15,000 

B43 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Heintz Street 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the N 

Molalla Avenue/Heintz Street intersection2 
Medium $15,000 

B44 

S Molalla 

Avenue/ 

5th Street 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the S 

Molalla Avenue/5th Street intersection2 
Medium $15,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $1,865,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $650,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $1,050,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $3,565,000 

1. Project will require coordination with ODOT and approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. 

2. The types of enhanced crossing treatments are to be determined at the design/implementation stage. 

3. Project cost included in Motor Vehicle Plan. 

Other potential bicycle projects include: 

 Support Clackamas County’s efforts to implement the Active Transportation Plan. 

 Support Clackamas County and Molalla River School District’s efforts to implement the Safe 

Routes to School (SRTS) program. 

 Identify opportunities to establish additional multi-use paths and trails that augment and support 

the bicycle system. 

  

59



å å

å

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

W Heintz St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

E 5Th St

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

Christopher St

To
live

r D
r

Rid
ing

s A
ve

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E Heintz St

E 7Th St

Fi n
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Frances St

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Dix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

S Macksburg Rd

S Barbara Way

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln S Vick Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

E Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

B36

B35

B38

B39
B40

B41
B42

B43

B44

B37 B3
1

B2
5

B2
6

B1
9

B5

B1
0

B2
9

B2
0

B2
7

B3
2

B24

B21

B9

B33

B22

B2
3

B3
0

B28

B34

B2

B6

B4

B8

B7

B1

B1
1

B3

B17 B1
5

B18

B14

B1
6

B13

B17

B14

B12

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
6

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\06

_B
icy

cle
 Pr

oje
cts

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  1

1:1
6 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Bicycle Plan Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Bicycle Plan Projects
!! New Enhanced Crossing

New Bike Lane
New Buffered Bike Lane
New Bike Boulevard
New Shared Roadway Markings
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

60



 

PAGE 43 

  

CHAPTER 5: TRANSIT SYSTEM  

61



 

PAGE 44 

TRANSIT SYSTEM 
Transit service in Molalla is currently provided by the South Clackamas Transit District (SCTD), the Molalla 

Adult Community Center, Molalla River School District (MRSD), Clackamas County Social Services, and 

several local retirement communities. The service consists of fixed-route and paratransit service as well as 

school and shuttle bus service. Morning and evening peak hour service along OR 213 and OR 211 provides 

residents with the ability to use public transit for daily commuting, while mid-day service provides residents 

with the ability to use public transit to access retail/commercial centers, recreational areas, and other 

essential destinations located throughout Molalla, Clackamas County and the region. 

The Transit Plan includes several projects to enhance the existing fixed-route service provided by SCTD. 

These projects are intended to improve connections to local destinations for people that do not drive or 

bike and provide additional options for all transportation system users for certain trips. Public transit 

complements walking, bicycling, or driving trips: users can walk to and from transit stops and their homes, 

shopping or work places, people can drive to park-and-ride locations to access a bus, or people can 

bring their bikes on transit vehicles and bicycle from a transit stop to their final destination. Implementation 

of the projects included in the Transit Plan will require coordination with SCTD and others to ensure 

consistent and continued service for local residents. 

TRANSIT FACILITIES 

Transit facilities are the elements of the transportation system that enable people to travel safely and 

efficiently throughout the city and the region by transit. These include fixed-route facilities and services, 

transit stops, and park-and-rides. This section summarizes the transit facilities that were evaluated 

throughout the planning process to address existing gaps and deficiencies in the transit system and future 

needs. As indicated below, the most common overall need is to provide a safe and interconnected transit 

system that encourages people to ride transit for local and regional trips. 

FIXED-ROUTE SERVICE 

Fixed-route transit service is provided via set routes for buses, shuttles, and other transit modes. Fixed routes 

include specified transit stops and services that normally operate on defined schedules. For the City, this 

service is provided by the SCTD bus routes that run through Molalla and provide connections to Canby, 

Clackamas Community College (CCC), and destinations around the City. The Transit Plan includes several 

potential changes to existing transit service, including: 

 Increase the service frequency by reducing headways or time between arrivals, 

 Increase hours of service by providing service earlier in the morning and/or later in the evening, 

and 

 Increase service coverage by re-routing existing service or implementing new service. 

62



 

PAGE 45 

STOP ENHANCEMENTS 

Transit stops are designated locations where residents can access local transit service. Transit stops are 

normally located at major intersections. The types of amenities provided at each transit stop (i.e. pole, 

bench, shelter, ridership information, trash receptacles) tend to reflect the level of usage. 

 Pole and bus stop sign – All bus stops require a pole and bus stop sign to identify the bus stop 

location. Some transit agencies prefer the bus stop signs to be provided on a separate 

dedicated pole instead of an existing utility pole, column, or other location. 

 Bus stop shelters – Shelters are typically provided at stops with 50 or more boardings per day but 

may be considered at stops served by infrequent service (headways greater than 17 minutes) 

with 35 or more boardings per day. 

 Seating – Seating can be considered at any stop as long as it is accessible and as long as the, 

safety and accessibility of the adjacent sidewalk or other facility are not compromised by 

seating placement. 

 Trash cans – Trash cans can be considered at any stop; however, they are most commonly 

located at stops with shelters and/or seating. Trash cans will require pick-up from the local 

garbage company. 

 Lighting – Lighting is an important amenity for bus stops as it provides visibility and increased 

security for transit users waiting, boarding, and aligning transit service. 

TriMet Stop (Before) TriMet Stop (After) 

The Transit Plan includes several new transit stops and potential enhancements to existing transit stops 

throughout Molalla. 

  

63



 

PAGE 46 

PARK-AND-RIDE FACILITIES 

Park-and-ride facilities provide parking for people who wish to transfer from their personal vehicle to public 

transportation or carpools/vanpools. Park-and-rides are frequently located near major intersections, at 

commercial centers, or on express and commuter bus routes. It is Oregon state policy to encourage the 

development and use of park-and-ride facilities at appropriate urban and rural locations adjacent to or 

within the highway right-of-way. Park-and-ride facilities can provide an efficient method to provide transit 

service to low density areas such as Molalla, connecting people to jobs, and providing an alternate mode 

to complete long-distance commutes. 

Park-and-ride facilities may be either shared-use, such as at a school or shopping center, or exclusive-use. 

Shared-use facilities are generally designated and maintained through agreements reached between 

the local public transit agency or rideshare program operator and the property owner. Shared-use lots 

can save the expense of building a new parking lot, increase the utilization of existing spaces, and avoid 

utilization of developable land for surface parking. In the case of shopping centers, the presence of a 

shared-use park-and-ride has frequently been shown to be mutually beneficial, as park-and-riders tend 

to patronize the businesses in the center. 

SCTD Transit Stop at E Ross Street SCTD City Bus Serves as a Fixed Route around Molalla 

TRANSIT PLAN 

Table 5 identifies the transit plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. As shown, several of projects are 

assumed to be funded by others or require coordination with SCTD. The City of Molalla can support 

improved transit service by providing easy and safe walking and bicycling connections between key 

roadways, neighborhoods, and local destinations; by providing amenities, such as shelters and benches, 

at transit stops; by encouraging an appropriate mix and density of uses that support public transit; and 

by providing and planning for park-and-ride locations. The priorities shown in Table 5 are based on the 

project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team and the general public. The cost 

estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements and reflect input from RVTD. 

Figure 7 illustrates the location of the transit plan projects. 

  

64



 

PAGE 47 

Table 5: Transit Plan Improvement Projects 

Project 

Number Location 

Agency 

Responsible Description Priority 

Cost 

Estimate 

T12 City-wide City/SCTD 

Coordinate with SCTD to increase the 

frequency of morning and evening 

peak hour service on the Canby and 

CCC Buses 

Medium $01 

T22 City-wide City/SCTD 
Coordinate with SCTD to increase the 

hours of service on the Canby Bus 
Medium $01 

T32 City-wide City/SCTD 

Coordinate with SCTD to reconfigure 

the Molalla City Bus to increase 

service coverage in the northeast 

and southeast parts of the city and 

increase the efficiency of the route 

Medium $01 

T4 
OR 213/Meadow Drive 

(northbound) 
City/SCTD 

Relocate existing sign to south side of 

the intersection to increase the 

visibility of the stop 

Medium $5,000 

T5 OR 213/Toliver Road City/SCTD 

Install bus stops at the far side of the 

northbound and southbound 

approaches to the intersection 

Medium $10,000 

T6 
OR 211/OR 213 

(eastbound) 
City/SCTD 

Install a shelter within the public right 

of way or obtain an easement from 

the adjacent property owner 

Medium $50,000 

T7 
OR 211/Leroy Avenue 

(eastbound) 
City/SCTD 

Install a bus stop sign on the east side 

of the intersection to increase the 

visibility of the stop 

Medium $5,000 

T8 
OR 211/Kennel Avenue 

(eastbound) 
City/SCTD 

Install a bus stop sign on the east side 

of the intersection to increase the 

visibility of the stop 

Medium $5,000 

T9 

Meadow Drive/ 

Meadowlawn Place/ 

Toliver Road 

City/SCTD 

Provide designated transit stop 

between OR 213 and Kennel Avenue 

(Seven potential stop locations are 

shown for illustrative purposes) 

Medium $35,000 

T10 City Wide City/SCTD 

Identify the location for a new park-

and-ride within the city (the existing 

parking and ride is shown for 

illustrative purposes) 

Medium $50,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $160,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $160,000 

1. Project to be funded by others. 

2. Project not shown on map. 

Other potential transit projects include: 

 Support South Clackamas Transit Districts (SCTD) efforts in obtaining House Bill (HB) 2017 Funding 

to enhance existing and future transit service in Molalla. 

  

65



"

"

"

"

"

!

!

"

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

E 5Th St

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
rZe
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fi n
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

Dix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
lag

e D
r

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S Macksburg Rd

S Barbara Way

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln S Vick Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

T4

T6

T7

T8

T5T5

T9

T9
T9

T9
T9

T9

T9

T3

T10

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
7

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\07

_T
ran

sit
 Pr

oje
cts

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  1

0:4
3 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Public Transit Plan Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Public Transit Plan Projects
!! Potential Stop Enhancements
!! Potential Park and Ride
" Existing Shelter
! Existing Sign

Existing Transit Routes
New Potential Transit Route
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

66



 

PAGE 49 

 

  

CHAPTER 6: TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS (TSMO) 

67



 

PAGE 50 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MANAGEMENT AND 

OPERATIONS (TSMO) 
Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO) is a set of integrated transportation solutions 

intended to improve the performance of existing transportation infrastructure. Transportation System 

Management (TSM) and Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategies are two complementary 

approaches to managing transportation and maximizing the efficiency of the existing system. TSM 

strategies address the supply of the system: using strategies to improve the system efficiency without 

increasing roadway widths or building new roads. TSM measures are focused on improving operations by 

enhancing capacity during peak times, typically with advanced technologies to improve traffic 

operations. TDM strategies address the demand on the system: the number of vehicles traveling on the 

roadways each day. TDM measures include any method intended to shift travel demand from single 

occupant vehicles to non-auto modes or carpooling, travel at less congested times of the day, etc. 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MANAGEMENT (TSM) 

Transportation System Management (TSM) focuses on low cost strategies that can be implemented within 

the existing transportation infrastructure to enhance operational performance. Finding ways to better 

manage transportation while maximizing urban mobility and treating all modes of travel as a coordinated 

system is a priority. TSM strategies include traffic signal timing and phasing optimization, traffic signal 

coordination, and intelligent transportation systems (ITS). Traffic signal coordination and ITS typically 

provide the most significant tangible benefits to the traveling public. The primary focus of TSM measures 

are region-wide improvements, however there are a number of TSM measures that can be used in a 

smaller scale environment such as Molalla. 

SIGNAL RETIMING AND OPTIMIZATION 

Signal retiming and optimization offers a relatively low-cost option to increase system efficiency. Retiming 

and optimization refers to updating timing plans to better match prevailing traffic conditions and 

coordinating signals. Timing optimization can be applied to existing systems or may include upgrading 

signal technology, such as signal communication infrastructure, signal controllers, or cabinets. Signal 

retiming can reduce travel times and be especially beneficial to improving travel time reliability. In high 

pedestrian or desired pedestrian areas, signal retiming can facilitate pedestrian movements through 

intersections by increasing minimum green times to give pedestrians time to cross during each cycle, 

eliminating the need to push pedestrian crossing buttons. Signals can also facilitate bicycle movements 

with the inclusion of bicycle detectors. 

ADVANCED SIGNAL SYSTEMS 

Signal upgrades often come at a higher cost and usually require further coordination between 

jurisdictions. However, upgrading signals provides the opportunity to incorporate advanced signal 

systems to further improve the efficiency of a transportation network. Strategies include coordinated 

signal operations across jurisdictions, centralized control of traffic signals, adaptive or active signal control, 

68



 

PAGE 51 

and transit or freight signal priority. These advanced signal systems can reduce delay, travel time, and 

the number of stops for transit, freight, and other vehicles. In addition, these systems may help reduce 

vehicle emissions and improve travel time reliability. 

 Adaptive or active signal control systems improve the efficiency of signal operations by actively 

changing the allotment of green time for vehicle movements and reducing the average delay 

for vehicles. Adaptive or active signal control systems require several vehicle detectors at 

intersections to detect traffic flows adequately, in addition to hardware and software upgrades. 

 Traffic responsive control uses data collected from traffic detectors to change signal timing 

plans for intersections. The data collected from the detectors is used by the system to 

automatically select a timing plan best suited to current traffic conditions. This system can 

determine times when peak-hour timing plans begin or end; potentially reducing vehicle delays. 

 Truck signal priority systems use sensors to detect approaching heavy vehicles and alter signal 

timings to improve truck freight travel. While truck signal priority may improve travel times for 

trucks, its primary purpose is to improve the overall performance of intersection operations by 

clearing any trucks that would otherwise be stopped at the intersection and subsequently have 

to spend a longer time getting back up to speed. Implementing truck signal priority requires 

additional advanced detector loops, usually placed in pairs back from the approach to the 

intersection. 

Real-Time Traveler Information 

Traveler information consists of collecting and disseminating real-time 

transportation system information to the traveling public. This includes 

information on traffic and road conditions, general public transportation 

and parking information, interruptions due to roadway incidents, 

roadway maintenance and construction, and weather conditions. 

Traveler information is collected from roadway sensors, traffic cameras, 

vehicle probes, and more recently, media access control (MAC) 

devices such as cell phones or laptops. Data from these sources are sent 

to a central system and subsequently disseminated to the public so that 

drivers track conditions specific to their cars and can provide historical 

and real-time traffic conditions for travelers. 

When roadway travelers are supplied with information on their trips, they 

may be able to avoid heavy congestion by altering a travel path, 

delaying the start of a trip, or changing which mode they can choose. 

This can reduce overall delay and fuel emissions. Traveler information 

projects can be prioritized over increasing capacity on roadway, often with high project visibility among 

the public. 

69



 

PAGE 52 

Real-Time Transit Information 

Transit agencies or third-party sources can disseminate both schedule and 

system performance information to travelers through a variety of 

applications, such as in-vehicle, wayside, or in-terminal dynamic message 

signs, as well as the Internet or wireless devices. Coordination with regional 

or multimodal traveler information efforts can increase the availability of this 

transit schedule and system performance information. TriMet has 

implemented this through its Transit Tracker system. 

These systems enhance passenger convenience and may increase the 

attractiveness of transit to the public by encouraging travelers to consider 

transit as opposed to driving alone. They do require cooperation and 

integration between agencies for disseminating the information. 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MANAGEMENT (TSM) PLAN 

The TSM Plan projects developed for the Molalla TSP update are summarized 

in Table 6. These projects are intended to address existing and projected future operational performance 

for motor vehicles as well as all other modes of transportation that depend on the roadway system for 

travel, such as pedestrians, bicyclists, transit users, and freight. 

Table 6: Transportation System Management Projects 

Project/Program 

Number Name Description Priority 

Cost 

Estimate 

TSM1 
Signal System 

Improvements 

Update signal timing plans and coordinate signals to 

better match prevailing traffic conditions; 

implementing adaptive or active signal control, traffic 

responsive control, and/or truck signal priority 

High/ 

Medium/ 

Low 

$5,000/year 

TSM2 
Real-Time Traveler 

Information 

Work with mobile and web applications to increase 

information on traffic and road conditions, general 

public transportation and parking information, 

interruptions due to roadway incidents, maintenance, 

construction, and weather conditions. 

Medium TBD 

TSM3 
Real-Time Transit 

Information 

Work with transit agencies or third-party sources to 

disseminate schedule and system performance 

information to travelers through a variety of 

applications, such as in-vehicle, wayside, in-terminal 

dynamic message signs, live schedule arrival boards, 

as well as the internet or wireless devices. 

Medium TBD 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $25,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $25,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $60,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $110,000 

Other potential TSM projects include: 

 Support advancing technologies, transportation network company (TNC) platforms, and active 

transportation programs to support existing city infrastructure. 

70



 

PAGE 53 

TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT (TDM) 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) is a policy tool as well as a general term used to describe 

any action that removes single occupant vehicle trips from the roadway during peak travel demand 

periods. As growth in the City of Molalla occurs, the number of vehicle trips and travel demand in the 

area will also increase. The ability to change a user’s travel behavior and provide alternative mode 

choices will help accommodate this potential growth in trips. The following section provides more detail 

on programming and policy strategies that may be effective for managing transportation demand and 

increasing system efficiency over the next 22 years. 

PROGRAMMING 

Programming solutions can provide effective and low-cost options for reducing transportation demand. 

Some of the most effective programming strategies can be implemented by employers and are aimed 

at encouraging non-single occupancy vehicle commuting. These strategies are discussed below. 

Carpool Match Services 

Clackamas County promotes the use of Drive Less Connect, which is a rideshare/carpool program that 

regional commuters can use to find other commuters with similar routes to work. The program allows 

commuters to connect and coordinate with others on locations, departure times, and driving 

responsibilities. Local employers can also play a role in encouraging carpooling by sharing information 

about the system, providing preferential carpool parking, and allowing employees to have flexibility in 

workday schedules. 

Collaborative Marketing 

Public agencies, local business owners and operators, developers, and transit service providers can 

collaborate on marketing to get the word out to residents about transportation options that provide an 

alternative to single-occupancy vehicles. 

POLICY 

Policy solutions can be implemented by cities, counties, regions, or at the statewide level. Regional and 

state-level policies will affect transportation demand in Molalla, but local policies can also have an 

impact. These policies are discussed below. 

Limited and/or Flexible Parking Requirements 

Cities set policies related to parking requirements for new developments. In order to allow developments 

that encourage multi-modal transportation, cities can set parking maximums and low minimums and/or 

allow for shared parking between uses. Cities can also provide developers the option to pay in-lieu fees 

instead of constructing additional parking. This option provides additional flexibility to developers that can 

increase the likelihood of development, especially on smaller lots where surface parking would cover a 

high portion of the total property. 

  

71



 

PAGE 54 

Cities can also set policies that require provision of parking to the rear of buildings, allowing buildings in 

commercial areas to directly front the street. This urban form creates a more appealing environment for 

walking and window-shopping. In-lieu parking fees support this type of development for parcels that do 

not have rear- or side-access points. 

Parking Management 

Parking plays a large role in transportation demand management, and effective management of parking 

resources can encourage use of non-single occupancy vehicle modes. Cities can tailor policies to charge 

for public parking in certain areas or impose time limits on street parking in retail centers. Cities can also 

monitor public parking supply and utilization in order to inform future parking strategy. 

TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT (TDM) PLAN 

Table 7 identifies the TDM strategies included in the Molalla TSP update. Given Molalla’s lack of 

experience with TDM strategies, it is important that decision-makers understand their long-term costs and 

benefits and are able evaluate these along-side arguments from opponents in achieving outcomes that 

best reflect the City’s vision and goals while effectively reducing travel demand. 

Table 7: Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Strategies 

Program/Project 

Number Name Description Priority 

Cost 

Estimate 

TDM1 
Carpool Match 

Services Service 

Coordinate rideshare/carpool programs to 

allow regional commuters to find other 

commuters with similar routes to work. 

High/Medium/Low $5,000/year 

TDM2 
Collaborative 

Marketing 

Work with nearby cities, employers, transit 

service providers, and developers to 

collaborate on marketing for transportation 

options that provide an alternative to 

single-occupancy vehicles 

High/Medium/Low $5,000/year 

TDM3 

Limited and/or 

Flexible Parking 

Requirements 

Update the Molalla Municipal Code to limit 

and/or allow for flexible parking 

requirements 

Medium $25,000 

TDM4 Parking Management 

Develop a parking management plan for 

downtown Molalla to impose time limits in 

commercial areas and allow for the 

potential to charge for parking 

Medium $25,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $50,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $100,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $120,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $270,000 

Other potential TDM projects include: 

 Support continued efforts by ODOT and Clackamas County to develop productive TDM 

measures that reduce commuter vehicle miles and peak hour trips. 

72



 

PAGE 55 

 Encourage the development of high speed communication in all part of the city (fiber optic, 

digital cable, DSL, etc.). The objective would be to allow employers and residents the maximum 

opportunity to rely upon other systems for conducting business and activities than the 

transportation system during peak periods. 

 Encourage developments that effectively mix land uses to reduce vehicle trip generation. These 

plans may include development linkages (particularly non-auto) that support greater use of 

alternative modes. 

NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT (NTM) 

Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) is a term used to describe traffic control devices that reduce 

travel speeds and traffic volumes in residential neighborhoods. NTM is also commonly referred to as traffic 

calming because of its ability to calm traffic and improve neighborhood livability. NTM solutions have 

been implemented in locations throughout the city; however, there are many areas where additional 

NTM could be considered in the future. Table 8 lists several common NTM options that are typically 

supported by emergency response as long as minimum street criteria are met. 

Table 8: Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) Options by Functional Classification 

Traffic Calming Measures 

Roadway Classifications 

Arterial Collector 

Neighborhood Street/ 

Local Street 

Curb Extensions Supported Supported 

Traffic Calming 

measures are 

generally supported 

on lesser response 

routes that have 

connectivity (more 

than two accesses) 

and are accepted 

and field tested 

Medians Supported Supported 

Pavement Texture Supported Supported 

Speed Hump Not Supported Not Supported 

Raised Crosswalk Not Supported Not Supported 

Speed Cushion Not Supported Not Supported 

Choker Not Supported Not Supported 

Traffic Circle Not Supported Not Supported 

Diverter (with emergency vehicle pass through) Not Supported Supported 

Meandering Alignments Not Supported Not Supported 

Note: Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) measures are supported with the qualification that they meet emergency 

response guidelines including minimum street width, emergency vehicle turning radius, and accessibility/connectivity. 

While no specific NTM projects are identified in the TSP, they are an important part of the City’s ongoing 

effort to improve livability. Any future NTM projects should be coordinated with emergency service 

providers to ensure public safety is not compromised. NTM engineering solutions are limited to 

neighborhood street and local streets; implementation of NTM solutions on arterial and collector streets is 

counterproductive and can lead to cut through traffic on local streets. NTM is also restricted on arterial 

and collector streets to avoid conflicts with emergency access/public safety as well as conflicts with 

public transit. 

73



 

PAGE 56 

ACCESS MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Access management is a set of measures regulating access to streets, roads, and highways, from public 

roads and private driveways. Access management is a policy tool which seeks to balance mobility, the 

need to provide efficient, safe and timely travel with the ability to allow access to individual properties. 

Proper implementation of access management techniques could result in reduced congestion, reduced 

crash rates, less need for roadway widening, conservation of energy, and reductions in air pollution. 

Measures may include but are not limited to restrictions on the type and amount of access to roadways, 

and use of physical controls, such as signals and channelization including raised medians, to reduce 

impacts of approach road traffic on the main facility. 

ODOT ACCESS MANAGEMENT STANDARDS 

Oregon Administrative Rule 734, Division 51 establishes procedures, standards, and approval criteria used 

by ODOT to govern highway approach permitting and access management consistent with Oregon 

Revised Statutes (ORS), Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR), statewide planning goals, acknowledged 

comprehensive plans, and the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP). The OHP serves as the policy basis for 

implementing Division 51 and guides the administration of access management rules, including mitigation 

and public investment, when required, to ensure highway safety and operations pursuant to this division. 

Access spacing standards for approaches to state highways are based on the highway classification, 

highway designation, area type, and posted speed. Within Molalla, the OHP classifies OR 213 and OR 211 

as District Highways. Future developments along OR 213 and OR 211 (new development, redevelopment, 

zone changes, and/or comprehensive plan amendments) is required to meet the OAR 734, Division 51 

access management policies and standards. Table 9 summarizes ODOT’s access management 

standards for OR 213 and OR 211. 

Table 9: OR 213 and OR 211 ODOT Access Management Standards 

Posted Speed 

Spacing Standards 

Rural Areas1 

Spacing Standards 

Urban Areas 

Spacing Standards for 

Areas Designated as 

UBAs 

Spacing Standards for 

areas Designated as 

STAs 

55 or higher 700 700 -  

50 550 550 -  

40 & 45 500 500 -  

30 & 35 400 350 3501 3002 

25 & lower 400 250 3501 3002 

Note: These access spacing standards do not apply to approaches in existence prior to April 1, 2000 except as provided in OAR 

734-051-5120(9). 

1. Measurement of the approach road spacing is from the center on the same side of the roadway. 

2. Minimum spacing standards for public road approaches is the existing city block spacing (approximately 300 feet in Molalla); 

private driveways spacing is a minimum of 175 feet. 

74



 

PAGE 57 

Special Transportation Area 

The segment of OR 211 from Hart Avenue to Grange Avenue (mile point 12.64 to 12.94) is designated as 

a Special Transportation Area (STA). An STA is a designated district of compact development along a 

state highway in which the need for appropriate local access outweighs the considerations of highway 

mobility. The STA designation allows for redevelopment to occur along OR 211 with access less than that 

standard spacing shown in Table 9. 

While accessibility for automobiles plays an important role through a STA, convenience of movement 

within an STA is focused on pedestrian, bicycle, and transit modes. STAs look like traditional “Main Streets” 

and area generally located on both sides of the highway. The primary objective of an STA is to provide 

access to and circulation amongst community activities, businesses and residences and to 

accommodate pedestrian, bicycle, and transit movement along and across the highway . 

CITY STANDARDS 

Access spacing standards for approaches to City streets are based on the roadway functional 

classification. Chapter 17 of the Molalla Municipal Code indicates that the minimum distances shall be 

maintained between approaches and street intersections consistent with the current version of the Public 

Works Design Standards and Transportation System Plan. Table 10 identifies the minimum intersection 

spacing standards for public streets and private driveways as they relate to new development and 

redevelopment within the City. Table 11 identifies standards for private access driveway widths. These 

standards will help to preserve transportation system investments and guard against deteriorations in 

safety and increased congestion. 

Table 10: Minimum Intersection Spacing Standards 

Functional Classification Public Street (Feet) Private Access Drive (Feet) 

Local Street 150 50 

Neighborhood Collector 300 100 

Major Collector/Arterial1 600 150 

Molalla Forest Road 800 N/A2 

1. ODOT standards supersede these values on ODOT facilities 

2. Not allowed unless no other access possible. Access may be limited to right-in, right-out 

Table 11: Private Access Driveway Width Standards 

Land Use Minimum (Feet) Maximum (Feet) 

Single Family Residential 12 24 

Multi-family Residential 24 30 

Commercial 30 40 

Industrial 30 40 

 

75



 

PAGE 58 

In cases where physical constraints or unique site characteristics limit the ability for the access spacing 

standards listed in Tables 9 and 10 to be met, the City retains the right to grant an access spacing 

variance. 

ACCESS SPACING VARIANCES 

Access spacing variances may be provided to parcels whose highway/street frontage, topography, or 

location would otherwise preclude issuance of a conforming permit and would either have no 

reasonable access or cannot obtain reasonable alternate access to the public road system. In such a 

situation, a conditional access permit may be issued by ODOT or the City, as appropriate, for a 

connection to a property that cannot be accessed in a manner that is consistent with the spacing 

standards. The permit can carry a condition that the access may be closed at such time that reasonable 

access becomes available to a local public street. The approval condition might also require a given 

land owner to work in cooperation with adjacent land owners to provide either joint access points, front 

and rear cross-over easements, or a rear access upon future redevelopment. 

The requirements for obtaining a deviation from ODOT’s minimum spacing standards are documented in 

OAR 734-051-3050. For streets under the City‘s jurisdiction, the City may reduce the access spacing 

standards at the discretion of the City Engineer if the following conditions exist: 

 Joint access driveways and cross access easements are provided in accordance with the 

standards; 

 The site plan incorporates a unified access and circulation system in accordance with the 

standards; 

 The property owner enters into a written agreement with the City that pre-existing connections 

on the site will be closed and eliminated after construction of each side of the joint use 

driveway; and/or, 

 The proposed access plan for redevelopment properties moves in the direction of the spacing 

standards. 

The City Engineer may modify or waive the access spacing standards for streets under the City’s 

jurisdiction where the physical site characteristics or layout of abutting properties would make 

development of a unified or shared access and circulation system impractical, subject to the following 

considerations: 

 Unless modified, application of the access standard will result in the degradation of operational 

and safety integrity of the transportation system. 

 The granting of the variance will meet the purpose and intent of the standards and will not be 

considered until every feasible option for meeting access standards is explored. 

 Applicants for variance from these standards must provide proof of unique or special conditions 

that make strict application of the standards impractical. Applicants shall include proof that: 

76



 

PAGE 59 

− Indirect or restricted access cannot be obtained; no engineering or construction 

solutions can be applied to mitigate the condition; and, no alternative access is 

available from a road with a lower functional classification than the primary roadway. 

No variance shall be granted where such hardship is self-created. Consistency between access spacing 

requirements and exceptions in the TSP and MMC is an important regulatory solution to be addressed as 

part of this TSP update. 

ACCESS CONSOLIDATION THROUGH MANAGEMENT 

From an operational perspective, access management measures limit the number of redundant access 

points along roadways. This enhances roadway capacity, improves safety, and benefits circulation. 

Enforcement of the access spacing standards should be complemented with provision of alternative 

access points. Purchasing right-of-way and closing driveways without a parallel road system and/or other 

local access could seriously affect the viability of the impacted properties. Thus, if an access 

management approach is taken, alternative access should be developed to avoid “land-locking” a 

given property. 

As part of every land use action, the City should evaluate the potential need for conditioning a given 

development proposal with the following items, in order to maintain and/or improve traffic operations 

and safety along the arterial and collector roadways. 

 Provide access to the lower classification roadway when multiple roadways abut the property. 

 Provide crossover easements on all compatible parcels (considering topography, access, and 

land use) to facilitate future access between adjoining parcels. 

 Issue conditional access permits to developments that have access points that do not meet the 

designated access spacing policy and/or have the ability to align with opposing driveways. 

 Right-of-way dedications to facilitate the future planned roadway system in the vicinity of 

proposed developments. 

 Half-street improvements (sidewalks, curb and gutter, bike lanes/paths, and/or travel lanes) 

along site frontages that do not have full build-out improvements in place at the time of 

development. 

Exhibit 1 illustrates the application of cross-over easements and conditional access permits over time to 

achieve access management objectives. The individual steps are described in Table 12. As illustrated in 

the exhibit and supporting table, by using these guidelines, all driveways can eventually move in the 

direction of the access spacing standards as development and redevelopment occur along a given 

street. 

77



 

PAGE 60 

Table 12: Example of Crossover Easement/Indenture/Consolidation 

Step Process 

1 

EXISTING – Currently Lots A, B, C, and D have site-access driveways that neither meet the access spacing criteria 

of 500 feet nor align with driveways or access points on the opposite side of the highway. Under these conditions 

motorists are into situations of potential conflict (conflicting left turns) with opposing traffic. Additionally, the 

number of side-street (or site-access driveway) intersections decreases the operation and safety of the highway  

2 

REDEVELOPMENT OF LOT B – At the time that Lot B redevelops, the City would review the proposed site plan and 

make recommendations to ensure that the site could promote future crossover or consolidated access. Next, the 

City would issue conditional permits for the development to provide crossover easements with Lots A and C, and 

ODOT/City would grant a conditional access permit to the lot. After evaluating the land use action, ODOT/City 

would determine that LOT B does not have either alternative access, nor can an access point be aligned with an 

opposing access point, nor can the available lot frontage provide an access point that meets the access 

spacing criteria set forth for segment of highway. 

3 

REDEVELOPMENT OF LOT A – At the time Lot A redevelops, the City/ODOT would undertake the same review 

process as with the redevelopment of LOT B (see Step 2); however, under this scenario ODOT and the City would 

use the previously obtained cross-over easement at Lot B consolidate the access points of Lots A and B. 

ODOT/City would then relocate the conditional access of Lot B to align with the opposing access point and 

provide and efficient access to both Lots A and B. The consolidation of site-access driveways for Lots A and B will 

not only reduce the number of driveways accessing the highway but will also eliminate the conflicting left-turn 

movements the highway by the alignment with the opposing access point. 

4 
REDEVELOPMENT OF LOT D – The redevelopment of Lot D will be handled in same manner as the redevelopment 

of Lot B (see Step 2) 

5 

REDEVELOPMENT OF LOT C – The redevelopment of Lot C will be reviewed once again to ensure that the site will 

accommodate crossover and/or consolidated access. Using the crossover agreements with Lots B and D, Lot C 

would share a consolidated access point with Lot D and will also have alternative frontage access the shared 

site-access driveway of Lots A and B. By using the crossover agreement and conditional access permit process, 

the City and ODOT will be able to eliminate another access point and provide the alignment with the opposing 

access points. 

6 
COMPLETE – After Lots A, B, C, and D redevelop over time, the number of access points will be reduced and 

aligned, and the remaining access points will meet the access spacing standard.  

 

  

78



 

PAGE 61 

Exhibit 1: Cross Over Easement 

79



 

PAGE 62 

  

CHAPTER 7: MOTOR VEHICLE SYSTEM  

80



 

PAGE 63 

MOTOR VEHICLE SYSTEM 
The motor vehicle system within Molalla includes private streets, city streets, and state highways. These 

facilities provide residents with the ability to access retail, commercial, recreational, and other land uses 

within Molalla and neighborhood cities by vehicle. This section describes how the system has been 

developed to date and provides a more detailed review of how it is used and operated. 

The street system within Molalla is well established in some areas; however, there are several areas where 

the existing roadways could be improved and other areas where new roadways could be constructed 

to increase the efficiency of the transportation system as well as improve access and circulation for all 

travel modes. There are also several intersections with operational issues under the existing and projected 

future traffic conditions. Therefore, the Motor Vehicle Plan includes projects to increase the efficiency of 

the transportation system through changes in the functional classification of roadways, development of 

roadway standards and standard cross sections, improvements to the street system connectivity, and 

improvements to the capacity of several roadways and several key intersections. 

FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION PLAN 

A street’s functional classification defines its role in the transportation system and reflects desired 

operational and design characteristics such as right-of-way requirements, pavement widths, pedestrian 

and bicycle features, and driveway (access) spacing standards. The functional classification plan 

includes the following designations: 

 Arterials are primarily intended to serve traffic entering and leaving the urban area. While 

arterials may provide access to adjacent land uses, that function is subordinate to the travel 

service provided to major traffic movements. Arterials are the longest-distance, highest-volume 

roadways within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). Although the streets focus on serving longer 

distance trips, pedestrian and/or bicycle activities often are also associated with the arterial 

streetscape. 

 Collectors facilitate the movement of city traffic within the UGB. Collectors provide some degree 

of access to adjacent properties, while maintaining circulation and mobility for all users. Major 

collectors are distinguished by their connectivity and higher traffic volumes, although they are 

designed to carry lower traffic volumes at slower speeds than arterials. Major collectors are 

characterized by two or three-lane facilities. Minor collectors carry lower volumes than major 

collectors and have two-lane cross sections. 

 Neighborhood Streets connect neighborhoods with the collector and arterial street system, 

facilitate the movement of local traffic, and provide access to abutting land uses. Speeds on 

these facilities should remain low to ensure community livability and safety for pedestrians and 

bicyclists of all ages. On-street parking is more prevalent and pedestrian amenities are typically 

81



 

PAGE 64 

provided. Striped bike lanes are unnecessary for most neighborhood streets because traffic 

volumes and speeds should allow cyclists to travel concurrently with motorists. 

 Local Streets are primarily intended to provide access to abutting land uses. Local streets offer 

the lowest level of mobility and consequently tend to be short, low-speed facilities. As such, local 

streets should primarily serve passenger cars, pedestrians, and bicyclists; heavy truck traffic 

should be discouraged. On-street parking is common and sidewalks are typically present. 

Figure 8 illustrates functional classification plan for all existing streets and future arterial and collector 

streets within the UGB. The alignments for future streets should be considered conceptual: the end points 

of the streets are fixed, but the alignments between intersections may vary depending on design 

requirements at the time the streets are constructed. Street stub connections to the UGB are indicated 

by arrows. Table 13 summarizes the streets by functional classification. 

Table 13: Functional Classification Plan 

Arterials 

Collectors 
Neighborhood 

Streets Local Streets Major Collectors Minor Collectors 

Molalla Avenue 

OR 213 

OR 211 

5th Street 

Leroy Avenue 

Lowe Road 

Mathias Road 

Molalla Forest Road 

Shirley Street 

Toliver Road 

Cole Avenue 

Frances Street 

Meadow Drive 

Ridings Avenue 

E 7th Street 

Affolter Avenue 

Bronco Avenue 

Cascade Lane 

Center Avenue 

Commercial 

Parkway 

Church Street 

Harvey Lane 

Heintz Street 

Hezzie Lane 

Industrial Way 

Kennel Avenue 

Lowe Road 

Stowers Road 

Toliver Drive 

Thunderbird Street 

All remaining streets 

ROADWAY CROSS SECTION STANDARDS 

Roadway cross section standards were developed for the Molalla TSP update based on the 

characteristics of the existing roadways within the city. The design of a roadway can (and will) vary from 

street to street and segment to segment due to adjacent land uses and demand. The roadway cross 

sections are intended to define a system that allows standardization of key characteristics to provide 

consistency, but also to provide criteria for application that provides some flexibility while meeting the 

design standards. Table 14 outlines the roadway cross section standards for city streets. Exhibits 2 through 

7 illustrate the cross-section standards for each functional classification. 

82



vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

Sw
ieg

le 
Av

e

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

W Heintz St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

E 5Th St

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
p h

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry

Dr

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Le
roy

 Av
e Frances St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

S M
ath

ias
 RdE 8Th St

Mt View Ln

E Heintz St

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

E 2Nd St

Eric Dr

Ma
y S

t

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Meadowlark Pl

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Anne Ln

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an

Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

Tri
nit

y C
t

E 6Th St
E 7Th St

We
dgew

oo
dD

r

Vil
lag

e D
r

West Ln

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pk
wy

Patrol StS Lowe Rd

W Main St

E Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

S Warrick Rd
S Appaloosa Dr

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

S F
rap

 Ln

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

S Vick Rd

S Toliver Rd

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
8

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\08

_F
un

cti
on

al 
Cla

ss
 C

ha
ng

es
.m

xd
 - m

be
ll -

  1
0:4

4 A
M 

8/1
3/2

01
8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Functional Classification Plan
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Functional Classification
<all other values>
Arterial
Major Collector
Minor Collector
Neighborhood Street
Local Street
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

83



 

PAGE 66 

Unless prohibited by significant topographic or environmental constraint, newly constructed streets shall 

meet the maximum standards indicated in the cross sections. When widening an existing street, the City 

may use lesser standards than the maximum to accommodate physical and existing development 

constraints where determined to be appropriate by the Public Works Director. In some locations “green 

streets” (those that utilize vegetation or pervious material to manage drainage) may be appropriate due 

to design limitations or adjacent land use. Green street elements (as described in the notes for the cross 

section exhibits) may be used where appropriate and as determined by the Public Works Director. 

Table 14: City of Molalla Roadway Cross Section Standards 

Street Element Characteristic Width/Options 

Right-of-way 

Arterial 60-68 feet 

Arterial (Downtown District) 60 feet 

Major Collector 60 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 60 feet 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 50 feet 

Local Street 50 feet 

Vehicle Lane Widths (Typical widths) 

Arterial 10-12 feet 

Arterial (Downtown District) 12 feet 

Major Collector 10-11 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 12 feet 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 11 feet 

Local Street 10 feet 

On-Street Parking 

Arterial 7 feet where applicable 

Arterial (Downtown District) 8 feet 

Major Collector 7 feet where applicable 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) None 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 7 feet 

Local Street 8 feet 

Bike Lanes 

Arterial 
6 feet; 5 feet with 2 feet Buffers on 

OR 213 and OR 211 

Arterial (Downtown District) Shared 

Major Collector 6 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 12 feet shared path 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Shared 

Local Street Shared 

Sidewalks 

Arterial 6 feet, 8-10 feet in commercial areas 

Arterial (Downtown District) 10-12 feet 

Major Collector 6 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 12 feet shared path 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 6 feet 

Local Street 6 feet 

84



 

PAGE 67 

Street Element Characteristic Width/Options 

Landscape Strips 

Arterial Optional 5-6 feet where applicable 

Arterial (Downtown District) 5-6 feet 

Major Collector None 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 12 ½ feet 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route None 

Local Street None 

Median/Turn Lane 

Arterial 12-14 feet 

Arterial (Downtown District) 12-14 feet 

Major Collector 12 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 14 feet 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 12-feet 

Local Street None 

Neighborhood Traffic Management 

(NTM) 

Arterial Not Appropriate 

Arterial (Downtown District) Not Appropriate 

Major Collector Not Appropriate 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Not Appropriate 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 
At the discretion of the Public Works 

Director 

Local Street 
At the discretion of the Public Works 

Director 

Transit/Freight 

Arterial Appropriate 

Arterial (Downtown District) Appropriate 

Major Collector Local service only 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Appropriate 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Local service only 

Local Street Local service only 

 

  

85



 

PAGE 68 

Exhibit 2: Arterial Cross Sections 

 

Arterial with Center Turn Lane (60-foot ROW, 46-foot Paved Width) 

 

Arterial with On-Street Parking (60-foot ROW, 46-foot Paved Width) 

 
Arterial with Buffered Bike Lanes and Center Turn Lane (68-foot ROW, 52-foot Paved Width) 

 

Arterial with Buffered Bike Lanes (60-foot ROW, 38-foot Paved Width) 

Table 15: Arterial Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 10-12 feet2 

On-Street Parking 7 feet 

Bike Lanes 6 feet; 5 feet with 2 feet Buffers on OR 213 and OR 211 

Sidewalks 6 feet, 8-10 feet in commercial areas 

Landscape Strips Optional 5-6 feet1 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12-14 feet2 

Neighborhood Traffic Management Not Appropriate 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

1. Developer may provide landscape strips w/ dedication of additional right-of-way and maintenance agreement by developer. 

2. On ODOT facilities, the minimum lane width is 12 feet and the minimum median/center turn lane width is 14 feet. 

3. The 12-18” space reserved for utility easement along ODOT facilities can be paved or landscaped based on adjacent use. 

Molalla Avenue – Shirley 

Street to Toliver Road 

Molalla Avenue – Other 

than Downtown District 

OR 213 and OR 211 – 

Other than Downtown 

District 

OR 211 – Fenton Avenue 

to Mathias Road 

86



 

PAGE 69 

Exhibit 3: Arterial (Downtown District) Cross Sections 

 

Arterial with On-Street Parking (60-foot ROW, 40-foot Paved Width) 

 

Arterial with Center Turn Lane – Intersection Treatment (60-foot ROW, 40-foot Paved Width) 

Table 16: Arterial (Downtown District) Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 12 feet 

On-Street Parking 8 feet1 

Bike Lanes Shared 

Sidewalks 10-12 feet 

Landscape Strips 5-6 feet2 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12-14 feet 

Neighborhood Traffic Management Not Appropriate 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

1. On-street parking may be reduced or removed at the discretion of the Public Work Director. 

2. Landscape strips will be located within the 10-12 foot sidewalks and consist of street furniture and tree wells. 

  

OR 211 – Shaver Avenue 

to Fenton Avenue 

Molalla Avenue – Heintz 

Street to 3rd Street 

87



 

PAGE 70 

Exhibit 4: Major Collector Cross Section 

 

Major Collector (60-foot ROW, 34-foot Paved Width) 

 

Major Collector with On-Street Parking (60-foot ROW, 46-foot Paved Width) 

 

Major Collector – Intersection Treatment (60-foot ROW, 46-foot Paved Width) 

Table 17: Major Collector Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 10-11 feet 

On-Street Parking 7 feet 

Bike Lanes 6 feet 

Sidewalks 6 feet 

Landscape Strips None 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12 feet 

Neighborhood Traffic Management Not Appropriate 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

  

Toliver Road – OR 213 to 

N Molalla Avenue 

Shirley Street – Park 

Avenue to OR 211 

Shirley Street – N Molalla 

Avenue to Park Avenue 

88



 

PAGE 71 

Exhibit 5: Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Cross Section 

 

Major Collector with Shared-use Path (60-foot ROW, 34-foot Paved Width) 

Table 18: Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 11 feet 

On-Street Parking None 

Bike Lanes None 

Sidewalks 12 feet shared path 

Landscape Strips 12 ½ feet 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12 feet 

Neighborhood Traffic Management Not Appropriate 

  

89



 

PAGE 72 

Exhibit 6: Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Cross Section 

 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route (50-foot ROW, 36-foot Paved Width) 

 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route with Center Turn Lane – Intersection Treatment 

(50-foot ROW, 34-foot Paved Width) 

Table 19: Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 11 feet 

On-Street Parking 7 feet 

Bike Lanes Shared 

Sidewalks 6 feet 

Landscape Strips None 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12 feet 

Neighborhood Traffic Management 

At discretion of the Public Works 

Director 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

  

90



 

PAGE 73 

Exhibit 7: Local Street Cross Section 

 

Local Street (50-foot ROW, 34-foot Paved Width) 

Table 20: Local Street Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 10 feet 

On-Street Parking 8 feet 

Bike Lanes Shared 

Sidewalks 6 feet 

Landscape Strips None 

Median/Center Turn Lane None 

Neighborhood Traffic Management 

At discretion of the Public Works 

Director 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

  

91



 

PAGE 74 

STREET SYSTEM CONNECTIVITY 

The future street system needs to balance the benefits of providing a well-connected grid system with the 

challenges associated with existing development patterns and environmental issues precluding street 

system connections. Incremental improvements to the street system can be planned carefully to provide 

route choices for pedestrians, bicyclists, and motorists while accounting for potential neighborhood 

impacts. In addition, the quality of the transportation system can be improved by making connectivity 

improvements to the pedestrian and bicycle system separate from street connectivity. Several new 

arterial and collector street connections are identified in the functional classification plan and the motor 

vehicle plan as future arterial, collector and neighborhood street connections. These connections should 

occur as development occurs or as funding becomes available. The following identifies several local 

street connections that can further support street system connectivity within Molalla. 

LOCAL STREET CONNECTIVITY 

Figure 9 illustrates the location of the local street connections identified for the Molalla TSP update. Table 

21 summarizes the connections and identifies their priority based on the project evaluation criteria. Costs 

are not provided for these projects as they are anticipated to be constructed by future development. 

Any local street connectivity projects that are desired to be city-initiated projects should be identified as 

a high priority and included in the cost-constrained plan. 

Table 21: Local Street Connectivity 

Project 

Number Location Description Priority 

L1 3rd Street Extend 3rd Street from Metzler Street to Hart Avenue Low 

L2 4th Street Extend 4th Street from Metzler Street to Hart Avenue Low 

L3 8th Street Connect 8th Street to 8th Street Low 

L4 Cole Avenue Extend Cole Avenue from roadway terminus to E 5th Street Low 

L5 Andrian Drive Extend Andrian Drive east and south to Stewart Drive Low 

L6 Eric Drive Extend Eric Drive from roadway terminus to north Low 

L7 Faurie Street Extend Faurie Street from roadway terminus to Miller Street Low 

L8 Lynn Lane Exten Lynn Lane from roadway terminus to Hezzie Lane Low 

L9 Patrol Street Extend Patrol Street from roadway terminus to OR 211 Low 

L10 Rachel Lane Extend Rachel Lane from roadway terminus to north Low 

MOTOR VEHICLE FACILITIES 

Streets serve a majority of all trips within Molalla across all travel modes. In addition to motorists, 

pedestrians, bicyclists, and public transit riders use streets to access areas locally and regionally. This 

section summarizes the motor vehicle facilities that were evaluated throughout the planning process to 

address existing deficiencies in the motor vehicle system and future needs. 

92



vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

L5

L7

L3

L2

L1

L8

L4

L9

L6 L10

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
9

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\09

_L
oc

al 
Str

ee
t C

on
ne

cti
vit

y N
ee

ds
.m

xd
 - m

be
ll -

  1
0:4

4 A
M 

8/1
3/2

01
8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Local Street Connectivity
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Local Street Extension
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

93



 

PAGE 76 

TURN LANES 

Separate left- and right-turn lanes, as well as two-way left-turn lanes (TWLTL) can provide separation 

between slowed or stopped vehicles waiting to turn left and through vehicles. The design of turn lanes is 

largely determined based on a traffic study that identifies the need for the turn lane and the storage 

length needed to accommodate vehicle queues. Turn lanes are commonly used at intersections where 

the turning volumes warrant the need for separation. 

TRAFFIC SIGNALS 

Traffic signals allow opposing streams of traffic to proceed in an alternating pattern. National and state 

guidance indicates when it is appropriate to install traffic signals at intersections. Intersections along state 

facilities, such as OR 213 and OR 211 require approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. When 

used, traffic signals can effectively manage high traffic volumes and provide dedicated times in which 

pedestrians and cyclists can cross roadways. Because they continuously draw from a power source and 

must be periodically re-timed, signals typically have higher maintenance costs than other types of 

intersection control. Signals can improve safety at intersections where signal warrants are met, however, 

they may result in an increase in rear-end crashes compared to other solutions. Signals have a significant 

range in costs depending on the number of approaches, how many through and turn lanes each 

approach has, and, if it is located in an urban or rural area. The cost of a new traffic signal ranges from 

approximately $250,000 in rural areas to $350,000 in urban areas and up to $750,000 on state owned 

facilities. 

ROUNDABOUTS 

Roundabouts are circular intersections where entering vehicles yield to vehicles already in the circle. They 

are designed to slow vehicle speeds to 20 to 30 mph or less before they enter the intersection, which 

promotes a more comfortable environment for pedestrians, bicyclists, and other non-motorized users. 

Roundabouts have fewer conflict-points and have been shown to reduce the severity of crashes, as 

compared to signalized intersections. Roundabouts can be more costly to design and install than other 

intersection control types, but they have a lower operating and maintenance cost than traffic signals. 

Topography must be carefully evaluated in considering a roundabout, given that slope characteristics at 

an intersection may render a roundabout infeasible. The cost of a new roundabouts ranges from 

approximately $1 million to $2 million depending upon the number of lanes and the slope conditions. 

MOTOR VEHICLE PLAN 

Table 22 identifies the motor vehicle plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. These projects are intended 

to address existing and projected future transportation system needs for motor vehicles as well as all other 

modes of transportation that depend on the roadway system for travel, such as pedestrians, bicyclists, 

transit users, and freight. As shown, the projects are separated into projects on arterial, collector, and 

neighborhood streets and projects at intersections and in other locations throughout the city. The priorities 

shown in Table 22 are based on the project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team 

and the general public. The cost estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements. 

94



 

PAGE 77 

The cost estimates include the cost of right-of-way and the cost of filling in the ditches as appropriate. 

Figure 10 illustrates the location of the motor vehicle plan projects. 

Table 22: Motor Vehicle Plan Projects 

Project 

Number Location Description Priority Cost Estimate 

M1 OR 2131 
Widen OR 213 from the north city limits to OR 211 

to provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Medium $8,825,000 

M2 OR 2131 
Widen OR 213 from OR 211 to the south city limits 

to provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Low $4,335,000 

M3 OR 2111 
Widen OR 211 from the west city limits to OR 213 

to provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Low $1,365,000 

M4 OR 2111 
Widen OR 211 from OR 213 to Shaver Avenue to 

provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Medium $14,505,000 

M5 OR 2111 
Widen OR 211 from Matias Road to the east city 

limits to provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Medium $2,580,000 

M6 
N Molalla 

Avenue 

Widen N Molalla Avenue from Toliver Road to 

Shirley Street to provide a continuous 3-lane 

cross section 

Low $175,000 

M7 Leroy Avenue 

Widen Leroy Avenue from Toliver Road to OR 211 

to provide a continuous 2-lane cross section per 

City standards 

Low $580,000 

M8 Mathias Road 

Widen Mathias Road from OR 211 to the south 

city limits to provide a continuous 3-lane cross 

section 

Low $1,065,000 

M9 Shirley Street 

Widen Shirley Street from N Molalla Avenue OR 

211 to provide a continuous 2-lane cross section 

per City standards 

Low $1,345,000 

M10 W 5th Street 
Construct W 5th Street from Lowe Road terminus 

to Hart Avenue 
High $2,845,000 

M11 E 5th Street 
Construct E 5th Street from Mathias Road to 

Feyrer Park Road 
Low $1,675,000 

M12 
Affolter 

Avenue 

Construct Affolter Avenue from southern terminus 

to Frances Street and from Miller Street to north 

city limits 

Low $1,130,000 

M13 
Commercial 

Way 

Construct Commercial Way from the roadway 

terminus to Lowe Road (west) 
Low $365,000 

M14 Hezzie Lane 

Construct Hezzie Lane from the southern 

roadway terminus to the northern roadway 

terminus 

Low $1,180,000 

M15 Leroy Avenue 
Construct Leroy Avenue from OR 211 to Lowe 

Road (east) 
Low $1,170,000 

M16 
Lowe Road 

(west) 

Reconstruct and widen Lowe Road from OR 213 

to Molalla Forest Road to City standards 
Low $4,170,000 

M17 
Lowe Road 

(east) 

Reconstruct and widen Lowe Road from Molalla 

Forest Road to roadway terminus 
Low $3,265,000 

95



 

PAGE 78 

M18 
Molalla Forest 

Road 

Reconstruct and widen Molalla Forest Road as a 

concrete street from OR 211 to Mathias Road to 

provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 

Low $10,740,000 

Intersections 

M19 

OR 213/ 

Meadow 

Road1 

Reconfigure the intersection to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along OR 213 – 

coordinate with Project M1 

Medium $0 

M20-1 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Widen OR 213 to provide a separate left-turn 

lane at the northbound and southbound 

approaches and install a traffic signal with 

protected or protected-permitted phasing when 

warranted – Coordinate with Project M1, the 

signal should be designed to accommodate 

potential for separate left-turn lanes along Toliver 

Road2 

High $1,000,000 

M20-2 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Widen Toliver Road to provide separate left-turn 

lanes at the eastbound and westbound 

approaches and modify the traffic signal to 

provide permitted phasing2 

Low $850,000 

M21 
OR 213/ 

OR 2111 

Install a separate right-turn lane at the 

southbound approach if/when adjacent 

property redevelops2 

Low $150,000 

M22 
OR 211/Ona 

Way1 

Widen OR 211 to provide a westbound left-turn 

lane and install a traffic signal when warranted – 

Coordinate with Project M42 

Low $1,000,000 

M23 
OR 211/ 

Leroy Avenue1 

Widen OR 211 to provide an eastbound left-turn 

lane and install a traffic signal when warranted – 

Coordinate with Project M42 

Low $1,000,000 

M24 

OR 211/ 

Ridings 

Avenue1 

Widen OR 211 to provide an eastbound left-turn 

lane – Coordinate with Project M4 
Low $03 

M25 

OR 211/ 

Molalla 

Avenue1 

Install separate left-turn lanes at the eastbound 

and westbound approaches and a traffic signal 

with protected or protected-permitted phasing 

when warranted2 

High $750,000 

M26 
OR 211/ 

Mathias Road1 
Install a roundabout when warranted2 Low $2,500,000 

M27 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Toliver Road 

Widen N Molalla Avenue to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along N Molalla Avenue 

and install an eastbound right-turn lane when 

warranted – coordinate with Project M5 

Low $150,000 

M28 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Shirley Street 

Widen N Molalla Avenue to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along N Molalla Avenue 

and install a westbound right-turn lane when 

warranted – coordinate with Project M5 

Low $150,000 

M29 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Heintz Street 

Widen N Molalla Avenue to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along N Molalla Avenue 

and reconfigure the intersection as an all-way 

stop 

High $40,000 

96



 

PAGE 79 

M30 

S Molalla 

Avenue/ 

E 5th Street 

Widen S Molalla Avenue to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along S Molalla Avenue 

and reconfigure the intersection as an all-way 

stop 

High $40,000 

M31 

S Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Molalla Forest 

Road 

Install a roundabout when warranted Low $2,500,000 

M32 

Feyrer Park 

Road/ 

Mathias Road 

Install a roundabout when warranted Low $2,500,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $4,675,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $25,910,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $43,360,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $73,945,000 

1. Project will require coordination with ODOT and approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. 

2. Future evaluation may be required to determine the appropriate form of traffic control at this location. 

3. Project cost included in Motor Vehicle Plan. 

  

97



!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

M2

M8

M4

M9

M7 M6

M5

M18

M1

M16

M3

M17

M13

M10

M1
2

M1
4

M1
5

M11

M22

M23
M24

M25

M19

M20

M21

M27

M29

M28

M30
M26

M32

M31

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
10

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\10

_M
oto

r V
eh

ice
 Pr

oje
cts

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  1

0:4
5 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Motor Vehicle Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

!! Intersection Enhancement
Segment Enhancement
New Street Connection
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

98



 

PAGE 81 

TRAFFIC SAFETY PLAN 

Traffic safety has a significant impact on how people use the transportation system within Molalla, 

particularly in areas where real or perceived safety risks may prevent people from using more active travel 

modes, such as walking, biking, and taking transit. The traffic safety solutions identified in TSP update 

process are largely focused on hotspot issues that occur along roadways and at intersections throughout 

the City. While projects that address systemic issues have not been identified for the TSP update, ODOT’s 

All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) program has developed guidance on how to address various 

systemic issues, including roadway departures, intersection crashes, and pedestrian and bicycle-related 

crashes (See https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Engineering/Pages/ARTS.aspx). Table 23 identifies the 

traffic safety projects for the TSP update. Additional safety projects and improvements are identified as 

part of the pedestrian, bicycle, transit, and motor vehicle plans later in this memo. Figure 11 illustrates the 

traffic safety plan projects. 

Table 23: Traffic Safety Plan Projects 

Project 

Number Location Description Priority 

Cost 

Estimate 

S1 OR 2131 
Widen OR 213 from north city limits to OR 211 to include a center 

turn-lane, bike lanes, and sidewalks – Coordinate with Project M1 
Medium 03 

S2 OR 2111 
Widen OR 211 from OR 213 to Shaver Avenue to include a center 

turn-lane, bike lanes, and sidewalks – Coordinate with Project M4 
Medium 03 

S3 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Widen OR 213 to provide separate left-turn lanes at the north and 

southbound approaches and install a traffic signal with protected or 

protected-permitted phasing at the northbound and southbound 

approaches when warranted – Coordinate with Project M202 

High 03 

S4 
OR 213/ 

OR 2111 

Install flashing beacons on the advanced warning signs at all 

approaches and improve the signal hardware (i.e. lenses, reflective 

back plates, size, and number) to improve the visibility of the signal 

heads 

High $25,000 

S5 

OR 211/ 

Molalla 

Avenue1 

Install separate left-turn lanes at the eastbound and westbound 

approaches and a traffic signal with protected or protected-

permitted phasing when warranted – Coordinate with Project M252 

High 03 

S6 
OR 211/ 

Leroy Avenue1 

Widen OR 211 to provide a separate left-turn lane at the eastbound 

approach and install a traffic signal with protected or protected-

permitted phasing at the eastbound approach when warranted – 

Coordinate with Project M232 

Low 03 

S7 
OR 211/ 

Mathias Road1 
Install a single lane roundabout2 Low $03 

S8 City-wide1 

Evaluate bicycle and pedestrian safety along OR 213, OR 211, Toliver 

Road, Molalla Avenue, and other key corridors to identify 

appropriate counter measures 

Low $50,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $25,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $50,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $75,000 

1. Project will require coordination with ODOT and approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. 

2. Future evaluation may be required to determine the appropriate form of traffic control at this location. 

3. Project cost included in Motor Vehicle Plan. 

99



å å

å

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

S6

S5

S7

S3

S4

S2
S1

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
11

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\11

_T
raf

fic
 S

afe
ty 

Pr
oje

cts
.m

xd
 - m

be
ll -

  1
0:4

6 A
M 

8/1
3/2

01
8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Traffic Safety Plan Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Traffic Safety Plan Projects
!! Intersection Enhancement

Segment Enhancement
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

100



 

PAGE 83 

  

CHAPTER 8: OTHER TRAVEL MODES 

101



 

PAGE 84 

OTHER TRAVEL MODES 
This chapter summarizes the plans for other travel modes in Molalla such as rail, air, water, freight and 

pipeline. 

RAIL TRANSPORTATION 

There are currently no rail lines within Molalla. Oregon Pacific Railroad (formerly Molalla Western Railroad) 

removed the rail lines because they were not serving any customers and the railroad wanted to eliminate 

the cost of maintaining the rail lines and rail crossings. Per the previous TSP, the railroad would be willing 

to replace the tracks and crossings if a customer were found in the area. 

Freight Rail 

There are currently no freight rail terminals within Molalla. The closest freight rail terminal is located in 

Oregon City. 

Passenger Rail 

There are currently no passenger rail terminals within Molalla. The closest passenger rail terminal is located 

in Oregon City and is served by Amtrak. Amtrak provides service between Oregon City (ORC) and 

downtown Portland (PDX) Monday through Friday at 7:24 a.m., 11:15 a.m., and 5:54 p.m. and between 

PDX and ORC at 6:00 a.m., 6:05 p.m., and 9:30 p.m. Travel times vary from 21 to 41 minutes depending on 

time of day and direction. From the ORC stop, the Amtrak Cascades rail line also provides passenger 

service north to Vancouver, British Columbia and south to Eugene. 

PLAN 

While there are no rail transportation projects included in the Molalla TSP update, the City will continue to 

support and promote improvements to the local and regional transportation system to ensure adequate 

access for Molalla residents to freight and passenger rail services. Molalla advocates for good 

connections and service for Amtrak and other passenger rail in the region. 

AIR TRANSPORTATION 

There are no airports located within the City of Molalla; however, a general aviation airport is located 

approximately five miles to the north along OR 213 in Mulino, OR. The Mulino Airport is owned by the 

Oregon Department of Aviation and is open to the general public. The airport has one paved 3,425 x 100-

foot runway and services an average of 58 aircraft operations (takeoffs or landings) per day. A fixed-base 

operator is located at the airport to provide services for general aviation aircraft. Approximately 59 

aircrafts are based at the airport. 

A second airport is located approximately half a mile west of the OR 213/OR 211 intersection, outside the 

Molalla UGB. The Skydive Oregon Airport is owned and operated by Skydive Oregon, a parachute 

jumping operation. The airport has one paved 2,900 x 32-foot runway and services an average of 50 

aircraft operations (takeoffs or landings) per month. Approximately 50 percent of the operations are 

102



 

PAGE 85 

skydive-related. Approximately 20 aircrafts are based at the airport. The closest airport with scheduled 

passenger service is Portland International Airport (PDX), located approximately 35 miles north of Molalla. 

PLAN 

While there are no air transportation projects included in the Molalla TSP, the City will continue to support 

and promote improvements to the local and regional transportation system to ensure adequate access 

for Molalla residents to the Portland International airport and other public and private airports within the 

area. 

WATER TRANSPORTATION 

No navigable waterways are located within the City of Molalla; however, the Molalla River runs south to 

north along the eastern boundary of the city. The Molalla River is not used for transportation, per se; 

however, it is used for recreational purposes. In addition to several single-family homes with private access 

to the river, Feyrer Park, located approximately three miles southeast of Molalla, provides public access 

to the river. Several additional formal and informal accesses are located along OR 211 and the Molalla 

Forest Road, which travels along the western boundary of the river. These river accesses are used year-

round; however, they experience the highest volume of visitors in the summer months. 

PLAN 

While there are no water transportation projects included in the Molalla TSP, the City will continue to 

support and promote improvements to the local transportation system to ensure adequate access for 

Molalla residents to the Molalla River for recreational purposes. 

FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION 

Per the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP), there are no state designated freight routes within Molalla; however, 

ODOT’s Motor Carrier Transportation Division (MCTD) identifies OR 213 and OR 211 as Blue Routes, or routes 

that are unrestricted to standard freight truck traffic, but are either weight or width restricted for non-

divisible and/or heavy haul loads (See https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/MCT/Pages/MotorCarrierAccount.aspx). The 

Clackamas County TSP also identifies OR 213 and OR 211 as truck freight routes that support freight traffic 

throughout the region. 

Per input received throughout the planning process, the volume of trucks passing through downtown 

Molalla, as well as the difficulty some trucks experience turning at the OR 211/Molalla Avenue intersection, 

is a significant issue for the community. Therefore, the freight plan includes designated freight routes and 

freight route restriction on streets throughout the City. The designation of freight routes provides for the 

efficient movement of goods and services while the freight route restrictions maintains neighborhood 

livability, public safety, and minimizes maintenance costs of the roadway system. Figure 12 illustrates the 

designated freight routes and freight route restrictions within the City. 

103



D
D

D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
DvÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

y lo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dgew

oo
d D

r

Vil
lag

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pk
wy

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
12

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\12

_F
rei

gh
t R

ou
tes

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  1

0:4
6 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Freight Route
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Freight Routes
Freight Route

D D D Freight Route Restriction
Clackamas County Freight Routes
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

104



 

PAGE 87 

PLAN 

Designated freight routes have been identified to address freight mobility and reliability within the City. 

Additional TSMO solutions are identified in the TSMO Plan section for truck signal priority and capacity 

based solutions identified in the Motor Vehicle Plan at several key intersections along OR 213, OR 211, and 

Molalla Avenue to further address freight mobility and reliability. In addition to these improvements, the 

City will continue to support and promote improvements to the regional transportation system that 

improve freight and goods movement. The City will also encourage ODOT to monitor traffic and crash 

patterns along OR 213 and OR 211 and will encourage measures which reduce non-local freight trips on 

City streets. 

PIPELINE 

Power Transmission System 

Portland General Electric (PGE) provides electric power to the Portland metropolitan area from eight 

hydroelectric plants (on the Willamette, Clackamas, Deschutes, and Bull Run Rivers) and six thermal plants 

(in Oregon, Washington, and Montana) with a total power generation capacity of 2,022 megawatts. Its 

service area covers 3,170 square miles and 45 percent of Oregon’s population. As of December 1998, 

PGE system reliability is calculated to be 99.98 percent. In Molalla, a PGE transmission line runs south along 

OR 213 into the Molalla substation – from which distribution lines radiate out into the city – and then to 

Mount Angel. The substation is located southwest of the city along OR 213. 

Natural Gas 

Northwest Natural Gas provides natural gas to the City of Molalla. Northwest obtains its natural gas from 

the Northwest Pipeline via Northwest gate stations and high-pressure transmission lines located outside 

the City. No gate stations, high-pressure transmission lines, or storage facilities are currently located within 

Molalla nor are new ones planned for the area. The nearest high-pressure transmission line runs between 

Oregon City and Salem. Natural gas is transmitted to Molalla from the high-pressure line via smaller mains. 

There are no natural gas supply restrictions in Molalla because the compressibility of natural gas means 

that pipeline capacities are highly variable. Molalla residents who live on a street where natural gas 

distribution line already exists can be easily connected to that distribution line. 

Water 

Molalla operates its own water system and treatment plant. The water source for the city is the Molalla 

River. Two reservoirs are located at the treatment plant southeast of the city and one main line carries 

treated water to the city along Adam Cemetery Road, Freyrer Park Road, and E 5th Street to the athletic 

fields. The city is preparing to expand the capacity of its entire distribution system from two million gallons 

per day to four million gallons per day to accommodate increased demand. 

PLAN 

While there are no pipeline projects included in the Molalla TSP update, the City will continue to support 

and promote improvements to the regional and local pipeline system to ensure adequate services for 

Molalla residents. 

105



 

PAGE 88 

  

CHAPTER 9: FUNDING, IMPLEMENTATION, AND 

MONITORING 

106



 

PAGE 89 

FUNDING, IMPLEMENTATION, AND MONITORING 
This section documents the City’s historical revenue sources and expenditures and identifies the projected 

transportation funding for implementation of the TSP. 

HISTORICAL REVENUE SOURCES 

Historical revenue sources that have contributed to transportation funding for Molalla over the last five 

years includes the state gas tax, Portland General Electric (PGE) franchise fee, surface transportation 

program (STP), and miscellaneous funds. System Development Charges have also contributed to 

transportation funding for Molalla, although SDCs primarily fund transportation system improvements 

related to growth within the city. 

Overall transportation funding has increased over the last five years and is projected to continue to 

increase through FY 2040-41. State gas tax and PGE franchise fees have experienced increases over the 

five year period; however, the state gas tax revenue is expected to plateau in future years due to the 

build out of residential units reaching its maximum zoning potential. 

HISTORICAL EXPENDITURES 

The City organizes historical expenditures into five categories, including personnel services, materials and 

services, capital improvements, fund transfers, and contingencies. The city’s historical expenditures also 

include capital improvements; however, capital improvements are not accounted for in the projections; 

the projections are intended to determine the amount of funds available for capital improvements in the 

future. 

Overall transportation expenditures have increased over the last five years and are projected to continue 

to increase through FY 2040-41. Personnel services and materials and services represent the largest portion 

of the expenditures along with contingencies, while the remainder of all available funding is spent on 

sidewalk and street repair, capital improvements, and transfers. 

PROJECTED TRANSPORTATION FUNDING AND FUNDING OUTLOOK 

Revenue estimates from each of the historical revenue sources were combined and projected out over 

the next 5, 10 and 22 year period to determine the total revenue that is estimated through 2040. Table 24 

summarizes the potential future funding (in year 2018 dollars) through 2040. 

  

107



 

PAGE 90 

Table 24: Future Transportation Funding Projections 

Revenue Source FY 2017-18 5-Year Forecast 10-Year Forecast Estimated Through 

2040 

State Gas Tax $540,000 $2,772,900 $5,545,800 $12,755,340 

PGE Franchise Fee $154,000 $855,202 $1,946,680 $6,412,195 

Miscellaneous $1,000 $5,000 $10,000 $23,000 

Plan Review & Permit Fee $9,000 $45,000 $90,000 $207,000 

System Development 

Charge  

$32,000 $160,000 $320,000 $736,000 

Total $736,000 $3,838,102 $7,912,480 $20,133,535 

 

Estimated expenditures were also combined and projected out over the next 5, 10, and 23 year period. 

Table 25 provides a summary of the potential future expenses (in year 2017 dollars) through 2040. 

Table 25: Future Transportation Expenditures Projections 

Revenue Source FY 2017-18 5-Year Forecast 10-Year Forecast Estimated Through 

2040 

Personnel Service $307,000 $1,781,187 $4,054,484 $13,355,114 

Materials and Services $435,609 $2,527,365 $5,752,995 $18,949,862 

Contingency $70,523 $430,855 $980,748 $3,230,498 

Transfers $50,000 $250,000 $500,000 $1,150,000 

Total $863,132 $4,989,407 $11,288,227 $36,685,474 

 

As shown in Tables 24 and 25, the projected funding from now through FY 2040-41 is approximately 

$20,133,535, and the projected expenditures are approximately $36,685,474. Based on the information 

provided in Tables 24 and 25, the City is expected to have deficit of approximately $16,551,939 over the 

next 23 years. This suggests the City will need to identify other potential revenue sources to fund 

transportation, including implementation of the TSP projects. 

PLANNED SYSTEM COSTS 

Table 26 summarizes the costs associated with the planned transportation system. As shown, the full cost 

of the planned transportation system is approximately $99.1 million over the next 22-year period, including 

$13.9 million in high priority projects, $36.9 million in medium priority projects, and $48.3 million in low priority 

projects. Based on the anticipated funds available for capital improvement projects, there will be less 

than 1 million to fund the projects included in the planned transportation system. This suggests the city will 

need to identify other potential revenue sources to fund the transportation system, including 

implementation of the TSP projects over the 22-year period. 

108



 

PAGE 91 

Table 26: Planned Transportation System Cost Summary 

Project Type High Priority Medium Priority Low Priority Total 

Planned Transportation System 

TSM1 $25,000 $25,000 $60,000 $110,000 

TDM1 $50,000 $100,000 $120,000 $270,000 

Access Management $0 $0 $0 $0 

Safety $25,000 $0 $50,000 $75,000 

Pedestrian $7,305,000 $10,020,000 $3,680,000 $21,005,000 

Bicycle $1,865,000 $650,000 $1,050,000 $3,565,000 

Transit $0 $160,000 $0 $160,000 

Motor Vehicle $4,675,000 $25,910,000 $43,360,000 $73,945,000 

Total $13,945,000 $36,865,000 $48,320,000 $99,130,000 

TSM: Transportation System Management 

TDM: Transportation Demand Management 

1: Includes annual costs occurred every year. 

Given the lack of available funding, the City does not have a “financially constrained” or a “reasonably 

likely” plan. Funding for the projects identified in the TSP as high, medium, and low priority will likely come 

from a combination of private developers (i.e. street system improvements, frontage improvements, 

system development charges), the City (i.e. taxes, fees, bonds), and the State (i.e. Statewide 

Transportation Improvement Program, various other funding programs, grants).2 A summary of these 

potential revenue sources is provided below. 

POTENTIAL REVENUE SOURCES 

This section summarizes potential federal, state, and local funding sources the City could pursue to fund 

the planned transportation system, including projects identified in the likely to be funded plan. 

FEDERAL SOURCES 

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act 

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act) funds surface transportation programs, including, but 

not limited to, Federal-aid highways. The FAST Act is the first long-term surface transportation authorization 

enacted in a decade that provides long-term funding certainty for surface transportation. The FAST Act 

                                                      

2 Given the funding shortfalls identified in this Plan, none of the projects identified as high, medium, or low priority would be 

considered “financially constrained” or “reasonably likely” for purposes of compliance with section 0060 of the Oregon 

Transportation Planning Rule. The high, medium, and low designations will be used to guide the City’s efforts to pursue 

funding for the transportation system. Furthermore, inclusion of projects in this TSP and identification of state funding as a 

possible source of revenue does not ensure that state funding will be available or allocated to these projects. 

109



 

PAGE 92 

improves mobility on highways by establishing and funding new programs to support critical 

transportation projects to ease congestion and facilitate the movement of freight on the Interstate System 

and other major roads. The FAST Act authorizes $226.3 billion in Federal funding for FY 2016 through 2020 

for road, bridge, bicycling, and walking improvements. 

More information is available at: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/summary.cfm 

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 

The Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) program provides funding for projects that help 

reduce emissions and meet national air quality standards, such as transportation demand management 

programs, bicycle and pedestrian improvements, transit projects, diesel retrofits, and vehicle emissions 

reductions programs. States are required to provide a non-Federal match for program funds (which has 

not been the case historically for Federal lands highway funding). 

More information is available at: http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/cmaq/ 

Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) 

In 2015, the FAST Act amended the Surface Transportation Program (STP) and chanced the program 

name to the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG). STBG funds are contract authority. STBG 

funds are available for obligation for a period of 3 years after the last day of the fiscal year for which the 

funds are authorized. Thus funds are available for obligation for up to 4 years. The Federal share is generally 

80 percent and 90 percent for projects on the Interstate System unless the project adds lanes that are not 

high-occupancy-vehicle or auxiliary lanes. For projects that add single occupancy vehicle capacity, that 

portion of the project will revert to 80 percent. Safety improvements may have a Federal share of 100 

percent.  

More information is available at: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/specialfunding/stp/160307.cfm#c 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 

The Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) is a core Federal-aid program with the purpose of 

achieving a significant reduction in traffic facilities and serious injuries on all public roads, including non-

State-owned public roads and roads on tribal lands. Under the MAP-21, approximately seven percent of 

total Federal-aid highway funding is provided for HSIP, amounting to $2.2 billion each year. Highway 

safety improvement projects can be either infrastructure or non-infrastructure projects. All highway safety 

improvement projects must meet HSIP eligibility criteria. The HSIP program requires a local match for 

projects where HSIP funding will be used. For Oregon, this local match is 7.78 percent of the project cost. 

More information on the HSIP Program is available at: https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/hsip/ 

STATE SOURCES 

All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) 

The All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) program (formerly known as Jurisdictionally Blind Safety 

Program) is intended to address safety needs on all public roads in Oregon. By working collaboratively 

110



 

PAGE 93 

with local jurisdictions (cities, counties, MPO’s and tribes) ODOT expects to increase awareness of safety 

on all roads, promote best practices for infrastructure safety, compliment behavioral safety efforts and 

focus limited resources to reduce fatal and serious injury crashes in the state of Oregon. The program is 

data driven to achieve the greatest benefits in crash reduction and should be blind to jurisdiction. The 

ARTS program primarily uses federal funds from the HSIP with a required local match of 7.78 percent of 

the project cost 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/TRAFFIC-ROADWAY/Pages/ARTS.aspx 

Connect Oregon 

Connect Oregon is an initiative to invest in air, rail, marine, and bicycle/pedestrian infrastructure to ensure 

Oregon’s transportation system is strong, diverse, and efficient. As a result of the passage of House Bill (HB) 

2017, the following important changes have been made to Connect Oregon. Public transit projects are 

no longer included in Connect Oregon, Connect Oregon now has a portion of the new vehicle dealer 

private fee and the new $15 bicycle excise tax in addition to lottery-backed bonds as funding sources3, 

and the Oregon Transportation Commission is directed to distribute Connect Oregon funds to four specific 

projects: 

 Mid-Willamette Valley Intermodal Facility ($25 million) 

 Treasure Valley Intermodal Facility ($26 million) 

 Rail expansion in east Beach Industrial Park at the Port of Morrow ($6.55 million) 

 Brooks rail siding extension ($2.6 million) 

As a result of the allocated funds associated with the projects listed above, the ODOT does not anticipate 

available funding in the 2017 – 2019 biennium for projects that would have previously been competitive 

for Connect Oregon program funds. After the four projects listed above have been funded, and if funding 

is available, ODOT will announce next steps for the competitive grant process which is expected to occur 

in the 2019 – 2021 or 2021 – 2023 biennia. Project’s eligible for competitive grant funds may receive up to 

70 percent of the project cost through Connect Oregon. A minimum of 30 percent cash match is required 

from the recipient for all grant funded projects (with the exception of Class | Railroads which has a 50 

percent cash match). Project eligible for funding from state fuel tax revenues are not eligible for Connect 

Oregon funding. 

More information is available at:  http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Programs/Pages/ConnectOregon.aspx 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 

The Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is ODOT’s four-year transportation capital 

improvement program. It is the document that identifies the funding for, and scheduling of, transportation 

projects and programs. It includes projects on the federal, state, city, and county transportation systems, 

multimodal projects (highway, passenger rail, freight, public transit, bicycle and pedestrian), and projects 

in the National Parks, National Forests, and Indian tribal lands. STIP project lists are developed through the 

                                                      

3 Bicycle excise tax will only go towards bicycle/pedestrian projects. 

111



 

PAGE 94 

coordinated efforts of ODOT, federal and local governments, Area Commissions on Transportation, tribal 

governments, and the public. 

The STIP is divided into two broad categories: Fix-It and Enhance. The Enhance category funds activities 

that enhance, expand, or improve the transportation system. The project selection process for the 

Enhance category has undergone significant changes in the last few years and reflects ODOT's goal to 

become a more multimodal agency and make investment decisions based on the system as a whole, 

not for each mode or project type separately. The agency has requested assistance from its local partners 

in developing Enhancement projects that assist in moving people and goods through the transportation 

system. The projects are selected through a competitive application process. The Fix-it category funds 

activities that fix or preserve the transportation system. These projects are developed mainly from ODOT 

management systems that help identify needs based on technical information for things like pavement 

and bridges. 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/STIP/Pages/default.aspx 

House Bill (HB) 2017 Transportation Investments 

In August 2017, Governor Kate Brown signed an eight-year transportation tax increase to raise roughly $5 

billion for roads, bridges, mass transit, electric vehicles, and other transit options. House Bill (HB) 2017 

affects drivers, bicyclists and payroll employees by increasing the gas tax, weight-mile tax, and other 

transportation-related fees such as excise tax on the sale of bicycles, new vehicles, and instituting a 

statewide payroll tax equivalent to 1/10th of 1 percent of wages, deducted by employer from payment 

to employee. Though this funding source is one that can be used to finance multitude of project types, 

the City has stated that additional funds received from HB 2017 will be primarily allocated to Materials 

and Services i.e. maintenance of existing transportation facilities and operations. 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Documents/HB2017-FAQ.pdf 

Safe Routes to School 

Safe Routes to School programs are focused on getting more school-age children to walk and bike to 

school. ODOT provides Safe Routes to School grant funding for infrastructure programs, which help create 

and improve safe walking and biking routes to school, and non-infrastructure programs, which raise 

awareness by focusing on education and outreach. Non-motorized transportation projects related to 

getting schoolchildren to school safely are eligible for infrastructure program funding. HB 2017 

reestablished dedicated funding to Safe Routes to School programs. The current funding cycle is focused 

on projects that address a safety risk factor, include a 20 percent cash match, and are within one mile of 

a Title I school. 

More information is available at: https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Programs/Pages/SRTS.aspx 

112



 

PAGE 95 

LOCAL SOURCES 

Economic Improvement Districts (EIDs) 

Transportation improvements can often be included as part of larger efforts aimed at business 

improvement and retail district beautification. Economic Improvement Districts collect assessments or 

fees on businesses in order to fund improvements that benefit businesses and improve customer access 

within the district. Adoption of a mutually agreed upon ordinance establishing guidelines and setting 

necessary assessments or fees to be collected from property owners is essential to ensuring a successful 

EID. 

Local Improvement Districts (LID) 

Local Improvement Districts (LIDs) are most often used to construct projects such as streets, sidewalks, or 

bikeways. Through the LID process, the costs of local improvements are generally spread out among a 

group of property owners within a specified area. The cost can be allocated based on property frontage 

or other methods such as trip generation. The costs of an LID project are borne primarily by property 

owners, moderate administrative costs must be factored in, and the public involvement process must still 

be followed. If the cost of the local improvement is not 100 percent funded by property owners, the City 

is required to contribute the remaining unfunded portion of the improvement. 

Urban Renewal District 

An Urban Renewal District (URD) is a tax-funded district within the City. An URD is normally funded by 

property taxes that are increased incrementally, which is a type of funding that has been used in Oregon 

since 1960. The taxes are increased as a result of construction of applicable improvements. The 

incremental taxes are used, rather than fees, to fund different types of improvements. Transportation 

projects are one type of potential funding use. 

Local Bond Measures 

Local bond measures, or levies, are usually initiated by voter-approved general obligation bonds for 

specific projects. Bond measures are typically limited by time, based on the debt load of the local 

government or the project under focus. Funding from bond measures can be used for right-of-way 

acquisition, engineering, design, and construction of transportation facilities. Transportation-specific bond 

measures have passed in other communities throughout Oregon. Though this funding source is one that 

can be used to finance a multitude of project types, it must be noted that the accompanying 

administrative costs are high and voter approval must be gained. In addition, local bonds for 

transportation improvements will compete with local bonds for other public needs, such as fire and 

rescue, parks and recreation, schools, libraries, etc. 

Optional Tax 

Optional taxes are taxes that a taxpayer elects to pay to fund projects and improvements. Usually not a 

legislative requirement to pay the tax and paid at the time other taxes are collected, optional taxes are 

usually less controversial and easily collected since they require the taxpayer to decide whether or not to 

pay the additional tax. The voluntary nature of the tax limits the reliability and stableness of the funding 

113



 

PAGE 96 

source. In addition, optional taxes for transportation improvements will compete with optional taxes for 

other public needs, such as fire and rescue, parks and recreation, schools, libraries, etc. 

Local Fuel Tax 

A local tax assessed on fuel purchased within the jurisdiction that has assessed the tax. The taxes are paid 

to the city monthly by distributors of fuel. Voters would need to pass the tax, and the process for presenting 

such a tax to voters will need to be consistent with Oregon State law as well as the laws of the City. Nearby 

locations with a gas tax includes Milwaukie (two cents per gallon), Canby (three cents per gallon), Tigard 

(three cents per gallon), Multnomah County (three cents per gallon) and Washington County (one cent 

per gallon). 

User Fees 

Fees tied to the annual registration of a vehicle to pay for improvements, expansion, and maintenance 

to the street system. This may be a more equitable assessment given the varying fuel efficiency of vehicles. 

Regardless of fuel efficiency, passenger vehicles do equal damage to the street system. The cost of 

implementing such a system could be prohibitive given the need to track the number of vehicle miles 

traveled in every vehicle. Additionally, a user fee specific to a single jurisdiction does not account for the 

street use from vehicles registered in other jurisdictions. 

Street Utility Fees/Road Maintenance Fee 

The fee is based a flat fee charged to each property, on the number of trips a particular land use 

generates, or some combination of both and is usually collected through a regular utility bill. For the 

communities in Oregon that have adopted this approach, it provides a stable source of revenue to pay 

for street maintenance allowing for safe and efficient movement of people, goods, and services. As 

indicated previously, the city is currently considering implementation of a street utility fee, which could 

provide the City with an additional funding over the 22 year period. 

General Fund (GF) Revenues 

Revenue from the City’s GF can be allocated to transportation funding at the discretion of the City 

Council during the annual budget process. GF revenues primarily include property taxes, use taxes, and 

any other miscellaneous taxes and fees imposed by the City. GF resources have the potential to fund any 

type of transportation expenditures but would only be available if it had increased revenues or if the City 

Council directs funding that is traditionally allotted to other City expenditures and programs, such as 

Police Departments and other GF programs. 

IMPLEMENTATION 

The Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), as codified in Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 660‐012‐0020(2) 

requires that local jurisdictions identify and adopt land use regulations and code amendments needed 

to implement the TSP. These land use regulations and code amendments are provided under separate 

cover in the staff report. 

114



 

PAGE 97 

  

CHAPTER 10: GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

115



 

PAGE 98 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
The following terms are applicable only to the Molalla Transportation System Plan and shall be construed 

as defined herein. 

Access Management: Refers to measures regulating access to streets, roads and highways from public 

roads and private driveways. Measures may include but are not limited to restrictions on the type and 

amount of access to roadways, and use of physical controls such as signals and channelization including 

raised medians, to reduce impacts of approach road traffic on the main facility. 

Accessway: Refers to a walkway that provides pedestrian and or bicycle passage either between streets 

or from a street to a building or other destination such as a school, park, or transit stop. 

Alternative Modes: Transportation alternatives other than single-occupant automobiles such as rail, 

transit, bicycles and walking. 

American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO): The American Association of 

State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) is a standards setting body which publishes 

specifications, test protocols and guidelines which are used in highway design and construction 

throughout the United States. 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): A civil rights law that prohibits discrimination against individuals with 

disabilities in all areas of public life, including jobs, schools, transportation, and all public and private 

places that are open to the general public. 

Arterial (Street): A street designated in the functional class system as providing the highest amount of 

connectivity and mostly uninterrupted traffic flow through an urban area. 

Arterial Corridor Management (ACM): a series of measures intended to improve access and circulation 

along arterial corridors. 

Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT): A measure used primarily in transportation planning and traffic 

engineering that represents the total volume of vehicular traffic on a highway or roadway for a year 

divided by 365 days. 

Average Daily Traffic (ADT): This is the measurement of the average number of vehicles passing a certain 

point each day on a highway, road or street. 

Bicycle Facility: Any facility provided for the benefit of bicycle travel, including bikeways and parking 

facilities. 

Bicycle Network: A system of connected bikeways that provide access to and from local and regional 

destinations. 

116



 

PAGE 99 

Bicycle Boulevard: Lower-order, lower-volume streets with various treatments to promote safe and 

convenient bicycle travel. Usually accommodates bicyclists and motorists in the same travel lanes, often 

with no specific vehicle or bike lane delineation. Assigns higher priority to through bicyclists, with 

secondary priority assigned to motorists. Also includes treatments to slow vehicle traffic to enhance the 

bicycling environment. 

Bike Lane: Area within street right-of-way designated specifically for bicycle use. 

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP): A community planning and fiscal management tool used to coordinate 

the location, timing and financing of capital improvements over a multi-year period. 

Capacity: The maximum number of vehicles or individuals that can traverse a given segment of a 

transportation facility with prevailing roadway and traffic conditions. 

Central Business District (CBD): This is the traditional downtown area, and is usually characterized by slow 

traffic speeds, on-street parking and a compact grid system. 

Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC): An advisory committee consisting of volunteer citizens from the 

community they represent. 

Collector (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that provides connectivity between 

local and neighborhood streets with the arterial streets serving the urban area. Usually shorter in distance 

than arterials, designed with lower traffic speeds and has more traffic control devices than the arterial 

classification. 

Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality (CMAQ): A program within the federal ISTEA and TEA-21 regulations that 

address congestion and transportation-related air pollution. 

Crosswalk: Portion of a roadway designated for pedestrian crossing and can be either marked or 

unmarked. Unmarked crosswalks are the national extension of the shoulder, curb line or sidewalk. 

Cycle Track: An exclusive bike facility that combines the user experience of a separated path with the 

on-street infrastructure of a conventional bike lane. A cycle track is physically separated from motor traffic 

and distinct from the sidewalk. 

Demand Management: Refers to actions which are designed to change travel behavior in order to 

improve performance of transportation facilities and to reduce need for additional road capacity. 

Methods may include subsidizing transit for the journey to work trip, charging for parking, starting a van or 

car pool system, or instituting flexible work hours. 

Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ): A regulatory agency whose job is to protect the quality of 

Oregon's environment. 

117



 

PAGE 100 

Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD): A public agency that helps communities 

and citizens plan for, protect and improve the built and natural systems that provide a high quality of life. 

Driveway (DWY): A short road leading from a public road to a private business or residence. 

Eastbound (EB): Leading or traveling toward the east. 

Employee Commute Options (ECO): rules that were passed by the Oregon Legislature in 1993 (and 

revised in February 2007) to help protect the health of Portland area residents from air pollution and to 

ensure that the area complied with the Federal Clean Air Act 

Fiscal Year (FY): A year as reckoned for taxing or accounting purposes. 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS): A system designed to capture, store, manipulate, analyze, 

manage, and present all types of spatial or geographical data. 

Grade: A measure of the steepness of a roadway, bikeway or walkway, usually expressed in a 

percentage form of the ratio between vertical rise to horizontal distance, (e.g. a 5% grade means that 

the facility rises 5 feet in height over a 100 feet in length.) 

Grade Separation: The vertical separation of conflicting travelways. 

Green Street: A street designed to reduce or redirect stormwater runoff quantity and/or to improve 

stormwater runoff quality. Green street design generally involves using rain gardens, vegetated swales 

and/or pervious materials (porous pavement or permeable paving) as an alternative to conventional 

stormwater facilities. 

High-capacity Transit (HCT): A form of public transit distinguished from local service transit such as bus lines 

by higher speeds, fewer stops, more passengers, and more frequent service. 

Highway Design Manual (HDM): A manual that provides uniform standards and procedures for the design 

of new roadways and the major reconstruction, rehabilitation, restoration, and resurfacing of existing 

roadways. 

High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV): A vehicle containing two or more occupants, generally a driver and 

one or more passengers. 

Impervious Surfaces: Hard surfaces that do not allow water to soak into the ground, increasing the amount 

of stormwater running into the drainage system. 

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS): the application of advanced technologies and proven 

management techniques to relieve congestion, enhance safety, provide services to travelers and assist 

transportation system operators in implementing suitable traffic management strategies. 

118



 

PAGE 101 

Level of Service (LOS): A qualitative measure describing the perception of operation conditions within a 

traffic steam by motorists and or passengers. An LOS rating of "A” to “F” describes the traffic flow on streets 

and at intersections, ranging from LOS A, representing virtually free flow conditions and no impedance to 

LOS F representing forced flow conditions and congestion. 

Local (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that’s primary purpose is to provide 

access to land use as opposed to enhancing mobility. These streets typically have low volumes and are 

very short in relation to collectors and arterials. 

Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD): A document issued by the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) of the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) to specify the standards 

by which traffic signs, road surface markings, and signals are designed, installed, and used. 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO): An organization in each federally recognized urbanized area 

(population over 50,000) designated by the Governor which has the responsibility for planning, 

programming and coordinating the distribution of federal transportation resources. 

Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP): The list of projects selected by Metro to receive 

regional funding assistance. 

Multi-Modal: Involving several modes of transportation including bus, rail, bicycle, motor vehicle etc. 

Multi-Use Path: Off-street route (typically recreationally focused) that can be used by several 

transportation modes, including bicycles, pedestrians and other non-motorized modes (i.e. skateboards, 

roller blades, etc.) 

National Highway System (NHS): The National Highway System is interconnected urban and rural principal 

arterial and highways that serve major population centers, ports, airports and other major travel 

destinations, meet national defense requirements and serve interstate and interregional travel. 

Neighborhood Route (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that’s primary purpose is 

to provide access to land use, but provides more mobility than a local street. These streets typically have 

moderate volumes and are shorter in relation to collectors and arterials. 

Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM): Traffic control devices typically used in residential 

neighborhoods to slow traffic or possibly reduce the volume of traffic. 

Northbound (NB): Traveling or leading toward the north. 

Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR): The official compilation of rules and regulations having the force of 

law in the U.S. state of Oregon. It is the regulatory and administrative corollary to Oregon Revised Statutes, 

and is published pursuant to ORS 183.360 (3). 

119



 

PAGE 102 

Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT): ODOT is a public agency that helps provide a safe, 

efficient transportation system that supports economic opportunity and livable communities throughout 

Oregon. ODOT owns and operates two roadways (OR 213 and OR 211) that are located in Molalla or 

provide access to the city. There are street design and operational standards for these roadways which 

supersede Molalla’s street design and operational standards. 

Oregon Highway Plan (OHP): The document that establishes long range policies and investment 

strategies for the state highway system in Oregon. 

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS): The codified body of statutory law governing the U.S. state of Oregon, as 

enacted by the Oregon Legislative Assembly, and occasionally by citizen initiative. The statutes are 

subordinate to the Oregon Constitution. 

Peak Period or Peak Hour: The period of the day with the highest number of travelers. This is normally 

between 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. on weekdays. 

Pedestrian Connection: A continuous, unobstructed, reasonability direct route between two points that 

is intended and suitable for pedestrian use. These connections could include sidewalks, walkways, 

accessways, stairways and pedestrian bridges. 

Pedestrian District: A comprehensive plan designation or implementing land use regulation, such as an 

overlay zone, that establishes requirements to provide a safe and convenient pedestrian environment an 

area planned for a mix of uses likely to support a relatively high level of pedestrian activity. 

Pedestrian Facility: A facility provided for the benefit of pedestrian travel, including walkways, crosswalks, 

signs, signals and benches. 

Pedestrian Scale: Site and building design elements that are oriented to the pedestrian and are 

dimensionally less than those sites designed to accommodate automobile traffic. 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP): A planning document that contains policies and 

guidelines to help local jurisdictions implement the policies in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and 

its modal plans, include those for active transportation, freight movement and high capacity transit. 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP): The transportation plan for the Portland Metro region. 

Right-Of-Way (ROW or R/W): A general term denoting publicly-owned land or property upon which public 

facilities and infrastructure is placed. 

Safety Priority Index System (SPIS): An indexing system used by Oregon Department of Transportation to 

prioritize safety improvements based on crash frequency and severity on state facilities. 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS): Federal, state, and local programs that create safe, convenient, and fun 

opportunities for children to bicycle and walk to and from schools. 

120



 

PAGE 103 

Shared Roadway: Roadways where bicyclists and autos share the same travel lane. May include a wider 

outside lane and/or bicycle boulevard treatment (priority to through bikes on local streets). 

Single-Occupancy Vehicle or Single-Occupant Vehicle (SOV): A vehicle containing only a single 

occupant, the driver. 

Southbound (SB): Traveling or leading toward the south. 

Special Transportation Area (STA): An ODOT designation that allows state facilities that run through 

downtown business districts to have alternate mobility standards in an effort to accommodate other 

special needs (such as pedestrian, transit, business, etc.) in an area. 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP): The capital improvement program that identifies 

founding and schedule of statewide projects. 

System Development Charge (SDC): Fees that are collected when new development occurs in the city 

and are used to fund a portion of new streets, sanitary sewers, parks and water. 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC): An advisory committee consisting of state, county, and city staff 

that review and provide feedback on technical memorandums. 

Technical Memorandum (TM): A document that is specifically targeted to technically capable persons, 

such as practicing engineers or engineering managers, who are interested in the technical details of the 

project or task. 

Traffic Control Devices: Signs, signals or other fixtures placed on or adjacent to a travelway that regulates, 

warns or guides traffic. Can be either permanent or temporary. 

Transportation Advisory Board (TAB): A standing advisory board made of up volunteers that comment on 

transportation issues within the City. 

Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ): A geographic sub-area used to assess travel demands using a travel 

demand forecasting model. Often defined by the transportation network and US Census blocks. 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM): A policy tool as well as any action that removes single-

occupant vehicle trips from the roadway network during peak travel demand periods. 

Transportation and Growth Management (TGM): A program of the Oregon Department of Transportation 

(ODOT) that supports community efforts to expand transportation choices. By linking land use and 

transportation planning, TGM works in partnership with local governments to create vibrant, livable places 

in which people can walk, bike, take transit or drive where they want to go. 

Transportation Management Area (TMA): A Transportation Management Area is an area designated by 

the Secretary of Transportation, having an urbanized area population of over 200,000, or upon special 

request from the Governor and the MPO designated for the area. 

121



 

PAGE 104 

Transportation Planning Rule (TPR): A series of Oregon Administrative Rules intended to coordinate land 

use and transportation planning efforts to ensure that the planned transportation system supports a 

pattern of travel and land use in urban areas that will avoid the air pollution, traffic and livability problems 

faced by other large urban areas of the country through measures designed to increase transportation 

choices and make more efficient use of the existing transportation system. 

Transportation System Management (TSM): Management strategies such as signal improvements, traffic 

signal coordination, traffic calming, access management, local street connectivity, and intelligent 

transportation systems 

Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO): An integrated program to optimize the 

performance of existing multimodal infrastructure through implementation of systems, services, and 

projects to preserve capacity and improve the security, safety, and reliability of our transportation system. 

Transportation System Plan (TSP): Is a comprehensive plan that is developed to provide a coordinated, 

seamless integration of continuity between modes at the local level as well as integration with the 

regional transportation system. 

Two-Way Stop Control (TWSC): An intersection, where one or more approaches is stop controlled and 

must yield the right-of-way to one or more approaches that are not stop controlled. 

Urban Area: The area immediately surrounding an incorporated city or rural community that is urban in 

character, regardless of size. 

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB): A regional boundary, set in an attempt to control urban sprawl by 

mandating that the area inside the boundary be used for higher density urban development and the 

area outside be used for lower density development. 

Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT): The cumulative distance a vehicle travels, regardless of number of 

occupants. 

Volume to Capacity Ratio (V/C): A measure that reflects mobility and quality of travel of a roadways or 

a section of a roadways. It compares roadway demand (vehicle volumes) with roadway supply (carrying 

capacity). 

Westbound (WB): Leading or traveling toward the west. 

122



 

FILENAME: H:\21\21266 - MOLALLA TSP UPDATE\TASK 7 - UPDATED TSP\DRAFT TO CC\MOLALLA TSP EDITS_2018-09-18.DOCX 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: 

September 18, 2018 

Project #: 21266.0 

To: Gerald Fisher, City of Molalla 

 Joshua Brooking, Oregon Department of Transportation 

From: Matt Bell and Nick Gross, Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

Project: Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update 

Subject: Final TSP Update Edits 

 

This memorandum summarizes recent edits made to the final draft of the Molalla Transportation System 

Plan (TSP) Update. The edits are based on comments from the Oregon Department of Transportation 

(ODOT) and Molalla Planning Commission provided prior to and during the September 5, 2018 hearing 

with the Molalla Planning Commission. The edits are reflected in the TSP that will be presented to the 

City Council on September 25, 2018. The edits include: 

• Page 12: Minor text edits to remove references to the financially constrained plan. 

• Page 12: Added a footnote that indicates that the TSP does not include a financially constrained 

plan. The footnote also indicates that the priorities in the TSP will be used to guides the city’s 

efforts to pursue funding opportunities. 

• Page 28: Minor text edits to only reference schools located within the City boundary. 

• Page 29: Added an “s” to “Stower” 

• Page 90: Minor text edits to remove references to the financially constrained plan. 

• Page 91: Added a new paragraph following Table 26 that indicates how the City will fund projects 

included in the TSP. 

• Page 91: Added the footnote from Page 12 that indicates that the TSP does not include a 

financially constrained plan. The footnote also indicates that the priorities in the TSP will be used 

to guides the city’s efforts to pursue funding opportunities. 

• Page 91 – 96: Added a list of potential federal, state, and local revenue sources to fund the TSP. 

123



 

PAGE 12 

TSP ORGANIZATION AND METHODOLOGY 

The TSP is organized into chapters that address each individual mode of transportation available and its 

network in the overall Molalla transportation system. Chapter 2 presents the goals and objectives along 

with the evaluation criteria used to evaluate and prioritize projects and programs. Chapters 3 through 8 

present the transportation system improvement projects identified by the project team to address needs 

and deficiencies in the City’s transportation system. Chapter 9 presents the funding, implementation, and 

monitoring plan for the TSP update, including existing and potential future funding sources to finance the 

identified transportation system improvements. Volume II: Technical Appendix contains the Technical 

Memorandums completed throughout the TSP update process, which showcase the inventory, analysis, 

and project list identification efforts. 

TSP UPDATE PROCESS 

The TSP update process began with a review of local, regional, and statewide plans and policies that 

guide land use and transportation planning in the City. Goals and objectives and evaluation criteria were 

then developed to guide the evaluation of existing and project future transportation system conditions 

as well as the development of planned improvements. An inventory of the multimodal transportation 

system was then conducted to serve as the basis for the existing and future conditions analyses. The 

existing and future conditions analyses focused on identifying gaps and deficiencies in the multimodal 

transportation system based on current and forecast future performance. For each gap and deficiency, 

several solutions were evaluated to address the system needs. This process led to the development of a 

large number of plans, programs, and projects. The plans, programs, and projects were then prioritized 

using the project evaluation criteria and organized into high, medium, and low priorityplanned and 

financially constrained project lists.1 The culmination of the TSP update process is this document, which 

presents the plans, programs, and projects identified to address the existing and future gaps and 

deficiencies in the City’s transportation system. 

COMMITTEES 

The project team developed the TSP update in close coordination with city staff along with key 

stakeholders and representatives from the community. Two formal committees participated in the TSP 

update, including a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and a Policy Advisory Committee (PAC). The 

TAC consisted of representatives from Molalla, Clackamas County, Oregon Department of Transportation 

(ODOT), South Clackamas Transit District (SCTD), Molalla River School District, Molalla Police Department, 

                                                      

1 Given the funding shortfalls identified in this Plan, none of the projects identified as high, medium, or low priority would be 

considered “financially constrained” or “reasonably likely” for purposes of compliance with section 0060 of the Oregon 

Transportation Planning Rule. The high, medium, and low designations will be used to guide the City’s efforts to pursue 

funding for the transportation system. Furthermore, inclusion of projects in this TSP and identification of state funding as a 

possible source of revenue does not ensure that state funding will be available or allocated to these projects. 

124



 

PAGE 28 

 Rapid rectangular flashing beacons (RRFB) 

 Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons (HAWK) 

 Pedestrian countdown heads 

 Leading Pedestrian interval 

Many of the treatments listed above can be applied together at one crossing location to further alert 

drivers of the presence of pedestrians in the roadway. The pedestrian plan includes several projects that 

involve enhancing pedestrian crossings. See Attachment “A” for a detailed description of enhanced 

pedestrian crossing treatments. 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS) programs are intended to encourage children to walk and bicycle to school; 

to make walking and bicycling to school safe and more appealing; and to facilitate the planning, 

development and implementation of projects that will improve safety, and reduce traffic, fuel 

consumption, and air pollution near schools. The Molalla River School District (MRSD) operates onetwo 

elementary schools, one middle school, and one high school, and two charter schools in Molalla. The 

MRSD in partnership with the City of Molalla have developed a SRTSsafe routes to school plan for the 

schools located in the City of Molalla and have identified walking routes as well as critical intersections 

for crossings. Figure  4 illustrates the SRTSsafe routes to school routes and critical intersections for crossing. 

Several projects are included in the pedestrian plan that will improve conditions along the SRTSsafe routes 

to school routes. 

PEDESTRIAN PLAN 

Table 3 identifies the pedestrian plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. As shown, the projects are 

separated into projects on arterials, collectors, and neighborhood streets as well as projects at 

intersections and in other locations throughout the city. The priorities shown in Table 3 are based on the 

project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team and the general public. The cost 

estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements. The cost estimates do not include 

the cost of right-of-way or the cost of filling in the ditches. Right-of-way and ditch costs are included in 

the motor vehicle plan as applicable. Figure 5 illustrates the location of the pedestrian plan projects. 

Table 3: Pedestrian Plan Improvement Projects 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

Arterials 

P1 OR 2131 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the north city limits to OR 211 with sidewalks 

of appropriate width 

High $1,240,000 

P2 OR 2131 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

OR 211 to the south city limits with sidewalks 

of appropriate width 

Medium $870,000 

P3 OR 2111 Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from the west city limits to OR 213 
High $750,000 

125



 

PAGE 90 

Table 24: Future Transportation Funding Projections 

Revenue Source FY 2017-18 5-Year Forecast 10-Year Forecast Estimated Through 

2040 

State Gas Tax $540,000 $2,772,900 $5,545,800 $12,755,340 

PGE Franchise Fee $154,000 $855,202 $1,946,680 $6,412,195 

Miscellaneous $1,000 $5,000 $10,000 $23,000 

Plan Review & Permit Fee $9,000 $45,000 $90,000 $207,000 

System Development 

Charge  

$32,000 $160,000 $320,000 $736,000 

Total $736,000 $3,838,102 $7,912,480 $20,133,535 

 

Estimated expenditures were also combined and projected out over the next 5, 10, and 23 year period. 

Table 25 provides a summary of the potential future expenses (in year 2017 dollars) through 2040. 

Table 25: Future Transportation Expenditures Projections 

Revenue Source FY 2017-18 5-Year Forecast 10-Year Forecast Estimated Through 

2040 

Personnel Service $307,000 $1,781,187 $4,054,484 $13,355,114 

Materials and Services $435,609 $2,527,365 $5,752,995 $18,949,862 

Contingency $70,523 $430,855 $980,748 $3,230,498 

Transfers $50,000 $250,000 $500,000 $1,150,000 

Total $863,132 $4,989,407 $11,288,227 $36,685,474 

 

As shown in Tables 24 and 25, the projected funding from now through FY 2040-41 is approximately 

$20,133,535, and the projected expenditures are approximately $36,685,474. Based on the information 

provided in Tables 24 and 25, the City is expected to have deficit of approximately $16,551,939 over the 

next 23 years. This suggests the City will need to identify other potential revenue sources to fund 

transportation, including implementation of the TSP projects. 

PLANNED SYSTEM COSTS 

Table 26 summarizes the costs associated with the planned transportation system. As shown, the full cost 

of the planned transportation system is approximately $99.1 million over the next 22-year period, including 

$13.9 million in high priority projects, $36.9 million in medium priority projects, and $48.3 million in low priority 

projects. Based on the anticipated funds available for capital improvement projects, there will be less 

than 1 million to fund the financially constrained plan projects included in the planned transportation 

system. This suggests the city will need to identify other potential revenue sources to fund the 

transportation system, including implementation of the TSP projects over the 22-year period. 

126



 

PAGE 91 

Table 26: Planned Transportation System Cost Summary 

Project Type 

High Priority  

(Financially Constrained 

Plan Projects) Medium Priority Low Priority Total 

Planned Transportation System 

TSM1 $25,000 $25,000 $60,000 $110,000 

TDM1 $50,000 $100,000 $120,000 $270,000 

Access Management $0 $0 $0 $0 

Safety $25,000 $0 $50,000 $75,000 

Pedestrian $7,305,000 $10,020,000 $3,680,000 $21,005,000 

Bicycle $1,865,000 $650,000 $1,050,000 $3,565,000 

Transit $0 $160,000 $0 $160,000 

Motor Vehicle $4,675,000 $25,910,000 $43,360,000 $73,945,000 

Total $13,945,000 $36,865,000 $48,320,000 $99,130,000 

TSM: Transportation System Management 

TDM: Transportation Demand Management 

1: Includes annual costs occurred every year. 

Given the lack of available funding, the City does not have a “financially constrained” or a “reasonably 

likely” plan. Funding for the projects identified in the TSP as high, medium, and low priority will likely come 

from a combination of private developers (i.e. street system improvements, frontage improvements, 

system development charges), the City (i.e. taxes, fees, bonds), and the State (i.e. Statewide 

Transportation Improvement Program, various other funding programs, grants).2 A summary of these 

potential revenue sources is provided below. 

POTENTIAL REVENUE SOURCES 

This section summarizes potential federal, state, and local funding sources the City could pursue to fund 

the planned transportation system, including projects identified in the likely to be funded plan. 

FEDERAL SOURCES 

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act 

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act) funds surface transportation programs, including, but 

not limited to, Federal-aid highways. The FAST Act is the first long-term surface transportation authorization 

                                                      

2 Given the funding shortfalls identified in this Plan, none of the projects identified as high, medium, or low priority would be 

considered “financially constrained” or “reasonably likely” for purposes of compliance with section 0060 of the Oregon 

Transportation Planning Rule. The high, medium, and low designations will be used to guide the City’s efforts to pursue 

funding for the transportation system. Furthermore, inclusion of projects in this TSP and identification of state funding as a 

possible source of revenue does not ensure that state funding will be available or allocated to these projects. 

127



 

PAGE 92 

enacted in a decade that provides long-term funding certainty for surface transportation. The FAST Act 

improves mobility on highways by establishing and funding new programs to support critical 

transportation projects to ease congestion and facilitate the movement of freight on the Interstate System 

and other major roads. The FAST Act authorizes $226.3 billion in Federal funding for FY 2016 through 2020 

for road, bridge, bicycling, and walking improvements. 

More information is available at: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/summary.cfm 

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 

The Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) program provides funding for projects that help 

reduce emissions and meet national air quality standards, such as transportation demand management 

programs, bicycle and pedestrian improvements, transit projects, diesel retrofits, and vehicle emissions 

reductions programs. States are required to provide a non-Federal match for program funds (which has 

not been the case historically for Federal lands highway funding). 

More information is available at: http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/cmaq/ 

Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) 

In 2015, the FAST Act amended the Surface Transportation Program (STP) and chanced the program 

name to the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG). STBG funds are contract authority. STBG 

funds are available for obligation for a period of 3 years after the last day of the fiscal year for which the 

funds are authorized. Thus funds are available for obligation for up to 4 years. The Federal share is generally 

80 percent and 90 percent for projects on the Interstate System unless the project adds lanes that are not 

high-occupancy-vehicle or auxiliary lanes. For projects that add single occupancy vehicle capacity, that 

portion of the project will revert to 80 percent. Safety improvements may have a Federal share of 100 

percent.  

More information is available at: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/specialfunding/stp/160307.cfm#c 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 

The Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) is a core Federal-aid program with the purpose of 

achieving a significant reduction in traffic facilities and serious injuries on all public roads, including non-

State-owned public roads and roads on tribal lands. Under the MAP-21, approximately seven percent of 

total Federal-aid highway funding is provided for HSIP, amounting to $2.2 billion each year. Highway 

safety improvement projects can be either infrastructure or non-infrastructure projects. All highway safety 

improvement projects must meet HSIP eligibility criteria. The HSIP program requires a local match for 

projects where HSIP funding will be used. For Oregon, this local match is 7.78 percent of the project cost. 

More information on the HSIP Program is available at: https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/hsip/ 

128



 

PAGE 93 

STATE SOURCES 

All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) 

The All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) program (formerly known as Jurisdictionally Blind Safety 

Program) is intended to address safety needs on all public roads in Oregon. By working collaboratively 

with local jurisdictions (cities, counties, MPO’s and tribes) ODOT expects to increase awareness of safety 

on all roads, promote best practices for infrastructure safety, compliment behavioral safety efforts and 

focus limited resources to reduce fatal and serious injury crashes in the state of Oregon. The program is 

data driven to achieve the greatest benefits in crash reduction and should be blind to jurisdiction. The 

ARTS program primarily uses federal funds from the HSIP with a required local match of 7.78 percent of 

the project cost 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/TRAFFIC-ROADWAY/Pages/ARTS.aspx 

Connect Oregon 

Connect Oregon is an initiative to invest in air, rail, marine, and bicycle/pedestrian infrastructure to ensure 

Oregon’s transportation system is strong, diverse, and efficient. As a result of the passage of House Bill (HB) 

2017, the following important changes have been made to Connect Oregon. Public transit projects are 

no longer included in Connect Oregon, Connect Oregon now has a portion of the new vehicle dealer 

private fee and the new $15 bicycle excise tax in addition to lottery-backed bonds as funding sources3, 

and the Oregon Transportation Commission is directed to distribute Connect Oregon funds to four specific 

projects: 

 Mid-Willamette Valley Intermodal Facility ($25 million) 

 Treasure Valley Intermodal Facility ($26 million) 

 Rail expansion in east Beach Industrial Park at the Port of Morrow ($6.55 million) 

 Brooks rail siding extension ($2.6 million) 

As a result of the allocated funds associated with the projects listed above, the ODOT does not anticipate 

available funding in the 2017 – 2019 biennium for projects that would have previously been competitive 

for Connect Oregon program funds. After the four projects listed above have been funded, and if funding 

is available, ODOT will announce next steps for the competitive grant process which is expected to occur 

in the 2019 – 2021 or 2021 – 2023 biennia. Project’s eligible for competitive grant funds may receive up to 

70 percent of the project cost through Connect Oregon. A minimum of 30 percent cash match is required 

from the recipient for all grant funded projects (with the exception of Class | Railroads which has a 50 

percent cash match). Project eligible for funding from state fuel tax revenues are not eligible for Connect 

Oregon funding. 

More information is available at:  http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Programs/Pages/ConnectOregon.aspx 

                                                      

3 Bicycle excise tax will only go towards bicycle/pedestrian projects. 

129



 

PAGE 94 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 

The Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is ODOT’s four-year transportation capital 

improvement program. It is the document that identifies the funding for, and scheduling of, transportation 

projects and programs. It includes projects on the federal, state, city, and county transportation systems, 

multimodal projects (highway, passenger rail, freight, public transit, bicycle and pedestrian), and projects 

in the National Parks, National Forests, and Indian tribal lands. STIP project lists are developed through the 

coordinated efforts of ODOT, federal and local governments, Area Commissions on Transportation, tribal 

governments, and the public. 

The STIP is divided into two broad categories: Fix-It and Enhance. The Enhance category funds activities 

that enhance, expand, or improve the transportation system. The project selection process for the 

Enhance category has undergone significant changes in the last few years and reflects ODOT's goal to 

become a more multimodal agency and make investment decisions based on the system as a whole, 

not for each mode or project type separately. The agency has requested assistance from its local partners 

in developing Enhancement projects that assist in moving people and goods through the transportation 

system. The projects are selected through a competitive application process. The Fix-it category funds 

activities that fix or preserve the transportation system. These projects are developed mainly from ODOT 

management systems that help identify needs based on technical information for things like pavement 

and bridges. 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/STIP/Pages/default.aspx 

House Bill (HB) 2017 Transportation Investments 

In August 2017, Governor Kate Brown signed an eight-year transportation tax increase to raise roughly $5 

billion for roads, bridges, mass transit, electric vehicles, and other transit options. House Bill (HB) 2017 

affects drivers, bicyclists and payroll employees by increasing the gas tax, weight-mile tax, and other 

transportation-related fees such as excise tax on the sale of bicycles, new vehicles, and instituting a 

statewide payroll tax equivalent to 1/10th of 1 percent of wages, deducted by employer from payment 

to employee. Though this funding source is one that can be used to finance multitude of project types, 

the City has stated that additional funds received from HB 2017 will be primarily allocated to Materials 

and Services i.e. maintenance of existing transportation facilities and operations. 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Documents/HB2017-FAQ.pdf 

Safe Routes to School 

Safe Routes to School programs are focused on getting more school-age children to walk and bike to 

school. ODOT provides Safe Routes to School grant funding for infrastructure programs, which help create 

and improve safe walking and biking routes to school, and non-infrastructure programs, which raise 

awareness by focusing on education and outreach. Non-motorized transportation projects related to 

getting schoolchildren to school safely are eligible for infrastructure program funding. HB 2017 

reestablished dedicated funding to Safe Routes to School programs. The current funding cycle is focused 

on projects that address a safety risk factor, include a 20 percent cash match, and are within one mile of 

a Title I school. 

130



 

PAGE 95 

More information is available at: https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Programs/Pages/SRTS.aspx 

LOCAL SOURCES 

Economic Improvement Districts (EIDs) 

Transportation improvements can often be included as part of larger efforts aimed at business 

improvement and retail district beautification. Economic Improvement Districts collect assessments or 

fees on businesses in order to fund improvements that benefit businesses and improve customer access 

within the district. Adoption of a mutually agreed upon ordinance establishing guidelines and setting 

necessary assessments or fees to be collected from property owners is essential to ensuring a successful 

EID. 

Local Improvement Districts (LID) 

Local Improvement Districts (LIDs) are most often used to construct projects such as streets, sidewalks, or 

bikeways. Through the LID process, the costs of local improvements are generally spread out among a 

group of property owners within a specified area. The cost can be allocated based on property frontage 

or other methods such as trip generation. The costs of an LID project are borne primarily by property 

owners, moderate administrative costs must be factored in, and the public involvement process must still 

be followed. If the cost of the local improvement is not 100 percent funded by property owners, the City 

is required to contribute the remaining unfunded portion of the improvement. 

Urban Renewal District 

An Urban Renewal District (URD) is a tax-funded district within the City. An URD is normally funded by 

property taxes that are increased incrementally, which is a type of funding that has been used in Oregon 

since 1960. The taxes are increased as a result of construction of applicable improvements. The 

incremental taxes are used, rather than fees, to fund different types of improvements. Transportation 

projects are one type of potential funding use. 

Local Bond Measures 

Local bond measures, or levies, are usually initiated by voter-approved general obligation bonds for 

specific projects. Bond measures are typically limited by time, based on the debt load of the local 

government or the project under focus. Funding from bond measures can be used for right-of-way 

acquisition, engineering, design, and construction of transportation facilities. Transportation-specific bond 

measures have passed in other communities throughout Oregon. Though this funding source is one that 

can be used to finance a multitude of project types, it must be noted that the accompanying 

administrative costs are high and voter approval must be gained. In addition, local bonds for 

transportation improvements will compete with local bonds for other public needs, such as fire and 

rescue, parks and recreation, schools, libraries, etc. 

Optional Tax 

Optional taxes are taxes that a taxpayer elects to pay to fund projects and improvements. Usually not a 

legislative requirement to pay the tax and paid at the time other taxes are collected, optional taxes are 

131



 

PAGE 96 

usually less controversial and easily collected since they require the taxpayer to decide whether or not to 

pay the additional tax. The voluntary nature of the tax limits the reliability and stableness of the funding 

source. In addition, optional taxes for transportation improvements will compete with optional taxes for 

other public needs, such as fire and rescue, parks and recreation, schools, libraries, etc. 

Local Fuel Tax 

A local tax assessed on fuel purchased within the jurisdiction that has assessed the tax. The taxes are paid 

to the city monthly by distributors of fuel. Voters would need to pass the tax, and the process for presenting 

such a tax to voters will need to be consistent with Oregon State law as well as the laws of the City. Nearby 

locations with a gas tax includes Milwaukie (two cents per gallon), Canby (three cents per gallon), Tigard 

(three cents per gallon), Multnomah County (three cents per gallon) and Washington County (one cent 

per gallon). 

User Fees 

Fees tied to the annual registration of a vehicle to pay for improvements, expansion, and maintenance 

to the street system. This may be a more equitable assessment given the varying fuel efficiency of vehicles. 

Regardless of fuel efficiency, passenger vehicles do equal damage to the street system. The cost of 

implementing such a system could be prohibitive given the need to track the number of vehicle miles 

traveled in every vehicle. Additionally, a user fee specific to a single jurisdiction does not account for the 

street use from vehicles registered in other jurisdictions. 

Street Utility Fees/Road Maintenance Fee 

The fee is based a flat fee charged to each property, on the number of trips a particular land use 

generates, or some combination of both and is usually collected through a regular utility bill. For the 

communities in Oregon that have adopted this approach, it provides a stable source of revenue to pay 

for street maintenance allowing for safe and efficient movement of people, goods, and services. As 

indicated previously, the city is currently considering implementation of a street utility fee, which could 

provide the City with an additional funding over the 22 year period. 

General Fund (GF) Revenues 

Revenue from the City’s GF can be allocated to transportation funding at the discretion of the City 

Council during the annual budget process. GF revenues primarily include property taxes, use taxes, and 

any other miscellaneous taxes and fees imposed by the City. GF resources have the potential to fund any 

type of transportation expenditures but would only be available if it had increased revenues or if the City 

Council directs funding that is traditionally allotted to other City expenditures and programs, such as 

Police Departments and other GF programs. 

IMPLEMENTATION 

The Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), as codified in Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 660‐012‐0020(2) 

requires that local jurisdictions identify and adopt land use regulations and code amendments needed 

132



 
 
 

September 18, 2018 

 

Mr. Dan Huff 
City Manager 
117 N Molalla Avenue 
Molalla, OR 97038 

 
RE: Concurrence on TSP Edits 

 

Mr. Huff, 

 

I am writing to confirm that your staff and their consultant have implemented the changes suggested by ODOT in our 
letter to you on September 5th. In particular, we appreciate that the revised TSP: 

• includes clear footnotes regarding the relationship between the plan’s project lists and section 0060 of the 
Transportation Planning Rule; 

• makes clear that there is no “financially constrained” element of the plan; and, 
• clearly documents that projects are identified as priorities for the purpose of pursuing funding and clearly does not 

imply any availability of funding. 

 

On behalf of ODOT, I appreciate your responsiveness and willingness to implement these changes. In my view, this is a 
plan suitable for adoption and implementation. The challenges are still formidable and we look forward to working with 
you moving forward. 

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Jon Makler 
Region 1 Planning Manager 
Oregon Department of Transportation 
123 NW Flanders Street 
Portland, OR 97209 
 
cc: Lidwien Rahman, Principal Planner, ODOT 
 Joshua Brooking, Associate Planner, ODOT 
 Gerald Fisher, P.E., Public Works Director, City of Molalla 
 Matt Bell, Senior Planner, Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

Department of Transportation 
Region 1 – Headquarters 

123 NW Flanders Street 
Portland, OR 97209 

Phone: (503) 731-8200 
Fax: (503) 731-8259 

 
 

133



Sept. 4, 2018 
RE: TSP 
 
Molalla Planning Commission, 
 
In February, comments were submitted to the consultants tasked with guiding Molalla to 
a viable TSP (see below for the submitted comments). The comments focused on the 
need for the City of Molalla to produce a REALISTIC TSP that had a chance of being 
implemented. Instead, Molalla has again produced a ridiculously expensive, aspirational 
plan that has virtually no chance of being implemented. The tech memo from the 
consultants noted exactly how costly and unrealistic this overreaching plan is: 
 
Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update Project #: 21266.6.6 
June 18, 2018 Page 3 
Kittelson & Associates, Inc. Portland, Oregon 

 
TRANSPORTATION FUNDING 
The TSP will include a planned transportation system, which identifies all of the projects and 
programs needed to address all of the transportation needs within the city and a financially 
constrained transportation system, which identifies the projects and programs the City 
anticipates being able to fund over the next 22 years. Per Tech Memo 3: TSP Financial 
Forecast, the amount of local funds that is expected to be available for capital projects in the 
TSP over the next 22 years is $0. Per Tech Memo 3, the City is expected to have a deficit of 
approximately $16.5 million, which is equivalent to a deficit of roughly $750,000 per year.1: 

(1 This number does not account for potential funding from state and federal grants such as the Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) and House Bill (HB) 2017 Transportation Investments. While 
it is likely that these funds will be used to fund some transportation improvements within the city over the 
next 22 years, because of the uncertainty in acquiring grant funds, these funding sources are not 
accounted for in the City’s revenue forecast.) 
 
PLANNED TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM COST SUMMARY 
Table 1 summarizes the costs associated with the planned transportation system. As shown, 
the full cost of the planned transportation system is approximately $91 million over the 22-
year period, including $11 million in high priority projects, $43 million in medium priority 
projects, and $37 million in low priority projects. Based on the anticipated funds available 
from System Development Charges, there will be > 1.0 million to fund the financially 
constrained plan. This suggests the city will need to identify other 
potential revenue sources to fund transportation, including implementation of the TSP 
projects over the 22-year period. 
 
Final Tech Memo #8: Planned and Financially Constrained Transportation Systems 
 
 
 
 
 

134



Molalla is facing the need to “find” $46 million dollars in the next few years for to 
remedy its glaring wastewater problems – necessary huge utility rate increases will be 
necessary to prove that needed loans can be repaid. Add that sum to the $91million the 
City needs to “find” for this unrealistic TSP: that’s $137 million Molalla faces “finding” 
when it can barely balance the budget each year.  
 
My February comments noted that Molalla was likely to lose the ability to impose 
$11/month on rate payers to try to pay for transportation. In May, over 71% of Molalla 
voters rejected that fee. That rejection, per the City Manager and Public Works 
Manager, left Molalla with virtually no working funds to even upgrade Molalla’s 
existing roads, let alone build any new infrastructure. A 71%+ rejection of road fees 
does not bode well for imposing more road fees in the future to raise money for road 
infrastructure.  
 
Molalla’s financial woes can, at least in part, be traced to past costly planning fiascos 
which flew in the face of reality – most glaring were the years and money wasted 
promoting the “need” for a 2,000+ acre Urban Reserve which was roundly defeated at the 
County level. Molalla has failed to charge adequate SDCs that could have helped with 
transportation needs. Molalla is glaringly deficient in providing adequate 
parks/greenspaces.  
 
In the light of all the past, costly planning failures that have resulted in a low quality City,  
it would be another disservice to the people of greater Molalla to pass a plan that has next 
to zero chance of being implemented. When will Molalla begin to learn from past 
mistakes so they are not repeated over and over again and instead produce a 
balanced, quality city that doesn’t just focus on stuffing in low quality development 
by constantly lowing standards?  
 
When a consultant points out the (to put it mildly) “financial constrictions” faced by 
Molalla, it is unconscionable to pass a plan that is projected to cost $91 million. 
 
Is the PC really ready to saddle Molalla with, per the consultants’ memo, a 
projected $750,000/ a year TRANSPORTATION DEFECIT?  
 
The following comments are even more true today, substantiated by the consultants’ tech 
memo, noting Molalla’s “financial constrictions”: 
 
 
February 19, 2018 
Re: Comments about the Molalla TSP 
 
Dear Molalla TSP Technical Committee, 
 
It is of concern that time and public money are being devoted to creating new “plans” for 
the City of Molalla when anyone who reads the long list of projects in the 2001 TSP 
would quickly realize virtually no projects on that list were ever implemented. Further, 

135



Molalla has failed to collect adequate SDCs over the years and its citizens are in the 
process of likely rejecting an $11/month road utility fee. Any responsible transportation 
planner would note these extreme constrictions and failures and would have refused to 
grant funds for new “plans” that will likely also fail to be implemented. Since ODOT has 
unwisely allowed this TSP grant, please take close consideration of the long list of 
constrictions and only approve a TSP that has a chance for once of being implemented.  
 
Molalla’s failure to implement past TSP (as well as the failure to  implement other 
“plans” created with public grants); the financial inability to implement future plans; the 
failure to accept the impossibility of the  Forest Road as an affordable, viable arterial; 
existing debt obligations; $32-38 million more debt looming for wastewater facilities 
upgrades; and the financial inability of local residents to manage large fee increases 
should all be factors the TSP committee carefully considers in planning the new TSP. 
 
Failure to implement the 2001 TSP: 
 
The Molalla 2017-2018 budget shows of list of road projects that were supposed to have 
been done, per the 2001 TSP, by 2006. The current budget lists these more than 10 years 
overdue projects as “Pending new Transportation Improvement Fee”, yet, before the new 
$11/month fee could be imposed, citizen petitioners recently gathered enough valid 
signatures to put the fee on the May ballot. Rate payers of Molalla are highly adverse to 
rate hikes, since, per Business Oregon’s distressed city, list Molalla  is one of the more 
poverty stricken cities in Clackamas County. Per this quote in the 2017-2018 Molalla 
budget by Public Works Manager Gerald Fisher, without a devoted road fee Molalla can’t 
even keep up with escalating road maintenance, let alone implement major projects: (bold 
added): 
 
“Without increases to the Water, Sewer, and Stormwater Fund user fees, the City will not 
be able to perform needed operation and maintenance activities and deferred capital 
improvements. These operations and projects will reach a tipping point as the community 
rapidly approaches a population of 10,000 creating additional requirements related to 
permitting, testing, reporting, staff certification, and capital expenditures for upgrades in 
the water, sewer, and stormwater systems. The pavement condition index is in the low 
60’s for city owned and operated streets. The threshold for accelerated degradation of 
pavement begins at a score of 70. Without a street user fee or other sustainable funding 
source, the street system will continue to degrade increasing the cost of repair and 
rehabilitation. Projects related to transportation enhancement are essentially unfunded 
and have been since the adoption of the Transportation Master Plan in 2001. An 
update to the plan is underway and without a sustainable funding source to match with 
transportation system development charges, the City will continue to be unable to design 
and construct any of the capacity increasing and safety related project that will serve the 
community as it grows.” 
 
As Molalla postpones the projects in its “plans” the costs of the projects escalate. Here is 
a list of the projects that were, per the 2001 TSP, supposed to have been completed by 

136



2006 that are “pending” in the current Molalla budget; the 2018 cost is shown with the 
cost in 2001: 
 
Reconstruct May Ave (5th-6th) $113K ($75,000 in 2001) 
 
Reconstruct Section St (Molalla-Hart) $150K ($100,000 in 2001) 
 
Reconstruct Heintz St (Cole-Grange) $315K$ ($210,000 in 2001) 
 
Reconstruct S. Cole $210K ($140,000 in 2001) 
 
Reconstruct Shirley St (Molalla-Cole) $556K$ ($370,000 in 2001) 
 
Failure to plan in scale with financial capability to implement plans: 
 
Please don’t add more unrealistic timelines and projects in a new TSP that Molalla, 
per its own budget admission, clearly can’t afford. If as is likely, the voters reject the 
$11 road utility fee, Molalla will have virtually no chance of doing much in the way of 
maintenance; even with the $11/month fee it will take years to fix the degraded existing 
streets and to provide missing sidewalks or adequate bike lanes. The failure to implement 
the 2001 TSP should be a big red flag that any new TSP must be extremely conservative 
and should closely question how Molalla will come up with the financial resources to 
implement any plans. Molalla has already encumbered its Urban Renewal Funds via 
borrowing for the Molalla Ave paving project and it is indebted to pay back four loans. 
Of most concern should be the coming need to “find” a projected $32-38 million for 
wastewater facilities, which will surely put a huge burden on utility rate payers who have 
already proved adverse to the road utility fee, which is optional – upgrading the 
wastewater facilities, will not be optional. 
 
Molalla has also failed to charge and collect adequate SDCs over the past decades, so 
SDCs can’t be depended upon for funding roads. Because of the proven lack of 
wastewater processing capacity, Molalla may even be facing a moratorium on building 
which would truncate SDC funds.  
 
Failure to honestly assess future population: 
 
Please don’t overestimate Molalla’s capacity for population growth. The 2001 TSP 
said “SDC report forecast Molalla’s population in the year 2019 to be 
approximately 13,370”, yet the 2018 population has not reached 10,000. DLCD has 
confirmed that until the wastewater facility capacity issue is solved it would not allow 
any UGB expansion. Molalla is facing a Mutual Agreement and Order with DEQ and 
enforcement for failing to comply with the terms of a Consent Decree that resulted from a 
citizen Clean Water Act lawsuit; both legal actions could also impose restrictions on 
growth until wastewater capacity is solved. The commute from Molalla to viable job 
centers is the longest in the County and as Oregon’s roads continue to be choked, that 

137



commute can inhibit Molalla’s desirability. Overestimating growth causes out of scale 
“plans” that can’t be implemented.  
 
Failure to accept that the Forest Road is not a viable bypass or arterial:  
 
Please remove the Molalla Forest Road from the TSP as any potential truck 
bypass/arterial.  
 
In 2011, Business Oregon considered providing a $60,000 grant for a feasibility study to 
see if Molalla could build the Forest Road into a modern truck bypass. Much community 
outcry ensued that spending $60.000 was a waste of public money and research quickly 
proved that there was no way Molalla could afford to change an archaic abandoned 
logging “road” into a modern bypass that would cost tens of millions of dollars. 
Clackamas County confirmed that it is in question whether Molalla really “owns” the 
Forest Road – any plans made for it need to show legal transfer and that was a murky 
path in Clackamas County records; Molalla needs to show conclusive proof of clear 
ownership. 
 
If Molalla wanted access to wished for industrial businesses (which to date never have 
materialized) Business Oregon’s Mike Solt said in 2011 he would “much prefer” to see 
short connector links off Highway 211 (Molalla’s Main Street) to the industrial 
brownfields. 
 
When questioned about this “feasibility study”, ODOT’s Sonya Kazen noted on the 
phone that “Maybe Molalla needs to do this study to finally prove to itself it can’t afford 
the Forest Road. Then it could concentrate on the 211 Corridor”.  That comment didn’t 
inspire public trust in the process or expectation for a positive outcome from the grant 
and ultimately there was no study. 
 
It should not take a “study” for this committee to know that the Forest Road as a bypass 
would be a long shot for a well-funded large city; for Molalla it is a totally out of reach 
“vision” that does not belong on the TSP as anything but a recreational corridor/ local 
residential access road as Clackamas County has suggested. Molalla has made “plans” 
over the years that claim it wants to protect wetlands and water resources, enhance 
wildlife corridors and provide recreational opportunities – the Forest Road, with its 
wetlands along Bear Creek, its peaceful rural setting and its existing narrow ROW is the 
perfect place for Molalla to begin to fulfill those long overdue promises. 
 
 
Failure to provide adequate active transportation opportunities: 
 
Molalla’s unimplemented 2007 Parks Plan noted the extreme lack of 
parks/greenspaces/recreational opportunities for the NW portion of Molalla. Since that 
plan was written, the SW area has also received a large influx of population via a massive 
apartment complex and soon to be build residential neighborhoods. As with roads, 

138



Molalla has totally failed to implement any of the bike and pedestrian improvements 
called for in the 2001 TSP. 
 
The 2017-2018 budget has almost $500,000 listed as needed for bike and pedestrian 
improvements and bike lanes on Highway 213 – again, that funding is listed as pending 
the in question road utility fee. Those pedestrian/bike projects are also carry-overs from 
the failed 2001 TSP. There is little hope Molalla at this point will ever catch up with 
pedestrian/bicycle transportation needs, given the escalating costs. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Without a TSP BASED ON A REALISTIC ANALYSIS OF MOLALLA’S 
GLARING FINANCIAL CONSTRAINTS, in twenty years we can expect another 
failure to implement, just like the 2001 TSP. It is up to transportation experts to 
produce a TSP that has any hope of being implemented. Please stop producing “plans”, at 
the expense of Oregonians’ public funds, that are out of scale and dishonest in terms of 
Molalla’s capacity to implement in a timely manner. Molalla has lost years and hundreds 
of thousands of dollars of public money by putting unattainable aspirational planning 
over realistic goals. If Molalla is ever going to improve its overall quality of life and 
become a successful, financially sound city, it needs to start taking baby steps instead of 
being overwhelmed with plans like a Forest Road truck bypass it will never be able to 
afford. 
 
As a greater Molalla community resident, I feel sorry for those inside the Molalla city 
limits who are not getting the quality of life they deserve. As an Oregonian, I resent 
seeing public money wasted on these planning grants if they are not going to be 
implemented in a timely manner with discernable results.  
 
Sincerely, 
Susan Hansen 
Bear Creek Recovery 
PO Box 50 
Molalla Oregon 97038 
 

139



City of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
Agenda Category: 

Ordinance, Resolution, Proclamations 
 

Subject: Ordinance 2018-13 Marijuana Processing and Retail 

Recommendation: To approve and reinsert Marijuana Code Language 

Date of Meeting to 
be Presented: 

September 26, 2018 

Fiscal Impact: NA 

Submitted By: Aldo Rodriquez and Kelly Richardson  

Approved By: Dan Huff 

 

Background: 

In 2017 Council approved the updated Development Code and at the same time inadvertently removed all 
language regarding the Marijuana process and retail. Staff is not proposing changes City just needs to reinsert 
what was previously approved.   

 

140



Page 1 of 2 – Ordinance No 2018-13.  

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2018-13 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 

AMENDING TITLE 17 THE DEVELOPMENT CODE. REINSERTING 

LANGUAGE FOR MARIJUANA AND MARIJUANA PROCESSING.  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Molalla City Council had recently completed a Development Code 

update in 2017; and 

WHEREAS, section 16.2 along with language referencing marijuana and marijuana 

processing had inadvertently been removed; and 

WHEREAS, title 17 needs the language regarding marijuana and marijuana 

processing and sales back into title 17 Development Code. 

 

 

Now, Therefore, the City of Molalla does ordain as follows: 

Section 1. That this Ordinance will replace the original language inadvertently 

removed in the update of the Development Code.  

Section 2. The Development Code is amended as set forth in Exhibit A, which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if it were set forth verbatim 

in full.  

Section 3.  This Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 

peace, health and safety, and, pursuant to section 18 of the Molalla City Charter, an 

emergency is declared to exist, and this Ordinance takes effect upon its passage.  

 

 

/       /       /       / 

 

/       /       /       / 

 

141



Page 2 of 2 – Ordinance No 2018-13.  

 

 

Read the first time on _________ and moved to second reading by _________ vote of 

the City Council.  

Read the second time and adopted by the City Council on _________.  

Signed by the Mayor on _________. 

   

  Jimmy Thompson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Beery Elsner & Hammond, LLP 

   

Kelly Richardson, CMC, City Recorder  City Attorney 

 

142



Administration – Community Development & Planning 
117 N Molalla Avenue, PO Box 248, Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Phone: (503) 829-6855 Fax: (503) 829-3676 

Memorandum 

To: City Council 

From: Aldo Rodriguez, Community Planner 

Date: September 18, 2018 

File: P17-2018 

Applicant: City of Molalla 

Findings/Summary: 

At the time of adoption of the most recent Development Code update (November 2017) the marijuana 
sections were inadvertently left out of the adoption. The amendment would reincorporate these 
sections of the Marijuana Development Code language. No modifications to the sections are proposed: 

• At the regular September 5, 2018 Planning Commission recommended to City Council to
approve planning file P17-2018 to amend the development code to reinstate the Marijuana
Development Code language.

• An additional condition was added (highlighted in light blue). The condition was missed during
the Planning Commission hearing.

Attachments: 

Exhibit 1 – New Format 

Exhibit 2 – Previous Marijuana Code Language  

Exhibit 3 – 2015 Development Code Revision Staff Report 

Exhibit 4 – 9.5.18 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

Please direct all questions to Community Planner Aldo Rodriguez: 
communityplanner@cityofmolalla.com or by phone at (503)-759-0219. A copy of the findings is available 
on the city website or by contacting Aldo. 

Exhibit A

143



 

New Format 

Section 17-5.1.020 of the Molalla Development Code is hereby amended by adding a definition for the 
following terms: 

“Marijuana Items” 

“Marijuana Processors” 

“Marijuana Producers” 

“Marijuana Wholesaler” 

“Medical Marijuana Dispensary Or Retailer” 

 

MARIJUANA ITEMS. Marijuana, cannabinoid products, cannabinoid concentrates and cannabinoid 
extracts as those terms are defined in Oregon law. 

MARIJUANA PROCESSORS. Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon Liquor Control 
Commission that lawfully processes marijuana items. 

MARIJUANA PRODUCERS. Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon Liquor Control 
Commission that lawfully produces marijuana. Also known as a recreational marijuana “grow site.” 

MARIJUANA WHOLESALER. Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon Liquor Control 
Commission that lawfully purchases marijuana items in this state for resale to a person other than a 
consumer. 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY OR RETAILER. Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon 
Health Authority and used or intended to be used for purposes of delivering, dispensing, or transferring 
marijuana items to Oregon medical marijuana registry identification card holders pursuant to ORS 
475.300-475.346. 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA PRODUCERS. Any facility or operation registered with the Oregon Health 
Authority and used or intended to be used for the purpose of cultivating marijuana at a specific location 
registered by the Authority and used by the grower to produce marijuana for medical use by a specific 
patient. Also known as a medical marijuana “grow site.” 

RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARY OR RETAILER. Any facility or operation registered with the 
Oregon Liquor Control Commission that lawfully sells marijuana items to a consumer in Oregon. 

144



 

Section 17-2.2.030 of the Molalla Development Code is hereby amended by adding a Medical Marijuana Dispensary as a Special Use in the C-1 
Central Business District and the C-2 General Commercial District as follows (new language in highlight) 

Uses 

Residential Zones Commercial Zones and 
Industrial Zones  

Public 
Use  Special 

Use 
Standards R-1 R-2  R-3 R-5 C-1 C-2 M-1 M-2 PSP 

C. Commercial Uses1           

Amusement, Entertainment, and Commercial Recreation; 
includes theaters, bowling alleys, miniature golf, concert 
venues, arcades, similar uses 

N N N N P CU CU N CU  

Artisanal and Light Manufacture Uses in Commercial zones – 
includes craftsman studios; and uses providing instruction 
and/or retail sales related to painting, sculpting, photography, 
picture framing, knitting, sewing, literature, theater, music, 
specialty foods or catering, or similar uses 

N N N N S S N N N Sec 17-2.3 

Automobile Parking, Commercial Parking N N N N CU CU CU P CU  

Automotive Repair and Service, includes fueling station, car 
wash, tire sales and repair or replacement, painting, and other 
repair for automobiles, motorcycles, aircraft, boats, RVs, 
trucks, etc. (No junking, salvage operations) 

N N N N N P P P N  

Automotive Sales and Rental; includes motorcycles, boats, 
recreational vehicles, and trucks (No junking, salvage 
operations) 

N N N N N CU CU N N  

Bars and Taverns (those established after 2010 shall not be 
located within 500 feet of another bar or tavern)  N N N N CU CU CU N N  

Bed and Breakfast Inn N S/CU S/CU S/CU S/CU N N N N Sec 17-2.3 

Breweries, Distilleries and Wineries (Small Scale) N N N N S S S S N Sec 17-2.3 

Commercial Retail Sales and Services N N N N P P N N N  

Commercial Retail Sales and Services, in Conjunction with a 
Permitted Industrial Use, as an accessory use  N N N N N P P P N  

                                                           
1 KEY: P = Permitted Use; S = Permitted with Special Use Standards; CU = Conditional Use Permit Required; N = Not Allowed. 

145



 

Uses 

Residential Zones Commercial Zones and 
Industrial Zones  

Public 
Use  

Special Use 
Standards 

R-1 R-2  R-3 R-5 C-1 C-2  M-1 M-2 PSP 

C. Commercial Uses (continued)2           

Customer Call Center N N N N P P P CU N  
Drive-Through Service, accessory to primary use, not including 
restaurants N N N N N S/CU N N N Sec 17-2.3 

Hotels, Motels, and Similar Overnight Accommodations N N N N P P N N N  

Kennel (See also, “Veterinary Clinic”) N N N N N N P P N  
Lumber Yard and Similar Sales of Building or Contracting 
Supplies, or Heavy Equipment N N N N N N P P N  

Medical Clinic, Outpatient N N N N P P N N N  

Offices  N N N N P P P CU N  

Recreational Vehicle Park N N N N N N N N N  

Self-Service Storage, Commercial N N N N N P P CU N  

Veterinary Clinic (small animal) N N N P P P P P N  

Medical or Recreational Marijuana Dispensary N N N N S S N N N  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
2 KEY: P = Permitted Use; S = Permitted with Special Use Standards; CU = Conditional Use Permit Required; N = Not Allowed. 

146



 

 

Section 17-2.3 Special Use Standards of the Molalla Development Code is hereby amended by adding section 17-2.3.200 allowing a Medical and 
Recreational Marijuana Dispensary as a Special Use in the C-1 Central Business District and the C-2 General Commercial District as follows (new 
language in highlight) 

 

17-2.3.200 Medical and Recreational Dispensary 

A. Applicability. The following standards apply where Medical and Recreational Marijuana Dispensary are allowed in commercial zones. In 
addition to the standards below; section 17-4.1 General Review Procedures apply.  

C. Standards 

1. Must be located on real property adjacent to, or with legal access through property adjacent to: (a) the public right-of-way on W. Main St. 
between OR HWY 213 and Industrial Way; (b) the public right-of-way on OR 213 between Toliver Rd. and City boundary furthest to the south; 

(c) the public right-of-way on Molalla Ave. between Heintz St. and S. 3rd St.; or (d) the public right-of-way on W. Main St. (OR HWY 211) between 

Molalla Ave. and Hart St. Furthermore, location shall not be within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising another medical or recreational 

marijuana dispensary.  

 

2. In addition, any and all medical and recreational marijuana dispensaries must be registered respectively with the 

Oregon Health Authority under ORD 475.314 and comply with all OHA rules and the Oregon Liquor Control Commission and comply with all 

OLCC rules. (Molalla Supp. No. 8, 6-16) 

 

3. Must adhere to the Marijuana District Map Overlay 

 

 

147



 

 

 

 

Section 17-2.2.030 of the Molalla Development Code is hereby amended by adding a Medical marijuana producers, marijuana producers, 
marijuana processors and marijuana wholesalers as a Special Use in the M-1 Light Industrial District and the M-2 Heavy Industrial District as 
follows (new language in highlight) 

Uses 

Residential Zones Commercial Zones and Industrial 
Zones 

[Public 
Use] 

Special Use 
Standards 

R-1 R-2 R-3 R-5 C-1 C-2 M-1 M-2 PSP  

D. Industrial and Employment Uses3 (continued)           

Finished Textile and Leather Products Manufacture; 
except as allowed for Artisanal and Light 
Manufacture Uses 

N N N N N N N P N  

Food Processing, including Canning, Freezing, Drying 
and Similar Food Processing and Preserving; except 
as allowed for Artisanal and Light Manufacture Uses.  
Rendering Plants are prohibited. 

N N N N N N CU P N  

Freight Terminals, including Loading Docks, Storage, 
Warehousing, Wholesale Distribution, Cold Storage; 
except Self-service Storage or Mini-storage 
Warehouses 

N N N N N N N P N  

Machine Shop, and Sales, Service and Repair of 
Machinery; except as allowed for Artisanal and Light 
Manufacture Uses.  Must be wholly enclosed in 
buildings. 

N N N N C-1 CU CU P N  

Metal Plating N N N N N N N P N  

                                                           
3 KEY: P = Permitted Use; S = Permitted with Special Use Standards; CU = Conditional Use Permit Required; N = Not Allowed. 

148



 

Uses 

Residential Zones Commercial Zones and Industrial 
Zones 

[Public 
Use] 

Special Use 
Standards 

R-1 R-2 R-3 R-5 C-1 C-2 M-1 M-2 PSP  

Metal Manufacture, Welding; except as allowed for 
Artisanal and Light Manufacture Uses 

N N N N N N CU P N  

Newspaper, Periodical, Publishing and Printing; 
except Artisanal and Light Manufacture Uses 

N N N N N N P P N  

Special Trade Contracting Facilities, such as Floor 
Laying, Masonry, Stone, Plumbing, Electrical, Metal 
Work, Roofing, Heating and Air Conditioning, Cabinet 
making, and Carpentry 

N N N N N N CU P N  

Wood Products Manufacture, such as Sawmills, Paper 
and Allied Products, and Secondary Wood Products; 
except Artisanal and Light Manufacture Uses 

N N N N N N N CU N  

Wrecking, Demolition, Junk Yards, Recycling Centers N N N N N N N CU N  

Medical marijuana producers, marijuana producers, 
marijuana processors and marijuana wholesalers 

N N N N N N S S N  

 

Section 17-2.3 Special Use Standards of the Molalla Development Code is hereby amended by adding section 17-2.3.210 allowing a Medical 
marijuana producers, marijuana producers, marijuana processors and marijuana wholesalers as a Special Use in the M-1 Light Industrial and M-2 
Heavy Industrial District as follows (new language in highlight) 

 

 

 

 

 

149



 

 

 

17-2.3.210   Medical marijuana producers, marijuana producers, marijuana processors and marijuana wholesalers 

A. Applicability. The following standards apply where Medical marijuana producers, marijuana producers, marijuana processors and marijuana 
wholesalers are allowed in industrial zones. In addition to the standards below; section 17-4.1 General Review Procedures apply.  

C. Standards 

1. Must be located on real property west of Molalla Forest Rd. All medical marijuana producers, marijuana producers, marijuana processors and 

marijuana wholesalers must be registered with the Oregon Health Authority or the Oregon Liquor Control Commission, as applicable, and com- 

ply with all applicable OHA and OLCC rules. 

 

2. Use not allowed in the Employment Zone. 

 

3. Must adhere to the Marijuana District Map Overlay

150



 

 

151



HW
Y 2

11
  

5TH ST

HEINTZ ST

ON
A W

AY

SPT CO RR

VAUGHAN RD

SHIRLEY ST

MEADOW DR

VICK RD

LOWE RD

HA
RT

 AV
E

JUNE DR

MEADOWLAWN PL

MA
RY

 D
R

PATROL ST
2ND ST

MT VIEW LN

HE
ZZ

IE 
LN

ST
OW

ER
S R

D

7TH ST

WEST LN

FRANCES ST

LE
RO

Y A
VE

ME
TZ

LE
R A

VE

JULIE LN

KE
NN

EL
 AV

E

FEYRER PARK RD

MA
TH

IAS
 RD

RI
DI

NG
S A

VE

MEADOWLARK PL

MOLALLA FOREST RD

SH
AV

ER
 AV

E

FE
NT

ON
 AV

E

LO
LA

 AV
E

ROSS ST

4TH ST

6TH ST

CE
NT

ER
 AV

E

3RD ST

GR
AN

GE
 AV

E

SW
IEG

LE
 AV

E

LYNN LN

MA
Y S

T BE
RK

LE
Y A

VE

8TH ST

AN
NE

 LN

CO
LE

 AV
E

ZE
PH

ER
 W

AY

MILLER ST

OAK ST

HA
RV

ES
T L

N

EN
GL

E A
VE

HOYT ST

EC
KE

RD
 AV

E

COHO ST

BR
ON

CO
 AV

E
KELSEY LOOP

VIL
LA

GE
 D

R

DI
XO

N 
AV

E

CA
RO

L C
T

IN
DU

ST
RI

AL
 W

AY

IN
DI

AN
 O

AK
 C

T

RACHEL LN

CHRISTOPHER ST

BOARDWALK AVE

ESCORT ST

TA
YL

OR
 CT

ST
OR

EY
 D

R

PE
GA

SU
S C

T

TR
IN

ITY
 C

T

PA
RK

 AV
E

HA
RV

EY
 LN

RI
VE

RS
 LN

CO
RR

AL
 C

T

AN
DR

IA
N 

DR

CHURCH ST

STACY LN

GARDEN CT

KA
LU

GI
N 

CT

ZIM
ME

RM
AN

 LN
CROMPTONS LN

SKYE LN

CO
LE

 CT

GLORY LN

BERWICK CT
REVILOT CT

5TH ST

SH
AV

ER
 AV

E

4TH ST

8TH ST

7TH ST

CO
LE

 AV
E

HE
ZZ

IE 
LN

MOLALLA FOREST RD

3RD ST

6TH ST

7TH ST

CO
LE

 AV
E

HW
Y 2

13
  

TOLIVER RD

MAIN ST

MO
LA

LL
A A

VE

HWY 211  

HWY 211  

HWY 211  

¯

0 2,0001,000
Feet

Proposed Districts
Retail District
Production District

City Zoning 
Commercially Zoned
Industrially Zoned

CityBoundary

1:12,500

Proposed Marijuana Retail and Production Districts

152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



                 Community Dev. & Planning 
                                               117 N Molalla Avenue 

                                                                              PO Box 248 
                                                     Molalla, Oregon  97038 
                                                 Phone: (503) 829-6855 

                                Fax: (503) 829-3676 
 

   

Staff Report – Development Code Revision 

 
 
File No.:   P17-2015 

Legal Description:  Various 

Address:  (All Commercially Zoned Properties) 

Applicant:  City of Molalla 

Owner:  Various 

Proposal: Amend the development code to define medicinal marijuana 
dispensaries, and allow them as permitted uses in commercial zones 
subject to conditions 

Current Use:  N/A 

 
 
1. Overview & Background 
 
Application P17-2015 proposes to amend the development code to define medicinal marijuana 
dispensaries, and add these dispensaries as permitted uses in both C1 and C2 commercial zones subject 
to conditions. This legislative land-use action is in response to ORS 475.300-346, otherwise known as the 
Oregon Medical Marijuana Act. This application will be administered using a type IV procedure. 
 
2. Public Notice 
 
A Form 1 official notice was sent to Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) 
February 2, 2015. Notice was sent February 26, 2015 to all landowners of commercial property within 
the city. Notice was placed in the Oregonian Friday, February 27, 2015 under general notices. Notice was 
placed on the City of Molalla Website on February 26, 2015 under the URL as follows: 
http://www.cityofmolalla.com/planning/page/public-notices. No public comments have been received 
as of the writing of this staff report.  
 
3. Attachments & Exhibits 
 
Exhibit 1. Copy of Notice sent to DLCD, landowners, newspaper and website 
Exhibit 2. City of Molalla Comprehensive Plan (Amended 2014) 

City of Molalla  Community Development & Planning    117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038    (503) 759 0219 
 175



 
4. Findings & Conclusions 
 
The application has been reviewed under the requirements set forth by the MDC in subsection 
19.04.050: 
 

i. Compliance with the applicable Statewide Planning Goals; 
ii. Compliance with applicable City of Molalla Comprehensive Plan provisions; and 

iii. The property and affected area is presently provided with adequate public facilities, services and 
transportation networks to support the use, or such facilities, services and transportation 
networks are reasonably likely to be provided concurrently with the development of the 
property or within the applicable planning period. 

 
Compliance with Oregon Statewide Planning Goals 
 

a. GOAL 1 – CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT OAR 660-015-000(1) To develop a citizen involvement 
program that ensures the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the 
planning process. 

i. Staff Findings: A Form 1 official notice was sent to Oregon Department of Land 
Conservation and Development (DLCD) February 2, 2015. Notice was sent 
February 26, 2015 to all landowners of commercial property within the city. 
Notice was placed in the Oregonian Friday, February 27, 2015 under general 
notices. Notice was placed on the City of Molalla Website on February 26, 2015 
under the URL as follows: http://www.cityofmolalla.com/planning/page/public-
notices. 

ii. Conclusion: Statewide goal of citizen involvement has been met through the 
mechanisms described above. 
 

b. GOAL 2 – LAND USE PLANNING OAR 660-015-0000(2) To establish a land use planning 
process and policy framework as a basis for all decisions and actions related to land use 
and to ensure a factual base for such decisions and actions. 

i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because it refers to the creation and 
establishment of the process as opposed to the execution of the process. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed development code revision does not conflict with or 
adversely impact Goal 2 and is consistent with Goal 2.  
 

c. GOAL 3 – AGRICULTURAL LANDS OAR 660-015-0000(3) To preserve and maintain 
agricultural lands. 

i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the proposal involves no 
development. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed development code change does not conflict with or 
adversely impact Goal 3 and is consistent with Goal 3.  
 

d. GOAL 4 – FORESTED LANDS OAR 660-015-0000(4) To conserve forest lands by 
maintaining the forest land base and to protect the state's forest economy by making 
possible economically efficient forest practices that assure the continuous growing and 
harvesting of forest tree species as the leading use on forest land consistent with sound 

 
City of Molalla  Community Development & Planning    117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038    (503) 759 0219 

 176



management of soil, air, water, and fish and wildlife resources and to provide for 
recreational opportunities and agriculture. 

i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the proposal involves no 
development. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed development code change does not conflict with or 
adversely impact Goal 4 and is consistent with Goal 4.  

 
e. GOAL 5 – NATURAL RESOURCES, SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS, AND OPEN SPACES OAR 

660-015-0000(5) To conserve open space and protect natural and scenic resources. 
i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the proposal involves no 

development. 
ii. Conclusion: The proposed development code change does not conflict with or 

adversely impact Goal 5 and is consistent with Goal 5. 
 

f. GOAL 6 – AIR, WATER AND LAND RESOURCES QUALITY OAR 660-015-0000(6) To 
maintain and improve the quality of the air, water and land resources of the state. 

i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the proposal involves no 
development. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed development code change does not conflict with or 
adversely impact Goal 6 and is consistent with Goal 6. 
 

g. Goal 7 – AREAS SUBJECT TO NATURAL HAZARDS OAR 660-015-0000(7) To protect life 
and property from natural disasters. 

i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the proposal involves no 
development. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed development code change does not conflict with or 
adversely impact Goal 7 and is consistent with Goal 7. 

 
h. GOAL 8 – RECREATIONAL NEEDS OAR 660-015-0000(8) To satisfy the recreational needs 

of the citizens of the state and visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the siting 
of necessary recreational facilities including destination resorts. 

i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the proposal is not prohibiting 
any recreational uses on local property. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed zone change does not conflict with or adversely 
impact Goal 8 and is consistent with Goal 8. 
 

i. Goal 9 – ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OAR 660-015-0000(9) To provide adequate 
opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic activities vital to the health, 
welfare and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens. 

i. Staff Findings: The proposal is to add potential uses in commercial zones, thus 
increasing the viability of various businesses. The addition of marijuana 
dispensaries as outright permitted uses in commercial zones would increase the 
diversity of potential businesses in Molalla. This could lead to increased 
employment opportunities and economic growth. 

ii. Conclusion: Statewide goal of economic development can be met. 
 

j. Goal 10 – HOUSING OAR 660-015-0000(10) To provide for the housing needs of citizens 
of the state. 

 
City of Molalla  Community Development & Planning    117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038    (503) 759 0219 

 177



i. Staff Findings: The addition of permitted uses in commercial zones creates no 
impact on housing, housing affordability or housing availability. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed zone change does not conflict with or adversely 
impact Goal 10 and is consistent with Goal 10. 
 

k. GOAL 11 – PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES OAR 660-015-0000(11) To plan and develop 
a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and services to serve as a 
framework for urban and rural development. 

i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the proposal does not involve 
development. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed zone change does not conflict with or adversely 
impact Goal 11 and is consistent with Goal 11. 
 

l. GOAL 12 – TRANSPORTATION OAR 660-015-0000(12) To provide and encourage a safe, 
convenient and economic transportation system. 

i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the proposal does not impact 
transportation or transportation processes. 

ii. Conclusion: The proposed development code change does not conflict with or 
adversely impact Goal 12 and is consistent with Goal 12. 
 

m. Goal 13 – ENERGY CONSERVATION OAR 660-015-0000(13) To conserve energy. 
i. Staff Findings: This goal does not apply because the addition of permitted uses 

in commercial zones does not impact energy conservation. 
ii. Conclusion: The proposed development code change does not conflict with or 

adversely impact Goal 13 and is consistent with Goal 13. 
 
Oregon Statewide Planning Goals 14-19 do not apply to this proposal due to various reasons. These 
goals are as follows: 

i. Urbanization 
ii. Willamette River Greenway 

iii. Estuarine Resources 
iv. Coastal Shorelands 
v. Beaches and Dunes 

vi. Ocean Resources 
 

Planning Staff finds that this application is consistent with Oregon Statewide Planning 
Goals, and satisfies all applicable requirements. 
 

 
Compliance with applicable City of Molalla Comprehensive Plan provisions: 
 

i. Page 8-9, Citizen Involvement Goals and Policies: 
a. Staff findings: The Comprehensive plan policies related to citizen involvement echo the 

same standards in Oregon Statewide Planning Goal 1. The City has coordinated 
throughout this process with the applicable state agency, Oregon DLCD. The City has 
provided a wide range of public involvement opportunities via the internet, newspaper, 
direct mailings and public hearings. The information has been disseminated in non-

 
City of Molalla  Community Development & Planning    117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038    (503) 759 0219 

 178



technical and understandable terms. Draft documents were made available to the public 
for review and comment. 

b. Conclusion: Planning Staff finds that this criterion is met. 
ii. Page 38, Commercial Development Policies: 

a. Staff Findings: The Comprehensive Plan mandates that the city apply high standards to 
neighborhood compatibility for potentially conflicting uses, and that the city provide an 
atmosphere that is inviting to potential businesses. This proposal involves creating 
conditions to the allowance of dispensaries that take into account neighborhood 
compatibility. This is achieved by specific proximity minimums as conditions to the 
development of dispensaries. The proposed development code revision also creates a 
more inviting atmosphere for businesses by increasing the potential uses on commercial 
properties. 

b. Conclusion: Planning Staff finds that this criterion can be met. 
 

The Planning Staff finds that this application is consistent with the Molalla 
Comprehensive Plan (amended 2014), and satisfies all applicable requirements. 

 
 
The property and affected area is presently provided with adequate public facilities, services and 
transportation networks to support the use, or such facilities, services and transportation networks are 
reasonably likely to be provided concurrently with the development of the property or within the 
applicable planning period. 
 
Staff Findings: This criterion does not apply to the application proposal. All commercially zoned 
properties in the city will be affected by the proposed change, yet there is no development involved in 
the process at this time.  
 
5. Recommendation 
 
Based upon the findings in this report, the City Planning Staff recommends the Planning Commission 
take the following actions: 
 

i.   Approve planning permit P17-2015 to amend the development code to define medicinal 
marijuana dispensaries, and allow them as permitted uses in C1 and C2 zones subject to 
conditions. 

 

 
City of Molalla  Community Development & Planning    117 N. Molalla Avenue, Molalla, OR 97038    (503) 759 0219 

 179



Minutes of the Molalla Planning Commission Regular Meeting                                                               
Molalla Adult Center                                                                                                                                             

315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038                                                                                               
Sep. 5th, 2018 

  Page 1 of 4 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER OF THE MOLALLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING; the regular 
meeting of September 5th, 2018 was called to order by Chair Rae Lynn Botsford. 

 
 ATTENDANCE:      
Chair Rae Lynn Botsford - Present 
Co-Chair Omar Reynaga - Present 
Commissioner Debbie Lumb – Absent 
Commissioner Steve Deller - Present 
Commissioner Jennifer Satter – Present 
Commissioner Doug Eaglebear – Present  
Commissioner Hardeep Singh Brar- Absent 
 

 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:  
Dan Huff, City Manager - Present  
Gerald Fisher, Public Works Director – Present 
Aldo Rodriguez, Community Planner – Present 
Spencer Parsons, City Attorney – Absent  

 
 

2) MINUTES: 
 
• Chair Botsford motions to approve minutes from August 1st and 15th subject to the correct of 

“inaudible” to “Avison Lumber”. Seconded by Commissioner Satter. Approved. 
 
3) PUBLIC HEARING FOR PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT CODE AMMENDMENT P17-

2018 REINSTATE MARIJUANA DEVELOPMENT CODE LANGUAGE  
 

• Chair Botsford goes over the standard screening questions, all no. Also goes over speaking rules 
for public comment.  

• Opens hearing for P17-2018. 
• Chair Botsford asks if anyone has received a request for party status. All no. 
• No one in the audience requests party status.  
• Summary of Staff Report: 

 CP Rodriguez: When the new development code was adopted in November 2017 the 
marijuana language was inadvertently left out. The previous code section is included in 
the commissioner’s packets.  

 Aldo reads the criteria of how the proposal can be adopted: consistent with 
comprehensive plan and statewide planning goals, approved by planning commission 
and city council, etc. 

  No comments were submitted from any party. 
 Concludes staff report. 

• Chair Botsford opens the floor for public comment. 

180



Minutes of the Molalla Planning Commission Regular Meeting                                                               
Molalla Adult Center                                                                                                                                             

315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038                                                                                               
Sep. 5th, 2018 

  Page 2 of 4 
 

 Jim Taylor: Confirms that Molalla is reinstating the code that was left out in its 
original language. Asks some clarifying questions on conditional use requirements 
and where those are found. Asks what Aldo determines special use to be. 

 CP Aldo: A use that has certain unusual, special or not commonly found needs, 
creates a new category sort of.  

 Jim Taylor: Asks what the special use permit would allow someone to do. 
 CP Aldo: Gives someone permission to operate said special use subject to certain 

requirements of the permit and city. Was logical to just create a special use section. 
 Jim Taylor: Wants to clarify that Aldo has the requirements written in the code in a 

section. 
 CP Aldo: Yes. On my desk. 
 Concludes Jim Taylor’s comments. 

• Chair Botsford asks if any commissioners have any questions. No. 
• Chair Botsford closes hearing for P17-2018. Commissioners deliberates.  

 Commissioner Eaglebear asks why this came through the PC as it was already in 
theory approved. 

 CP Aldo states that the city attorney recommended them to do it this way. Following 
a legislative process. 

• Commissioner Reynaga motions to approve the new code. Seconded by Chair Botsford.  All 
aye.  

• Motions passed, concludes public hearing for P17-2018. 
 

 
 

4) PUBLIC HEARING FOR P85-2018 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMMENDMENT: 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 

 
• Chair Botsford asks the standard screening questions. All no.  
• Chair Botsford opens public hearing for P85-2018. 
• Chair Botsford asks is anyone has received a request for party status. No. 
• Summary Staff Report: 

 CP Rodriguez: Based off previous TSP of 2001. City contracted with firm to develop 
plan. 

 Review criteria is the same as the comprehensive plan amendment: statewide 
planning goals, etc. 

 Two comments were submitted, Susan Hansen & ODOT. 
 Presentation by: ODOT (can’t hear his name). Project started last July identifying 

goals, needs and deficiencies. Conducted public and joint work sessions and have 

181



Minutes of the Molalla Planning Commission Regular Meeting                                                               
Molalla Adult Center                                                                                                                                             

315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038                                                                                               
Sep. 5th, 2018 

  Page 3 of 4 
 

had a project team and advisory committee to review the plan and bring it to its 
current state.  

 Overviews how they collected community data, opinions and involvement. 
 9 technical memos to get to final draft. 
 A fair number of changes from last draft to final. 
 Two-tiered plan leaves small deficit but ODOT thinks this will be fine as some of the 

projects were already completed under the previous TSP.  
 Overviews which projects will be completed during which stages and talks about 

gathering funding from multiple different sources.  
  Goes over new requirements to the TSP: bike parking, bike lanes, a few other items.  
 Opens floor for questions. 
 Commissioner Satter asks about the ODOT concerns of projects which will not be 

funded by ODOT and how they will be done. 
 PWD Gerald Fisher: Feels that they can work with ODOT on funding and states that 

no master plan is ever fully funded. Needs to approve plan to be able to secure 
funding for them. Must submit plan before they can get funded. Overviews the 
process for getting funding for projects.  

 Steve Deller: Saw things in old plan that are not in new plan. 
 ODOT: States that the background info and such that Steve is not seeing is in the 

appendix section now and formatted differently but still there.  
 Steve Deller: Asks about intersections moving up to a “grade F” 
 ODOT: Certain intersections will change classification and others will be upgraded 

to handle the current classification. All meet minimum mobility standards. The plan 
accommodates all foreseen levels of development. 

 Steve Deller: asks about the old plan and some of the high priority projects that 
weren’t completed and how Molalla can learn from that and not let it happen again.  

 PWD Gerald Fisher: Economy tanked and responsible for projects not getting done.  
 Commissioner Satter: asks about the discrepancies in funding again.  
 PWD Gerald Fisher: based on what we know right now and SDC estimates, we know 

there is a funding shortfall but will/can be funded by feds, bonds or grants. If we 
don’t identify a project, especially compacity increasing ones, then it hurts our 
funding opportunities. States that we need to identify projects first before we can 
even get the money for them. 

 Commissioner Satter: Is still worried about the difference in funding. 
 ODOT: ODOT will only fund or take on projects that are part of a plan, so they need 

to be in the plan.  
• Chair Botsford opens floor for public comment: 

182



Minutes of the Molalla Planning Commission Regular Meeting                                                               
Molalla Adult Center                                                                                                                                             

315 Kennel Ave, Molalla, OR 97038                                                                                               
Sep. 5th, 2018 

  Page 4 of 4 
 

 Jim Taylor: thanks them for the effort put into the plan. States he was a part of old 
TSP plan and does not want to see the current TSP to fall short like in 2001 and 
really wants to improve the city. Thinks plan is as good as its going to get. Hints at 
safety features being less important than economic ones but is overall happy with the 
plan. 

• Chair Botsford closes public hearing for P85-2018. 
• Discuss small language change before city council approves. 
• Motion to approve P85-2018, subsequent to small ODOT language changes. Motion by 

Commissioner Reynaga. Seconded by Commissioner Satter. All aye. Motion approved. 
 
5) Discussion Item 

 
• Thanks to Steve for joining Planning Commission. 

 
6) Reports and Announcements 

 
• Celebrate Molalla in September. 
• Help Aldo with Tie-dye! 

 
 

7)  ADJOURN 
 

Motion to adjourn made by PC Steve Deller. PC Eaglebear seconded. Motion carried, all ayes. 
 
 
 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Chair, Rae Lynn Botsford    Date 
 
 
 ATTEST: ________________________________  
   Aldo Rodriguez 
   Community Planner 

183



Page 1 of 2 – Ordinance No.  

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2018-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MOLALLA, OREGON 

AMENDING THE TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT OF THE 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAND AND ADOPTING A TRANSPORTATION 

SYSTEM PLAN 

 

WHEREAS, the transportation element of the City of Molalla's Comprehensive Plan 

is in need of revision in order to comply with new requirements of state law and in 

order to address growth in the City and changing land use patterns; and 

WHEREAS, the Transportation System Plan attached hereto as Exhibit "A" has been 

developed in order to address those needs; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the City of Molalla Planning 

Commission, which recommended adoption of the Transportation System Plan; and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the City of Molalla City Council on 

September 26, 2018, at which a staff report was given and the matter was opened to 

public comment; and 

WHEREAS, the Molalla City Council on September 26, 2018, after motion duly 

made and seconded, unanimously voted to adopt the Transportation System Plan 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 

 

Now, Therefore, the City of Molalla does ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The Transportation System Plan attached hereto as Exhibit "A" is hereby 

adopted, nunc pro tunc September 26, 2018, and the City of Molalla Comprehensive 

Plan is hereby amended so as to adopt Exhibit "A" as the transportation element of the 

Plan. 

Section 2. It being necessary for the safety and orderly development of the City of 

Molalla, an emergency is hereby declared and this Ordinance shall take effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 

 

Read the first time on _________ and moved to second reading by _________ vote of 

the City Council.  

184



Page 2 of 2 – Ordinance No.  

Read the second time and adopted by the City Council on _________.  

Signed by the Mayor on _________. 

   

  Jimmy Thompson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Beery Elsner & Hammond, LLP 

   

Kelly Richardson, CMC, City Recorder  City Attorney 

 

185



CITY OF MOLALLA 
TRANSPORTATION 

SYSTEM PLAN
2018

186



 

PAGE 2 

DRAFT 

CITY OF MOLALLA 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN 
Molalla, Oregon 

Prepared For: 

City of Molalla 

117 N Molalla Avenue 

Molalla, OR 97038 

(503) 829-6855 

Prepared By: 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

851 SW 6th Avenue, Suite 600 

Portland, OR 97204 

(503) 228-5230 

Project Manager: Matt Bell 

Project Analyst: Nicholas Gross  

Project Principal: Matt Hughart 

September 2018 

 

  

187



 

PAGE 3 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
The production of the 2018 Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) has been the collective effort of the 

following people: 

City Council Members 

 Mayor Jimmy Thompson 

 Councilor Leota Childress 

 Councilor Glen Boreth 

 Councilor Elizabeth Klein 

 Councilor Keith Swigart 

 Councilor DeLise Palumbo 

 Councilor Cindy Dragowsky 

Planning Commission Members 

 Rae Lynn Botsford, Chair 

 Omar Reynaga 

 Debbie Lumb 

 Jennifer Satter 

 Doug Eaglebear 

 Hardeep Singh Brar 

Public Advisory Committee (PAC) Members 

 James Bobst, Pacific Fibre Products 

 Mitch Jorgensen, Molalla Redi-Mix 

 Lauren Welsh, CashCo 

 Garrett Dunn, Big Meadows HOA 

 Debbie Lumb, Planning Commission 

 Keith Swigart, City Council 

 Delise Palumbo, City Council 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Members 

 Aldo Rodriguez, City of Molalla 

 Frank Schoenfeld, City of Molalla 

 Karen Buehrig, Clackamas County 

 Shirley Lyons, South Clackamas 

Transportation District 

 Matthew Lacy, Molalla River School 

District 

 Dave Luce, Molalla River School District 

 Mike Penunuri, Molalla River Fire 

Department 

Project Management Team (PMT) Members 

 Gerald Fisher, City of Molalla 

 Dan Huff, City of Molalla 

 Gail Curtis, Oregon Department of 

Transportation 

 Joshua Brookings, Oregon Department of 

Transportation 

 Matt Bell, Kittelson & Associates 

 Nick Gross, Kittelson & Associates 

 Mat Hughart, Kittelson & Associates 

 Matt Hastie, Angelo Planning Group 

 Andrew Parish, Angelo Planning Group 

This project is partially funded by a grant from the Transportation and Growth Management (“TGM”) 

Program, a joint program of the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and Department of Land 

Conservation and Development (DLCD). This TGM grant is financed, in part, by federal Fixing America’s 

Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act), Federal Transit Administration, and State of Oregon funds.” The 

contents of this document do not necessarily reflect views or policies of the State of Oregon. 

 

188



 

PAGE 4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction  ....................................................................................................................................... 9 

Molalla 2018 ................................................................................................................................................................................ 9 

TSP Organization and Methodology .......................................................................................................................................... 12 

TSP Update Process ................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Committees ............................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Public Involvement .................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Land Use .................................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Goals and Objectives ............................................................................................................................ 19 

Goals and Objectives ................................................................................................................................................................. 19 

Project Selection and Prioritization ........................................................................................................................................... 21 

Pedestrian System ................................................................................................................................ 26 

Pedestrian Facilities ................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

Pedestrian Plan.......................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

Bicycle System  ..................................................................................................................................... 35 

Bicycle Facilities ......................................................................................................................................................................... 35 

Bicycle Plan ................................................................................................................................................................................ 38 

Transit System  ..................................................................................................................................... 44 

Transit Facilities ......................................................................................................................................................................... 44 

Transit Plan ................................................................................................................................................................................ 46 

Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO) ........................................................... 50 

Transportation System Management (TSM) ............................................................................................................................. 50 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) ........................................................................................................................... 53 

Access Management Plan.......................................................................................................................................................... 56 

Motor Vehicle System .......................................................................................................................... 63 

Functional Classification Plan .................................................................................................................................................... 63 

Roadway Cross Section Standards ............................................................................................................................................. 64 

Street System Connectivity ....................................................................................................................................................... 74 

Motor Vehicle Facilities ............................................................................................................................................................. 74 

Motor Vehicle Plan .................................................................................................................................................................... 76 

189



 

PAGE 5 

Traffic Safety Plan ...................................................................................................................................................................... 81 

Other Travel Modes ............................................................................................................................. 84 

Rail Transportation .................................................................................................................................................................... 84 

Air Transportation ..................................................................................................................................................................... 84 

Water Transportation ................................................................................................................................................................ 85 

Freight Transportation .............................................................................................................................................................. 85 

Pipeline ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 87 

Funding, Implementation, and Monitoring.......................................................................................... 89 

Historical Revenue Sources ....................................................................................................................................................... 89 

Historical Expenditures.............................................................................................................................................................. 89 

Projected Transportation Funding and Funding Outlook .......................................................................................................... 89 

Planned System Costs ............................................................................................................................................................... 90 

Implementation ......................................................................................................................................................................... 91 

Glossary of Terms ................................................................................................................................. 98 

  

190



 

PAGE 6 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 1: Study Area ............................................................................................................................. 10 

Figure 2: Changes in Households by TAZ (2017 to 2040) ..................................................................... 16 

Figure 3: Changes in Employment by TAZ (2017 to 2040) ................................................................... 17 

Figure 4: Safe Routes to School ............................................................................................................ 32 

Figure 5: Pedestrian Plan Project ......................................................................................................... 33 

Figure 6: Bicycle Plan Project ............................................................................................................... 42 

Figure 7: Transit Plan Project ............................................................................................................... 48 

Figure 8: Roadway Functional Classification Plan ................................................................................ 65 

Figure 9: Local Street Connectivity ....................................................................................................... 75 

Figure 10: Motor Vehicle Plan Projects ................................................................................................ 80 

Figure 11: Traffic Safety Plan Projects .................................................................................................. 82 

Figure 12: Freight Routes ..................................................................................................................... 86 

  

191



 

PAGE 7 

LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1: Molalla Population and Land Use Summary .......................................................................... 14 

Table 2: Project Evaluation Criteria ...................................................................................................... 22 

Table 3: Pedestrian Plan Improvement Projects .................................................................................. 28 

Table 4: Bicycle Plan Improvement Projects ........................................................................................ 38 

Table 5: Transit Plan Improvement Projects ........................................................................................ 47 

Table 6: Transportation System Management Projects ...................................................................... 52 

Table 7: Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Strategies ...................................................... 54 

Table 8: Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) Options by Functional Classification ................. 55 

Table 9: OR 213 and OR 211 ODOT Access Management Standards .................................................. 56 

Table 10: Minimum Intersection Spacing Standards ........................................................................... 57 

Table 11: Private Access Driveway Width Standards ........................................................................... 57 

Table 12: Example of Crossover Easement/Indenture/Consolidation ................................................. 60 

Table 13: Functional Classification Plan ............................................................................................... 64 

Table 14: City of Molalla Roadway Cross Section Standards ............................................................... 66 

Table 15: Arterial Cross Section Standards ......................................................................................... 68 

Table 16: Arterial (Downtown District) Cross Section Standards ...................................................... 69 

Table 17: Major Collector Cross Section Standards ........................................................................... 70 

Table 18: Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Cross Section Standards ....................................... 71 

Table 19: Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Cross Section Standards ....................................... 72 

Table 20: Local Street Cross Section Standards .................................................................................. 73 

Table 21: Local Street Connectivity ...................................................................................................... 74 

Table 22: Motor Vehicle Plan Projects ................................................................................................. 77 

Table 23: Traffic Safety Plan Projects ................................................................................................... 81 

Table 24: Future Transportation Funding Projections ......................................................................... 90 

Table 25: Future Transportation Expenditures Projections ................................................................. 90 

Table 26: Planned Transportation System Cost Summary ................................................................... 91 

 

192



 

PAGE 8 

N 

  

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION 

193



 

PAGE 9 

INTRODUCTION 
The Molalla transportation system plan (TSP) is a long-range plan that sets the vision for the city’s 

transportation system, facilities and services to meet state, regional, and local needs for the next 20 years. 

The TSP was developed through community and stakeholder input and is based on the system’s existing 

and projected future needs and anticipated available funding. The plan also serves as the Transportation 

Element of the Molalla Comprehensive Plan. The purpose of the 2018 TSP update is to address growth in 

Molalla and its surrounding communities as well as address regulatory changes that have occurred in the 

region since 2001. The TSP addresses compliance with new or amended federal, state, and local plans, 

policies, and regulations including the Oregon Transportation Plan (OTP), the state’s Transportation 

Planning Rule (TPR), the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP), and presents the investments and priorities for the 

Pedestrian, Bicycle, Transit, Motor Vehicle, and other transportation systems. 

MOLALLA 2018 

The City of Molalla, incorporated in 1913, is located in the western portion of Clackamas County, and is 

home to a population of approximately 9,900 people. The city lies outside of the Portland Metro Service 

District, roughly 15 miles south of Oregon City and 13 miles east of Interstate 5. Bounded by the farm lands 

and rural development of unincorporated Clackamas County, the city is best known for the Molalla 

Buckeroo; an annual event held since the city’s annexation to celebrate the Nations birthday during the 

first week of July. The city’s commercial district is concentrated around the confluence of Molalla Avenue 

and OR 211. OR 211 runs east-west through the heart of Molalla’s commercial district and is commonly 

referred to as Main Street due to its character of abutting businesses and attractions. Traveling to and 

from Molalla is most commonly achieve along OR 213 and OR 211. OR 213 travels north-south along the 

western edge of the city limits whereas, OR 211 travels east-west through the heart of the downtown 

commercial area serving as the city’s “main street.” Figure 1 illustrates the study area for the TSP update. 

KEY DESTINATIONS 

Establishing key destinations as “activity generators” is an essential step in planning for the future of a 

city’s transportation system. These destinations often fall under the categories of residential, employment, 

shopping, schools, civic buildings, recreation, and entertainment. Figure 1 illustrates the city’s key 

destinations used as part of the existing transportation system and future needs analysis as well as the 

development and prioritization of the multimodal projects. These key destinations include, but are not 

limited to, the Molalla Library, City Hall, Post Office, Long Park, Urgent Care, Health Clinics, Trailheads, and 

places of worship. 

  

194



rñ

ÀÀò

!r

¨"!̈

!F

!F

!F

ÃÃ
G

G

IH

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ
ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

ÃÃ

®Z

å å

å

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Sw
ieg

le 
Av

e

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e
Lo

la 
Av

e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd StE 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
1

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\01

_S
tud

y A
rea

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  8

:42
 AM

 8/
13

/20
18

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Study Area
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Essential Destinations
å School
rñ City Hall
¨"!̈ Fire Department
G Healthcare Clinic
G Urgent Care
!r Aquatic Center
IH Library

ÃÃ Food Pantry
ÃÃ Place of Worship
ÃÃ Community Center
ÀÀò Historical
!F Trailhead
®Z Airport

Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

195



 

PAGE 11 

City of Molalla, Long Park 

 

City of Molalla, City Hall 

TRANSPORTATION PLAN FOCUS AREAS 

The following elements are of particular focus in addressing Molalla’s transportation system needs: 

Pedestrians 

 Address gaps and deficiencies in the 

sidewalks that connect residents to 

schools, parks, churches, etc. 

 Enhanced crossings along major 

roadway and at major intersections 

 Provide safe and interconnected 

pedestrian facilities that encourage 

people to walk, especially for trips less 

than one-half mile in length. 

Bicyclist 

 Address gaps and deficiencies in the 

bicycle facilities (e.g., bike lanes) that 

connect residents to schools, parks, 

churches, etc. 

 Enhanced crossings along major 

roadway and at major intersections 

 Provide safe and interconnected 

bicycle facilities that encourage people 

to ride their bicycles, especially for trips 

less than three miles 

Transit Users 

 Improve awareness of existing transit facilities 

and services 

 Improve service hours, frequency of service, 

and service coverage 

 Improve service to regional centers, such as 

Woodburn, Salem, and Estacada 

 Improve signage and visibility of transit stops 

and transit stop amenities 

Motorist 

 Address streets with deficiencies in pavement 

width and condition 

 Address intersections with deficiencies in 

current or projected future operations 

 Address roadways and intersections with a 

history of fatal or serious injury crashes 

 Address street connectivity due to recent 

development and environmental issues 

 Address designated freight routes or 

restrictions on freight movements within the 

city 

  

196



 

PAGE 12 

TSP ORGANIZATION AND METHODOLOGY 

The TSP is organized into chapters that address each individual mode of transportation available and its 

network in the overall Molalla transportation system. Chapter 2 presents the goals and objectives along 

with the evaluation criteria used to evaluate and prioritize projects and programs. Chapters 3 through 8 

present the transportation system improvement projects identified by the project team to address needs 

and deficiencies in the City’s transportation system. Chapter 9 presents the funding, implementation, and 

monitoring plan for the TSP update, including existing and potential future funding sources to finance the 

identified transportation system improvements. Volume II: Technical Appendix contains the Technical 

Memorandums completed throughout the TSP update process, which showcase the inventory, analysis, 

and project list identification efforts. 

TSP UPDATE PROCESS 

The TSP update process began with a review of local, regional, and statewide plans and policies that 

guide land use and transportation planning in the City. Goals and objectives and evaluation criteria were 

then developed to guide the evaluation of existing and project future transportation system conditions 

as well as the development of planned improvements. An inventory of the multimodal transportation 

system was then conducted to serve as the basis for the existing and future conditions analyses. The 

existing and future conditions analyses focused on identifying gaps and deficiencies in the multimodal 

transportation system based on current and forecast future performance. For each gap and deficiency, 

several solutions were evaluated to address the system needs. This process led to the development of a 

large number of plans, programs, and projects. The plans, programs, and projects were then prioritized 

using the project evaluation criteria and organized into high, medium, and low priority.1 The culmination 

of the TSP update process is this document, which presents the plans, programs, and projects identified 

to address the existing and future gaps and deficiencies in the City’s transportation system. 

COMMITTEES 

The project team developed the TSP update in close coordination with city staff along with key 

stakeholders and representatives from the community. Two formal committees participated in the TSP 

update, including a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and a Policy Advisory Committee (PAC). The 

TAC consisted of representatives from Molalla, Clackamas County, Oregon Department of Transportation 

(ODOT), South Clackamas Transit District (SCTD), Molalla River School District, Molalla Police Department, 

and Molalla Rural Fire Protection District. The TAC provided technical guidance and coordination 

                                                      

1 Given the funding shortfalls identified in this Plan, none of the projects identified as high, medium, or low priority would be 

considered “financially constrained” or “reasonably likely” for purposes of compliance with section 0060 of the Oregon 

Transportation Planning Rule. The high, medium, and low designations will be used to guide the City’s efforts to pursue 

funding for the transportation system. Furthermore, inclusion of projects in this TSP and identification of state funding as a 

possible source of revenue does not ensure that state funding will be available or allocated to these projects. 

197



 

PAGE 13 

throughout the project. TAC members reviewed and commented on technical memorandums and 

participated in committee meetings, community meetings, and workshops. The PAC consisted of local 

residents and property owners with an interest in transportation who were appointed to serve on the PAC. 

The PAC served as the voice of the community and the caretakers of the goals and objectives of the TSP 

update. Much like the TAC, PAC members reviewed and commented on technical memorandums and 

participated in committee meetings, community meetings, and workshops. 

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 

Opportunities for public involvement were made available throughout the TSP update process. The 

opportunities consisted of continuous web-based communications about upcoming committee 

meetings, community meetings, and workshops via the project website (www.molallatsp.com). The project 

website also included an interactive map that allowed anyone with access to a computer to provide 

comments to the project team about transportation-related issues within the community. The project 

team met with the project advisory committees seven times throughout the TSP update process (three 

TAC meetings, four PAC meetings). Each PAC meeting was open to the general public. The project team 

also hosted two community meetings at the Molalla Adult Community Center. Both community meetings 

were accompanied by an online community meeting that offered participants the same opportunities 

to provide input on project materials and share their concerns related to the transportation system. 

Additionally, the project team also met with the Planning Commission and City Council several times 

throughout the planning process (one joint training session, two joint workshops, and two hearings). Each 

meeting/workshop/hearing was open to the general public. The goal of the public involvement process 

was to develop a TSP update that addressed the gaps and deficiencies in the transportation system while 

meeting the needs of the community. 

  

LAND USE 

Land use plays an important role in developing a comprehensive transportation system. The amount of 

land that is planned to be developed, the type of land uses, and how the land uses are mixed together 

198



 

PAGE 14 

have a direct impact on how the transportation system will be used in the future. Understanding land use 

is critical to taking actions to maintain or enhance the transportation system. 

Changes in population, housing, and employment within Molalla’s urban growth boundary (UGB) will 

have a significant impact on the existing transportation system and will create new travel demands. These 

growth projections and how they translate to new trips on the transportation network are key elements of 

the future conditions and performance analysis. 

POPULATION AND HOUSEHOLD FORECAST 

Population data for Molalla was obtained from Portland State University’s Population Research Center 

(PRC). The PRC’s Coordinated Population Forecast for Clackamas County and areas within Urban Growth 

Boundaries (UGB) includes base year 2017 and forecast year 2035 and 2067 population estimates for 

Molalla as well as estimates of persons per household. Based on the data, the population is currently 9,939 

persons and is projected to be 15,841 persons in the year 2040; this reflects an Average Annual Growth 

Rate (AAGR) of approximately 2.2 percent per year between 2017 and 2035 and an AAGR of 

approximately 1.5 percent per year between 2035 and 2040. The persons per household is currently 2.8 

and is projected to be 2.8 in 2040. Dividing the population data by 2.8 results in an estimated 3,550 

households in 2017 and 5,658 households in the year 2040. 

EMPLOYMENT FORECAST 

Employment data for Molalla was obtained from the draft Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) 

prepared by Johnson Economics. The data includes base year 2016 and forecast year 2036 employment 

estimates for six typologies, including office, institution, flex space/business park, industrial, warehouse, 

and retail. The EOA provides an estimated number of employees for each typology and an estimated 

acreage of employment space needed to support the employees. Based on the data, there is currently 

3,586 employees and 238.9 acres of employment space within Molalla and there is projected to be 6,295 

employees and 420.9 acres of employment space in the year 2040. 

Table 1 summarizes the population and employment data for year 2017 and forecast year 2040 

conditions. As shown, employment is expected to grow at a higher rate than the population over the 23-

year period. 

Table 1: Molalla Population and Land Use Summary 

Land Use 2017 2040 Change Annual Percent Change 

Population 9,939 15,841 5,902 2.2%/1.5% 

Households 3,550 5,658 2,108 2.2%/1.5% 

Employment 3,586 6,295 2,709 3.3% 

Acres 238.9 420.9 182.1 3.3% 

 

199



 

PAGE 15 

The population and employment data shown in Table 1 was distributed throughout the City based on 

information provided in a recent Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) prepared by Winterbrook Planning. The 

BLI identifies the amount of vacant land within the city and the type of households and employment uses 

that can be accommodated by the land based on the current comprehensive plan and zoning 

designations. Based on the BLI, the city cannot accommodate all the household and employment growth 

that is expected within the planning period without changes to current zoning designations, development 

patterns, and/or the UGB. 

Given that the changes necessary to accommodate household and employment growth within the City 

are likely to occur within the planning horizon of the TSP, but following the development of the TSP Update, 

two land use scenarios were developed for the future conditions analysis: The first scenario reflects the 

level of development that can be accommodated within the City based on the current zoning 

designations and development patters; the second scenario reflects all the development associated with 

the population and employment growth; both scenarios reflect conditions within the current UGB. 

Figures 2 and 3 illustrate the changes in households and employment (jobs) associated with each land 

use scenario by Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ). The TAZs shown in Figures 2 and 3 were developed as 

part of the TSP Update based on the current zoning designations and the location of major roadways 

and intersections throughout the City. The TAZs provide a convenient way of evaluating and summarizing 

the population and household data for the City. 

As land uses change in proportion to each other (i.e. there is a significant increase in employment relative 

to household growth), there will be a shift in the overall operation of the transportation system. Retail land 

uses generate a higher number of trips per acre of land than residential and other land uses. The location 

and design of retail land uses in a community can greatly affect transportation system operation. 

Additionally, if a community is homogeneous in land use character (i.e. all employment or all residential), 

the transportation system must support significant trips coming to or from the community rather than within 

the community. Typically, there should be a mix of residential, commercial, and employment type land 

uses so that some residents may work and shop locally, reducing the need for residents to travel long 

distances. The data shown in Table 1 indicates that significant growth is expected in Molalla in the coming 

years, particularly employment opportunities. The transportation system should be monitored to make 

sure that land uses in the plan are balanced with transportation system capacity. 

  

200



vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e
Sto

we
rs 

Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
lag

e D
r

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S Macksburg Rd

S Barbara Way

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln S Vick Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

TAZ: 12
2017 HH: 0

2040 HH S1: 0
2040 HH S2: 0 TAZ: 13

2017 HH: 21
2040 HH S1: 21
2040 HH S2: 21

TAZ: 19
2017 HH: 270

2040 HH S1: 292
2040 HH S2: 313

TAZ: 7
2017 HH: 18

2040 HH S1: 18
2040 HH S2: 18

TAZ: 1
2017 HH: 1033

2040 HH S1: 1214
2040 HH S2: 1392

TAZ: 2
2017 HH: 420

2040 HH S1: 554
2040 HH S2: 685

TAZ: 4
2017 HH: 3

2040 HH S1: 3
2040 HH S2: 3

TAZ: 5
2017 HH: 69

2040 HH S1: 406
2040 HH S2: 738

TAZ: 6
2017 HH: 478

2040 HH S1: 528
2040 HH S2: 577

TAZ: 16
2017 HH: 5

2040 HH S1: 5
2040 HH S2: 5

TAZ: 14
2017 HH: 283

2040 HH S1: 354
2040 HH S2: 424

TAZ: 11
2017 HH: 28

2040 HH S1: 28
2040 HH S2: 28

TAZ: 18
2017 HH: 201

2040 HH S1: 269
2040 HH S2: 336

TAZ: 8
2017 HH: 382

2040 HH S1: 557
2040 HH S2: 729

TAZ: 10
2017 HH: 291

2040 HH S1: 309
2040 HH S2: 325

TAZ: 3
2017 HH: 11

2040 HH S1: 20
2040 HH S2: 29

TAZ: 9
2017 HH: 0

2040 HH S1: 0
2040 HH S2: 0

TAZ: 15
2017 HH: 12

2040 HH S1: 12
2040 HH S2: 12

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
2

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\02

_T
AZ

 H
ou

se
ho

lds
.m

xd
 - m

be
ll -

  8
:43

 AM
 8/

13
/20

18

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Forecast Household Growth by Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ)
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Transportation Analysis Zones (TAZ)
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

201



Ü

Ü

Ü

Ü

Ü

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e
Sto

we
rs 

Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
lag

e D
r

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S Macksburg Rd

S Barbara Way

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln S Vick Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

TAZ: 12
2017 Emp: 180

2040 Emp S1: 454
2040 Emp S2: 657

TAZ: 13
2017 Emp: 480

2040 Emp S1: 764
2040 Emp S2: 973

TAZ: 19
2017 Emp: 54

2040 Emp S1: 86
2040 Emp S2: 110

TAZ: 7
2017 Emp: 64

2040 Emp S1: 82
2040 Emp S2: 95

TAZ: 1
2017 Emp: 0

2040 Emp S1: 0
2040 Emp S2: 0

TAZ: 2
2017 Emp: 0

2040 Emp S1: 0
2040 Emp S2: 0

TAZ: 4
2017 Emp: 430

2040 Emp S1: 567
2040 Emp S2: 668

TAZ: 5
2017 Emp: 38

2040 Emp S1: 38
2040 Emp S2: 38

TAZ: 6
2017 Emp: 219

2040 Emp S1: 340
2040 Emp S2: 430

TAZ: 16
2017 Emp: 29

2040 Emp S1: 29
2040 Emp S2: 29

TAZ: 14
2017 Emp: 722

2040 Emp S1: 1000
2040 Emp S2: 1206

TAZ: 11
2017 Emp: 156

2040 Emp S1: 162
2040 Emp S2: 166

TAZ: 18
2017 Emp: 286

2040 Emp S1: 577
2040 Emp S2: 791

TAZ: 8
2017 Emp: 19

2040 Emp S1: 19
2040 Emp S2: 19

TAZ: 10
2017 Emp: 74

2040 Emp S1: 74
2040 Emp S2: 74

TAZ: 3
2017 Emp: 116

2040 Emp S1: 173
2040 Emp S2: 215

TAZ: 9
2017 Emp: 0

2040 Emp S1: 0
2040 Emp S2: 0

TAZ: 15
2017 Emp: 690

2040 Emp S1: 750
2040 Emp S2: 795

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
3

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\03

_T
AZ

 E
mp

loy
me

nt.
mx

d -
 m

be
ll -

  8
:43

 AM
 8/

13
/20

18

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Forecast Employment Growth by Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ)
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ)
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

202



 

PAGE 18 

 

  

CHAPTER 2: GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

203



 

PAGE 19 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
The project team developed goals and objectives for the TSP update to help guide the review and 

documentation of existing and future transportation system needs, the development and evaluation of 

potential solutions to address the needs, and the selection and prioritization of preferred solutions for 

inclusion in the TSP update. The goals and objectives also inform recommendations for policy language 

that will serve as guidance for future land use decision making, such as approval criteria related to zone 

change and comprehensive plan amendments. The goals and objectives will enable the City to plan for, 

and consistently work towards, achieving the vision of a connected community. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The goals and objectives for the Molalla TSP update are based on an evaluation of the existing goals and 

policies in the current Molalla TSP and Comprehensive Plan. The goals provide direction for where the City 

would like to go, while the objectives provide a more detailed breakdown of the goals with specific 

outcomes the City desires to achieve. In order to ensure compliance with the Transportation Planning 

Rule (TPR) and other state, regional, and local planning requirements, the goals and objectives presented 

below tend to favor improvements in active transportation facilities and services over capacity 

improvements. 

GOAL 1 – MOBILITY 

Provide a balanced, safe, and efficient transportation system for all members of the community. 

Objectives 

A. Reduce reliance on single occupancy vehicles by improving the quality of available transit service 

and developing bicycle and pedestrian facilities that encourage non-vehicular modes of 

transportation. 

B. Reduce reliance on state facilities for making local trips by providing a network of arterials, 

collectors, and local streets that are interconnected, appropriately spaced, and reasonably 

direct. 

C. Provide for adequate intersection and street capacity by identifying existing and potential future 

capacity constraints and developing strategies to address those constraints, including potential 

intersection improvements, future roadway needs, and future street connections. 

GOAL 2 – CONNECTIVITY AND ACCESSIBILITY 

Objectives 

Develop an interconnected, multimodal transportation system that connects all members of the 

community to destinations within the City and beyond. 

A. Improve existing connections between households and schools, parks, transit stops and other 

community destinations. 

204



 

PAGE 20 

B. Create new connections between households and schools, parks, transit stops and other 

community destinations. 

C. Provide for the needs of the transportation disadvantaged to the greatest extent possible. 

D. Ensure that the transportation systems include adequate facilities to address truck and rail freight 

mobility needs for the local and regional movement of goods and services. 

GOAL 3 – SAFETY 

Provide a transportation system that enhances the safety and security of all transportation modes. 

Objectives 

A. Address existing and potential future safety issues by identifying high collision locations and 

locations with a history of fatal, severe injury, and/or pedestrian/bicycle-related crashes and 

developing strategies to address those issues. 

B. Reduce the potential for future crashes by providing separation between travel modes (i.e. 

separated pedestrian/bicycle facilities, enhanced crossings, etc.). 

GOAL 4 – HEALTH 

Provide a transportation system that enhances the health of local residents by promoting active modes 

of transportation. 

Objectives 

A. Develop a comprehensive system of pedestrian and bicycle routes that link major activity centers 

within the City. 

B. Encourage the use of active modes of transportation (walking and biking) and identify 

improvements to further promote their use in the community. 

C. Encourage the use of public transportation facilities and services and identify improvements to 

further promote their use in the community. 

GOAL 5 – STRATEGIC INVESTMENT 

Provide a sustainable transportation system through responsible stewardship of assets and financial 

resources. 

Objectives 

A. Preserve and protect the function of locally and regionally significant corridors. 

B. Preserve and maintain the existing transportation system assets to extend their useful life. 

C. Ensure adequacy of existing funding sources to serve projected improvement needs. 

D. Identify new and innovative funding sources for transportation improvements. 

205



 

PAGE 21 

GOAL 5 – COORDINATION AND INTEGRATION 

Ensure that the local transportation system is integrated with county and state transportation systems and 

objectives, and with other related aspects of the community in Molalla, including land use planning, 

natural resource protection, housing and economic development. 

Objectives 

A. Design transportation facilities and connections to support adjacent land uses and developments. 

B. Minimize and/or mitigate the effects of transportation projects and systems on natural resources 

and systems. 

C. Consider County and State goals and policies in design and implementation of the TSP and 

associated projects. 

D. Engage community members and organizations in the development and design of transportation 

facilities identified in the TSP. 

PROJECT SELECTION AND PRIORITIZATION 

The selection and prioritization of the projects included in the TSP update was determined based on the 

project evaluation criteria, which are a reflection of the goals and objectives described above. A 

qualitative process using the project evaluation criteria was used to evaluate solutions and prioritize 

projects developed through the TSP update. The rating method used to evaluate the solutions is 

described below. 

 Most Desirable: The concept addresses the criterion and/or makes substantial improvements in 

the criteria category. (+1) 

 No Effect: The criterion does not apply to the concept or the concept has no influence on the 

criteria. (0) 

 Least Desirable: The concept does not support the intent of and/or negatively impacts the 

criteria category. (-1) 

Table 2 presents the project evaluation criteria that were used to qualitatively evaluate the solutions 

developed through the TSP update. The initial screening ratings were used to inform discussions about the 

benefits and tradeoffs of each solution, while the final priorities presented in the following chapters reflect 

input from the project, advisory committees and the general public. 

  

206



 

PAGE 22 

Table 2: Project Evaluation Criteria 

Objective Evaluation Criteria 

Evaluation 

Score 

Goal 1: Mobility 

A. Reduce reliance on single 

occupancy vehicles 

Project could reduce reliance on single occupancy vehicle +1 

Project would not impact reliance on single occupancy vehicles 0 

Project could increase reliance on single occupancy vehicle -1 

B. Reduce reliance on state 

facilities for making local trips 

Project could reduce reliance on state facilities +1 

Project would not impact reliance on state facilities 0 

Project could increase reliance on state facilities -1 

C. Provide for adequate 

intersection and street capacity 

Project will provide adequate intersection and/or street capacity +1 

Project will have no impact on intersection and/or street capacity 0 

Project will reduce intersection and/or street capacity below 

acceptable levels 
-1 

Goal 2: Connectivity and Accessibility 

A. Improve existing connections 

Project will improve an existing connection +1 

Project will not improve an existing connection 0 

Project will impede an existing connection -1 

B. Create new connections 

Project will create a new connection +1 

Project will not create a new connection 0 

Project will impede the creation of a new connection -1 

C. Provide for the needs of the 

transportation disadvantaged 

Project will improve options for transportation disadvantaged +1 

Project will have no impact on transportation disadvantaged 0 

Project will reduce options for transportation disadvantaged -1 

C. Ensure that the transportation 

systems include adequate facilities 

to address truck and rail freight 

mobility needs for the local and 

regional movement of goods and 

services. 

Project will improve effectiveness of local and regional freight 

movement 
+1 

Project will have no impact on effectiveness of local and regional 

freight movement 
0 

Project will reduce effectiveness of local and regional freight 

movement 
-1 

Goal 3: Safety 

A. Address existing and potential 

future safety issues 

Project will address existing or potential future safety issue +1 

Project will have no impact on an existing or potential future safety 

issue 
0 

Project will worsen existing or potential future safety issue -1 

B. Reduce potential for future 

crashes 

Project could reduce potential for future conflicts +1 

Project would have no impact on the potential for future conflicts 0 

Project could increase the potential for future conflicts -1 

Goal 4: Health 

207



 

PAGE 23 

A. Develop a comprehensive 

system of pedestrian and bicycle 

routes 

Project will contribute to a comprehensive pedestrian and bicycle 

system 
+1 

Project will not contribute to a comprehensive pedestrian and 

bicycle system 
0 

Project will impede a comprehensive pedestrian and bicycle 

system 
-1 

B. Encourage the use of active 

modes of transportation 

Project could encourage the use of active modes of 

transportation 
+1 

Project would not encourage the use of active modes of 

transportation 
0 

Project could discourage the use of active modes of 

transportation 
-1 

C. Encourage the use of public 

transportation facilities and 

services 

Project could encourage the use of public transportation +1 

Project would not encourage the use of public transportation 0 

Project could discourage the use of public transportation -1 

Goal 5: Strategic Investment 

A. Preserve and protect the 

function of locally and regionally 

significant corridors 

Project will preserve and protect the function of locally and 

regionally significant corridors 
+1 

Project will not impact the function of locally and regionally 

significant corridors 
0 

Project will have a negative impact on the function of locally and 

regionally significant corridors 
-1 

B. Preserve and maintain the 

existing transportation system 

assets to extend their useful life 

Project will preserve and maintain the existing transportation 

system 
+1 

Project will not impact the existing transportation system 0 

Project will have a negative impact on the existing transportation 

system 
-1 

C. Ensure adequacy of existing 

funding sources to serve projected 

improvement needs 

Project can be funded through existing funding sources +1 

Project can be funded through known funding sources 0 

Project cannot be funded through existing or known funding 

sources 
-1 

D. Identify new and innovative 

funding sources for transportation 

improvements 

Project is eligible for new and/or innovative funding +1 

Project may not be eligible for new and/or innovative funding 0 

Project is not eligible for new and/or innovative funding -1 

Goal 6: Coordination and Integration 

A. Design transportation facilities 

and connections to support 

adjacent land uses and 

developments 

Project will support community and local area land use and 

development goals 
+1 

Project has no direct relationship to community and local area 

land use and development goals 
0 

Project is inconsistent with community and local area land use and 

development goals 
-1 

B. Minimize and/or mitigate the 

effects of transportation projects 

Project will enhance the quality of potentially affected natural 

resources 
+1 

208



 

PAGE 24 

and systems on natural resources 

and systems 

Project will not impact the quality of potentially affected natural 

resources 
0 

Project will have a negative impact on the quality of potentially 

affected natural resources 
-1 

C. Consider County and State 

goals and policies in design and 

implementation of the TSP and 

associated projects 

Project is supportive of County and/or State transportation goals 

and policies 
+1 

Project has no direct relationship to County and/or State 

transportation goals and policies 
0 

Project is inconsistent with County and/or State transportation 

goals and policies 
-1 

D. Engage community members 

and organizations in the 

development and design of 

transportation facilities identified in 

the TSP 

Project is consistent with or addresses community opinions 

expresses during project planning and design process 
+1 

Project is unrelated to community opinions expresses during 

project planning and design process 
0 

Project is inconsistent with community opinions expresses during 

project planning and design process 
-1 

209



 

PAGE 25 

  

CHAPTER 3: PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM  

210



 

PAGE 26 

PEDESTRIAN SYSTEM 
The pedestrian system within Molalla consists of sidewalks, shared-use paths, and off-street trails, as well 

as marked and unmarked, signalized and unsignalized pedestrian crossings. These facilities provide 

residents with the ability to access local retail/commercial centers, recreational areas, and other land 

uses by foot. A safe, convenient, and continuous network of pedestrian facilities is essential to establishing 

a vibrant and healthy community while supporting the local economy within the City. 

Sidewalks are currently provided along at least one side of most major streets within the city and marked 

crosswalks are provided at most major intersections. Therefore, the pedestrian plan includes projects to 

fill-in the gaps in the sidewalk network along the city’s arterial and collector streets and a few local streets 

that provide access to essential destinations such as schools, parks, churches, etc. The pedestrian plan 

also includes enhanced pedestrian crossings as well as multi-use paths and trails that augment and 

support the pedestrian system. 

PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES 

Pedestrian facilities are the elements of the transportation system that enable people to walk safely and 

efficiently between neighborhoods, retail centers, employment areas, and transit stops. These include 

facilities for pedestrian movement along key roadways (e.g., sidewalks, multi-use paths, and off-street 

trails) and for safe roadway crossings (e.g., crosswalks, crossing beacons, pedestrian refuge islands). Each 

facility plays an important role in developing a comprehensive pedestrian system. 

This section summarizes the pedestrian facilities that were determined to best address gaps and 

deficiencies in the pedestrian system and future needs. As indicated below, the most common overall 

need is to provide a safe and interconnected pedestrian system that encourages people to walk, 

especially for trips less than one-half mile in length. 

SIDEWALKS 

Sidewalks are the fundamental building blocks of the pedestrian system. They enable people to walk 

comfortably, conveniently, and safely from place to place. They also provide an important means of 

mobility for people with disabilities, families with strollers, and others who may not be able to travel on an 

unimproved roadside surface. Sidewalks are usually 6 to 8-feet wide and constructed from concrete. They 

are also frequently separated from the roadway by a curb, landscaping, and/or on-street parking. 

Sidewalks are widely used in urban and suburban settings. Ideally, sidewalks could be provided along 

both sides of the roadway; however, some areas with physical or right-of-way constraints may require 

that sidewalk be located on only one side. The pedestrian plan includes a significant number of projects 

that involve filling in the gaps and installing new sidewalks. 

211



 

PAGE 27 

Improved Sidewalk on Molalla Avenue Improved Sidewalk on OR 211 (Main Street) 

SHARED-USE PATH 

Shared-use paths are paved, bi-directional, trails that can serve both pedestrians and bicyclists. Shared-

use paths and trails can be constructed adjacent to roadways where the topography, right-of-way, or 

other issues don’t allow for the construction of sidewalks and bike facilities. A minimum width of 10 feet is 

recommended for low-pedestrian/bicycle-traffic contexts; 12 to 20 feet should be considered in areas 

with moderate to high levels of bicycle and pedestrian traffic. Shared-use paths can be used to create 

longer-distance links within and between communities and provide regional connections. They play an 

integral role in recreation, commuting, and accessibility due to their appeal to users of all ages and skill 

levels. The pedestrian plan includes several projects that involve installing shared-use paths. 

Example of Bi-directional Shared-use Path Example of Shared-use Path 

ENHANCED PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS 

Pedestrian crossing facilities enable pedestrians to safely and efficiently cross streets and other 

transportation facilities. Planning for appropriate pedestrian crossings requires the community to balance 

vehicular mobility needs with providing crossing locations at desired routes for people walking. Enhanced 

pedestrian crossing treatments include: 

 Median refuge islands 

 High visibility pavement markings and signs 

 Curb extensions 

 Pedestrian signals 

212



 

PAGE 28 

 Rapid rectangular flashing beacons (RRFB) 

 Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons (HAWK) 

 Pedestrian countdown heads 

 Leading Pedestrian interval 

Many of the treatments listed above can be applied together at one crossing location to further alert 

drivers of the presence of pedestrians in the roadway. The pedestrian plan includes several projects that 

involve enhancing pedestrian crossings. See Attachment “A” for a detailed description of enhanced 

pedestrian crossing treatments. 

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS) programs are intended to encourage children to walk and bicycle to school; 

to make walking and bicycling to school safe and more appealing; and to facilitate the planning, 

development and implementation of projects that will improve safety, and reduce traffic, fuel 

consumption, and air pollution near schools. The Molalla River School District (MRSD) operates one 

elementary school, one middle school, and one high school in Molalla. The MRSD in partnership with the 

City of Molalla have developed a SRTS plan for the schools located in Molalla and have identified walking 

routes as well as critical intersections for crossings. Figure 4 illustrates the SRTS routes and critical 

intersections for crossing. Several projects are included in the pedestrian plan that will improve conditions 

along the SRTS routes. 

PEDESTRIAN PLAN 

Table 3 identifies the pedestrian plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. As shown, the projects are 

separated into projects on arterials, collectors, and neighborhood streets as well as projects at 

intersections and in other locations throughout the city. The priorities shown in Table 3 are based on the 

project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team and the general public. The cost 

estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements. The cost estimates do not include 

the cost of right-of-way or the cost of filling in the ditches. Right-of-way and ditch costs are included in 

the motor vehicle plan as applicable. Figure 5 illustrates the location of the pedestrian plan projects. 

Table 3: Pedestrian Plan Improvement Projects 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

Arterials 

P1 OR 2131 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the north city limits to OR 211 with sidewalks 

of appropriate width 

High $1,240,000 

P2 OR 2131 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

OR 211 to the south city limits with sidewalks 

of appropriate width 

Medium $870,000 

P3 OR 2111 Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from the west city limits to OR 213 
High $750,000 

213



 

PAGE 29 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

P4 OR 2111 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in the gaps on both sides of the roadway 

from OR 213 to Molalla Avenue with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

High $1,710,000 

P5 OR 2111 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from Mathias Road to the east city limits 
High $940,000 

P6 OR 2111 Lighting 
Evaluate light levels and install new street 

lighting as necessary2 
Low $450,000 

P7 
N Molalla 

Avenue 

Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the north city limits to Heintz Street with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

High $485,000 

P8 
S Molalla 

Avenue 

Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

5th Street to the south city limits with sidewalks 

of appropriate width 

Medium $955,000 

P9 Molalla Avenue Lighting 
Evaluate light levels and install new street 

lighting as necessary2 
Low $450,000 

Collectors 

P10 Toliver Road 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the west city limits to OR 213 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $575,000 

P11 Toliver Road 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

OR 213 to Molalla Avenue with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

High $1,730,000 

P12 Shirley Street 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

N Molalla Avenue to OR 211 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $1,240,000 

P13 Ridings Avenue 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

Toliver Road to OR 211 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $795,000 

P14 Leroy Avenue 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on the east side of the roadway 

from Toliver Road to West Lane with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $295,000 

P15 E 5th Street Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from Stowers Road to Mathias Road 
Medium $330,000 

P16 Cole Avenue 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

Frances Street to OR 211 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $270,000 

P17 Mathias Road Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from OR 211 to the south city limits 
Medium $1,405,000 

P18 Frances Street 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on the south side of the roadway 

from N Molalla Avenue to Christopher Street 

with sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $350,000 

Neighborhood Streets 

214



 

PAGE 30 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

P19 Toliver Drive 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

north of Berwick Court to Toliver Road with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

Low $280,000 

P20 Kennel Avenue 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

Ross Street to OR 211 with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $130,000 

P21 E Heintz Street 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

N Molalla Avenue to Fenton Avenue with 

sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $385,000 

P22 Industrial Way 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on the east side of the roadway 

from Toliver Road to the southern roadway 

terminus with sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $110,000 

P23 Industrial Way 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

the northern roadway terminus to OR 211 

with sidewalks of appropriate width 

Medium $170,000 

P24 Stowers Road 
Sidewalks – 

Fill in gaps 

Fill in gaps on both sides of the roadway from 

OR 211 to E 7th Street with sidewalks of 

appropriate width 

Medium $470,000 

P25 E 7th Street Sidewalks 
Install sidewalks on both sides of the roadway 

from Stowers Road to Mathias Road 
Low $335,000 

Intersections 

P26 
OR 213/ 

Meadow Drive1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 213/Meadow Drive intersection to 

increase access to transit stop on west side 

of OR 2133 

Medium $150,000 

P27 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 213/Toliver Road intersection3 
Medium $150,000 

P28 
OR 211/ 

Hezzie Lane1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Hezzie Lane intersection3 
High $150,000 

P29 
OR 211/Molalla 

Forest Road1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Molalla Forest Road intersection3 
High $150,000 

P30 

OR 211/ 

Grange Ave/ 

Berkeley 

Avenue1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Grange Avenue/Berkley Avenue 

intersection3 

Medium $150,000 

P31 
OR 211/ 

N Cole Avenue1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Cole Avenue intersection3 
High $150,000 

P32 
OR 211/ 

Stowers Road1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the OR 211/Stowers Road intersection3 
Medium $150,000 

P33 
OR 211/ 

Metzler Street1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install curb extensions with American’s with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) accessible curb ramps 

with tactile warning strips on the north and 

south sides of the roadway3 

Medium $150,000 

P34 
Toliver Road/ 

Industrial Way 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Industrial Way intersection3 
Medium $50,000 

215



 

PAGE 31 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

P35 

Toliver Road/ 

Zimmerman 

Lane 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Zimmerman Lane 

intersection3 

Low $50,000 

P36 
Toliver Road/ 

Leroy Avenue 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Leroy Avenue intersection3 
Medium $50,000 

P37 
Toliver Road/ 

Ridings Avenue 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Ridings Avenue intersection3 
Medium $50,000 

P38 
Toliver Road/ 

Kennel Avenue 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install and enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Toliver Road/Kennel Avenue intersection3 
Medium $50,000 

P39 
Leroy Avenue/ 

Heintz Street 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the Leroy Avenue/Heintz Street intersection3 
Low $50,000 

P40 
E 5th Street/ 

May Street 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the E 5th Street/May Street intersection3 
Low $50,000 

P41 
E 5th Street/ 

Stowers Road 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced pedestrian crossing at 

the E 5th Street/Stowers Road intersection3 
Low $50,000 

Off-street Improvements 

P42 
Molalla Forest 

Road 

Shared-use 

Path 

Install a shared-use path along the former 

Molalla Forest Road right-of-way from Toliver 

Road to OR 211 

Medium $720,000 

P43 
Molalla Forest 

Road 

Shared-use 

Path 

Install a shared-use path along Molalla Forest 

Road from OR 211 to Mathias Road 
Low $04 

P44 

Molalla Western 

Railway Spur 
Shared-use 

Path 

Install a shared-use path along the former 

Molalla Western Railway Spur right-of-way 

from the north city limits to OR 211 

Low $1,965,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $7,305,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $10,020,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $3,680,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $21,005,000 

1. Project will require coordination with ODOT and approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. 

2. Street lighting will require an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the City for maintenance. 

3. The types of enhanced crossing treatments are to be determined at the design/implementation stage. 

4. Project cost included in Motor Vehicle Plan. 

Other potential pedestrian projects include: 

 Support Clackamas County’s efforts to implement the Active Transportation Plan. 

 Support MRSD and Clackamas County’s efforts to implement the SRTS program. 

 Identify opportunities to establish additional multi-use paths and trails that augment and support 

the pedestrian system. 

  

216



Ü

Ü

Ü

Ü

Ü

!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m
!!m!!m

!!m!!m

!!m

!!m

!!m
!!m

!!m

å å

å

Western Railroad Spur

Mo
lal

la 
Fo

res
t R

d

vÍÎ211
vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211
vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Boardwalk Ave

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

D r

Vil
lag

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pk
wy

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
4

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\04

_S
afe

 R
ou

tes
 to

 Sc
ho

ol.
mx

d -
 m

be
ll -

  1
0:4

2 A
M 

8/1
3/2

01
8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Safe Routes to School
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet!!m Critical Intersections for Crossing
Safe Routes to School
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

217



Western Railroad Spur

Mo
lal

la 
Fo

res
t R

d

å å

å

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

Le
roy

 Av
e

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Sw
ieg

le 
Av

e

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e
Sto

we
rs 

Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Ka
e C

t

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

DrHa
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

Christopher St

Rid
ing

s A
ve

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E Heintz St

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

ShirleySt

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el A
ve

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Frances St

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl
Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Dix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ayS Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

E Main St

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

S Toliver Rd

Toliver Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

P28

P32

P34
P35

P36
P37

P38P39

P40

P41

P26

P27

P29

P31

P30

P33

P2

P23

P19

P13

P11

P17

P20

P21

P12

P16

P14

P4

P7

P5

P24

P1

P18

P15

P25

P22

P8

P10

P3

P44

P42

P43

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
5

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\05

_P
ed

es
tria

n P
roj

ec
ts.

mx
d -

 m
be

ll -
  1

0:4
2 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Pedestrian Plan Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Pedestian Plan Projects
!! New Enhanced Crossing

New Sidewalk
New Shared-use path
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

218



 

PAGE 34 

  

CHAPTER 4: BICYCLE SYSTEM  

219



 

PAGE 35 

BICYCLE SYSTEM 
The bicycle system within Molalla consists of on-street bike lanes, shoulder bikeways, and shared roadways 

as well as off-street bicycle facilities, such as bicycle parking. These facilities provide residents with the 

ability to access local retail/commercial centers, recreational areas, and other land uses within Molalla 

and neighboring areas by bicycle. A safe, convenient, and continuous network of bicycle facilities is 

essential to establishing a vibrant and healthy community while supporting the local economy within the 

City. 

On-street bike lanes and other bicycle facilities are currently provided on a limited number of roadways 

within the city. Therefore, the bicycle plan includes several projects along the city’s arterial and collector 

streets and a few local streets that provide direct access to essential destinations. The bicycle plans also 

includes several enhanced bicycle crossings as well as other off-street amenities that augment and 

support the bicycle system. 

BICYCLE FACILITIES 

Bicycle facilities are the elements of the transportation system that enable people to travel safely and 

efficiently by bike. These include facilities along key roadways (e.g., shared lane pavement markings, on-

street bike lanes, and separated bike facilities) and facilities at key crossing locations (e.g., enhanced 

bike crossings). These also include end of trip facilities (e.g. secure bike parking, changing rooms, and 

showers at worksites); however, these facilities are addressed through the development code. Each 

facility plays a role in developing a comprehensive bicycle system. 

This section summarizes the bicycle facilities that were evaluated throughout the planning process to 

address existing gaps and deficiencies in the bicycle system and future needs. As indicated below, the 

most common overall need is to provide a safe and interconnected bicycle system that encourages 

people to ride their bicycles, especially for trips less than three miles in length. 

SHARED ROADWAYS 

Shared‐lane pavement markings (often called “sharrows”) are not a bicycle facility, but a tool designed 

to accommodate bicyclists on roadways where bike lanes are desirable but infeasible to construct or not 

appropriate for the context of the roadway. Sharrows indicate a shared roadway space for cyclists and 

motorists and are typically centered in the roadway or approximately four feet from the edge of the travel 

lane and are recommended to be spaced approximately 50 to 250-feet apart dependent on the levels 

of traffic volume. Sharrows are suitable on roadways with relatively low travel speeds (<35 mph) and low 

ADT (<3,000 ADT); however, they may also be used to transition between discontinuous bicycle facilities 

or serve as wayfinding elements along neighborhood bicycle networks. Sharrows are identified in the 

bicycle plan along a variety of streets within Molalla where room for on-street bike lanes is limited. 

220



 

PAGE 36 

Example of Shared Lane Pavement Marking (Sharrow) Example of a Priority Shared-lane Pavement Marking 

ON-STREET BIKE LANES 

On-street bike lanes are striped lanes on the roadway dedicated for the exclusive use of cyclists. Bike 

lanes are typically placed at the outer edge of pavement (but to the inside of right‐turn lanes and/or on‐

street parking). Bicycle lanes can improve safety and security of cyclists and (if comprehensive) can 

provide direct connections between origins and destinations. On-street bike lanes are identified in the 

bicycle plan along a majority of arterial and collector streets within Molalla. 

Example of Striped Bike Lane Example of Buffered Bike Lane 

SEPARATED BIKE LANES 

Separated bike facilities include buffered bike lanes and separated bike lanes, or “protected bike lanes”. 

Buffered bike lanes are on-street bike lanes that include an additional striped buffer of typically 2-3 feet 

between the bicycle lane and the vehicle travel lane and/or between the bicycle lane and the vehicle 

parking lane. They are typically located along streets that require a higher level of separation to improve 

the comfort of bicycling. Separated bike lanes, also known as protected bike lanes, are bicycle facilities 

that are separated from motor vehicle traffic by a buffer and a physical barrier, such as planters, flexible 

posts, parked cars, or a mountable curb. One-way separated bike lanes are typically found on each side 

of the street, like a standard bike lane, while a two-way separated bike lanes are typically found on one 

side of the street. Buffered bike lanes are identified in the bicycle plan along segments of OR 213 and OR 

221



 

PAGE 37 

211. While separated bike lanes are not included in the plan, they may be used in place of on-street bike 

lanes or buffered bike lanes where desirable. 

Example of One-way Parking Protected Bike Lane Example of Two-way Separated Bike Lane 

ENHANCED BIKE CROSSINGS AND PROTECTED INTERSECTIONS 

Enhanced bicycle crossing facilities enable cyclists to safely and efficiently cross streets and other 

transportation facilities. Planning for appropriate bicycle crossings requires the community to balance 

vehicular mobility needs with providing crossing locations along the desired routes of cyclists. Several 

enhanced bicycle crossings are identified in the bicycle plan. Enhanced bicycle crossings include: 

 Bike Boxes – designated space at an intersection that allows cyclists to wait in front of motor 

vehicles while waiting to turn or continue through the intersection. 

 Two-Stage Left-turn Boxes – designated space at a signalized intersection outside of the travel 

lane that provides cyclists with a place to wait while making a two-stage left-turn. 

 Pavement marking through intersections – pavement markings that extend and bike lane through 

an intersection. 

 Bike Only Signals – a traffic signal that is dedicated for cyclists 

 Bicycle Detection – vehicle detection for bicycles 

 

Example of a Bike Box Example of Pavement Markings Through Intersection 

222



 

PAGE 38 

BICYCLE PLAN 

Table 4 identifies the bicycle plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. As shown, the projects are 

separated into projects on arterials, collectors, neighborhood streets, and local streets as well as projects 

at intersections and in other locations throughout the city. The priorities shown in Table 4 are based on the 

project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team and the general public. The cost 

estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements. The cost estimates do not include 

the cost of right-of-way or the cost of filling in the ditches. These costs are included in the motor vehicle 

plan as applicable. Figure 6 illustrates the location of the bicycle plan projects. 

Table 4: Bicycle Plan Improvement Projects 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

Arterials 

B1 OR 2131 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from the north city limits to OR 

211 

Medium $03 

B2 OR 2131 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from OR 211 to the south city 

limits 

Low $03 

B3 OR 2111 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from the west city limits to OR 

213 

Low $03 

B4 OR 2111 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from OR 213 to Shaver Avenue 
Medium $03 

B5 OR 2111 Shared-lane 

Install priority shared-lane pavement 

markings (super sharrows) and signs on both 

sides of the roadway from Shaver Avenue to 

Fenton Avenue 

High $15,000 

B6 OR 2111 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from Fenton Avenue to Mathias 

Road (Striping only) 

High $5,000 

B7 OR 211 
Buffered Bike 

Lane 

Install buffered bike lanes on both sides of 

the roadway from Mathias Road to the east 

city limits 

High $03 

B8 
N Molalla 

Avenue 
Bike Lane 

Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from the north city limits to Heintz 

Street 

Low $855,000 

B9 
N Molalla 

Avenue 
Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement marking 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Heintz Street to OR 211 

Low $20,000 

B10 
S Molalla 

Avenue 
Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement marking 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 211 to 5th Street 

Low $10,000 

223



 

PAGE 39 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

B11 
S Molalla 

Avenue 
Bike Lane 

Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from the 5th Street to the south city 

limits 

Medium $520,000 

Collectors 

B12 Toliver Road Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from the west city limits to OR 213 
High $815,000 

B13 Toliver Road Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 213 to Zimmerman Lane 
High $930,000 

B14 Shirley Street Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from N Molalla Avenue to OR 211 
Medium $03 

B15 Mathias Road Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 211 to the south city limits 
Low 03 

B16 Leroy Avenue Bike Lane 
Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from Toliver Road to OR 211 
Medium $03 

B17 E 5th Street Bike Lane 

Install bike lanes on the south side of the 

roadway from May Street to Eckerd Avenue 

and on both sides from Stowers Road to 

Mathias Road (Striping only) 

Medium $5,000 

B18 W 5th Street Bike Lane 

Install bike lanes on both sides of the 

roadway from Hart Street to S Molalla 

Avenue (Striping only) 

Medium $5,000 

B19 
Ridings 

Avenue 
Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Toliver Road to OR 211 

Low $15,000 

B20 Cole Avenue Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Frances Street to OR 211 

Low $20,000 

B21 Frances Street Shared-lane 

Install shared-lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from N Molalla Avenue to Cole 

Avenue 

Low $15,000 

Neighborhood Streets 

B22 Meadow Drive Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 213 to Meadowlawn Place 

Low $25,000 

B23 Village Drive Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Meadowlawn Place to Toliver 

Road 

Low $10,000 

B24 
Thunderbird 

Street 
Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from N Molalla Avenue to Bronco 

Avenue 

Low $10,000 

224



 

PAGE 40 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

B25 
Bronco 

Avenue 
Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Thunderbird Street to Toliver 

Drive 

Low $5,000 

B26 Toliver Drive Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and sign on both sides of the 

roadway from Bronco Avenue to Toliver 

Road 

Low $10,000 

B27 
Kennel 

Avenue 
Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Toliver Road to OR 211 

Low $15,000 

B28 Heintz Street 

Bicycle 

Boulevard/ 

Shared lane 

Install bicycle boulevard treatments, 

including shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from N Molalla Avenue to Cole 

Avenue 

Medium $15,000 

B29 
Center 

Avenue 
Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Heintz Street to OR 211 

Low $10,000 

B30 Industrial Way Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Toliver Road to the southern 

roadway terminus 

Low $5,000 

B31 Industrial Way Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from the northern roadway 

terminus to OR 211 

Low $5,000 

B32 Stowers Road Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from OR 211 to E 7th Street 

Low $15,000 

B33 E 7th Street Shared lane 

Install shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Stowers Road to Mathias 

Road 

Low $5,000 

Local Streets 

B34 Heintz Street 

Bicycle 

Boulevard/ 

Share lane 

Install bicycle boulevard treatments, 

including shared lane pavement markings 

(sharrows) and signs on both sides of the 

roadway from Leroy Avenue to N Molalla 

Avenue 

Medium $25,000 

Intersections 

B35 

OR 213/ 

Meadow 

Drive1 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the 

OR 213/Meadow Drive Intersection2 
High $20,000 

B36 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the 

OR 213/Toliver Road intersection2 
High $20,000 

B37 
OR 213/ 

OR 2111 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install skip striping along OR 213 and OR 211 

through the intersection2 
High $20,000 

225



 

PAGE 41 

Location Type Project Priority  Cost Estimate 

B38 
OR 211/ 

Ona Way1 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install skip striping along OR 211 and consider 

other enhanced crossing treatments when 

signalized2 

High $20,000 

B39 
OR 211/ 

Leroy Avenue1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install skip striping along OR 211 and consider 

other enhanced crossing treatments when 

signalized2 

High $20,000 

B40 

OR 211/ 

Ridings 

Avenue1 

Enhanced 

crossing 

Install skip striping along OR 211 and consider 

other enhanced crossing treatments when 

signalized2 

Medium $20,000 

B41 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Toliver Road 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the N 

Molalla Avenue/Toliver Road intersection – 

coordinate with project B412 

Medium $15,000 

B42 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Shirley Street 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the N 

Molalla Avenue/Shirley Street intersection – 

coordinate with project B402 

Medium $15,000 

B43 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Heintz Street 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the N 

Molalla Avenue/Heintz Street intersection2 
Medium $15,000 

B44 

S Molalla 

Avenue/ 

5th Street 

Enhanced 

Crossing 

Install an enhanced bicycle crossing at the S 

Molalla Avenue/5th Street intersection2 
Medium $15,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $1,865,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $650,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $1,050,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $3,565,000 

1. Project will require coordination with ODOT and approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. 

2. The types of enhanced crossing treatments are to be determined at the design/implementation stage. 

3. Project cost included in Motor Vehicle Plan. 

Other potential bicycle projects include: 

 Support Clackamas County’s efforts to implement the Active Transportation Plan. 

 Support Clackamas County and Molalla River School District’s efforts to implement the Safe 

Routes to School (SRTS) program. 

 Identify opportunities to establish additional multi-use paths and trails that augment and support 

the bicycle system. 

  

226



å å

å

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

W Heintz St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

E 5Th St

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

Christopher St

To
live

r D
r

Rid
ing

s A
ve

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E Heintz St

E 7Th St

Fi n
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Frances St

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Dix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

S Macksburg Rd

S Barbara Way

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln S Vick Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

E Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

B36

B35

B38

B39
B40

B41
B42

B43

B44

B37 B3
1

B2
5

B2
6

B1
9

B5

B1
0

B2
9

B2
0

B2
7

B3
2

B24

B21

B9

B33

B22

B2
3

B3
0

B28

B34

B2

B6

B4

B8

B7

B1

B1
1

B3

B17 B1
5

B18

B14

B1
6

B13

B17

B14

B12

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
6

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\06

_B
icy

cle
 Pr

oje
cts

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  1

1:1
6 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Bicycle Plan Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Bicycle Plan Projects
!! New Enhanced Crossing

New Bike Lane
New Buffered Bike Lane
New Bike Boulevard
New Shared Roadway Markings
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

227



 

PAGE 43 

  

CHAPTER 5: TRANSIT SYSTEM  

228



 

PAGE 44 

TRANSIT SYSTEM 
Transit service in Molalla is currently provided by the South Clackamas Transit District (SCTD), the Molalla 

Adult Community Center, Molalla River School District (MRSD), Clackamas County Social Services, and 

several local retirement communities. The service consists of fixed-route and paratransit service as well as 

school and shuttle bus service. Morning and evening peak hour service along OR 213 and OR 211 provides 

residents with the ability to use public transit for daily commuting, while mid-day service provides residents 

with the ability to use public transit to access retail/commercial centers, recreational areas, and other 

essential destinations located throughout Molalla, Clackamas County and the region. 

The Transit Plan includes several projects to enhance the existing fixed-route service provided by SCTD. 

These projects are intended to improve connections to local destinations for people that do not drive or 

bike and provide additional options for all transportation system users for certain trips. Public transit 

complements walking, bicycling, or driving trips: users can walk to and from transit stops and their homes, 

shopping or work places, people can drive to park-and-ride locations to access a bus, or people can 

bring their bikes on transit vehicles and bicycle from a transit stop to their final destination. Implementation 

of the projects included in the Transit Plan will require coordination with SCTD and others to ensure 

consistent and continued service for local residents. 

TRANSIT FACILITIES 

Transit facilities are the elements of the transportation system that enable people to travel safely and 

efficiently throughout the city and the region by transit. These include fixed-route facilities and services, 

transit stops, and park-and-rides. This section summarizes the transit facilities that were evaluated 

throughout the planning process to address existing gaps and deficiencies in the transit system and future 

needs. As indicated below, the most common overall need is to provide a safe and interconnected transit 

system that encourages people to ride transit for local and regional trips. 

FIXED-ROUTE SERVICE 

Fixed-route transit service is provided via set routes for buses, shuttles, and other transit modes. Fixed routes 

include specified transit stops and services that normally operate on defined schedules. For the City, this 

service is provided by the SCTD bus routes that run through Molalla and provide connections to Canby, 

Clackamas Community College (CCC), and destinations around the City. The Transit Plan includes several 

potential changes to existing transit service, including: 

 Increase the service frequency by reducing headways or time between arrivals, 

 Increase hours of service by providing service earlier in the morning and/or later in the evening, 

and 

 Increase service coverage by re-routing existing service or implementing new service. 

229



 

PAGE 45 

STOP ENHANCEMENTS 

Transit stops are designated locations where residents can access local transit service. Transit stops are 

normally located at major intersections. The types of amenities provided at each transit stop (i.e. pole, 

bench, shelter, ridership information, trash receptacles) tend to reflect the level of usage. 

 Pole and bus stop sign – All bus stops require a pole and bus stop sign to identify the bus stop 

location. Some transit agencies prefer the bus stop signs to be provided on a separate 

dedicated pole instead of an existing utility pole, column, or other location. 

 Bus stop shelters – Shelters are typically provided at stops with 50 or more boardings per day but 

may be considered at stops served by infrequent service (headways greater than 17 minutes) 

with 35 or more boardings per day. 

 Seating – Seating can be considered at any stop as long as it is accessible and as long as the, 

safety and accessibility of the adjacent sidewalk or other facility are not compromised by 

seating placement. 

 Trash cans – Trash cans can be considered at any stop; however, they are most commonly 

located at stops with shelters and/or seating. Trash cans will require pick-up from the local 

garbage company. 

 Lighting – Lighting is an important amenity for bus stops as it provides visibility and increased 

security for transit users waiting, boarding, and aligning transit service. 

TriMet Stop (Before) TriMet Stop (After) 

The Transit Plan includes several new transit stops and potential enhancements to existing transit stops 

throughout Molalla. 

  

230



 

PAGE 46 

PARK-AND-RIDE FACILITIES 

Park-and-ride facilities provide parking for people who wish to transfer from their personal vehicle to public 

transportation or carpools/vanpools. Park-and-rides are frequently located near major intersections, at 

commercial centers, or on express and commuter bus routes. It is Oregon state policy to encourage the 

development and use of park-and-ride facilities at appropriate urban and rural locations adjacent to or 

within the highway right-of-way. Park-and-ride facilities can provide an efficient method to provide transit 

service to low density areas such as Molalla, connecting people to jobs, and providing an alternate mode 

to complete long-distance commutes. 

Park-and-ride facilities may be either shared-use, such as at a school or shopping center, or exclusive-use. 

Shared-use facilities are generally designated and maintained through agreements reached between 

the local public transit agency or rideshare program operator and the property owner. Shared-use lots 

can save the expense of building a new parking lot, increase the utilization of existing spaces, and avoid 

utilization of developable land for surface parking. In the case of shopping centers, the presence of a 

shared-use park-and-ride has frequently been shown to be mutually beneficial, as park-and-riders tend 

to patronize the businesses in the center. 

SCTD Transit Stop at E Ross Street SCTD City Bus Serves as a Fixed Route around Molalla 

TRANSIT PLAN 

Table 5 identifies the transit plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. As shown, several of projects are 

assumed to be funded by others or require coordination with SCTD. The City of Molalla can support 

improved transit service by providing easy and safe walking and bicycling connections between key 

roadways, neighborhoods, and local destinations; by providing amenities, such as shelters and benches, 

at transit stops; by encouraging an appropriate mix and density of uses that support public transit; and 

by providing and planning for park-and-ride locations. The priorities shown in Table 5 are based on the 

project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team and the general public. The cost 

estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements and reflect input from RVTD. 

Figure 7 illustrates the location of the transit plan projects. 

  

231



 

PAGE 47 

Table 5: Transit Plan Improvement Projects 

Project 

Number Location 

Agency 

Responsible Description Priority 

Cost 

Estimate 

T12 City-wide City/SCTD 

Coordinate with SCTD to increase the 

frequency of morning and evening 

peak hour service on the Canby and 

CCC Buses 

Medium $01 

T22 City-wide City/SCTD 
Coordinate with SCTD to increase the 

hours of service on the Canby Bus 
Medium $01 

T32 City-wide City/SCTD 

Coordinate with SCTD to reconfigure 

the Molalla City Bus to increase 

service coverage in the northeast 

and southeast parts of the city and 

increase the efficiency of the route 

Medium $01 

T4 
OR 213/Meadow Drive 

(northbound) 
City/SCTD 

Relocate existing sign to south side of 

the intersection to increase the 

visibility of the stop 

Medium $5,000 

T5 OR 213/Toliver Road City/SCTD 

Install bus stops at the far side of the 

northbound and southbound 

approaches to the intersection 

Medium $10,000 

T6 
OR 211/OR 213 

(eastbound) 
City/SCTD 

Install a shelter within the public right 

of way or obtain an easement from 

the adjacent property owner 

Medium $50,000 

T7 
OR 211/Leroy Avenue 

(eastbound) 
City/SCTD 

Install a bus stop sign on the east side 

of the intersection to increase the 

visibility of the stop 

Medium $5,000 

T8 
OR 211/Kennel Avenue 

(eastbound) 
City/SCTD 

Install a bus stop sign on the east side 

of the intersection to increase the 

visibility of the stop 

Medium $5,000 

T9 

Meadow Drive/ 

Meadowlawn Place/ 

Toliver Road 

City/SCTD 

Provide designated transit stop 

between OR 213 and Kennel Avenue 

(Seven potential stop locations are 

shown for illustrative purposes) 

Medium $35,000 

T10 City Wide City/SCTD 

Identify the location for a new park-

and-ride within the city (the existing 

parking and ride is shown for 

illustrative purposes) 

Medium $50,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $160,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $160,000 

1. Project to be funded by others. 

2. Project not shown on map. 

Other potential transit projects include: 

 Support South Clackamas Transit Districts (SCTD) efforts in obtaining House Bill (HB) 2017 Funding 

to enhance existing and future transit service in Molalla. 

  

232



"

"

"

"

"

!

!

"

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!
!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

E 5Th St

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
rZe
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fi n
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

Dix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
lag

e D
r

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S Macksburg Rd

S Barbara Way

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Rachel Larkin Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln S Vick Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

T4

T6

T7

T8

T5T5

T9

T9
T9

T9
T9

T9

T9

T3

T10

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
7

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\07

_T
ran

sit
 Pr

oje
cts

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  1

0:4
3 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Public Transit Plan Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Public Transit Plan Projects
!! Potential Stop Enhancements
!! Potential Park and Ride
" Existing Shelter
! Existing Sign

Existing Transit Routes
New Potential Transit Route
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

233



 

PAGE 49 

 

  

CHAPTER 6: TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM 

MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS (TSMO) 

234



 

PAGE 50 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MANAGEMENT AND 

OPERATIONS (TSMO) 
Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO) is a set of integrated transportation solutions 

intended to improve the performance of existing transportation infrastructure. Transportation System 

Management (TSM) and Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategies are two complementary 

approaches to managing transportation and maximizing the efficiency of the existing system. TSM 

strategies address the supply of the system: using strategies to improve the system efficiency without 

increasing roadway widths or building new roads. TSM measures are focused on improving operations by 

enhancing capacity during peak times, typically with advanced technologies to improve traffic 

operations. TDM strategies address the demand on the system: the number of vehicles traveling on the 

roadways each day. TDM measures include any method intended to shift travel demand from single 

occupant vehicles to non-auto modes or carpooling, travel at less congested times of the day, etc. 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MANAGEMENT (TSM) 

Transportation System Management (TSM) focuses on low cost strategies that can be implemented within 

the existing transportation infrastructure to enhance operational performance. Finding ways to better 

manage transportation while maximizing urban mobility and treating all modes of travel as a coordinated 

system is a priority. TSM strategies include traffic signal timing and phasing optimization, traffic signal 

coordination, and intelligent transportation systems (ITS). Traffic signal coordination and ITS typically 

provide the most significant tangible benefits to the traveling public. The primary focus of TSM measures 

are region-wide improvements, however there are a number of TSM measures that can be used in a 

smaller scale environment such as Molalla. 

SIGNAL RETIMING AND OPTIMIZATION 

Signal retiming and optimization offers a relatively low-cost option to increase system efficiency. Retiming 

and optimization refers to updating timing plans to better match prevailing traffic conditions and 

coordinating signals. Timing optimization can be applied to existing systems or may include upgrading 

signal technology, such as signal communication infrastructure, signal controllers, or cabinets. Signal 

retiming can reduce travel times and be especially beneficial to improving travel time reliability. In high 

pedestrian or desired pedestrian areas, signal retiming can facilitate pedestrian movements through 

intersections by increasing minimum green times to give pedestrians time to cross during each cycle, 

eliminating the need to push pedestrian crossing buttons. Signals can also facilitate bicycle movements 

with the inclusion of bicycle detectors. 

ADVANCED SIGNAL SYSTEMS 

Signal upgrades often come at a higher cost and usually require further coordination between 

jurisdictions. However, upgrading signals provides the opportunity to incorporate advanced signal 

systems to further improve the efficiency of a transportation network. Strategies include coordinated 

signal operations across jurisdictions, centralized control of traffic signals, adaptive or active signal control, 

235



 

PAGE 51 

and transit or freight signal priority. These advanced signal systems can reduce delay, travel time, and 

the number of stops for transit, freight, and other vehicles. In addition, these systems may help reduce 

vehicle emissions and improve travel time reliability. 

 Adaptive or active signal control systems improve the efficiency of signal operations by actively 

changing the allotment of green time for vehicle movements and reducing the average delay 

for vehicles. Adaptive or active signal control systems require several vehicle detectors at 

intersections to detect traffic flows adequately, in addition to hardware and software upgrades. 

 Traffic responsive control uses data collected from traffic detectors to change signal timing 

plans for intersections. The data collected from the detectors is used by the system to 

automatically select a timing plan best suited to current traffic conditions. This system can 

determine times when peak-hour timing plans begin or end; potentially reducing vehicle delays. 

 Truck signal priority systems use sensors to detect approaching heavy vehicles and alter signal 

timings to improve truck freight travel. While truck signal priority may improve travel times for 

trucks, its primary purpose is to improve the overall performance of intersection operations by 

clearing any trucks that would otherwise be stopped at the intersection and subsequently have 

to spend a longer time getting back up to speed. Implementing truck signal priority requires 

additional advanced detector loops, usually placed in pairs back from the approach to the 

intersection. 

Real-Time Traveler Information 

Traveler information consists of collecting and disseminating real-time 

transportation system information to the traveling public. This includes 

information on traffic and road conditions, general public transportation 

and parking information, interruptions due to roadway incidents, 

roadway maintenance and construction, and weather conditions. 

Traveler information is collected from roadway sensors, traffic cameras, 

vehicle probes, and more recently, media access control (MAC) 

devices such as cell phones or laptops. Data from these sources are sent 

to a central system and subsequently disseminated to the public so that 

drivers track conditions specific to their cars and can provide historical 

and real-time traffic conditions for travelers. 

When roadway travelers are supplied with information on their trips, they 

may be able to avoid heavy congestion by altering a travel path, 

delaying the start of a trip, or changing which mode they can choose. 

This can reduce overall delay and fuel emissions. Traveler information 

projects can be prioritized over increasing capacity on roadway, often with high project visibility among 

the public. 

236



 

PAGE 52 

Real-Time Transit Information 

Transit agencies or third-party sources can disseminate both schedule and 

system performance information to travelers through a variety of 

applications, such as in-vehicle, wayside, or in-terminal dynamic message 

signs, as well as the Internet or wireless devices. Coordination with regional 

or multimodal traveler information efforts can increase the availability of this 

transit schedule and system performance information. TriMet has 

implemented this through its Transit Tracker system. 

These systems enhance passenger convenience and may increase the 

attractiveness of transit to the public by encouraging travelers to consider 

transit as opposed to driving alone. They do require cooperation and 

integration between agencies for disseminating the information. 

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM MANAGEMENT (TSM) PLAN 

The TSM Plan projects developed for the Molalla TSP update are summarized 

in Table 6. These projects are intended to address existing and projected future operational performance 

for motor vehicles as well as all other modes of transportation that depend on the roadway system for 

travel, such as pedestrians, bicyclists, transit users, and freight. 

Table 6: Transportation System Management Projects 

Project/Program 

Number Name Description Priority 

Cost 

Estimate 

TSM1 
Signal System 

Improvements 

Update signal timing plans and coordinate signals to 

better match prevailing traffic conditions; 

implementing adaptive or active signal control, traffic 

responsive control, and/or truck signal priority 

High/ 

Medium/ 

Low 

$5,000/year 

TSM2 
Real-Time Traveler 

Information 

Work with mobile and web applications to increase 

information on traffic and road conditions, general 

public transportation and parking information, 

interruptions due to roadway incidents, maintenance, 

construction, and weather conditions. 

Medium TBD 

TSM3 
Real-Time Transit 

Information 

Work with transit agencies or third-party sources to 

disseminate schedule and system performance 

information to travelers through a variety of 

applications, such as in-vehicle, wayside, in-terminal 

dynamic message signs, live schedule arrival boards, 

as well as the internet or wireless devices. 

Medium TBD 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $25,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $25,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $60,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $110,000 

Other potential TSM projects include: 

 Support advancing technologies, transportation network company (TNC) platforms, and active 

transportation programs to support existing city infrastructure. 

237



 

PAGE 53 

TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT (TDM) 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) is a policy tool as well as a general term used to describe 

any action that removes single occupant vehicle trips from the roadway during peak travel demand 

periods. As growth in the City of Molalla occurs, the number of vehicle trips and travel demand in the 

area will also increase. The ability to change a user’s travel behavior and provide alternative mode 

choices will help accommodate this potential growth in trips. The following section provides more detail 

on programming and policy strategies that may be effective for managing transportation demand and 

increasing system efficiency over the next 22 years. 

PROGRAMMING 

Programming solutions can provide effective and low-cost options for reducing transportation demand. 

Some of the most effective programming strategies can be implemented by employers and are aimed 

at encouraging non-single occupancy vehicle commuting. These strategies are discussed below. 

Carpool Match Services 

Clackamas County promotes the use of Drive Less Connect, which is a rideshare/carpool program that 

regional commuters can use to find other commuters with similar routes to work. The program allows 

commuters to connect and coordinate with others on locations, departure times, and driving 

responsibilities. Local employers can also play a role in encouraging carpooling by sharing information 

about the system, providing preferential carpool parking, and allowing employees to have flexibility in 

workday schedules. 

Collaborative Marketing 

Public agencies, local business owners and operators, developers, and transit service providers can 

collaborate on marketing to get the word out to residents about transportation options that provide an 

alternative to single-occupancy vehicles. 

POLICY 

Policy solutions can be implemented by cities, counties, regions, or at the statewide level. Regional and 

state-level policies will affect transportation demand in Molalla, but local policies can also have an 

impact. These policies are discussed below. 

Limited and/or Flexible Parking Requirements 

Cities set policies related to parking requirements for new developments. In order to allow developments 

that encourage multi-modal transportation, cities can set parking maximums and low minimums and/or 

allow for shared parking between uses. Cities can also provide developers the option to pay in-lieu fees 

instead of constructing additional parking. This option provides additional flexibility to developers that can 

increase the likelihood of development, especially on smaller lots where surface parking would cover a 

high portion of the total property. 

  

238



 

PAGE 54 

Cities can also set policies that require provision of parking to the rear of buildings, allowing buildings in 

commercial areas to directly front the street. This urban form creates a more appealing environment for 

walking and window-shopping. In-lieu parking fees support this type of development for parcels that do 

not have rear- or side-access points. 

Parking Management 

Parking plays a large role in transportation demand management, and effective management of parking 

resources can encourage use of non-single occupancy vehicle modes. Cities can tailor policies to charge 

for public parking in certain areas or impose time limits on street parking in retail centers. Cities can also 

monitor public parking supply and utilization in order to inform future parking strategy. 

TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT (TDM) PLAN 

Table 7 identifies the TDM strategies included in the Molalla TSP update. Given Molalla’s lack of 

experience with TDM strategies, it is important that decision-makers understand their long-term costs and 

benefits and are able evaluate these along-side arguments from opponents in achieving outcomes that 

best reflect the City’s vision and goals while effectively reducing travel demand. 

Table 7: Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Strategies 

Program/Project 

Number Name Description Priority 

Cost 

Estimate 

TDM1 
Carpool Match 

Services Service 

Coordinate rideshare/carpool programs to 

allow regional commuters to find other 

commuters with similar routes to work. 

High/Medium/Low $5,000/year 

TDM2 
Collaborative 

Marketing 

Work with nearby cities, employers, transit 

service providers, and developers to 

collaborate on marketing for transportation 

options that provide an alternative to 

single-occupancy vehicles 

High/Medium/Low $5,000/year 

TDM3 

Limited and/or 

Flexible Parking 

Requirements 

Update the Molalla Municipal Code to limit 

and/or allow for flexible parking 

requirements 

Medium $25,000 

TDM4 Parking Management 

Develop a parking management plan for 

downtown Molalla to impose time limits in 

commercial areas and allow for the 

potential to charge for parking 

Medium $25,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $50,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $100,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $120,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $270,000 

Other potential TDM projects include: 

 Support continued efforts by ODOT and Clackamas County to develop productive TDM 

measures that reduce commuter vehicle miles and peak hour trips. 

239



 

PAGE 55 

 Encourage the development of high speed communication in all part of the city (fiber optic, 

digital cable, DSL, etc.). The objective would be to allow employers and residents the maximum 

opportunity to rely upon other systems for conducting business and activities than the 

transportation system during peak periods. 

 Encourage developments that effectively mix land uses to reduce vehicle trip generation. These 

plans may include development linkages (particularly non-auto) that support greater use of 

alternative modes. 

NEIGHBORHOOD TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT (NTM) 

Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) is a term used to describe traffic control devices that reduce 

travel speeds and traffic volumes in residential neighborhoods. NTM is also commonly referred to as traffic 

calming because of its ability to calm traffic and improve neighborhood livability. NTM solutions have 

been implemented in locations throughout the city; however, there are many areas where additional 

NTM could be considered in the future. Table 8 lists several common NTM options that are typically 

supported by emergency response as long as minimum street criteria are met. 

Table 8: Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) Options by Functional Classification 

Traffic Calming Measures 

Roadway Classifications 

Arterial Collector 

Neighborhood Street/ 

Local Street 

Curb Extensions Supported Supported 

Traffic Calming 

measures are 

generally supported 

on lesser response 

routes that have 

connectivity (more 

than two accesses) 

and are accepted 

and field tested 

Medians Supported Supported 

Pavement Texture Supported Supported 

Speed Hump Not Supported Not Supported 

Raised Crosswalk Not Supported Not Supported 

Speed Cushion Not Supported Not Supported 

Choker Not Supported Not Supported 

Traffic Circle Not Supported Not Supported 

Diverter (with emergency vehicle pass through) Not Supported Supported 

Meandering Alignments Not Supported Not Supported 

Note: Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM) measures are supported with the qualification that they meet emergency 

response guidelines including minimum street width, emergency vehicle turning radius, and accessibility/connectivity. 

While no specific NTM projects are identified in the TSP, they are an important part of the City’s ongoing 

effort to improve livability. Any future NTM projects should be coordinated with emergency service 

providers to ensure public safety is not compromised. NTM engineering solutions are limited to 

neighborhood street and local streets; implementation of NTM solutions on arterial and collector streets is 

counterproductive and can lead to cut through traffic on local streets. NTM is also restricted on arterial 

and collector streets to avoid conflicts with emergency access/public safety as well as conflicts with 

public transit. 

240



 

PAGE 56 

ACCESS MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Access management is a set of measures regulating access to streets, roads, and highways, from public 

roads and private driveways. Access management is a policy tool which seeks to balance mobility, the 

need to provide efficient, safe and timely travel with the ability to allow access to individual properties. 

Proper implementation of access management techniques could result in reduced congestion, reduced 

crash rates, less need for roadway widening, conservation of energy, and reductions in air pollution. 

Measures may include but are not limited to restrictions on the type and amount of access to roadways, 

and use of physical controls, such as signals and channelization including raised medians, to reduce 

impacts of approach road traffic on the main facility. 

ODOT ACCESS MANAGEMENT STANDARDS 

Oregon Administrative Rule 734, Division 51 establishes procedures, standards, and approval criteria used 

by ODOT to govern highway approach permitting and access management consistent with Oregon 

Revised Statutes (ORS), Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR), statewide planning goals, acknowledged 

comprehensive plans, and the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP). The OHP serves as the policy basis for 

implementing Division 51 and guides the administration of access management rules, including mitigation 

and public investment, when required, to ensure highway safety and operations pursuant to this division. 

Access spacing standards for approaches to state highways are based on the highway classification, 

highway designation, area type, and posted speed. Within Molalla, the OHP classifies OR 213 and OR 211 

as District Highways. Future developments along OR 213 and OR 211 (new development, redevelopment, 

zone changes, and/or comprehensive plan amendments) is required to meet the OAR 734, Division 51 

access management policies and standards. Table 9 summarizes ODOT’s access management 

standards for OR 213 and OR 211. 

Table 9: OR 213 and OR 211 ODOT Access Management Standards 

Posted Speed 

Spacing Standards 

Rural Areas1 

Spacing Standards 

Urban Areas 

Spacing Standards for 

Areas Designated as 

UBAs 

Spacing Standards for 

areas Designated as 

STAs 

55 or higher 700 700 -  

50 550 550 -  

40 & 45 500 500 -  

30 & 35 400 350 3501 3002 

25 & lower 400 250 3501 3002 

Note: These access spacing standards do not apply to approaches in existence prior to April 1, 2000 except as provided in OAR 

734-051-5120(9). 

1. Measurement of the approach road spacing is from the center on the same side of the roadway. 

2. Minimum spacing standards for public road approaches is the existing city block spacing (approximately 300 feet in Molalla); 

private driveways spacing is a minimum of 175 feet. 

241



 

PAGE 57 

Special Transportation Area 

The segment of OR 211 from Hart Avenue to Grange Avenue (mile point 12.64 to 12.94) is designated as 

a Special Transportation Area (STA). An STA is a designated district of compact development along a 

state highway in which the need for appropriate local access outweighs the considerations of highway 

mobility. The STA designation allows for redevelopment to occur along OR 211 with access less than that 

standard spacing shown in Table 9. 

While accessibility for automobiles plays an important role through a STA, convenience of movement 

within an STA is focused on pedestrian, bicycle, and transit modes. STAs look like traditional “Main Streets” 

and area generally located on both sides of the highway. The primary objective of an STA is to provide 

access to and circulation amongst community activities, businesses and residences and to 

accommodate pedestrian, bicycle, and transit movement along and across the highway . 

CITY STANDARDS 

Access spacing standards for approaches to City streets are based on the roadway functional 

classification. Chapter 17 of the Molalla Municipal Code indicates that the minimum distances shall be 

maintained between approaches and street intersections consistent with the current version of the Public 

Works Design Standards and Transportation System Plan. Table 10 identifies the minimum intersection 

spacing standards for public streets and private driveways as they relate to new development and 

redevelopment within the City. Table 11 identifies standards for private access driveway widths. These 

standards will help to preserve transportation system investments and guard against deteriorations in 

safety and increased congestion. 

Table 10: Minimum Intersection Spacing Standards 

Functional Classification Public Street (Feet) Private Access Drive (Feet) 

Local Street 150 50 

Neighborhood Collector 300 100 

Major Collector/Arterial1 600 150 

Molalla Forest Road 800 N/A2 

1. ODOT standards supersede these values on ODOT facilities 

2. Not allowed unless no other access possible. Access may be limited to right-in, right-out 

Table 11: Private Access Driveway Width Standards 

Land Use Minimum (Feet) Maximum (Feet) 

Single Family Residential 12 24 

Multi-family Residential 24 30 

Commercial 30 40 

Industrial 30 40 

 

242



 

PAGE 58 

In cases where physical constraints or unique site characteristics limit the ability for the access spacing 

standards listed in Tables 9 and 10 to be met, the City retains the right to grant an access spacing 

variance. 

ACCESS SPACING VARIANCES 

Access spacing variances may be provided to parcels whose highway/street frontage, topography, or 

location would otherwise preclude issuance of a conforming permit and would either have no 

reasonable access or cannot obtain reasonable alternate access to the public road system. In such a 

situation, a conditional access permit may be issued by ODOT or the City, as appropriate, for a 

connection to a property that cannot be accessed in a manner that is consistent with the spacing 

standards. The permit can carry a condition that the access may be closed at such time that reasonable 

access becomes available to a local public street. The approval condition might also require a given 

land owner to work in cooperation with adjacent land owners to provide either joint access points, front 

and rear cross-over easements, or a rear access upon future redevelopment. 

The requirements for obtaining a deviation from ODOT’s minimum spacing standards are documented in 

OAR 734-051-3050. For streets under the City‘s jurisdiction, the City may reduce the access spacing 

standards at the discretion of the City Engineer if the following conditions exist: 

 Joint access driveways and cross access easements are provided in accordance with the 

standards; 

 The site plan incorporates a unified access and circulation system in accordance with the 

standards; 

 The property owner enters into a written agreement with the City that pre-existing connections 

on the site will be closed and eliminated after construction of each side of the joint use 

driveway; and/or, 

 The proposed access plan for redevelopment properties moves in the direction of the spacing 

standards. 

The City Engineer may modify or waive the access spacing standards for streets under the City’s 

jurisdiction where the physical site characteristics or layout of abutting properties would make 

development of a unified or shared access and circulation system impractical, subject to the following 

considerations: 

 Unless modified, application of the access standard will result in the degradation of operational 

and safety integrity of the transportation system. 

 The granting of the variance will meet the purpose and intent of the standards and will not be 

considered until every feasible option for meeting access standards is explored. 

 Applicants for variance from these standards must provide proof of unique or special conditions 

that make strict application of the standards impractical. Applicants shall include proof that: 

243



 

PAGE 59 

− Indirect or restricted access cannot be obtained; no engineering or construction 

solutions can be applied to mitigate the condition; and, no alternative access is 

available from a road with a lower functional classification than the primary roadway. 

No variance shall be granted where such hardship is self-created. Consistency between access spacing 

requirements and exceptions in the TSP and MMC is an important regulatory solution to be addressed as 

part of this TSP update. 

ACCESS CONSOLIDATION THROUGH MANAGEMENT 

From an operational perspective, access management measures limit the number of redundant access 

points along roadways. This enhances roadway capacity, improves safety, and benefits circulation. 

Enforcement of the access spacing standards should be complemented with provision of alternative 

access points. Purchasing right-of-way and closing driveways without a parallel road system and/or other 

local access could seriously affect the viability of the impacted properties. Thus, if an access 

management approach is taken, alternative access should be developed to avoid “land-locking” a 

given property. 

As part of every land use action, the City should evaluate the potential need for conditioning a given 

development proposal with the following items, in order to maintain and/or improve traffic operations 

and safety along the arterial and collector roadways. 

 Provide access to the lower classification roadway when multiple roadways abut the property. 

 Provide crossover easements on all compatible parcels (considering topography, access, and 

land use) to facilitate future access between adjoining parcels. 

 Issue conditional access permits to developments that have access points that do not meet the 

designated access spacing policy and/or have the ability to align with opposing driveways. 

 Right-of-way dedications to facilitate the future planned roadway system in the vicinity of 

proposed developments. 

 Half-street improvements (sidewalks, curb and gutter, bike lanes/paths, and/or travel lanes) 

along site frontages that do not have full build-out improvements in place at the time of 

development. 

Exhibit 1 illustrates the application of cross-over easements and conditional access permits over time to 

achieve access management objectives. The individual steps are described in Table 12. As illustrated in 

the exhibit and supporting table, by using these guidelines, all driveways can eventually move in the 

direction of the access spacing standards as development and redevelopment occur along a given 

street. 

244



 

PAGE 60 

Table 12: Example of Crossover Easement/Indenture/Consolidation 

Step Process 

1 

EXISTING – Currently Lots A, B, C, and D have site-access driveways that neither meet the access spacing criteria 

of 500 feet nor align with driveways or access points on the opposite side of the highway. Under these conditions 

motorists are into situations of potential conflict (conflicting left turns) with opposing traffic. Additionally, the 

number of side-street (or site-access driveway) intersections decreases the operation and safety of the highway  

2 

REDEVELOPMENT OF LOT B – At the time that Lot B redevelops, the City would review the proposed site plan and 

make recommendations to ensure that the site could promote future crossover or consolidated access. Next, the 

City would issue conditional permits for the development to provide crossover easements with Lots A and C, and 

ODOT/City would grant a conditional access permit to the lot. After evaluating the land use action, ODOT/City 

would determine that LOT B does not have either alternative access, nor can an access point be aligned with an 

opposing access point, nor can the available lot frontage provide an access point that meets the access 

spacing criteria set forth for segment of highway. 

3 

REDEVELOPMENT OF LOT A – At the time Lot A redevelops, the City/ODOT would undertake the same review 

process as with the redevelopment of LOT B (see Step 2); however, under this scenario ODOT and the City would 

use the previously obtained cross-over easement at Lot B consolidate the access points of Lots A and B. 

ODOT/City would then relocate the conditional access of Lot B to align with the opposing access point and 

provide and efficient access to both Lots A and B. The consolidation of site-access driveways for Lots A and B will 

not only reduce the number of driveways accessing the highway but will also eliminate the conflicting left-turn 

movements the highway by the alignment with the opposing access point. 

4 
REDEVELOPMENT OF LOT D – The redevelopment of Lot D will be handled in same manner as the redevelopment 

of Lot B (see Step 2) 

5 

REDEVELOPMENT OF LOT C – The redevelopment of Lot C will be reviewed once again to ensure that the site will 

accommodate crossover and/or consolidated access. Using the crossover agreements with Lots B and D, Lot C 

would share a consolidated access point with Lot D and will also have alternative frontage access the shared 

site-access driveway of Lots A and B. By using the crossover agreement and conditional access permit process, 

the City and ODOT will be able to eliminate another access point and provide the alignment with the opposing 

access points. 

6 
COMPLETE – After Lots A, B, C, and D redevelop over time, the number of access points will be reduced and 

aligned, and the remaining access points will meet the access spacing standard.  

 

  

245



 

PAGE 61 

Exhibit 1: Cross Over Easement 

246



 

PAGE 62 

  

CHAPTER 7: MOTOR VEHICLE SYSTEM  

247



 

PAGE 63 

MOTOR VEHICLE SYSTEM 
The motor vehicle system within Molalla includes private streets, city streets, and state highways. These 

facilities provide residents with the ability to access retail, commercial, recreational, and other land uses 

within Molalla and neighborhood cities by vehicle. This section describes how the system has been 

developed to date and provides a more detailed review of how it is used and operated. 

The street system within Molalla is well established in some areas; however, there are several areas where 

the existing roadways could be improved and other areas where new roadways could be constructed 

to increase the efficiency of the transportation system as well as improve access and circulation for all 

travel modes. There are also several intersections with operational issues under the existing and projected 

future traffic conditions. Therefore, the Motor Vehicle Plan includes projects to increase the efficiency of 

the transportation system through changes in the functional classification of roadways, development of 

roadway standards and standard cross sections, improvements to the street system connectivity, and 

improvements to the capacity of several roadways and several key intersections. 

FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION PLAN 

A street’s functional classification defines its role in the transportation system and reflects desired 

operational and design characteristics such as right-of-way requirements, pavement widths, pedestrian 

and bicycle features, and driveway (access) spacing standards. The functional classification plan 

includes the following designations: 

 Arterials are primarily intended to serve traffic entering and leaving the urban area. While 

arterials may provide access to adjacent land uses, that function is subordinate to the travel 

service provided to major traffic movements. Arterials are the longest-distance, highest-volume 

roadways within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). Although the streets focus on serving longer 

distance trips, pedestrian and/or bicycle activities often are also associated with the arterial 

streetscape. 

 Collectors facilitate the movement of city traffic within the UGB. Collectors provide some degree 

of access to adjacent properties, while maintaining circulation and mobility for all users. Major 

collectors are distinguished by their connectivity and higher traffic volumes, although they are 

designed to carry lower traffic volumes at slower speeds than arterials. Major collectors are 

characterized by two or three-lane facilities. Minor collectors carry lower volumes than major 

collectors and have two-lane cross sections. 

 Neighborhood Streets connect neighborhoods with the collector and arterial street system, 

facilitate the movement of local traffic, and provide access to abutting land uses. Speeds on 

these facilities should remain low to ensure community livability and safety for pedestrians and 

bicyclists of all ages. On-street parking is more prevalent and pedestrian amenities are typically 

248



 

PAGE 64 

provided. Striped bike lanes are unnecessary for most neighborhood streets because traffic 

volumes and speeds should allow cyclists to travel concurrently with motorists. 

 Local Streets are primarily intended to provide access to abutting land uses. Local streets offer 

the lowest level of mobility and consequently tend to be short, low-speed facilities. As such, local 

streets should primarily serve passenger cars, pedestrians, and bicyclists; heavy truck traffic 

should be discouraged. On-street parking is common and sidewalks are typically present. 

Figure 8 illustrates functional classification plan for all existing streets and future arterial and collector 

streets within the UGB. The alignments for future streets should be considered conceptual: the end points 

of the streets are fixed, but the alignments between intersections may vary depending on design 

requirements at the time the streets are constructed. Street stub connections to the UGB are indicated 

by arrows. Table 13 summarizes the streets by functional classification. 

Table 13: Functional Classification Plan 

Arterials 

Collectors 
Neighborhood 

Streets Local Streets Major Collectors Minor Collectors 

Molalla Avenue 

OR 213 

OR 211 

5th Street 

Leroy Avenue 

Lowe Road 

Mathias Road 

Molalla Forest Road 

Shirley Street 

Toliver Road 

Cole Avenue 

Frances Street 

Meadow Drive 

Ridings Avenue 

E 7th Street 

Affolter Avenue 

Bronco Avenue 

Cascade Lane 

Center Avenue 

Commercial 

Parkway 

Church Street 

Harvey Lane 

Heintz Street 

Hezzie Lane 

Industrial Way 

Kennel Avenue 

Lowe Road 

Stowers Road 

Toliver Drive 

Thunderbird Street 

All remaining streets 

ROADWAY CROSS SECTION STANDARDS 

Roadway cross section standards were developed for the Molalla TSP update based on the 

characteristics of the existing roadways within the city. The design of a roadway can (and will) vary from 

street to street and segment to segment due to adjacent land uses and demand. The roadway cross 

sections are intended to define a system that allows standardization of key characteristics to provide 

consistency, but also to provide criteria for application that provides some flexibility while meeting the 

design standards. Table 14 outlines the roadway cross section standards for city streets. Exhibits 2 through 

7 illustrate the cross-section standards for each functional classification. 

249



vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

Sw
ieg

le 
Av

e

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

W Heintz St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

E 5Th St

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
p h

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry

Dr

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Le
roy

 Av
e Frances St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

S M
ath

ias
 RdE 8Th St

Mt View Ln

E Heintz St

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

E 2Nd St

Eric Dr

Ma
y S

t

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Meadowlark Pl

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Anne Ln

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an

Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

Tri
nit

y C
t

E 6Th St
E 7Th St

We
dgew

oo
dD

r

Vil
lag

e D
r

West Ln

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pk
wy

Patrol StS Lowe Rd

W Main St

E Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

S Warrick Rd
S Appaloosa Dr

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

S F
rap

 Ln

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

S Vick Rd

S Toliver Rd

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
8

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\08

_F
un

cti
on

al 
Cla

ss
 C

ha
ng

es
.m

xd
 - m

be
ll -

  1
0:4

4 A
M 

8/1
3/2

01
8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Functional Classification Plan
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Functional Classification
<all other values>
Arterial
Major Collector
Minor Collector
Neighborhood Street
Local Street
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

250



 

PAGE 66 

Unless prohibited by significant topographic or environmental constraint, newly constructed streets shall 

meet the maximum standards indicated in the cross sections. When widening an existing street, the City 

may use lesser standards than the maximum to accommodate physical and existing development 

constraints where determined to be appropriate by the Public Works Director. In some locations “green 

streets” (those that utilize vegetation or pervious material to manage drainage) may be appropriate due 

to design limitations or adjacent land use. Green street elements (as described in the notes for the cross 

section exhibits) may be used where appropriate and as determined by the Public Works Director. 

Table 14: City of Molalla Roadway Cross Section Standards 

Street Element Characteristic Width/Options 

Right-of-way 

Arterial 60-68 feet 

Arterial (Downtown District) 60 feet 

Major Collector 60 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 60 feet 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 50 feet 

Local Street 50 feet 

Vehicle Lane Widths (Typical widths) 

Arterial 10-12 feet 

Arterial (Downtown District) 12 feet 

Major Collector 10-11 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 12 feet 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 11 feet 

Local Street 10 feet 

On-Street Parking 

Arterial 7 feet where applicable 

Arterial (Downtown District) 8 feet 

Major Collector 7 feet where applicable 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) None 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 7 feet 

Local Street 8 feet 

Bike Lanes 

Arterial 
6 feet; 5 feet with 2 feet Buffers on 

OR 213 and OR 211 

Arterial (Downtown District) Shared 

Major Collector 6 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 12 feet shared path 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Shared 

Local Street Shared 

Sidewalks 

Arterial 6 feet, 8-10 feet in commercial areas 

Arterial (Downtown District) 10-12 feet 

Major Collector 6 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 12 feet shared path 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 6 feet 

Local Street 6 feet 

251



 

PAGE 67 

Street Element Characteristic Width/Options 

Landscape Strips 

Arterial Optional 5-6 feet where applicable 

Arterial (Downtown District) 5-6 feet 

Major Collector None 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 12 ½ feet 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route None 

Local Street None 

Median/Turn Lane 

Arterial 12-14 feet 

Arterial (Downtown District) 12-14 feet 

Major Collector 12 feet 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) 14 feet 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 12-feet 

Local Street None 

Neighborhood Traffic Management 

(NTM) 

Arterial Not Appropriate 

Arterial (Downtown District) Not Appropriate 

Major Collector Not Appropriate 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Not Appropriate 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route 
At the discretion of the Public Works 

Director 

Local Street 
At the discretion of the Public Works 

Director 

Transit/Freight 

Arterial Appropriate 

Arterial (Downtown District) Appropriate 

Major Collector Local service only 

Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Appropriate 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Local service only 

Local Street Local service only 

 

  

252



 

PAGE 68 

Exhibit 2: Arterial Cross Sections 

 

Arterial with Center Turn Lane (60-foot ROW, 46-foot Paved Width) 

 

Arterial with On-Street Parking (60-foot ROW, 46-foot Paved Width) 

 
Arterial with Buffered Bike Lanes and Center Turn Lane (68-foot ROW, 52-foot Paved Width) 

 

Arterial with Buffered Bike Lanes (60-foot ROW, 38-foot Paved Width) 

Table 15: Arterial Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 10-12 feet2 

On-Street Parking 7 feet 

Bike Lanes 6 feet; 5 feet with 2 feet Buffers on OR 213 and OR 211 

Sidewalks 6 feet, 8-10 feet in commercial areas 

Landscape Strips Optional 5-6 feet1 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12-14 feet2 

Neighborhood Traffic Management Not Appropriate 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

1. Developer may provide landscape strips w/ dedication of additional right-of-way and maintenance agreement by developer. 

2. On ODOT facilities, the minimum lane width is 12 feet and the minimum median/center turn lane width is 14 feet. 

3. The 12-18” space reserved for utility easement along ODOT facilities can be paved or landscaped based on adjacent use. 

Molalla Avenue – Shirley 

Street to Toliver Road 

Molalla Avenue – Other 

than Downtown District 

OR 213 and OR 211 – 

Other than Downtown 

District 

OR 211 – Fenton Avenue 

to Mathias Road 

253



 

PAGE 69 

Exhibit 3: Arterial (Downtown District) Cross Sections 

 

Arterial with On-Street Parking (60-foot ROW, 40-foot Paved Width) 

 

Arterial with Center Turn Lane – Intersection Treatment (60-foot ROW, 40-foot Paved Width) 

Table 16: Arterial (Downtown District) Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 12 feet 

On-Street Parking 8 feet1 

Bike Lanes Shared 

Sidewalks 10-12 feet 

Landscape Strips 5-6 feet2 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12-14 feet 

Neighborhood Traffic Management Not Appropriate 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

1. On-street parking may be reduced or removed at the discretion of the Public Work Director. 

2. Landscape strips will be located within the 10-12 foot sidewalks and consist of street furniture and tree wells. 

  

OR 211 – Shaver Avenue 

to Fenton Avenue 

Molalla Avenue – Heintz 

Street to 3rd Street 

254



 

PAGE 70 

Exhibit 4: Major Collector Cross Section 

 

Major Collector (60-foot ROW, 34-foot Paved Width) 

 

Major Collector with On-Street Parking (60-foot ROW, 46-foot Paved Width) 

 

Major Collector – Intersection Treatment (60-foot ROW, 46-foot Paved Width) 

Table 17: Major Collector Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 10-11 feet 

On-Street Parking 7 feet 

Bike Lanes 6 feet 

Sidewalks 6 feet 

Landscape Strips None 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12 feet 

Neighborhood Traffic Management Not Appropriate 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

  

Toliver Road – OR 213 to 

N Molalla Avenue 

Shirley Street – Park 

Avenue to OR 211 

Shirley Street – N Molalla 

Avenue to Park Avenue 

255



 

PAGE 71 

Exhibit 5: Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Cross Section 

 

Major Collector with Shared-use Path (60-foot ROW, 34-foot Paved Width) 

Table 18: Major Collector (Molalla Forest Road) Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 11 feet 

On-Street Parking None 

Bike Lanes None 

Sidewalks 12 feet shared path 

Landscape Strips 12 ½ feet 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12 feet 

Neighborhood Traffic Management Not Appropriate 

  

256



 

PAGE 72 

Exhibit 6: Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Cross Section 

 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route (50-foot ROW, 36-foot Paved Width) 

 

Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route with Center Turn Lane – Intersection Treatment 

(50-foot ROW, 34-foot Paved Width) 

Table 19: Minor Collector/Neighborhood Route Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 11 feet 

On-Street Parking 7 feet 

Bike Lanes Shared 

Sidewalks 6 feet 

Landscape Strips None 

Median/Center Turn Lane 12 feet 

Neighborhood Traffic Management 

At discretion of the Public Works 

Director 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

  

257



 

PAGE 73 

Exhibit 7: Local Street Cross Section 

 

Local Street (50-foot ROW, 34-foot Paved Width) 

Table 20: Local Street Cross Section Standards 

Standards Arterial 

Vehicle Lanes 10 feet 

On-Street Parking 8 feet 

Bike Lanes Shared 

Sidewalks 6 feet 

Landscape Strips None 

Median/Center Turn Lane None 

Neighborhood Traffic Management 

At discretion of the Public Works 

Director 

Note: The Public Works Director may require green street variations of each cross section. These variations may include installing 

rain gardens or swales, using pervious material for the sidewalks, and in some cases providing a sidewalk on only one side of the 

street. 

  

258



 

PAGE 74 

STREET SYSTEM CONNECTIVITY 

The future street system needs to balance the benefits of providing a well-connected grid system with the 

challenges associated with existing development patterns and environmental issues precluding street 

system connections. Incremental improvements to the street system can be planned carefully to provide 

route choices for pedestrians, bicyclists, and motorists while accounting for potential neighborhood 

impacts. In addition, the quality of the transportation system can be improved by making connectivity 

improvements to the pedestrian and bicycle system separate from street connectivity. Several new 

arterial and collector street connections are identified in the functional classification plan and the motor 

vehicle plan as future arterial, collector and neighborhood street connections. These connections should 

occur as development occurs or as funding becomes available. The following identifies several local 

street connections that can further support street system connectivity within Molalla. 

LOCAL STREET CONNECTIVITY 

Figure 9 illustrates the location of the local street connections identified for the Molalla TSP update. Table 

21 summarizes the connections and identifies their priority based on the project evaluation criteria. Costs 

are not provided for these projects as they are anticipated to be constructed by future development. 

Any local street connectivity projects that are desired to be city-initiated projects should be identified as 

a high priority and included in the cost-constrained plan. 

Table 21: Local Street Connectivity 

Project 

Number Location Description Priority 

L1 3rd Street Extend 3rd Street from Metzler Street to Hart Avenue Low 

L2 4th Street Extend 4th Street from Metzler Street to Hart Avenue Low 

L3 8th Street Connect 8th Street to 8th Street Low 

L4 Cole Avenue Extend Cole Avenue from roadway terminus to E 5th Street Low 

L5 Andrian Drive Extend Andrian Drive east and south to Stewart Drive Low 

L6 Eric Drive Extend Eric Drive from roadway terminus to north Low 

L7 Faurie Street Extend Faurie Street from roadway terminus to Miller Street Low 

L8 Lynn Lane Exten Lynn Lane from roadway terminus to Hezzie Lane Low 

L9 Patrol Street Extend Patrol Street from roadway terminus to OR 211 Low 

L10 Rachel Lane Extend Rachel Lane from roadway terminus to north Low 

MOTOR VEHICLE FACILITIES 

Streets serve a majority of all trips within Molalla across all travel modes. In addition to motorists, 

pedestrians, bicyclists, and public transit riders use streets to access areas locally and regionally. This 

section summarizes the motor vehicle facilities that were evaluated throughout the planning process to 

address existing deficiencies in the motor vehicle system and future needs. 

259



vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

L5

L7

L3

L2

L1

L8

L4

L9

L6 L10

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
9

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\09

_L
oc

al 
Str

ee
t C

on
ne

cti
vit

y N
ee

ds
.m

xd
 - m

be
ll -

  1
0:4

4 A
M 

8/1
3/2

01
8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Local Street Connectivity
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Local Street Extension
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

260



 

PAGE 76 

TURN LANES 

Separate left- and right-turn lanes, as well as two-way left-turn lanes (TWLTL) can provide separation 

between slowed or stopped vehicles waiting to turn left and through vehicles. The design of turn lanes is 

largely determined based on a traffic study that identifies the need for the turn lane and the storage 

length needed to accommodate vehicle queues. Turn lanes are commonly used at intersections where 

the turning volumes warrant the need for separation. 

TRAFFIC SIGNALS 

Traffic signals allow opposing streams of traffic to proceed in an alternating pattern. National and state 

guidance indicates when it is appropriate to install traffic signals at intersections. Intersections along state 

facilities, such as OR 213 and OR 211 require approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. When 

used, traffic signals can effectively manage high traffic volumes and provide dedicated times in which 

pedestrians and cyclists can cross roadways. Because they continuously draw from a power source and 

must be periodically re-timed, signals typically have higher maintenance costs than other types of 

intersection control. Signals can improve safety at intersections where signal warrants are met, however, 

they may result in an increase in rear-end crashes compared to other solutions. Signals have a significant 

range in costs depending on the number of approaches, how many through and turn lanes each 

approach has, and, if it is located in an urban or rural area. The cost of a new traffic signal ranges from 

approximately $250,000 in rural areas to $350,000 in urban areas and up to $750,000 on state owned 

facilities. 

ROUNDABOUTS 

Roundabouts are circular intersections where entering vehicles yield to vehicles already in the circle. They 

are designed to slow vehicle speeds to 20 to 30 mph or less before they enter the intersection, which 

promotes a more comfortable environment for pedestrians, bicyclists, and other non-motorized users. 

Roundabouts have fewer conflict-points and have been shown to reduce the severity of crashes, as 

compared to signalized intersections. Roundabouts can be more costly to design and install than other 

intersection control types, but they have a lower operating and maintenance cost than traffic signals. 

Topography must be carefully evaluated in considering a roundabout, given that slope characteristics at 

an intersection may render a roundabout infeasible. The cost of a new roundabouts ranges from 

approximately $1 million to $2 million depending upon the number of lanes and the slope conditions. 

MOTOR VEHICLE PLAN 

Table 22 identifies the motor vehicle plan projects for the Molalla TSP update. These projects are intended 

to address existing and projected future transportation system needs for motor vehicles as well as all other 

modes of transportation that depend on the roadway system for travel, such as pedestrians, bicyclists, 

transit users, and freight. As shown, the projects are separated into projects on arterial, collector, and 

neighborhood streets and projects at intersections and in other locations throughout the city. The priorities 

shown in Table 22 are based on the project evaluation criteria and reflect input from the project team 

and the general public. The cost estimates are based on average unit costs for roadway improvements. 

261



 

PAGE 77 

The cost estimates include the cost of right-of-way and the cost of filling in the ditches as appropriate. 

Figure 10 illustrates the location of the motor vehicle plan projects. 

Table 22: Motor Vehicle Plan Projects 

Project 

Number Location Description Priority Cost Estimate 

M1 OR 2131 
Widen OR 213 from the north city limits to OR 211 

to provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Medium $8,825,000 

M2 OR 2131 
Widen OR 213 from OR 211 to the south city limits 

to provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Low $4,335,000 

M3 OR 2111 
Widen OR 211 from the west city limits to OR 213 

to provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Low $1,365,000 

M4 OR 2111 
Widen OR 211 from OR 213 to Shaver Avenue to 

provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Medium $14,505,000 

M5 OR 2111 
Widen OR 211 from Matias Road to the east city 

limits to provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 
Medium $2,580,000 

M6 
N Molalla 

Avenue 

Widen N Molalla Avenue from Toliver Road to 

Shirley Street to provide a continuous 3-lane 

cross section 

Low $175,000 

M7 Leroy Avenue 

Widen Leroy Avenue from Toliver Road to OR 211 

to provide a continuous 2-lane cross section per 

City standards 

Low $580,000 

M8 Mathias Road 

Widen Mathias Road from OR 211 to the south 

city limits to provide a continuous 3-lane cross 

section 

Low $1,065,000 

M9 Shirley Street 

Widen Shirley Street from N Molalla Avenue OR 

211 to provide a continuous 2-lane cross section 

per City standards 

Low $1,345,000 

M10 W 5th Street 
Construct W 5th Street from Lowe Road terminus 

to Hart Avenue 
High $2,845,000 

M11 E 5th Street 
Construct E 5th Street from Mathias Road to 

Feyrer Park Road 
Low $1,675,000 

M12 
Affolter 

Avenue 

Construct Affolter Avenue from southern terminus 

to Frances Street and from Miller Street to north 

city limits 

Low $1,130,000 

M13 
Commercial 

Way 

Construct Commercial Way from the roadway 

terminus to Lowe Road (west) 
Low $365,000 

M14 Hezzie Lane 

Construct Hezzie Lane from the southern 

roadway terminus to the northern roadway 

terminus 

Low $1,180,000 

M15 Leroy Avenue 
Construct Leroy Avenue from OR 211 to Lowe 

Road (east) 
Low $1,170,000 

M16 
Lowe Road 

(west) 

Reconstruct and widen Lowe Road from OR 213 

to Molalla Forest Road to City standards 
Low $4,170,000 

M17 
Lowe Road 

(east) 

Reconstruct and widen Lowe Road from Molalla 

Forest Road to roadway terminus 
Low $3,265,000 

262



 

PAGE 78 

M18 
Molalla Forest 

Road 

Reconstruct and widen Molalla Forest Road as a 

concrete street from OR 211 to Mathias Road to 

provide a continuous 3-lane cross section 

Low $10,740,000 

Intersections 

M19 

OR 213/ 

Meadow 

Road1 

Reconfigure the intersection to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along OR 213 – 

coordinate with Project M1 

Medium $0 

M20-1 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Widen OR 213 to provide a separate left-turn 

lane at the northbound and southbound 

approaches and install a traffic signal with 

protected or protected-permitted phasing when 

warranted – Coordinate with Project M1, the 

signal should be designed to accommodate 

potential for separate left-turn lanes along Toliver 

Road2 

High $1,000,000 

M20-2 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Widen Toliver Road to provide separate left-turn 

lanes at the eastbound and westbound 

approaches and modify the traffic signal to 

provide permitted phasing2 

Low $850,000 

M21 
OR 213/ 

OR 2111 

Install a separate right-turn lane at the 

southbound approach if/when adjacent 

property redevelops2 

Low $150,000 

M22 
OR 211/Ona 

Way1 

Widen OR 211 to provide a westbound left-turn 

lane and install a traffic signal when warranted – 

Coordinate with Project M42 

Low $1,000,000 

M23 
OR 211/ 

Leroy Avenue1 

Widen OR 211 to provide an eastbound left-turn 

lane and install a traffic signal when warranted – 

Coordinate with Project M42 

Low $1,000,000 

M24 

OR 211/ 

Ridings 

Avenue1 

Widen OR 211 to provide an eastbound left-turn 

lane – Coordinate with Project M4 
Low $03 

M25 

OR 211/ 

Molalla 

Avenue1 

Install separate left-turn lanes at the eastbound 

and westbound approaches and a traffic signal 

with protected or protected-permitted phasing 

when warranted2 

High $750,000 

M26 
OR 211/ 

Mathias Road1 
Install a roundabout when warranted2 Low $2,500,000 

M27 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Toliver Road 

Widen N Molalla Avenue to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along N Molalla Avenue 

and install an eastbound right-turn lane when 

warranted – coordinate with Project M5 

Low $150,000 

M28 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Shirley Street 

Widen N Molalla Avenue to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along N Molalla Avenue 

and install a westbound right-turn lane when 

warranted – coordinate with Project M5 

Low $150,000 

M29 

N Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Heintz Street 

Widen N Molalla Avenue to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along N Molalla Avenue 

and reconfigure the intersection as an all-way 

stop 

High $40,000 

263



 

PAGE 79 

M30 

S Molalla 

Avenue/ 

E 5th Street 

Widen S Molalla Avenue to provide a center 

two-way left-turn lane along S Molalla Avenue 

and reconfigure the intersection as an all-way 

stop 

High $40,000 

M31 

S Molalla 

Avenue/ 

Molalla Forest 

Road 

Install a roundabout when warranted Low $2,500,000 

M32 

Feyrer Park 

Road/ 

Mathias Road 

Install a roundabout when warranted Low $2,500,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $4,675,000 

TOTAL Medium Priority Costs $25,910,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $43,360,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $73,945,000 

1. Project will require coordination with ODOT and approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. 

2. Future evaluation may be required to determine the appropriate form of traffic control at this location. 

3. Project cost included in Motor Vehicle Plan. 

  

264



!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!
!!

!!

!!

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

M2

M8

M4

M9

M7 M6

M5

M18

M1

M16

M3

M17

M13

M10

M1
2

M1
4

M1
5

M11

M22

M23
M24

M25

M19

M20

M21

M27

M29

M28

M30
M26

M32

M31

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
10

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\10

_M
oto

r V
eh

ice
 Pr

oje
cts

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  1

0:4
5 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Motor Vehicle Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

!! Intersection Enhancement
Segment Enhancement
New Street Connection
Wetlands
Parks
School Sites
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

265



 

PAGE 81 

TRAFFIC SAFETY PLAN 

Traffic safety has a significant impact on how people use the transportation system within Molalla, 

particularly in areas where real or perceived safety risks may prevent people from using more active travel 

modes, such as walking, biking, and taking transit. The traffic safety solutions identified in TSP update 

process are largely focused on hotspot issues that occur along roadways and at intersections throughout 

the City. While projects that address systemic issues have not been identified for the TSP update, ODOT’s 

All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) program has developed guidance on how to address various 

systemic issues, including roadway departures, intersection crashes, and pedestrian and bicycle-related 

crashes (See https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Engineering/Pages/ARTS.aspx). Table 23 identifies the 

traffic safety projects for the TSP update. Additional safety projects and improvements are identified as 

part of the pedestrian, bicycle, transit, and motor vehicle plans later in this memo. Figure 11 illustrates the 

traffic safety plan projects. 

Table 23: Traffic Safety Plan Projects 

Project 

Number Location Description Priority 

Cost 

Estimate 

S1 OR 2131 
Widen OR 213 from north city limits to OR 211 to include a center 

turn-lane, bike lanes, and sidewalks – Coordinate with Project M1 
Medium 03 

S2 OR 2111 
Widen OR 211 from OR 213 to Shaver Avenue to include a center 

turn-lane, bike lanes, and sidewalks – Coordinate with Project M4 
Medium 03 

S3 
OR 213/ 

Toliver Road1 

Widen OR 213 to provide separate left-turn lanes at the north and 

southbound approaches and install a traffic signal with protected or 

protected-permitted phasing at the northbound and southbound 

approaches when warranted – Coordinate with Project M202 

High 03 

S4 
OR 213/ 

OR 2111 

Install flashing beacons on the advanced warning signs at all 

approaches and improve the signal hardware (i.e. lenses, reflective 

back plates, size, and number) to improve the visibility of the signal 

heads 

High $25,000 

S5 

OR 211/ 

Molalla 

Avenue1 

Install separate left-turn lanes at the eastbound and westbound 

approaches and a traffic signal with protected or protected-

permitted phasing when warranted – Coordinate with Project M252 

High 03 

S6 
OR 211/ 

Leroy Avenue1 

Widen OR 211 to provide a separate left-turn lane at the eastbound 

approach and install a traffic signal with protected or protected-

permitted phasing at the eastbound approach when warranted – 

Coordinate with Project M232 

Low 03 

S7 
OR 211/ 

Mathias Road1 
Install a single lane roundabout2 Low $03 

S8 City-wide1 

Evaluate bicycle and pedestrian safety along OR 213, OR 211, Toliver 

Road, Molalla Avenue, and other key corridors to identify 

appropriate counter measures 

Low $50,000 

TOTAL High Priority Costs $25,000 

TOTAL Low Priority Costs $50,000 

TOTAL Program Costs (22 years) $75,000 

1. Project will require coordination with ODOT and approval from the State or Regional Traffic Engineer. 

2. Future evaluation may be required to determine the appropriate form of traffic control at this location. 

3. Project cost included in Motor Vehicle Plan. 

266



å å

å

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

vÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

ylo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dge

wo
od

Dr

Vil
la g

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pkw
y

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay

W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

S6

S5

S7

S3

S4

S2
S1

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
11

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\11

_T
raf

fic
 S

afe
ty 

Pr
oje

cts
.m

xd
 - m

be
ll -

  1
0:4

6 A
M 

8/1
3/2

01
8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Traffic Safety Plan Projects
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Traffic Safety Plan Projects
!! Intersection Enhancement

Segment Enhancement
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

267



 

PAGE 83 

  

CHAPTER 8: OTHER TRAVEL MODES 

268



 

PAGE 84 

OTHER TRAVEL MODES 
This chapter summarizes the plans for other travel modes in Molalla such as rail, air, water, freight and 

pipeline. 

RAIL TRANSPORTATION 

There are currently no rail lines within Molalla. Oregon Pacific Railroad (formerly Molalla Western Railroad) 

removed the rail lines because they were not serving any customers and the railroad wanted to eliminate 

the cost of maintaining the rail lines and rail crossings. Per the previous TSP, the railroad would be willing 

to replace the tracks and crossings if a customer were found in the area. 

Freight Rail 

There are currently no freight rail terminals within Molalla. The closest freight rail terminal is located in 

Oregon City. 

Passenger Rail 

There are currently no passenger rail terminals within Molalla. The closest passenger rail terminal is located 

in Oregon City and is served by Amtrak. Amtrak provides service between Oregon City (ORC) and 

downtown Portland (PDX) Monday through Friday at 7:24 a.m., 11:15 a.m., and 5:54 p.m. and between 

PDX and ORC at 6:00 a.m., 6:05 p.m., and 9:30 p.m. Travel times vary from 21 to 41 minutes depending on 

time of day and direction. From the ORC stop, the Amtrak Cascades rail line also provides passenger 

service north to Vancouver, British Columbia and south to Eugene. 

PLAN 

While there are no rail transportation projects included in the Molalla TSP update, the City will continue to 

support and promote improvements to the local and regional transportation system to ensure adequate 

access for Molalla residents to freight and passenger rail services. Molalla advocates for good 

connections and service for Amtrak and other passenger rail in the region. 

AIR TRANSPORTATION 

There are no airports located within the City of Molalla; however, a general aviation airport is located 

approximately five miles to the north along OR 213 in Mulino, OR. The Mulino Airport is owned by the 

Oregon Department of Aviation and is open to the general public. The airport has one paved 3,425 x 100-

foot runway and services an average of 58 aircraft operations (takeoffs or landings) per day. A fixed-base 

operator is located at the airport to provide services for general aviation aircraft. Approximately 59 

aircrafts are based at the airport. 

A second airport is located approximately half a mile west of the OR 213/OR 211 intersection, outside the 

Molalla UGB. The Skydive Oregon Airport is owned and operated by Skydive Oregon, a parachute 

jumping operation. The airport has one paved 2,900 x 32-foot runway and services an average of 50 

aircraft operations (takeoffs or landings) per month. Approximately 50 percent of the operations are 

269



 

PAGE 85 

skydive-related. Approximately 20 aircrafts are based at the airport. The closest airport with scheduled 

passenger service is Portland International Airport (PDX), located approximately 35 miles north of Molalla. 

PLAN 

While there are no air transportation projects included in the Molalla TSP, the City will continue to support 

and promote improvements to the local and regional transportation system to ensure adequate access 

for Molalla residents to the Portland International airport and other public and private airports within the 

area. 

WATER TRANSPORTATION 

No navigable waterways are located within the City of Molalla; however, the Molalla River runs south to 

north along the eastern boundary of the city. The Molalla River is not used for transportation, per se; 

however, it is used for recreational purposes. In addition to several single-family homes with private access 

to the river, Feyrer Park, located approximately three miles southeast of Molalla, provides public access 

to the river. Several additional formal and informal accesses are located along OR 211 and the Molalla 

Forest Road, which travels along the western boundary of the river. These river accesses are used year-

round; however, they experience the highest volume of visitors in the summer months. 

PLAN 

While there are no water transportation projects included in the Molalla TSP, the City will continue to 

support and promote improvements to the local transportation system to ensure adequate access for 

Molalla residents to the Molalla River for recreational purposes. 

FREIGHT TRANSPORTATION 

Per the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP), there are no state designated freight routes within Molalla; however, 

ODOT’s Motor Carrier Transportation Division (MCTD) identifies OR 213 and OR 211 as Blue Routes, or routes 

that are unrestricted to standard freight truck traffic, but are either weight or width restricted for non-

divisible and/or heavy haul loads (See https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/MCT/Pages/MotorCarrierAccount.aspx). The 

Clackamas County TSP also identifies OR 213 and OR 211 as truck freight routes that support freight traffic 

throughout the region. 

Per input received throughout the planning process, the volume of trucks passing through downtown 

Molalla, as well as the difficulty some trucks experience turning at the OR 211/Molalla Avenue intersection, 

is a significant issue for the community. Therefore, the freight plan includes designated freight routes and 

freight route restriction on streets throughout the City. The designation of freight routes provides for the 

efficient movement of goods and services while the freight route restrictions maintains neighborhood 

livability, public safety, and minimizes maintenance costs of the roadway system. Figure 12 illustrates the 

designated freight routes and freight route restrictions within the City. 

270



D
D

D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
D

D
DvÍÎ211

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ213

vÍÎ211

En
gle

 Av
e

Section St

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

Ec
ke

rd 
Av

e

Lo
la 

Av
e

Ex
plo

rer
 Av

e

N 
Co

le 
Av

e

Sto
we

rs 
Rd

E 5Th St

W Heintz St

Frances St

Be
rkl

ey
 Av

e

Rid
ing

s A
ve

Ka
e C

t

Le
roy

 Av
e

Br
on

co
 Av

e

Rachel Ln

To
live

r D
r

Ze
ph

er
Wa

y

Coho St

Meadow Dr

Ma
ry 

Dr

Ha
rve

st 
Ln

E 3Rd St

E 4Th St

S G
oo

dti
me

 Rd

S O
na

 W
ay

E Heintz St

Christopher St

W 7Th St

Fe
nto

n A
ve

Eric Dr

E 7Th St

Fin
ne

ys
Av

e

N 
He

zz
ie 

Ln

Hoyt St

Burghardt Dr

E 8Th St

Mt View Ln

Anne Ln

June Dr

Shirley St

Oak St

Ca
sc

ad
e L

n

E 2Nd St

West Ln

Ma
y S

t

Patrol St

Homestead Pl

W 5Th St

Me
tzle

r A
ve

Ha
rt A

ve

Ce
nte

r A
ve

Gr
an

ge
 Av

e

Ke
nn

el 
Av

e

S Warrick Rd

Meadowlark Pl

Miller St

Meadowlawn Pl Julie Ln

Pa
rk 

Av
e

Robbins St

Lynn Ln

Co
rra

l C
t

S Molalla Forest Rd

Ha
rve

y L
n

Sh
av

er 
Av

e

S
Ta

y lo
r C

t

Kelsey Loop

Taurus St

Probe St

Sto
rey

Dr

Escort St

An
dri

an
Dr

Ca
rol

 C
t

D ix
on

Av
e

E 6Th St

We
dgew

oo
d D

r

Vil
lag

e D
r

S Appaloosa Dr

Ind
ian

 O
ak

 C
t

S C
ole

 Av
e

Ind
us

tria
l W

ay

S K
rup

ick
a W

ay

S Barbara Way

S Rachel Lark in Rd

Co
mm

erc
ial

Pk
wy

S F
rap

 Ln

S Vick Rd

S Macksburg Rd

S C
ram

er 
Rd

S Mcco
wn R

d

S Dressler Ln

S A
da

ms
 C

em
ete

ry 
Rd

S Lowe Rd

S B
ea

r M
ea

do
w 

Ct

S K
yllo

 W
ay W Main St

N 
Mo

lal
la 

Av
e

E Main St

Toliver Rd

S M
ath

ias
 Rd

S M
ola

lla 
Av

e

S Toliver Rd S Vaughan Rd

S Feyrer Park Rd

Molalla Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update September 2018

¯

Figure
12

H:
\21

\21
26

6 -
 M

ola
lla

 TS
P U

pd
ate

\gi
s\T

SP
\12

_F
rei

gh
t R

ou
tes

.m
xd

 - m
be

ll -
  1

0:4
6 A

M 
8/1

3/2
01

8

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 HARN StatePlane Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet Intl 
Data Source: Metro Data Resource Center, City of Molalla

Freight Route
Molalla, Oregon

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 Feet

Freight Routes
Freight Route

D D D Freight Route Restriction
Clackamas County Freight Routes
Wetland
Park
School Site
Molalla City Limits
Urban Growth Boundary

271



 

PAGE 87 

PLAN 

Designated freight routes have been identified to address freight mobility and reliability within the City. 

Additional TSMO solutions are identified in the TSMO Plan section for truck signal priority and capacity 

based solutions identified in the Motor Vehicle Plan at several key intersections along OR 213, OR 211, and 

Molalla Avenue to further address freight mobility and reliability. In addition to these improvements, the 

City will continue to support and promote improvements to the regional transportation system that 

improve freight and goods movement. The City will also encourage ODOT to monitor traffic and crash 

patterns along OR 213 and OR 211 and will encourage measures which reduce non-local freight trips on 

City streets. 

PIPELINE 

Power Transmission System 

Portland General Electric (PGE) provides electric power to the Portland metropolitan area from eight 

hydroelectric plants (on the Willamette, Clackamas, Deschutes, and Bull Run Rivers) and six thermal plants 

(in Oregon, Washington, and Montana) with a total power generation capacity of 2,022 megawatts. Its 

service area covers 3,170 square miles and 45 percent of Oregon’s population. As of December 1998, 

PGE system reliability is calculated to be 99.98 percent. In Molalla, a PGE transmission line runs south along 

OR 213 into the Molalla substation – from which distribution lines radiate out into the city – and then to 

Mount Angel. The substation is located southwest of the city along OR 213. 

Natural Gas 

Northwest Natural Gas provides natural gas to the City of Molalla. Northwest obtains its natural gas from 

the Northwest Pipeline via Northwest gate stations and high-pressure transmission lines located outside 

the City. No gate stations, high-pressure transmission lines, or storage facilities are currently located within 

Molalla nor are new ones planned for the area. The nearest high-pressure transmission line runs between 

Oregon City and Salem. Natural gas is transmitted to Molalla from the high-pressure line via smaller mains. 

There are no natural gas supply restrictions in Molalla because the compressibility of natural gas means 

that pipeline capacities are highly variable. Molalla residents who live on a street where natural gas 

distribution line already exists can be easily connected to that distribution line. 

Water 

Molalla operates its own water system and treatment plant. The water source for the city is the Molalla 

River. Two reservoirs are located at the treatment plant southeast of the city and one main line carries 

treated water to the city along Adam Cemetery Road, Freyrer Park Road, and E 5th Street to the athletic 

fields. The city is preparing to expand the capacity of its entire distribution system from two million gallons 

per day to four million gallons per day to accommodate increased demand. 

PLAN 

While there are no pipeline projects included in the Molalla TSP update, the City will continue to support 

and promote improvements to the regional and local pipeline system to ensure adequate services for 

Molalla residents. 

272



 

PAGE 88 

  

CHAPTER 9: FUNDING, IMPLEMENTATION, AND 

MONITORING 

273



 

PAGE 89 

FUNDING, IMPLEMENTATION, AND MONITORING 
This section documents the City’s historical revenue sources and expenditures and identifies the projected 

transportation funding for implementation of the TSP. 

HISTORICAL REVENUE SOURCES 

Historical revenue sources that have contributed to transportation funding for Molalla over the last five 

years includes the state gas tax, Portland General Electric (PGE) franchise fee, surface transportation 

program (STP), and miscellaneous funds. System Development Charges have also contributed to 

transportation funding for Molalla, although SDCs primarily fund transportation system improvements 

related to growth within the city. 

Overall transportation funding has increased over the last five years and is projected to continue to 

increase through FY 2040-41. State gas tax and PGE franchise fees have experienced increases over the 

five year period; however, the state gas tax revenue is expected to plateau in future years due to the 

build out of residential units reaching its maximum zoning potential. 

HISTORICAL EXPENDITURES 

The City organizes historical expenditures into five categories, including personnel services, materials and 

services, capital improvements, fund transfers, and contingencies. The city’s historical expenditures also 

include capital improvements; however, capital improvements are not accounted for in the projections; 

the projections are intended to determine the amount of funds available for capital improvements in the 

future. 

Overall transportation expenditures have increased over the last five years and are projected to continue 

to increase through FY 2040-41. Personnel services and materials and services represent the largest portion 

of the expenditures along with contingencies, while the remainder of all available funding is spent on 

sidewalk and street repair, capital improvements, and transfers. 

PROJECTED TRANSPORTATION FUNDING AND FUNDING OUTLOOK 

Revenue estimates from each of the historical revenue sources were combined and projected out over 

the next 5, 10 and 22 year period to determine the total revenue that is estimated through 2040. Table 24 

summarizes the potential future funding (in year 2018 dollars) through 2040. 

  

274



 

PAGE 90 

Table 24: Future Transportation Funding Projections 

Revenue Source FY 2017-18 5-Year Forecast 10-Year Forecast Estimated Through 

2040 

State Gas Tax $540,000 $2,772,900 $5,545,800 $12,755,340 

PGE Franchise Fee $154,000 $855,202 $1,946,680 $6,412,195 

Miscellaneous $1,000 $5,000 $10,000 $23,000 

Plan Review & Permit Fee $9,000 $45,000 $90,000 $207,000 

System Development 

Charge  

$32,000 $160,000 $320,000 $736,000 

Total $736,000 $3,838,102 $7,912,480 $20,133,535 

 

Estimated expenditures were also combined and projected out over the next 5, 10, and 23 year period. 

Table 25 provides a summary of the potential future expenses (in year 2017 dollars) through 2040. 

Table 25: Future Transportation Expenditures Projections 

Revenue Source FY 2017-18 5-Year Forecast 10-Year Forecast Estimated Through 

2040 

Personnel Service $307,000 $1,781,187 $4,054,484 $13,355,114 

Materials and Services $435,609 $2,527,365 $5,752,995 $18,949,862 

Contingency $70,523 $430,855 $980,748 $3,230,498 

Transfers $50,000 $250,000 $500,000 $1,150,000 

Total $863,132 $4,989,407 $11,288,227 $36,685,474 

 

As shown in Tables 24 and 25, the projected funding from now through FY 2040-41 is approximately 

$20,133,535, and the projected expenditures are approximately $36,685,474. Based on the information 

provided in Tables 24 and 25, the City is expected to have deficit of approximately $16,551,939 over the 

next 23 years. This suggests the City will need to identify other potential revenue sources to fund 

transportation, including implementation of the TSP projects. 

PLANNED SYSTEM COSTS 

Table 26 summarizes the costs associated with the planned transportation system. As shown, the full cost 

of the planned transportation system is approximately $99.1 million over the next 22-year period, including 

$13.9 million in high priority projects, $36.9 million in medium priority projects, and $48.3 million in low priority 

projects. Based on the anticipated funds available for capital improvement projects, there will be less 

than 1 million to fund the projects included in the planned transportation system. This suggests the city will 

need to identify other potential revenue sources to fund the transportation system, including 

implementation of the TSP projects over the 22-year period. 

275



 

PAGE 91 

Table 26: Planned Transportation System Cost Summary 

Project Type High Priority Medium Priority Low Priority Total 

Planned Transportation System 

TSM1 $25,000 $25,000 $60,000 $110,000 

TDM1 $50,000 $100,000 $120,000 $270,000 

Access Management $0 $0 $0 $0 

Safety $25,000 $0 $50,000 $75,000 

Pedestrian $7,305,000 $10,020,000 $3,680,000 $21,005,000 

Bicycle $1,865,000 $650,000 $1,050,000 $3,565,000 

Transit $0 $160,000 $0 $160,000 

Motor Vehicle $4,675,000 $25,910,000 $43,360,000 $73,945,000 

Total $13,945,000 $36,865,000 $48,320,000 $99,130,000 

TSM: Transportation System Management 

TDM: Transportation Demand Management 

1: Includes annual costs occurred every year. 

Given the lack of available funding, the City does not have a “financially constrained” or a “reasonably 

likely” plan. Funding for the projects identified in the TSP as high, medium, and low priority will likely come 

from a combination of private developers (i.e. street system improvements, frontage improvements, 

system development charges), the City (i.e. taxes, fees, bonds), and the State (i.e. Statewide 

Transportation Improvement Program, various other funding programs, grants).2 A summary of these 

potential revenue sources is provided below. 

POTENTIAL REVENUE SOURCES 

This section summarizes potential federal, state, and local funding sources the City could pursue to fund 

the planned transportation system, including projects identified in the likely to be funded plan. 

FEDERAL SOURCES 

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act 

Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act) funds surface transportation programs, including, but 

not limited to, Federal-aid highways. The FAST Act is the first long-term surface transportation authorization 

enacted in a decade that provides long-term funding certainty for surface transportation. The FAST Act 

                                                      

2 Given the funding shortfalls identified in this Plan, none of the projects identified as high, medium, or low priority would be 

considered “financially constrained” or “reasonably likely” for purposes of compliance with section 0060 of the Oregon 

Transportation Planning Rule. The high, medium, and low designations will be used to guide the City’s efforts to pursue 

funding for the transportation system. Furthermore, inclusion of projects in this TSP and identification of state funding as a 

possible source of revenue does not ensure that state funding will be available or allocated to these projects. 

276



 

PAGE 92 

improves mobility on highways by establishing and funding new programs to support critical 

transportation projects to ease congestion and facilitate the movement of freight on the Interstate System 

and other major roads. The FAST Act authorizes $226.3 billion in Federal funding for FY 2016 through 2020 

for road, bridge, bicycling, and walking improvements. 

More information is available at: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/fastact/summary.cfm 

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 

The Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) program provides funding for projects that help 

reduce emissions and meet national air quality standards, such as transportation demand management 

programs, bicycle and pedestrian improvements, transit projects, diesel retrofits, and vehicle emissions 

reductions programs. States are required to provide a non-Federal match for program funds (which has 

not been the case historically for Federal lands highway funding). 

More information is available at: http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/cmaq/ 

Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) 

In 2015, the FAST Act amended the Surface Transportation Program (STP) and chanced the program 

name to the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG). STBG funds are contract authority. STBG 

funds are available for obligation for a period of 3 years after the last day of the fiscal year for which the 

funds are authorized. Thus funds are available for obligation for up to 4 years. The Federal share is generally 

80 percent and 90 percent for projects on the Interstate System unless the project adds lanes that are not 

high-occupancy-vehicle or auxiliary lanes. For projects that add single occupancy vehicle capacity, that 

portion of the project will revert to 80 percent. Safety improvements may have a Federal share of 100 

percent.  

More information is available at: https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/specialfunding/stp/160307.cfm#c 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 

The Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) is a core Federal-aid program with the purpose of 

achieving a significant reduction in traffic facilities and serious injuries on all public roads, including non-

State-owned public roads and roads on tribal lands. Under the MAP-21, approximately seven percent of 

total Federal-aid highway funding is provided for HSIP, amounting to $2.2 billion each year. Highway 

safety improvement projects can be either infrastructure or non-infrastructure projects. All highway safety 

improvement projects must meet HSIP eligibility criteria. The HSIP program requires a local match for 

projects where HSIP funding will be used. For Oregon, this local match is 7.78 percent of the project cost. 

More information on the HSIP Program is available at: https://safety.fhwa.dot.gov/hsip/ 

STATE SOURCES 

All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) 

The All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) program (formerly known as Jurisdictionally Blind Safety 

Program) is intended to address safety needs on all public roads in Oregon. By working collaboratively 

277



 

PAGE 93 

with local jurisdictions (cities, counties, MPO’s and tribes) ODOT expects to increase awareness of safety 

on all roads, promote best practices for infrastructure safety, compliment behavioral safety efforts and 

focus limited resources to reduce fatal and serious injury crashes in the state of Oregon. The program is 

data driven to achieve the greatest benefits in crash reduction and should be blind to jurisdiction. The 

ARTS program primarily uses federal funds from the HSIP with a required local match of 7.78 percent of 

the project cost 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/HWY/TRAFFIC-ROADWAY/Pages/ARTS.aspx 

Connect Oregon 

Connect Oregon is an initiative to invest in air, rail, marine, and bicycle/pedestrian infrastructure to ensure 

Oregon’s transportation system is strong, diverse, and efficient. As a result of the passage of House Bill (HB) 

2017, the following important changes have been made to Connect Oregon. Public transit projects are 

no longer included in Connect Oregon, Connect Oregon now has a portion of the new vehicle dealer 

private fee and the new $15 bicycle excise tax in addition to lottery-backed bonds as funding sources3, 

and the Oregon Transportation Commission is directed to distribute Connect Oregon funds to four specific 

projects: 

 Mid-Willamette Valley Intermodal Facility ($25 million) 

 Treasure Valley Intermodal Facility ($26 million) 

 Rail expansion in east Beach Industrial Park at the Port of Morrow ($6.55 million) 

 Brooks rail siding extension ($2.6 million) 

As a result of the allocated funds associated with the projects listed above, the ODOT does not anticipate 

available funding in the 2017 – 2019 biennium for projects that would have previously been competitive 

for Connect Oregon program funds. After the four projects listed above have been funded, and if funding 

is available, ODOT will announce next steps for the competitive grant process which is expected to occur 

in the 2019 – 2021 or 2021 – 2023 biennia. Project’s eligible for competitive grant funds may receive up to 

70 percent of the project cost through Connect Oregon. A minimum of 30 percent cash match is required 

from the recipient for all grant funded projects (with the exception of Class | Railroads which has a 50 

percent cash match). Project eligible for funding from state fuel tax revenues are not eligible for Connect 

Oregon funding. 

More information is available at:  http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Programs/Pages/ConnectOregon.aspx 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 

The Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is ODOT’s four-year transportation capital 

improvement program. It is the document that identifies the funding for, and scheduling of, transportation 

projects and programs. It includes projects on the federal, state, city, and county transportation systems, 

multimodal projects (highway, passenger rail, freight, public transit, bicycle and pedestrian), and projects 

in the National Parks, National Forests, and Indian tribal lands. STIP project lists are developed through the 

                                                      

3 Bicycle excise tax will only go towards bicycle/pedestrian projects. 

278



 

PAGE 94 

coordinated efforts of ODOT, federal and local governments, Area Commissions on Transportation, tribal 

governments, and the public. 

The STIP is divided into two broad categories: Fix-It and Enhance. The Enhance category funds activities 

that enhance, expand, or improve the transportation system. The project selection process for the 

Enhance category has undergone significant changes in the last few years and reflects ODOT's goal to 

become a more multimodal agency and make investment decisions based on the system as a whole, 

not for each mode or project type separately. The agency has requested assistance from its local partners 

in developing Enhancement projects that assist in moving people and goods through the transportation 

system. The projects are selected through a competitive application process. The Fix-it category funds 

activities that fix or preserve the transportation system. These projects are developed mainly from ODOT 

management systems that help identify needs based on technical information for things like pavement 

and bridges. 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/STIP/Pages/default.aspx 

House Bill (HB) 2017 Transportation Investments 

In August 2017, Governor Kate Brown signed an eight-year transportation tax increase to raise roughly $5 

billion for roads, bridges, mass transit, electric vehicles, and other transit options. House Bill (HB) 2017 

affects drivers, bicyclists and payroll employees by increasing the gas tax, weight-mile tax, and other 

transportation-related fees such as excise tax on the sale of bicycles, new vehicles, and instituting a 

statewide payroll tax equivalent to 1/10th of 1 percent of wages, deducted by employer from payment 

to employee. Though this funding source is one that can be used to finance multitude of project types, 

the City has stated that additional funds received from HB 2017 will be primarily allocated to Materials 

and Services i.e. maintenance of existing transportation facilities and operations. 

More information is available at: http://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Documents/HB2017-FAQ.pdf 

Safe Routes to School 

Safe Routes to School programs are focused on getting more school-age children to walk and bike to 

school. ODOT provides Safe Routes to School grant funding for infrastructure programs, which help create 

and improve safe walking and biking routes to school, and non-infrastructure programs, which raise 

awareness by focusing on education and outreach. Non-motorized transportation projects related to 

getting schoolchildren to school safely are eligible for infrastructure program funding. HB 2017 

reestablished dedicated funding to Safe Routes to School programs. The current funding cycle is focused 

on projects that address a safety risk factor, include a 20 percent cash match, and are within one mile of 

a Title I school. 

More information is available at: https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Programs/Pages/SRTS.aspx 

279



 

PAGE 95 

LOCAL SOURCES 

Economic Improvement Districts (EIDs) 

Transportation improvements can often be included as part of larger efforts aimed at business 

improvement and retail district beautification. Economic Improvement Districts collect assessments or 

fees on businesses in order to fund improvements that benefit businesses and improve customer access 

within the district. Adoption of a mutually agreed upon ordinance establishing guidelines and setting 

necessary assessments or fees to be collected from property owners is essential to ensuring a successful 

EID. 

Local Improvement Districts (LID) 

Local Improvement Districts (LIDs) are most often used to construct projects such as streets, sidewalks, or 

bikeways. Through the LID process, the costs of local improvements are generally spread out among a 

group of property owners within a specified area. The cost can be allocated based on property frontage 

or other methods such as trip generation. The costs of an LID project are borne primarily by property 

owners, moderate administrative costs must be factored in, and the public involvement process must still 

be followed. If the cost of the local improvement is not 100 percent funded by property owners, the City 

is required to contribute the remaining unfunded portion of the improvement. 

Urban Renewal District 

An Urban Renewal District (URD) is a tax-funded district within the City. An URD is normally funded by 

property taxes that are increased incrementally, which is a type of funding that has been used in Oregon 

since 1960. The taxes are increased as a result of construction of applicable improvements. The 

incremental taxes are used, rather than fees, to fund different types of improvements. Transportation 

projects are one type of potential funding use. 

Local Bond Measures 

Local bond measures, or levies, are usually initiated by voter-approved general obligation bonds for 

specific projects. Bond measures are typically limited by time, based on the debt load of the local 

government or the project under focus. Funding from bond measures can be used for right-of-way 

acquisition, engineering, design, and construction of transportation facilities. Transportation-specific bond 

measures have passed in other communities throughout Oregon. Though this funding source is one that 

can be used to finance a multitude of project types, it must be noted that the accompanying 

administrative costs are high and voter approval must be gained. In addition, local bonds for 

transportation improvements will compete with local bonds for other public needs, such as fire and 

rescue, parks and recreation, schools, libraries, etc. 

Optional Tax 

Optional taxes are taxes that a taxpayer elects to pay to fund projects and improvements. Usually not a 

legislative requirement to pay the tax and paid at the time other taxes are collected, optional taxes are 

usually less controversial and easily collected since they require the taxpayer to decide whether or not to 

pay the additional tax. The voluntary nature of the tax limits the reliability and stableness of the funding 

280



 

PAGE 96 

source. In addition, optional taxes for transportation improvements will compete with optional taxes for 

other public needs, such as fire and rescue, parks and recreation, schools, libraries, etc. 

Local Fuel Tax 

A local tax assessed on fuel purchased within the jurisdiction that has assessed the tax. The taxes are paid 

to the city monthly by distributors of fuel. Voters would need to pass the tax, and the process for presenting 

such a tax to voters will need to be consistent with Oregon State law as well as the laws of the City. Nearby 

locations with a gas tax includes Milwaukie (two cents per gallon), Canby (three cents per gallon), Tigard 

(three cents per gallon), Multnomah County (three cents per gallon) and Washington County (one cent 

per gallon). 

User Fees 

Fees tied to the annual registration of a vehicle to pay for improvements, expansion, and maintenance 

to the street system. This may be a more equitable assessment given the varying fuel efficiency of vehicles. 

Regardless of fuel efficiency, passenger vehicles do equal damage to the street system. The cost of 

implementing such a system could be prohibitive given the need to track the number of vehicle miles 

traveled in every vehicle. Additionally, a user fee specific to a single jurisdiction does not account for the 

street use from vehicles registered in other jurisdictions. 

Street Utility Fees/Road Maintenance Fee 

The fee is based a flat fee charged to each property, on the number of trips a particular land use 

generates, or some combination of both and is usually collected through a regular utility bill. For the 

communities in Oregon that have adopted this approach, it provides a stable source of revenue to pay 

for street maintenance allowing for safe and efficient movement of people, goods, and services. As 

indicated previously, the city is currently considering implementation of a street utility fee, which could 

provide the City with an additional funding over the 22 year period. 

General Fund (GF) Revenues 

Revenue from the City’s GF can be allocated to transportation funding at the discretion of the City 

Council during the annual budget process. GF revenues primarily include property taxes, use taxes, and 

any other miscellaneous taxes and fees imposed by the City. GF resources have the potential to fund any 

type of transportation expenditures but would only be available if it had increased revenues or if the City 

Council directs funding that is traditionally allotted to other City expenditures and programs, such as 

Police Departments and other GF programs. 

IMPLEMENTATION 

The Transportation Planning Rule (TPR), as codified in Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 660‐012‐0020(2) 

requires that local jurisdictions identify and adopt land use regulations and code amendments needed 

to implement the TSP. These land use regulations and code amendments are provided under separate 

cover in the staff report. 

281



 

PAGE 97 

  

CHAPTER 10: GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

282



 

PAGE 98 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
The following terms are applicable only to the Molalla Transportation System Plan and shall be construed 

as defined herein. 

Access Management: Refers to measures regulating access to streets, roads and highways from public 

roads and private driveways. Measures may include but are not limited to restrictions on the type and 

amount of access to roadways, and use of physical controls such as signals and channelization including 

raised medians, to reduce impacts of approach road traffic on the main facility. 

Accessway: Refers to a walkway that provides pedestrian and or bicycle passage either between streets 

or from a street to a building or other destination such as a school, park, or transit stop. 

Alternative Modes: Transportation alternatives other than single-occupant automobiles such as rail, 

transit, bicycles and walking. 

American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO): The American Association of 

State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) is a standards setting body which publishes 

specifications, test protocols and guidelines which are used in highway design and construction 

throughout the United States. 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): A civil rights law that prohibits discrimination against individuals with 

disabilities in all areas of public life, including jobs, schools, transportation, and all public and private 

places that are open to the general public. 

Arterial (Street): A street designated in the functional class system as providing the highest amount of 

connectivity and mostly uninterrupted traffic flow through an urban area. 

Arterial Corridor Management (ACM): a series of measures intended to improve access and circulation 

along arterial corridors. 

Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT): A measure used primarily in transportation planning and traffic 

engineering that represents the total volume of vehicular traffic on a highway or roadway for a year 

divided by 365 days. 

Average Daily Traffic (ADT): This is the measurement of the average number of vehicles passing a certain 

point each day on a highway, road or street. 

Bicycle Facility: Any facility provided for the benefit of bicycle travel, including bikeways and parking 

facilities. 

Bicycle Network: A system of connected bikeways that provide access to and from local and regional 

destinations. 

283



 

PAGE 99 

Bicycle Boulevard: Lower-order, lower-volume streets with various treatments to promote safe and 

convenient bicycle travel. Usually accommodates bicyclists and motorists in the same travel lanes, often 

with no specific vehicle or bike lane delineation. Assigns higher priority to through bicyclists, with 

secondary priority assigned to motorists. Also includes treatments to slow vehicle traffic to enhance the 

bicycling environment. 

Bike Lane: Area within street right-of-way designated specifically for bicycle use. 

Capital Improvement Plan (CIP): A community planning and fiscal management tool used to coordinate 

the location, timing and financing of capital improvements over a multi-year period. 

Capacity: The maximum number of vehicles or individuals that can traverse a given segment of a 

transportation facility with prevailing roadway and traffic conditions. 

Central Business District (CBD): This is the traditional downtown area, and is usually characterized by slow 

traffic speeds, on-street parking and a compact grid system. 

Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC): An advisory committee consisting of volunteer citizens from the 

community they represent. 

Collector (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that provides connectivity between 

local and neighborhood streets with the arterial streets serving the urban area. Usually shorter in distance 

than arterials, designed with lower traffic speeds and has more traffic control devices than the arterial 

classification. 

Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality (CMAQ): A program within the federal ISTEA and TEA-21 regulations that 

address congestion and transportation-related air pollution. 

Crosswalk: Portion of a roadway designated for pedestrian crossing and can be either marked or 

unmarked. Unmarked crosswalks are the national extension of the shoulder, curb line or sidewalk. 

Cycle Track: An exclusive bike facility that combines the user experience of a separated path with the 

on-street infrastructure of a conventional bike lane. A cycle track is physically separated from motor traffic 

and distinct from the sidewalk. 

Demand Management: Refers to actions which are designed to change travel behavior in order to 

improve performance of transportation facilities and to reduce need for additional road capacity. 

Methods may include subsidizing transit for the journey to work trip, charging for parking, starting a van or 

car pool system, or instituting flexible work hours. 

Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ): A regulatory agency whose job is to protect the quality of 

Oregon's environment. 

284



 

PAGE 100 

Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD): A public agency that helps communities 

and citizens plan for, protect and improve the built and natural systems that provide a high quality of life. 

Driveway (DWY): A short road leading from a public road to a private business or residence. 

Eastbound (EB): Leading or traveling toward the east. 

Employee Commute Options (ECO): rules that were passed by the Oregon Legislature in 1993 (and 

revised in February 2007) to help protect the health of Portland area residents from air pollution and to 

ensure that the area complied with the Federal Clean Air Act 

Fiscal Year (FY): A year as reckoned for taxing or accounting purposes. 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS): A system designed to capture, store, manipulate, analyze, 

manage, and present all types of spatial or geographical data. 

Grade: A measure of the steepness of a roadway, bikeway or walkway, usually expressed in a 

percentage form of the ratio between vertical rise to horizontal distance, (e.g. a 5% grade means that 

the facility rises 5 feet in height over a 100 feet in length.) 

Grade Separation: The vertical separation of conflicting travelways. 

Green Street: A street designed to reduce or redirect stormwater runoff quantity and/or to improve 

stormwater runoff quality. Green street design generally involves using rain gardens, vegetated swales 

and/or pervious materials (porous pavement or permeable paving) as an alternative to conventional 

stormwater facilities. 

High-capacity Transit (HCT): A form of public transit distinguished from local service transit such as bus lines 

by higher speeds, fewer stops, more passengers, and more frequent service. 

Highway Design Manual (HDM): A manual that provides uniform standards and procedures for the design 

of new roadways and the major reconstruction, rehabilitation, restoration, and resurfacing of existing 

roadways. 

High Occupancy Vehicle (HOV): A vehicle containing two or more occupants, generally a driver and 

one or more passengers. 

Impervious Surfaces: Hard surfaces that do not allow water to soak into the ground, increasing the amount 

of stormwater running into the drainage system. 

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS): the application of advanced technologies and proven 

management techniques to relieve congestion, enhance safety, provide services to travelers and assist 

transportation system operators in implementing suitable traffic management strategies. 

285



 

PAGE 101 

Level of Service (LOS): A qualitative measure describing the perception of operation conditions within a 

traffic steam by motorists and or passengers. An LOS rating of "A” to “F” describes the traffic flow on streets 

and at intersections, ranging from LOS A, representing virtually free flow conditions and no impedance to 

LOS F representing forced flow conditions and congestion. 

Local (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that’s primary purpose is to provide 

access to land use as opposed to enhancing mobility. These streets typically have low volumes and are 

very short in relation to collectors and arterials. 

Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD): A document issued by the Federal Highway 

Administration (FHWA) of the United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) to specify the standards 

by which traffic signs, road surface markings, and signals are designed, installed, and used. 

Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO): An organization in each federally recognized urbanized area 

(population over 50,000) designated by the Governor which has the responsibility for planning, 

programming and coordinating the distribution of federal transportation resources. 

Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP): The list of projects selected by Metro to receive 

regional funding assistance. 

Multi-Modal: Involving several modes of transportation including bus, rail, bicycle, motor vehicle etc. 

Multi-Use Path: Off-street route (typically recreationally focused) that can be used by several 

transportation modes, including bicycles, pedestrians and other non-motorized modes (i.e. skateboards, 

roller blades, etc.) 

National Highway System (NHS): The National Highway System is interconnected urban and rural principal 

arterial and highways that serve major population centers, ports, airports and other major travel 

destinations, meet national defense requirements and serve interstate and interregional travel. 

Neighborhood Route (Street): A street designated in the functional class system that’s primary purpose is 

to provide access to land use, but provides more mobility than a local street. These streets typically have 

moderate volumes and are shorter in relation to collectors and arterials. 

Neighborhood Traffic Management (NTM): Traffic control devices typically used in residential 

neighborhoods to slow traffic or possibly reduce the volume of traffic. 

Northbound (NB): Traveling or leading toward the north. 

Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR): The official compilation of rules and regulations having the force of 

law in the U.S. state of Oregon. It is the regulatory and administrative corollary to Oregon Revised Statutes, 

and is published pursuant to ORS 183.360 (3). 

286



 

PAGE 102 

Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT): ODOT is a public agency that helps provide a safe, 

efficient transportation system that supports economic opportunity and livable communities throughout 

Oregon. ODOT owns and operates two roadways (OR 213 and OR 211) that are located in Molalla or 

provide access to the city. There are street design and operational standards for these roadways which 

supersede Molalla’s street design and operational standards. 

Oregon Highway Plan (OHP): The document that establishes long range policies and investment 

strategies for the state highway system in Oregon. 

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS): The codified body of statutory law governing the U.S. state of Oregon, as 

enacted by the Oregon Legislative Assembly, and occasionally by citizen initiative. The statutes are 

subordinate to the Oregon Constitution. 

Peak Period or Peak Hour: The period of the day with the highest number of travelers. This is normally 

between 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. on weekdays. 

Pedestrian Connection: A continuous, unobstructed, reasonability direct route between two points that 

is intended and suitable for pedestrian use. These connections could include sidewalks, walkways, 

accessways, stairways and pedestrian bridges. 

Pedestrian District: A comprehensive plan designation or implementing land use regulation, such as an 

overlay zone, that establishes requirements to provide a safe and convenient pedestrian environment an 

area planned for a mix of uses likely to support a relatively high level of pedestrian activity. 

Pedestrian Facility: A facility provided for the benefit of pedestrian travel, including walkways, crosswalks, 

signs, signals and benches. 

Pedestrian Scale: Site and building design elements that are oriented to the pedestrian and are 

dimensionally less than those sites designed to accommodate automobile traffic. 

Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP): A planning document that contains policies and 

guidelines to help local jurisdictions implement the policies in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and 

its modal plans, include those for active transportation, freight movement and high capacity transit. 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP): The transportation plan for the Portland Metro region. 

Right-Of-Way (ROW or R/W): A general term denoting publicly-owned land or property upon which public 

facilities and infrastructure is placed. 

Safety Priority Index System (SPIS): An indexing system used by Oregon Department of Transportation to 

prioritize safety improvements based on crash frequency and severity on state facilities. 

Safe Routes to School (SRTS): Federal, state, and local programs that create safe, convenient, and fun 

opportunities for children to bicycle and walk to and from schools. 

287



 

PAGE 103 

Shared Roadway: Roadways where bicyclists and autos share the same travel lane. May include a wider 

outside lane and/or bicycle boulevard treatment (priority to through bikes on local streets). 

Single-Occupancy Vehicle or Single-Occupant Vehicle (SOV): A vehicle containing only a single 

occupant, the driver. 

Southbound (SB): Traveling or leading toward the south. 

Special Transportation Area (STA): An ODOT designation that allows state facilities that run through 

downtown business districts to have alternate mobility standards in an effort to accommodate other 

special needs (such as pedestrian, transit, business, etc.) in an area. 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP): The capital improvement program that identifies 

founding and schedule of statewide projects. 

System Development Charge (SDC): Fees that are collected when new development occurs in the city 

and are used to fund a portion of new streets, sanitary sewers, parks and water. 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC): An advisory committee consisting of state, county, and city staff 

that review and provide feedback on technical memorandums. 

Technical Memorandum (TM): A document that is specifically targeted to technically capable persons, 

such as practicing engineers or engineering managers, who are interested in the technical details of the 

project or task. 

Traffic Control Devices: Signs, signals or other fixtures placed on or adjacent to a travelway that regulates, 

warns or guides traffic. Can be either permanent or temporary. 

Transportation Advisory Board (TAB): A standing advisory board made of up volunteers that comment on 

transportation issues within the City. 

Transportation Analysis Zone (TAZ): A geographic sub-area used to assess travel demands using a travel 

demand forecasting model. Often defined by the transportation network and US Census blocks. 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM): A policy tool as well as any action that removes single-

occupant vehicle trips from the roadway network during peak travel demand periods. 

Transportation and Growth Management (TGM): A program of the Oregon Department of Transportation 

(ODOT) that supports community efforts to expand transportation choices. By linking land use and 

transportation planning, TGM works in partnership with local governments to create vibrant, livable places 

in which people can walk, bike, take transit or drive where they want to go. 

Transportation Management Area (TMA): A Transportation Management Area is an area designated by 

the Secretary of Transportation, having an urbanized area population of over 200,000, or upon special 

request from the Governor and the MPO designated for the area. 

288



 

PAGE 104 

Transportation Planning Rule (TPR): A series of Oregon Administrative Rules intended to coordinate land 

use and transportation planning efforts to ensure that the planned transportation system supports a 

pattern of travel and land use in urban areas that will avoid the air pollution, traffic and livability problems 

faced by other large urban areas of the country through measures designed to increase transportation 

choices and make more efficient use of the existing transportation system. 

Transportation System Management (TSM): Management strategies such as signal improvements, traffic 

signal coordination, traffic calming, access management, local street connectivity, and intelligent 

transportation systems 

Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO): An integrated program to optimize the 

performance of existing multimodal infrastructure through implementation of systems, services, and 

projects to preserve capacity and improve the security, safety, and reliability of our transportation system. 

Transportation System Plan (TSP): Is a comprehensive plan that is developed to provide a coordinated, 

seamless integration of continuity between modes at the local level as well as integration with the 

regional transportation system. 

Two-Way Stop Control (TWSC): An intersection, where one or more approaches is stop controlled and 

must yield the right-of-way to one or more approaches that are not stop controlled. 

Urban Area: The area immediately surrounding an incorporated city or rural community that is urban in 

character, regardless of size. 

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB): A regional boundary, set in an attempt to control urban sprawl by 

mandating that the area inside the boundary be used for higher density urban development and the 

area outside be used for lower density development. 

Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT): The cumulative distance a vehicle travels, regardless of number of 

occupants. 

Volume to Capacity Ratio (V/C): A measure that reflects mobility and quality of travel of a roadways or 

a section of a roadways. It compares roadway demand (vehicle volumes) with roadway supply (carrying 

capacity). 

Westbound (WB): Leading or traveling toward the west. 

289



AMENDMENT NO. 3 

TO THE 

COOPERATIVE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE LIBRARY DISTRICT OF CLACKAMAS COUNTY 

AND 

LIBRARY CITIES 

 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 3 (this “Amendment”) is entered into this ____ day of __________, 

2018, by and between the Library District of Clackamas County (the “District”) a county service district 

formed under ORS Chapter 451, Clackamas County, a political subdivision of the State of Oregon 

(“County”), each of the Cities of Canby, Estacada, Gladstone, Happy Valley, Lake Oswego, Milwaukie, 

Molalla, Oregon City, Sandy, West Linn, and Wilsonville (each, a “City” and collectively, the “Library 

Cities”). 

WHEREAS, the District, the County and the Library Cities entered into that certain 

intergovernmental agreement regarding the distribution of funds from the District to the County and 

Library Cities in support of the provision of library services to the residents of the District (the 

“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, in August 2016, the City of Gladstone filed suit against Clackamas County for 

breach of contract stemming from an IGA between the parties for the construction of a library 

within the City of Gladstone; and 

 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2017, the County and the City of Gladstone entered into a Settlement 

Agreement which contemplates the County will construct and operate two new libraries, one located 

within the City of Gladstone, and one located in unincorporated Clackamas County within the Oak Lodge 

Library service area with a specific site to be determined after appropriate public input; and 

 

WHEREAS, as part of the Settlement Agreement, Clackamas County agreed to undertake good 

faith efforts to effectuate and support any amendments to this Agreement necessary to implement the 

terms of the Settlement Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 3.3 of the Agreement provides for the mechanism of amendment of the 

Agreement to address these changes; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the District, the County, and the Library Cities each agree to the following: 

 

1. This Agreement’s section 1.6 and Attachment B are hereby amended and restated to read in their 

entirety: 

 

1.6 Transition Payments. The District shall distribute funds to Clackamas County for the 

operation of the Oak Lodge Library pursuant to the current Oak Lodge Service area map. To 

the extent the annual distribution of funds to Clackamas County is greater than the annual 

need to operate the Oak Lodge library, the District shall retain such funds in trust for 

Clackamas County for distribution at such time as the County is constructing new library 

facilities. No unincorporated areas assigned to, or reserves accumulated by, the Oak Lodge 

290



Library service area shall be reassigned, contributed or transferred to another Library City.  

 

 

Attachment B 

 

Service population maps are included as Attachment B. 

 

1. The maps divide Clackamas County into library service areas. These areas are based on 

distance, roads, rivers, travel patterns, etc. and are intended to define where people are most likely 

to receive library service, and to give a Library City the ability to meet the library threshold 

standards in Attachment C.  Each Library City's service area has been constructed by assigning 

Census tracts into library service areas. Based on census data compiled every 10 years, the 

population in each census tract will be verified and then the total unincorporated population 

within each service area will be used to calculate the Formula. 

 

 

[See attached maps] 

 

2. A new section 2.4 is hereby added to this Agreement to read in its entirety: 

2.4 Clackamas County as Library City.  The City of Gladstone and Clackamas County desire 

to work cooperatively in the provision of library services in the Gladstone and Oak Lodge 

service areas. Gladstone and the County may enter into separate agreements regarding the 

management of their respective libraries. All parties hereto acknowledge the intention of the 

Plan is to have Clackamas County, through the use of District distributions for the Oak 

Lodge and Gladstone service areas, accumulated reserves referred to in section 1.6 above and 

other non-District revenues, to construct and manage both a new Oak Lodge library and new 

Gladstone library, and that nothing herein shall be construed to restrict or otherwise impair 

such plan. Clackamas County shall be considered a "Library City" in all respects for the Oak 

Lodge Library service area. 

 

 

3. Except as set forth herein, the District, County, and the Library Cities ratify the remainder of the 

Agreement and affirm that no other changes are made hereby. 

 

[Signature Page Follows] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

291



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 

duly authorized officers or representatives as of the day and year first above written. 

 

 DISTRICT & COUNTY 

 

CLACKAMAS COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS, AS THE GOVERNING 

BODY OF THE  

 

LIBRARY DISTRICT OF CLACKAMAS 

COUNTY  

 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

LIBRARY CITIES 

 

THE CITY OF CANBY  THE CITY OF ESTACADA 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

292



THE CITY OF GLADSTONE  THE CITY OF HAPPY VALLEY 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

THE CITY OF LAKE OSWEGO THE CITY OF MILWAUKIE 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

THE CITY OF MOLALLA  THE CITY OF OREGON CITY 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

293



THE CITY OF SANDY  THE CITY OF WEST LINN 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

THE CITY OF WILSONVILLE  CLACKAMAS COUNTY AS LIBRARY 

CITY FOR THE OAK LODGE LIBRARY 

SERVICE AREA 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

By: _________________________________  

 

 

Title: _______________________________ 

 
 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________ 

 

 

294



City of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
Agenda Category: 

New Business 
 

Subject: IGA Amendment Library District 

Recommendation: Adopt 

Date of Meeting to 
be Presented: 

September 26, 2018 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Submitted By: Dan Huff 

Approved By: Dan Huff 

 

Background: in August 2016, the City of Gladstone filed suit against Clackamas County for 

breach of contract stemming from an IGA between the parties for the construction of a library 

within the City of Gladstone; and 

 

on October 16, 2017, the County and the City of Gladstone entered into a Settlement Agreement which 

contemplates the County will construct and operate two new libraries, one located within the City of 

Gladstone, and one located in unincorporated Clackamas County within the Oak Lodge Library service 

area with a specific site to be determined after appropriate public input; 

amendment was needed to incorporate these changes.  

 

295


	Top
	1. City Council Minutes September 12, 2018
	City Council Meeting Minutes Document 912 edit.docx

	2. Information Only Regarding Road Funding by County
	Road Funding by County - Portland Metro Region.pdf
	TEMPLATE_09-17-18.docx

	3. Transportation System Plan Update
	1a 20180926 Public Hearing - TSP.pdf
	2a 20180918 PW Director&amp;#39;s Report - TSP Hearing.pdf
	3a 20180918 Final Draft City of Molalla TSP - Clean Copy.pdf
	4a 20180918 Kittelson Summary of Edits.pdf
	5a 20180918 TSP Edit Redlines for City Council Meeting.pdf
	6a 20180918 ODOT Letter of Approval for TSP Adoption.pdf
	Susan Hansen - Molalla 2018 TSP for PC hearing  Sept 4 2018.pdf

	4. Ordinance 2018-13 Marijuana Processing and Retail
	ITEM-Staff-bbe0f4c535e64a9b93235854684f03a0 (10).docx
	Ordinance 2018-13 Marijuana.docx
	City Council P17-2018 Memo &amp; Report - Final.pdf

	5. Ordinance 2018-14 Transportation System Master Plan
	Ordinance 2018-14 Transportation System Master Plan.docx
	Exhibit A.pdf

	6. Library District IGA
	FINAL_IGA_AMENDMENT_NO_3.docx
	ITEM-Staff-bbe0f4c535e64a9b93235854684f03a0 (27).docx

	Bottom



